
The YouTube channel "City of Franklin WI" will be live streaming the Committee of the Whole
meeting so that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityotFranklinWIGov

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING

FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA*

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2023 AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order and Roll Call.

B. Fire Department Administration will provide information on historic, current, and future
provision of Fire and EMS Services in Franklin, for discussion and future decision-making by
the Common Council.

C. Status update on the rewrite of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO).

D. An Ordinance to Repeal Chapter 165 of the Municipal Code and to Repeal and Recreate
Chapter 129 of the Municipal Code and to Rename Chapter 129 From "Filling and Grading" to
"Land Disturbing Construction Activities."

E. An Ordinance to Amend $207-21 of the Municipal Code regarding Special Assessments of
Water Main Laterals.

F. Adjournment.

Supportmng documentation and detals of these agenda items are available at City Hall during normal business hours

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts wll be made to accommodate the needs of disabled mdrvduals through appropriate aids and
services For additional information, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500 ]



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

Background:

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Fire Department Administration will provide
information on historic, current, and future

provision of Fire and EMS Services in Franklin, for
discussion and future decision-making by the

Common Council.

MEETING
DATE

9-6-93
ITEM NUMBER

6.

The fire department strives to provide high quality Fire Suppression and Emergency Medical Services
to the residents of and visitors to the City of Franklin, and currently does so from three fire stations.
Fire Station #2 was constructed adjacent to the Franklin Business Park approximately 23 years ago, at
a time when the park was expanding. At the time, it was generally accepted that a fourth fire station
would be required to serve the South-West quadrant of Franklin if and when development to that
area occurred. Significant development is ongoing in that area of the city, with new residential
occupancies already constructed and occupied.

Fire & EMS Service best practices call for deployment of fire and EMS resources so as to provide for a
four-person fire suppression company, and for trained EMS providers equipped with an automatic
external defibrillator to arrive within 240 seconds of travel time for 90 percent of incidents. These
response times are established based on studies of the time that it takes for a fire to develop and
evolve from contents and furnishings burning, to structural members of the house or building
becoming involved. In the case of EMS, the times are based on how long the heart can maintain
enough electrical activity to be successfully defibrillated.

Significant residential development is occurring in areas of the city that current fire department
staffing and station locations do not adequately serve in context of the considerations above.

Fire Department Administration will provide information and options for future consideration of its
staffing and deployment model.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Informational Only.

Fire:AJR



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

Status update on the rewrite of the
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO)

MEETING DATE
02/06/2023

ITEM NUMBER

0.
City Development staff presented the previous status update to the Common Council on
November 15, 2022. The Common Council carried a motion to place the discussion of the Unified
Development Ordinance (UDO) rewrite to this February Committee of the Whole meeting.

STATUS

The UDO rewrite project consists of 6 steps:
1. Project Kick Off. Staff and the consultants conducted a project kick-off meeting and

organized an UDO Rewrite Task Force, including the Plan Commission, 1 member of the
Economic Development Commission, and 2 members of the Environmental Commission.

2. Public Engagement. Staff and the consultants held informational sessions with the public at
City Hall on August 26, 2021, and at the St. Martins Fair in September 2021; had discussions
with the Plan Commission and the Common Council on expectations of this process; and
conducted stakeholder interviews.

3. Current UDO Diagnosis and Preliminary Recommendations. Presentation to the Task Force
on February 3, 2022 and status update to the Common Council on February 15, 2022.

4. Draft UDO Sections and Review Meetings with the Task Force at the Plan Commission
(in progress):
• 1Workshop, September 8 and 21, 2022.

Articles: 1. General Provisions, 2. Establishment of Districts, 3. District Specific Standards
and 4. Use Specific Standards.

• 24Workshop, November 3 and 17, 2022.
Articles: 5. General Development Standards and 6. Sign Standards.

• 34 Workshop, informative session on February 9 and full session on February 23, 2023,
(in progress)
Articles: 8. Subdivision Standards and 9. Administration Standards and Procedures.

• Next Workshops, dates TBD.
Articles: 7. Natural Resource Standards, 10. Planned Unit Developments,
11. Nonconforming structures, lots and uses, and 12. Definitions.

Attachments: Table of contents, draft articles 1-9 and draft zoning map are attached to this
packet. Articles 1-6 include revisions following the workshops with the Task Force, but
articles 8-9 have not been reviewed yet by the Task Force.



5. Draft and Final UDO. (anticipated for 1semester of 2023)
Draft UDO, staff working session, UDO rewrite informational brochure, Task Force
workshop, workshop with elected officials, public open house, final UDO and legal review.

6. Adoption and Implementation. (anticipated for 2d semester of 2023)
Public hearing and adoption.

Below is a list with some of the proposed changes to the current UDO:

• Consolidation of the current 38 zoning districts into 22, reducing redundancy (Article 2).
• The SIC use classification is replaced with broader use categories (Article 2).
• For residential districts, density would be regulated only by minimum lot area and width,

density standards removed (Article 3).
• Minimum living area standards removed (Article 4).
• Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU) would be allowed in residential districts (Article 4).
• New standards for food trucks, outdoor dining, short-term rentals, solar energy collection

systems as well as townhomes and multifamily buildings (Article 4).
• Minimum parking ratios replaced with maximum ratios. New standards for bicycle

parking and pedestrian circulation (Article 5).
• Signs standards moved from the Municipal Code to the new UDO (Article 6).
• New connectivity index for subdivisions (Article 8).
• Streamlined review process. For example, the Zoning Administrator would have authority

to approve site plans, except for projects with more than 100,000 sq. ft. of floor area (Article
9).

FISCAL NOTE

No impact, agreement already in place. This is a status update only.

BACKGROUND

The UDO is being revised and updated as recommended by the local comprehensive plan:
"Based upon the number of potential zoning, land division, and design related changes
identified in the City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan, it is herein recommended
that the City undertake an update of the Unified Development Ordinance as soon as practical"
(Land Use chapter, page 85).

The Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) rewrite is being developed by the Department of
City Development, with assistance from planning firms Houseal Lavigne Associates, LLC and
Birchline Planning, LLC. The Common Council authorized a professional agreement with these
consultants in June 2021.

This item is a status update on this project. No action is required at this time.

City Development-RMM



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Table of Contents

Article 1. Genera Provisions

Article 2 Establishment of Districts

Article 3. Distnct Specific Standards

Article 4. Use-Specific Standards

Article 5 General Development Standards

Article 6 Sign Standards

Article 7. Natural Resource Standards

Article 8. Subdivision Standards

Article 9 Adm1nistrat1ve Standards and Procedures

Article 10. Planned Unit Development

Article 11 Nonconforming Structures, Lots, and Uses

Article 12 Definitions

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Page

Table of Contents
Page 1 of 1



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Article 1. General Provisions

15-1-01 Title

15-1-02 Purpose

15-1-03 Intent

15-1-04 Interpretation

15-1-05 Junsdiction

15-1-06 Vested Rights

15-1-01. Title

2

2

2

A This Ordinance shall be known as, referred to, or cited as, "Unified Development Ordinance, City of Franklin, Wisconsin" or
the "UDO"

15-1-02. Purpose

A The purpose of this UDO is to promote the health, safety, morals, prosperity, aesthetics, and general welfare and to regulate
and control the division of land wthin the limits of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin

15-1-03. Intent
It Is the general intent of this UDO to regulate the d1v1s1on of land and restrict the use of all structures, lands, and waters to
achieve the following objectives

A Regulate and control development dens1t1es and formats to prevent overcrowding and to provide adequate sunlight, air,
sanitatton, and drainage

B Regulate population density and d1stnbullon to avoid inefficient land use and development patterns, to further the orderly
layout and appropriate use of land, and to facilitate the provston of adequate public service and ut1ht1es

C Regulate parking, loading, and access to lessen congestion and promote the safety and efficiency of streets and highways

D Ensure safety from fire, flooding, pollutIon, contammatIon, panic, and other dangers

E Stabilize and protect existing and future property values

F Encourage compatbltty between different land uses and protect from the encroachment of incompatible development

G Further the wise use and conservation of natural resources including soils, topography water, floodplains, shorelands,
dra1nageways, wetlands and shoreland wetlands, woodlands and forests, scenic resources, and wildlife resources

H Prevent flood damage to persons and property to min1m1ze expenditures for flood relief and flood control projects

Provde for and protect a vanety of suitable commercial and industnal sites

J Protect the traffic-carrying and pedestrian capacity of existing and proposed arterial streets, highways, and collector streets

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 1 General Provisions
Page 1 of 3



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

K Facilitate adequate provstons for housing, transportation, pedestrian access, water supply, stormwater, wastewater,
schools, parks, playgrounds, and other pubhc facrhtres and services

L Control building sites in areas covered by poor soils or in other areas poorly suited for development due to natural resource
features or other characteristics

M Factate the appropnate dvsion of larger tracts into smaller parcels of land

N Ensure adequate legal descriptrons and proper survey monumentaton of subdrvded land

O Implement the municipal, County, watershed, or regional plans or their components adopted by the City and facilitate the
enforcement of those development standards

P Provide for the admrnrstratron and enforcement of thrs UDO

15-1-04. Interpretation

A Minimum Standards Established. The provrsrons of thrs UDO shall be interpreted as minimum requirements, unless
otherwise stated, and shall not be deemed a limrtatron or repeal of any other power granted by theW1scons1n Statutes

B Severability. If any part, drvson, section, provsuon, or portion of thus Ordnance is adjudged unconstitutional, or Invalid by a
court of competent jUri5drctron, the remainder of ths UDO shall not thereby be affected but shall remain In full force and
effect If an application of th15 UDO to a particular structure, land, or water 15 adjudged unconstrtutronal or invalid by a court
of competent 1unsd1ct1on, such Judgement shall not be applicable to any other structure, land, or water not specifically
Included in sad judgement

15-1-05. Jurisdiction

A The jurisdiction of thus Ordinance shall apply to all structures, lands, water, and air wthmn the corporate limits of the Cty of
Franklin

15-1-06. Vested Rights

A Construction and Uses Approved Prior to UDO Effective Date. All buildings, structures, and uses authorized by permit
prior to the effective date of this UDO or any amendment thereto shall be subject to the applicable provIsIons of the UDO at
the time of approval

B Applicability to Pending Applications. When a complete applcaton for a zoning action Is submitted but pending action
by the City on the effective date of this UDO, the provIsIons in effect when the application was filed shall govern the review
and approval Upon the refiling of any pending application after the effective date of this UDO, the refiled apphcatIon shall
such application shall be subject to the applicable provisions of this UDO at the time of submittal

C Construction Allowed pursuant to Approved Plans. Nothing in this UDO shall require a change in the plans for any
structure or use if a building permit or certificate of occupancy for such structure was lawfully Issued pror to the effective
date of this UDO or any such amendment thereto, and such burldmg or certificate of occupancy had not by its own terms
expired pnor to the effective date of this UDO, and construction pursuant to such permit Is commenced pnor to the
expiration date of such permit

D Building Permit. Where a building permit for a building or structure has been Issued pnor to the effective date of this UDO
and construction Is commenced within ninety (90) days of the effective date of this UDO, the building or structure may be
completed In accordance with the approved plans for which the building permit has been issued

E Final Subdivision Plat Any preliminary subdivision plat filed prior to the effective date of thrs UDO shall vest such approval
nghts upon the approval of the prehminary subd1v1sIon plat Any subsequent final subd1v1s1on plat may be subsequently filed
In accordance wth the approved preliminary plat

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 1 General Provisions
Page 2 of 3



City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Article 1 General Provisions
Page 3 of 3



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Article 2. Establishment of Districts

15-2-01 Districts Established

15-2-02 Purpose and Intent of DIstncts

15-2-03 Official Zoning Map

15-2-01. Districts Established

A Base Districts.

Residential Districts.

a R-C - Conservation Residence DIstnct

b R-SE - Suburban/Estate Residence Distnct

c R-SR - Suburban Residence DIstnct

d R-M- Multiple-Unit Residence Distnct

e R-V - Village Residence DIstnct

2 Commercial and Mixed-Use Districts.

a B-N - Neighborhood Business DIstnct

b B-G - General Business District

co B-R- Regional Business DIstnct

d B-MU - South 27 Street Mpxed-Use District

e B-SM- Sant Martin's Road Hustonc Business DIstnct

3 Industrial and Agricultural Districts.

a B-P- Business Park District

b LI-Limited Industnal Distnct

c A- Agricultural DIstnct

d A-P- Agncultural Pnme Distnct

4 Miscellaneous Districts.

a p- Park and Open Space District

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

2

2

4
4

Article 2 Establishment of Districts
Page 1 of 5



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

b I-Institutional DIstnct

c L- Landfill Distnct

d PDL - Planned Development Legacy Dstnct

5 Floodplain Districts.

a FW - Floodway D1stnct

b GFP - General Floodplain DIstnct

c FF- Floodfnnge DIstnct

15-2-02. Purpose and Intent of Districts

A Residential Districts

R-C - Conservation Residence District. The R-C Conservation Residence District 1s intended to allocate land for
sIngle-family resdental uses on large lots and in low-density settings The DIstnct is further intended to preserve open
space, sensItIve natural features, and maintain the community's rural residential setting and scenic v1ewsheds where
these assets exist in the southern areas of the City

2 R-SE - Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence District. The R-SE Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence
DIstrct is intended to provde land for single-family resdental housing In moderately-low densities and that is suburban
or semi-rural in character The DIstnct Is further intended to preserve and protect the City's natural resources, including
woodlands and open spaces

3 R-SR - Suburban Single-Family Residence District. The R-SR Suburban Single-Family Residence District Is
intended to provide land for single-family suburban residential housing at moderately low densities The District Is
designed to preserve the community's suburban and semi-rural character and its open space and natural resources
The district 1s intended to allow infill in locations where moderately low-density neighborhoods exist and to allow new
residential growth as the community determines is appropnate

4 R-M- Multiple-Family Residence District. The R-M Multiple-Famly Residence DIstnct is intended to establish and
preserve land for both mult1fam1ly and single-family attached res1dent1al development such as duplexes, townhomes,
and rowhomes to accommodate a variety of households with different lifestyles, age ranges, and incomes The District
Is Intended to allow a flexible mix of scales, dens1t1es and formats throughout the community while ensuring that the
single-family attached and multifamily res1dent1al uses enhance the character of Franklin's res1dent1al setting,
contribute to the community's visual appeal, and ensure the adequate prov1s1on of open space

5 R-V- Village Residence District. The R-V Village Residence District 1s intended to preserve the single-family
residential character and architectural qualities of the Saint Martin's Histonc Village Area The District is intended to
allow new single-family residential infill on vacant or underused sites in the Village area, provided that such
development 1s consistent with the historic visual character and preserves its moderate res1dent1al density

B Commercial and Mixed-Use Districts

B-N - Neighborhood Business District. The B-N Neighborhood Business District 1s intended to provide for the day
to-day retail, commercial service, and employment needs of Franklin residents, particularly the needs of the
neighborhoods adJacent to properties in the District The District 1s further intended to promote a mutually supportive
mix of small-scale retail establishments and to ensure safe and convenient pedestrian and vehicular cIrculatIon on-site
and between adjacent sites as redevelopment of existing sites occurs

2 BG- General Business District. The B-G General Business District 1s intended to promote a variety of commercial
service and retail uses along the City's major roadways The District 1s intended to allow moderately large-scale

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 2 Establishment of Distncts
Page 2 of 5



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

development that serves the general population of Franklin It Is further intended to promote commercial development
m visually appealing plaza formats that promote safe and convenient pedestrian travel on sites and between adJacent
sites and neighborhoods

3 B-R- Regional Business District. The B-R Regional Business District Is intended to promote a variety of commercial
service and retail uses along the City's mayor roadways to serve the needs of Franklin residents as well as a regional
consumer market beyond the City's borders Moderately large-scale development should be configured with groups of
large-lot commercial structures with outlot commercial buildings surrounding shared parking areas and should provide
safe and convenient pedestrian travel on-site, and when practicable, between other sites and neighborhoods

4 B-MU - South 27Street Mixed-Use District. The B-MU South 27 Street Mixed-Use District Is intended to provide
land for a mutually-supportive combination of retail, commercial, office, and compact res1dent1al uses m buildings'
upper floors along South 27% Street Development is configured mn multi-building plaza formats and on relatively large
sites The D1stnct Is intended to facilitate greater dens1t1es of retail, commercial, office, and resident1al uses than mn the
B-1 through B-3 Districts, given South 27 Street's direct access to bus transit The development should further be
arranged m cohesive plaza developments that facilitate convenient vehicle and pedestrian travel and enhance the
corridor's appearance

5 B-SM - Village Business District The B-SM Village Business District Is intended to promote a mix of commercial
retail, service, and upper-floor residential uses mn the hrstonc Sant Martin's Vllage area while mantamnng the area's
traditional character and built form The DIstnct is designed to preserve historic structures while allowing infill
development on underused sites that is consistent wth the area's built characterstcs and architectural qualities
Development should continue to be formatted in small lots and buildings should be placed relatively near front lot Imes
to preserve the area's pedestrian-oriented character

C Industrial and Agricultural Districts.

B-P - Business Park District. The B-P Business Park District Is intended to promote a flexible mx of light industnal,
research, and office uses in a campus like setting Uses are conducted primarily indoors and do not have the potential
to generate nuisances to adorning properties Circulation systems should be integrated mnto the site mn a cohesive
manner to ensure convenient pedestrian and vehicular travel

2 LI - Limited Industrial District. The LI Lumrted Industnal Distnct is intended to provide land for manufacturing,
industrial, warehousing, and s1m1lar uses of a hm1ted scale and intensity The d1stnct Is intended to support employment
opportunities in the City while maintaining the community's natural resources and neighborhood character

3 A - Agricultural District. The A Agricultural District Is intended to preserve land in the City historically used for small
farmmg operations engaged in crop production, the raising of livestock, the cultivation of orchards, and other small
scale agricultural activities The dstnct also accommodates limited sIngle-family housing The District Is intended to
preserve the large contiguous parcels of land that are characteristic of the community's rural areas

4 A-P - Prime Agricultural District. The A-P Pnme Agricultural D1stnct Is intended to preserve and protect land In the
City historically designated as pnme agricultural land in the City of Franklin's Comprehensive Plan The D,stnct Is
intended to preserve the natural integrity, agricultural productivity, and scenic qualities of these lands while allowing
limited single-family resident1al development

D Miscellaneous Districts

P - Park and Open Space District. The P Park and Open Space DIstnct is intended to provide land for parks and
recreational facilities that meet the needs of the Franklin community while also preserving the City's natural resources,
including rivers, woodlands, and open space

2 I - Institutional District. The I Institutional D1stnct 1s intended to allocate land for public or semr-publc uses, municipal
fac1ilt1es, ut1l1t1es, and noncommercial places of assembly as defined in this UDO The d1stnct serves to accommodate
exIstIng and future public and semi-public uses and to allocate land separately from commercial and res1dent1al uses

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 2 Establishment of D1stncts
Page 3 of 5



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

3 L - Landfill District. The L Landfill D1stnct 1s intended to contain and regulate existing and former landfill uses in the
City while mitigating therr adverse impacts such as odor, nose, and traffic on the community's commercial and
residential areas

4 PDL - Planned Development Legacy District. The PDL Planned Development Legacy D1stnct includes properties
that have been previously zoned as a "planned development d1stnct" and are governed by a unique set of regulations
as set forth in the related planned development ordinance Properties zoned n the Legacy Planned Development
D1stnct will continue to operate under their specific planned unit development ordinance No property may be rezoned
mto the Legacy Planned Development District after the date of the adoption of this chapter

E Floodplain Districts.

FW - Floodway District. The FW Floodway District, 1s the channel of a nver or stream and those portions of the
floodplain adjoining the channel required to carry the regonal floodwaters, wthin AE Zones as shown on the FIRM, or
within A Zones shown on the FIRM when determined according to s 51(5)

2 GFP . General Floodplain District. The GFP General Floodplain District 1s those riverine areas that may be covered
by floodwater during the regional flood in which a floodway boundary has not been delineated on the FIRM and also
includes shallow flooding areas 1dent1fied as AH and AO zones on the FIRM

3 FF - Floodfringe District. The GFP General Floodplain D1strict 1s those riverine areas that may be covered by
floodwater dunng the regional flood m which a floodway boundary has not been delineated on the FIRM and also
includes shallow flooding areas 1dent1fied as AH and AO zones on the FIRM

15-2-03. Official Zoning Map

A Official Zoning Map Established. The location and boundaries of the d1stricts established by this UDO shall be .established
m the Zoning Map as amended, which 1s incorporated herein and hereby made a part of this Ordinance

B District Boundary Description and Interpretation.

Zoning Boundary Determination. The dstnct boundantes shall be streets, alleys, railroads, lot Imes, streams,
floodplain boundanes, and wetland boundanes unless otherwise shown on the Zoning Map

2 Zoning Boundary Determination for Approximate Boundaries. Where the designation of the Official Zoning Map
Indicates that vanous zoning dstncts are approximately bounded by a street, alley, lot lune, stream, floodplain
boundary, or wetland boundary, such lot line or the centerline of such street, alley, or railroad right-of-way, or centerline
of the main channel of such stream, the floodplain boundaries, or wetland boundaries as delineated on maps prepared
by the City or under the Root River Watershed study, or as determined through the use of on-site wetland delineation,
flood profiles and accompanying hydrologc and hydraulic engineering data, shall be construed to be the zoning district
boundary line

3 Split Zoning of New Lots Prohibited. The split zoning of any newly created lot or parcel into more than one zoning
d1stnct shall not be allowed except for parcels split between a district and the AO, GFP, FW, and FF DIstncts

4 Zoning of Annexed Land Any add1t1ons to the incorporated area of the City of Franklin shall be classified m the A
Agricultural DIstnct until otherwse classified by amendment

a Annexations or Consolidations Containing Shorelands. Annexations containing shorelands shall comply with
$62 231 of the Wisconsin Statutes

b Annexations or Consolidations Containing Floodplains. Annexations or consolidations contammg floodplains
shall be placed m the following districts as applicable

All floodways and unnumbered A Zones on the FEMAmap shall be placed mn the FW Floodway D1stnct

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 2 Establishment of D1stncts
Page 4 of 5



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

11 All other floodplains shall be placed in the GFP General Floodplain District

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 2 Establishment of DIstricts
Page 5 of 5



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Article 3. District Specific Standards

15-3-01 Bulk and Dimensional Standards

15-3-02 Calculating Dimensional Standards

15-3-03 Exceptions to Bulk and Dimensional Standards

15-3-04 Permitted, Limited, Conditional, and Temporary Uses

15-3-05 B-SM- Saint Martin's Road Hustonc Business DIstnct Specific Standards

15-3-06 FF Floodfnnge Distnct and GFP General Floodplain Distnct

15-3-01. Bulk and Dimensional Standards

A Residential District Bulk and Dimensional Standards. Table 15-3 0100(A) establishes the bulk and d1mens1onal
requirements for development or the use of a lot in each residential district
- --- --- ---- -- ---- - -- -- --- -- - - -- - - --

Table 15-3-01(A): Residential District Bulk and Dimensional Standards
Standard R-C R-SE R-SR R-M R-V
lLot Standards (Minimum)
t. - -- - '

1

2
3

4

8

9

Lot Area (sqft)
Lot Area / DU (sqft)(2)

10,000 18,000 10,000 12,000(1)
4,500

7,200

Lot Width (ft)
Lot Depth (ft)

60 90
110 110

80
110

100
110

60
110f\ --- - - -- - --- - - - - -- -- ---- -- - ~

{Yard Setbacks (Minimum) l
Front (ft)
Street Side (ft)
Intenor SIde (ft)
Rear (ft)

25
15

45 30
20

15
10

25
15

(1) A lot area of 6,000 square feet shall be allowed for duplex structures with a part1 wall
(2) Lot area per dwelng unit requirements shall apply n addition to the baseline lot area requirement for each additional
dwelling umt on a lot over one
(3) M 1mm um setback of 10 feet shall be allowed for garages

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 District Specific Standards
Page 1 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

B Mixed-Use and Nonresidential District Bulk and Dimensional Standards. Table 15-3 0100 (B) establishes the bulk and
d1mens1onal requirements for development or uses of a parcel m each mixed-use or nonresrdent,al drstnct.

Table 15-3-01(B): Mixed-Use and Nonresidential District Bulk and Dimensional Standards
Standard B-N B-G B-R B-MU B-SM BP LI A A-P I P~!Y1)-_~~--- ---- --- - - _- --- ~- --- - --- -- - - --- --- :

Lot Area (acres) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 3 35 n/a n/a
Lot Width (ft) 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 200 300 50 50
Lot Depth (ft) 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110
[Yard Setbacks(Minimum) ]
Front (ft) 25 25 40 30(1) 10 50 30 50 50 30 50
Street Side (ft) 25 25 40 30(1) 15 50 30 50 50 20 50
I ntenor Side (ft) 10 10 10 10(1) 5 20 20 25 25 10 20
Rear (ft) 20 20 20 30(1) 20 40 15 50 50 30 50

eight Building (ft)
. · ··· · ·······... Jrvt@mumt .. -·· --~ -·-----· _ _ ..... ·-- ·---····

IIIIIIIIIIIIE!llmmlllllllllllEII
EONEEEEEOEEEREDE,OREO..

(1) 40% of the required setback may be reduced when at least 15% of dwelling umts on site are deed restncted to be affordable
relative to 80% of the Milwaukee County Area Median Household Income A m,mmum of 1 total dwelling umts shall be provided on
stte to qualify
(2) An additional ten (10) feet of buldung height shal be allowed when at least 15% of dwelling units on ste are deed restncted to be
affordable relative to 80% the Milwaukee County Area Medan Household Income A mnmum of 1 total dwelling unrt shall be
provided on srte to qualify

15-3-02. Calculating Dimensional Standards

A Lot Width. Lot width shall be measured as the distance between the side lot lines of a lot at nght angles to its depth along a
straight lne parallel to the front lot line

B Lot Widths for Lots that Abut a Cul-de-Sac. The lot width of all lots which abut a cul-de-sac may be reduced by a
maximum of twenty (20) percent of the required lot wdth for the distnct in which rt rs located, as measured from the front lot
line

C Yard Setbacks.

1 A required yard setback shall be measured as the honzontal distance from the center point of the applicable lot line
Into the intenor of the lot for the mnmum distance specified mn Table 15-3 0100(A) or Table 15-3 0100(B)

2 The span of a yard setback shall be measured as follows

a Front Yard. From the mntenor side lot line to the other intenor side lot line or street side lot line as applicable

b Street Side Yard From the front yard setback lrne to the rear lot lrne

c Interior Side Yard From the front yard setback lrne to the rear yard setback line

d Rear Yard

From the intenor sde lot line to the other intenor side lot line, or

II From the mntenor side lot lrne to the street side yard setback lrne

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordnance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 2 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

D Height. Building height shall be the vertical distance measured from the mean elevation of the finished lot grade along the
bu1ld1ng frontage to the highest elevation of the roof

15-3-03. Exceptions to Bulk and Dimensional Standards

A Height Exceptions. The following structures may exceed the height hm1tat1ons established m Table##-### and##-### as
follows

Architectural Projections. Architectural projections such as antennae, spires, steeples, belfries, parapet walls,
cupolas, domes, flues, and chimneys may exceed the height limit for the drstnct to provde for projections usual and
customary to the proposed use

2 Special Structures. Structures such as elevator penthouses, mechanical penthouses, gas tanks, grain elevators,
observation towers, and scenery lofts, manufacturing equipment and necessary appurtenances, cooling towers, fire
towers, substations, and smoke stacks are exempt from the height hm1tatrons of this UDO provided the structures are
an integral part of and do not detract from the design of the principal structure as approved by the Plan Comm1ss1on
and/or Architectural Board

3 Essential Services, Utilities, Water Towers, and Electric Power and Communication Transmission Lines.
Essential services, utiht1es, water towers, and electric power and communication transm1ss1on Imes are exempt from
the height lim1tat1ons of this Ordinance Building-mounted earth station dish antennas shall not exceed the maximum
height regulation of the distnct in which they are located

4 Agricultural Structures. Agricultural structures, such as barns, silos, windmills, shall not exceed in height twice their
distance from the nearest lot hne

5 Public or Semipublic Facilities. Public or semipublic facilities, such as schools, churches, hospitals, monuments,
sanatorums, lbranes, and governmental offices and stations, may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet, provided all
required yard setbacks are increased not less than one (1) foot for each foot the structure exceeds the d1stnct's
maximum height requirement.

6 Modification of Other Ordinances and Regulations Not Permitted Under this Division. Mod1ficat1ons permitted
under this DIsion of thus Ordinance do not modify any requirements of federal, State, or local building codes relating
to the elements addressed mn thus DIsion of this Ordinance

B Yard Setback Exceptions. Obstructions mto the yard setback requirements specified m Section##-#-## and##-#-## may
be permitted as follows

Uncovered Stairs, Landings, and Fire Escapes. Uncovered stairs, landings, and fire escapes may project a
maximum of six (6) feet mto a reqrnred yard setback and shall not be closer than three (3) feet to any lot line

2 Architectural Projections. Architectural projections mcludmg chimneys, flues, sills, eaves, belt courses, and
ornamental features, may project a maximum of two (2) feet into a required yard setback Bay windows may project a
maximum of three (3) feet mto a required yard setback

3 Accessibility Structures. ADA accessible wheelchair ramps and other features designed to promote universal access
on the subject site may project mto a required yard setback but shall be located at least three {3) feet from any lot line

4 Utility and Electric Power and Communication Transmission Lines. Ut1hty and electric power and communication
transm1ss1on Imes are exempt from the yard setback and distance requirements of this Ordinance

5 Terraces, Patios, Uncovered Decks. Terraces, patios, uncovered decks, and ornamental features which do not
extend more than three (3) feet above or below the adjacent grade may project a maximum of ten (10) feet into any
required yard setback, however any such structure shall be setback at least five (5) feet from any property line

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 3 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

6 Lampposts and Flagpoles Lampposts wth a maximum height of ten (10) feet and flag poles wth a maximum heght
of thirty five (35) feet may project into required yard setbacks, however any such structure shall be set back at least
five (5) feet from any property lme

7 Air Conditioning Units Ar conditioning units may project up to five (5) feet into a required side or rear yard setback
but shall not be closer than five (5) feet from any property hne

8 Rainwater Harvesting Structures Rainwater harvesting structures with two-hundred (200) gallons or less of storage
may projeCt into a required side or rear yard setback but shall not be closer than five (5) feet from any property line
Rainwater harvesting structures with over two-hundred (200) gallons of capacity meet the location standards for
accessory structures in Section ##-#-##

9 Below-Ground Stairways and Windows Stairways and windows that are constructed entirely below the site's
finished grade may project into any requred yard setback

10 Fences Fences may be located in required yard setbacks as specified in Section 15-6-##

15-3-04. Permitted, Limited, Conditional, and Temporary Uses.

A The following key shall be used in the interpretation of Table 15-3 0400(8) and (C)

1 Permitted Uses Uses which are marked as "P" m the table shall be allowed subject to all applicable regulations of this
UDO

2 Conditional Uses Uses which are marked as "C" m the table shall be allowed upon the approval of a Cond1lional Use
Permit as detailed in Secton #ftit-#it

3 Temporary Uses Uses which are marked "T" 1n the tables shall be allowed upon the approval of a Temporary Use
Permit as detailed m Section##-#-##

4 Prohibited Uses A blank space in the tables indicates that a use type is not allowed In the respective zoning district
unless 1t 1s otherwise expressly allowed by other regulations of this UDO

5 Uses Not Listed If a proposed use IS not listed in the tables, the Zoning Administrator shall determine If the use Is
substantially s1m1lar to a use listed on the tables per Section ##-#-## If 1t 1s, they shall treat the use In the same
manner as the substantially s1m1lar use If not, the use shall be regarded as proh1b1ted

6 Additional Regulation If a use has use specific standards they are h1ghhghted in green Use specific standards shall
apply to permitted, cond1bona!, and temporary uses

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 4 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

B Permitted, Conditional, and Temporary Uses in Residential Districts.

Table 15-3-04(B): Permitted, Conditional, and Temporary Uses in Residential Districts
Use RC R-SE R-SR R.MF R-V

I - -~ - -- --- --- - -- -- --- - - --- - - --- ~

} Residential,R-C R-SE R-SR R-MF , r-_I
p p p p p

Co , 16 + Persons C C C C C
S p p p p

Mobile/Manufactured Home Park, Exastin Pnor to this UDO p

Du lex C p
p
p
p

C C C C C
Senior Hou C C C C C

Cro Production C
Indoor A nculture C
Telecommunications Tower C C C C C

p p p

Staton p p p p p

Home Based Business p p p p p

Solar E p p p p p
p p p p

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordnance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 5 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

C Permitted, Conditional, and Temporary Uses in Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Districts.

ucatonal Faclit

Table 15-3-04(C): Permitted, Conditional, and Temporary Uses in Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Districts
B- B. B. A
N B.G R B-MU B-SM P LI A P P I L FW

.7[n]Li Fw'iiisis
■■■-eGls fillwiiniiiis isiisiiiiiraiiris

Governmental Uses C
Health Care Faclit p p p p p C

Indoor Commercial Place of Assembly,
###### s ft or less p p p p p C C C p
Indoor Commercial Place of Assembly, more
than ###### s ft C p p p C C C C p
Outdoor Commercial Place of Assembl C C C C C C C C p
Noncommercial Place of Assembly, #it##if#it
s ft or less C C C p
Noncommercial Place of Assembly, more
than ###### s ft

p p
C C C C

Motel C
Recreation Area p
Short-Term Rental C p p

Adult Establishment C
General Retail, ###### s ft or less p p p p p
General Retail, more than ####f#ff# s ft s p p p C
Multi tenant Sho in Center C C C C
Wholesale Establishment C

Animal Boarding Facility/Kennel and/or
Veter1nar Service C C C C
General Service, #######it s ft or less p p p p p

s p p p C p
Fmnanc1al Institution p p p p p
Funeral Home C C
Office, above round floor onl p p
Office, ###### s ft or less p p p p p p
Office, more than ###### s ft p p p p p

City of Franklin Article 3 Distnct Specific Standards
Unified Development Ordinance Update Page 6 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Bar/Tavern p p p p p
Brewer /Winer /Distiller C
Brewer /Winer /Distiller Room p p p p p
Food Truck Court C C C C C C
Micro Brewer /Winer /Distiller p p p p
Restaurant p p p p p

Auto Sales/Rental and Serce C C p
Carwash C C p
Ma or Automotive Re anr C p
Minor Automotive Re ar p p
Vehicle Fuel Sales C C p

Croy Production P
Animal Husbandr p p

p p p
p p p

p p

Bre p C C
C C C
C

E uI ment Rental, Sales, and Service p p p p
Extractive Industr C C
Heav lndustr C p
Home Im rovement Center/ Lumber ard p p p p
Landfill C

C
C C

C C
C C

Stora e Yard C
Warehouse C

Loading Areas, Parking Areas, and Landing
Stn al Use p

Railroad Use C

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 7 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Sanitary Sewer or Water Supply Lunes C
Solar Farm C C
Telecommunications Tower C C C C C C C C C C C C
Wastewater Treatment Ponds and Facilities p
Waterborne Trans ortaton Uses p
Wind Farm C C

Accessor Structure p p p p p p p p p
Artisan Worksho p p

C C C C
Donation C C C C C
Electnc V p p p p p p p p

C
p p p p p
p p p p p

Solar Ener Collection S stem, cano p p p p p p p p p p p p

Solar Energy Collection System, ground
mounted C C C C C C C C C C C C
Solar Energy Collection System, roof
mounted p p p p p p p p p p p p

Construction Related T T T T T T T T T T T T
Farmers Market T T T T T T T
Food Truck T T T T T T T T
Seasonal Sales T T T T T p p

15-3-05. B-SM- Saint Martin's Road Historic Business District Specific Standards.

A Canopies and Awnings.

Building canopies, awnings, or similar weather protection devces are encouraged on the first floor of all buildings

2 lf provded, the devce shall project a mnmum of three (3) feet and a maxumum of five (5) feet from the facade to which
It is affixed

B Building Frontage The primary facade of all nonresidential and mxed-use development shall meet the standards of one
(1) of the frontage types detailed mn subsection one through four below The use of the resulting front yards or porches for
outdoor dining or other actvty generating uses that support the subject lot's pnncpal use rs encouraged

Projecting Porch The primary facade of the building shall be sufficiently set back from the property line to
accommodate the projecting porch wthin the front yard setback The resulting front yard may or may not be defined by
a fence or hedge to spatally maintain the edge of the street The projecting porch shall be open on three (3) sides and
have a roof form that shall be separate from the principal structure A projecting porch may encroach into a required
front yard setback to a maximum extent of ten (10) feet The following minimum standards shall apply to projecting
porches

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 8 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

a Width Ten (10) feet

b Depth Eight (8) feet

c Height Eight (8) feet

2 Storefront. The primary facade of the building shall adorn the required minimum front setback Accordion-style
windows and doors or other operable windows are encouraged The following standards shall apply to shopfronts

a Window Area Sixteen (16) square feet

b Window Width. Three (3) feet

c Window Height. Four (4) feet

d Sill Height. Three (3) feet

C Entrance Orientation Mam entrances to buildings shall be oriented toward the primary street adJommg the sub1ect
property Secondary entrances are encouraged along secondary streets or along building frontages not adJ01n1ng a street

D Parking Location Off-street parking spaces and lots shall be located to the rear or interior side of the principal buildmg

15-3-06. FF Floodfringe District and GFP General Floodplain District.

A Statutory Authorization, Finding of Fact, Statement of Purpose, Title, and General Provisions

1 Thus ordinance s adopted pursuant to the authorization in Wisconsin Statutes Annotated s 61 35 and 62 23and the
requirements ms 87 30

2 Uncontrolled development and use of the floodplains and rivers within the City of Franklin would mmparr the public
health, safety, convenience, general welfare, and tax base

3 This ordinance 1s intended to regulate floodplain development in order to

a Protect life, health and property,

b Mnmrze expenditures of public funds for flood control projects,

c Mm1m1ze rescue and relief efforts undertaken at the expense of the taxpayers,

d Minimize business interruptions and other economic disruptions,

e Minimize damage to public facilities n the floodplain,

f Mm1m1ze the occurrence of future flood blight areas in the floodplain,

g Discourage the v1ct1m1zallon of unwary land and homebuyers,

h Prevent increases in flood heights that could increase flood damage and result in conflicts between property
owners, and

Discourage development in a floodplain if there rs any practicable alternative to locate the activity, use or structure
outside of the floodplain

4 This Section shall constitute, for statutory purposes, the Floodplain Zoning Ordinance for the City of Franklin,
Wisconsmn

5 General Provisions.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnict Specific Standards
Page 9 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

a Areas to be Regulated This Section regulates all areas of special flood hazard 1dent1fied as zones A, AO, AH,
A1-30, AE, VE, V1-30, or Von the Flood Insurance Rate Map

b Official Maps and Revisions Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHA) are designated as zones A, A1-30, AE, AH,
AO, VE, V1-30, or Von the Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) based on flood hazard analyses summarized 1n
the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) listed in subd () below Additional flood hazard areas subject to regulation under
this ordinance are 1dent1fied on maps based on studies approved by the DNR and listed in subd (b) below These
maps and rev1s1ons are on file in the office of the Planning Manager

c Official Maps

Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panel number 55079C0144E, effective on 09/26/2008, number
55079C0142E, effective on 09/26/2008, number55079C0161E, effective on09/26/2008, number
55079C0163E, effective on 09/26/2008 [NOTE CHECK WITH GIS MANAGER & SEWRPC to ensure all
are included & correct, from
https //msc fema gov/portal/search?AddressQuery=Franklin%2C%20W1sconsin#searchresultsanchor]

6 Establishment of Floodplain Zoning Districts The flood hazard areas regulated by this ordinance are d1v1ded into
districts as follows and collectively shall be known as the "Floodplain DIstncts"

a The Floodway District (FW), is the channel of a river or stream and those portions of the floodplain ad101ning the
channel required to carry the regional floodwaters, within AE Zones as shown on the FIRM {see Section 5(c)fl)
above], or within A Zones shown on the FIRM when determined according to Wisconsin Statues Annotated s
5 1(5)

b The Floodfringe District (FF) is that portion of a riverine special flood hazard area outside the floodway w1th1n AE
Zones on the FIRM, or, when floodway limits have been determined according to s 51(5), within A Zones shown
on the FIRM

c The General Floodplain District (GFP) 1s those riverine areas that may be covered by floodwater during the
regional flood in which a floodway boundary has not been delineated on the FIRM and also includes shallow
flooding areas identified as AH and AO zones on the FIRM

7 Locating Floodplain Boundaries

a Discrepancies between the extenor boundanes of zones A1-30, AE, AH, or A on the official floodplain zoning map
and actual field conditions may be resolved usung the cnten1a n subsections (Z)(d) or (7)(e) below lf a significant
difference exists, the map shall be amended according to Section [X], Amendments

b The Zonmg Administrator may rely on a boundary derived from a profile elevation to grant or deny a land use
permit, whether or not a map amendment 1s required The Zoning Adm1mstrator shall be responsible for
documenting actual pre- development field conditions and the basis upon which the drstnct boundary was
determined Disputes between the Zoning Administrator and an applcant over the district boundary line shall be
settled according to [SECTION XX] 7 3(3) and the criteria 1n (a) and (b) below

c Where the flood profiles are based on established base flood elevations from a FIRM, FEMA must approve any
map amendment or rev1s1on pursuant to [sXX] Amendments

d If flood profiles exist, the map scale and the profile elevations shall determine the dstnct boundary The regional
or base flood elevations shall govern 1f there are any d1screpanc1es

e Where flood profiles do not exist for projects, including any boundary of zone A or AO, the location of the
boundary shall be determined by the map scale

8 Removal of Lands from Floodplain.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 10 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

a Compliance with the provIsIons of this section shall not be grounds for removing land from the floodplain unless
the affected land Is filled at least two feet above the regional or base flood elevation, the fill is contiguous to land
outside the floodplain, and the map Is amended pursuant to s 8 0 Amendments

b The delineation of any of the Floodplain Districts may be revised by the City of Franklin where natural or man
made changes have occurred and/or where more detailed studies have been conducted However, prior to any
such change, approval must be obtained from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources and Federal
Emergency Management Agency A completed Letter of Map RevIsIon Is a record of this approval The Zoning
Administrator shall not sign a community acknowledgement form unless all criteria set forth mn the following
paragraphs are met

The land and/or land around the structure must be filled at least two feet above the regional or base flood
elevation, and

11 the fill must be contiguous to land outside the floodplain, Applicant shall obtain floodplain development permit
before applying for a LOMR or LOMR-F

c Removal of lands from the floodplain may also occur by operation of §87 30(1)(e), Wis Stat. 1f a property owner
has obtained a letter of map amendment from the federal emergency management agency under 44 C F R 70

9 Compliance.

a No structure or use within areas regulated by this ordinance shall hereafter be located, erected, constructed,
reconstructed, repaired, extended, converted, enlarged, or altered without full compliance with the terms of these
regulations and all other applicable regulations that apply to uses wthin the junsdcton of these regulations

b Failure to obtain a floodplain development permit shall be a volaton of these regulations and shall be punishable
In accordance wth s 90

c Floodplain development permits issued on the basis of plans and applications approved by the Zoning
Administrator authorize only the use, and arrangement, set forth in such approved plans and applications, or
amendments thereto 1f approved by the Zoning Administrator Use, arrangement, or construction contrary to that
authorized shall be deemed a violation of these regulations and punishable In accordance with s 9 0

10 Municipalities and State Agencies Regulated.

a Unless specifically exempted by law, all cItIes, villages, towns, and counties are required to comply with this
ordinance and obtain all necessary permits State agencies are required to comply f s 13 48(13), Stats , apples

b The construction, reconstruction, maintenance and repair of state highways and bridges by the Wisconsin
Department of Transportation Is exempt when s 30 2022, Stats , apples Although exempt from a local zoning
permit and permt fees, DOT must provde sufficient project documentation and analysis to ensure that the
community Is in compliance with Federal, State, and local floodplain standards

c lf a local transportation project is located wthin a Zone A floodplain and is not a WisDOT project under s 30 2022,
then the road project desgn documents (ncluding appropnate detailed plans and profiles) may be sufficient to
meet the requirements for issuance of a local floodplain permit 1f the following apply

The City provides documentation to the Floodplain Administrator that the proposed project Is a culvert
replacement or bridge replacement under 20' span at the same location, the project Is exempt from a DNR
permit under s 30123(6)(d),

11 The capacty s not decreased, the top road grade Is not raised, and no floodway data 1s available from a
federal, state, or other source

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 Distnct Specific Standards
Page 11 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

111 If floodway data 1s available in the impacted area from a federal, state, or other source that existing data
must be utilized by the City in the analysis of the project site

11 Abrogation and Greater Restrictions

a This Section supersedes all the prov1s1ons of the this UDOwhich relate to floodplains A more restnctIve provIsIon
shall continue in full force and effect to the extent of the greater restrictions, but not otherwise

b This Section 1s not intended to repeal, abrogate or 1mpa1r any existing deed restrictions, covenants or easements
If this ordinance imposes greater restnct1ons, the prov1s1ons of this Section shall prevail

12 Interpretation In their interpretation and applcaton, the provsons of this Section are the minimum requirements
liberally construed in favor of the City of Franklin, and are not a lim1tat1on on or repeal of any other powers granted by
the Wisconsin Statutes If a provston of this Section, required by ch NR 116, Wis Adm Code, Is unclear, the provision
shall be interpreted in light of the standards 1n effect on the date of the adoption of this Section or in effect on the date
of the most recent text amendment to this Section

13 Warning and Disclaimer of Liability The flood protection standards in this Section are based on engIneenng
experience and research Larger floods may occur, or the flood height may be increased by man-made or natural
causes This Section does not imply or guarantee that non-floodplain areas or permitted floodplain uses will be free
from flooding and flood damages This Section does not create liability on the part of, or a cause of action against, the
City of Franklin, or any officer or employee thereof, for any flood damage that may result from reliance on this Section

14 Severability Should any portion of this Section be declared unconst1tut1onal or invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the remainder of thus Secton shall not be affected

B General Standards Applicable to All Floodplain Districts.

Applicability

a The City of Franklin Zoning Administrator shall review all permit applications to determine compliance with the
provisions of this Section

b If a proposed building stte 1s In a Floodplain D1stnct as defined in this Section , all new construction and
substantial improvements shall

Be designed and anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the structure resulting from
hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy,

11 Be constructed with flood-resistant materials,

111 Be constructed by methods and practices that m1rnm1ze flood damages, and

Iv Be constructed in a manner wherein mechanical and utility equipment 1s elevated to or above the flood
protection elevation

c If a subd1v1s1on or other proposed new development 1s in a Floodplain D1stnct as defined in this Section, the
Zoning Administrator shall assure that

Such proposed subd1v1s1on or other proposed new development 1s consistent with the need to mIrnmIze flood
damage wthin the Floodplain District,

11 Public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems are located and constructed to
m1rnm1ze or eliminate flood damage, and

111 Adequate drainage 1s provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 12 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

d All subdivision proposals (ncludung manufactured home parks) shall include regional flood elevation and floodway
data for any development that meets the subdivision definition of thus ordinance and all other requirements in s
7 1(2)

2 Hydraulic and Hydrologic Analyses

a No development wthin a Floodplain Distnct shall

Obstruct flow, defined as development which blocks the conveyance of floodwaters by itself or with other
development, causing any Increase in the regional flood height, or

11 Cause any increase in the regional flood height due to floodplain storage area lost

b The Zoning Administrator shall deny permits 1f 1t 1s determined the proposed development will obstruct flow or
cause any increase in the regional flood height, based on the officially adopted FIRM or other adopted map,
unless the prov1s1ons of s 8 0 Amendments are met

3 Watercourse Alterations

a No land use permit to alter or relocate a watercourse in a mapped floodplain shall be issued until the Zoning
Administrator has notified in writing all adjacent municipalities, the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources,
and FEMA regional offices, and required the applicant to secure all necessary state and federal permits The
standards of Subsection B 2 above must be met and the flood carrying capacity of any altered or relocated
watercourse shall be maintained

b As soon as 1s practicable, but not later than six months after the date of the watercourse alteration or relocation
and pursuant to s 8 0 Amendments, the City of Franklin shall apply for a Letter of Map Rev1s1on (LOMR) from
FEMA Any such alterations must be reviewed and approved by FEMA and the DNR through the LOMC process

4 Applicability of Chapter 30 and 31, Wisconsin Statutes, Development Development which requires a permit from
the Department, under Chapters 30 and 31, Stats , such as docks, piers, wharves, bridges, culverts, dams and
navigational aids, may be allowed if the necessary permits are obtained and amendments to this Section are made In
accordance with s 8 0 Amendments

5 Public or Private Campgrounds Public or private campgrounds shall have a low flood damage potential and shall
meet the following prov4sons

a The campground 1s approved by the Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection,

b A land use permit for the campground can properly be issued by the Zoning Administrator,

c The character of the river system and the campground elevation are such that a 72- hour warning of an 1mpend1ng
flood can be given to all campground occupants,

d There Is an adequate flood warning procedure for the campground that offers the minimum notice required under
this section to all persons in the campground This procedure shall include a written agreement between the
campground owner, officials of the City of Franklin (including but not the City's emergency government
coordinator and the chief law enforcement official) which specifies the flood elevation at which evacuation shall
occur, personnel responsible for momtoring flood elevations, types of warning systems to be used and the
procedures for notifying at-risk parties, and the methods and personnel responsible for conducting the evacuation,

e This agreement shall be for no more than one (1) calendar year, at which time the agreement shall be reviewed
and updated - by the officials 1dent1fied in sub (4) -to remain in compliance with all applicable regulations,
1nclud1ng those of the Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection and all other
applicable regulations

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 D1stnct Specific Standards
Page 13 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

All mobile recreational vehicles placed on site must meet one of the following

Be fully licensed, 1f required, and ready for highway use, or

11 Not occupy any site m the campground for more than 180 consecutive days, at which time the recreational
vehicle must be removed from the floodplain for a minimum of 24 hours, or

111 Meet the requirements m either s 30,40,51, or 5 3 for the floodplain district In which the structure Is
located,

g A mobile recreational vehicle Is ready for highway use if it s on its wheels or Jacking system, Is attached to the site
only by quick-disconnect utilities and security devces and has no permanently attached additions

h All camping units that remain on site for more than 30 days shall be issued a limited authorization by the
campground operator, a written copy of which shall be kept on file at the campground Such authorization shall
allow placement of a camping unit consistent wth 2 4(6) and shall ensure complance with all the provisions of thus
section,

The City of Franklin shall monitor the limited authorizations issued by the campground operator to assure
compliancewith the terms of this section,

The campground shall have signs clearly posted at all entrances warning of the flood hazard and the procedures
for evacuation when a flood warning is issued, and

k All service fac1llt1es, mcludmg but not limited to refuse collection, electrical service, gas Imes, propane tanks,
sewage systems and wells shall be properly anchored and placed at or floodproofed to the flood protection
elevation

Standards for structures in a campground

All structures must comply with the applicable requirements in ss 30, 40, 5 1, or 5 3 for the floodplain
district in which the structure is located,

11 A portable deck or landing may be allowed for a camping unit for each entry provided that the landing Is not
permanently attached to the ground or camping unit, Is no more than 200 square feet in size, shall be
portable, contain no walls or roof, and can be removed from the campground by a truck and/or trailer
Sections of such portable landings may be placed together to form a single deck not greater than 200 square
feet at one entry pomt Prov1s1ons for the removal of these temporary landings during flood events must be
addressed wthn the written agreement with the mumc1pallty compliant with subsections (a} through (0)
above Any such deck/landing structure may be constructed at elevations lower than the flood protection
elevation but must not obstruct flow of flood waters or cause any Increase m flood levels during the
occurrence of the regional flood

m Camping equipment and appurtenant equipment m the campground may be allowed provided that the equipment
Is not permanently attached to the ground or camping unit, ,s not used as a habitable structure, and must not
obstruct flow of flood waters or cause any increase m flood levels during the occurrence of the regional flood
Provisions for the removal of this equipment dunng flooding events shall be addressed wthin the written
agreement with the City of Franklin pursuant to subsection 5(d) and 5(e) above

n Once a flood warning m the written agreement has been issued for the campground, the campground owner or
the designated operator shall ensure that all persons, camping units, decks, camping equipment and appurtenant
equipment m the campground shall be evacuated wthn the tmelines specified wrthmn the written agreement with
the City pursuant to subsection 5(d) and 5(e) above

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 District Specific Standards
Page 14 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

6 A land use permit shall be obtained as provided under 7 1 (2) before any development, repair, mod1ficat1on or add1t1on
to an ex1stIng structure, or change mn the use of a building or structure, Including sewer and water fac11it1es, may be
Initiated

C Floodway District (FW)

Applicability This section applies to all floodway areas on the floodplain zoning maps and those 1dent1fied pursuant to
s 51(5)

2 Permitted Uses The following open space uses are allowed m the Floodway District and the floodway areas of the
General Floodplain Distnct, 1f

a The uses are not proh1b1ted by any other prov1s1on of these Regulations,

b The standards m this Subsection C are met, and

c All permits or certificates have been issued m accordance with section 7 1

d Perrrntted Uses

Agricultural uses, such as farming, outdoor plant nursenes, horticulture, viticulture and wild crop harvesting

11 Nonstructural mdustrial and commercial uses, such as loading areas, parking areas and airport landing
strips

111 Nonstructural recreational uses, such as golf courses, tennis courts, archery ranges, pcnc grounds, boat
ramps, swimming areas, parks, wildlife and nature preserves, game farms, fish hatcheries, shooting, trap and
skeet actvties, hunting and fishing areas and hiking and horseback ndng trails, subject to the fill limitations
of s 3 3(4)

v Uses or structures accessory to open space uses or classified as historic structures that comply with s 3 3
and 34

v Extraction of sand, gravel or other materials that comply with s 3 3(4)

vI Functionally water-dependent uses, such as docks, piers or wharves, dams, flowage areas, culverts,
navigational aids and river crossings of transmission lines, and pipelines that comply with Chapters 30 and
31, Wisconsin Statutes

v11 Pubhc ut1htres, streets and bridges that comply wth s 3 3(3)

v11I Portable latrines that are removed prior to flooding and systems associated with recreational areas and
Department-approved campgrounds that meet the applicable prov1s1ons of local ordinances and Chapter
SPS 383, Wisconsin Administrative Code

1x Pubhc or private wells used to obtain potable water for recreational areas that meet the requirements of local
ordinances and Chapters NR 811 and NR 812, Wisconsin Adm1nistrat1ve Code

x Wastewater treatment ponds or fac1ht1es permitted under Sections NR 110 15(3)b), Wisconsin
Administrative Code

xI Sanitary sewer or water supply Imes to service existing or proposed development located outside the
floodway, which development compiles with the regulations for the floodplain area occupied

3 Standards for Developments in the Floodway

a Any development mn the floodway shall comply with Subsection B above and have a low flood damage potential

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 15 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

b Applicants shall provide an analysis calculating the effects of this proposal on the regional flood height to
determine the effects of the proposal according to Subsection B 2 and 71(2)(c) The analysis must be completed
by a professional engineer registered mn the state of Wisconsin

c Any encroachment in the regulatory floodway Is proh1b1ted unless the data submitted for subd 3 3( 1 )(b) above
demonstrates that the encroachment will cause no increase m flood elevations in flood events up to the base flood
at any location or removes the encroached area from the regulatory floodway as provided in Subsection A(8)
above

4 Structures Structures accessory to permanent open space uses, including utility and sanitary facilities, or functionally
dependent on a waterfront location may be allowed by permit 1f the structures comply with the following cntena

a Not designed for human habitation

b Does not have a high flood damage potential

c Is constructed to minImIze potential flood damage,

d Shall either have the lowest floor elevated to or above the flood protection elevation or shall meet all the following
standards

The lowest floor Is elevated to or above the regional flood elevation and is dry floodproofed so that the
structure ts watertight with walls substanllally impermeable to the passage of water, and completely dry to
the flood protection elevation without human Intervention during flooding,

11 Has structural components capable of meeting all provisions of Subsection 6, Certification below and,

111 Has cert1ficat1on by a registered professional engineer or architect, through the use of a Federal Emergency
Management Agency Floodproofing Certificate, that the design and methods of construction are in
accordance wth Subsection 6, Certification, below

e Shall be anchored to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement

Mechanical and utility equipment are elevated to or above the flood protection elevation, and

g Does not obstruct flow of flood waters or cause any increase in flood levels during the occurrence of the regional
flood

5 Design forAutomatic Entry of Floodwaters For a structure designed to allow the automatic entry of floodwaters
below the Regional Flood Elevation, the applicant shall submit a plan that meets Subsection (4)(a) through (4)(e)
above, and meets or exceeds the following standards

a The lowest floor must be elevated to or above the regional flood elevation,

b a mInImum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one square inch for every square foot of
enclosed area subject to flooding,

c the bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above the lowest adjacent grade, openings may be
equipped wth screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or devces provded that they permit the automatic
entry and exit of floodwaters, otherwise must remain open

d The use must be limited to parking, building access or limited storage

6 Certification Whenever floodproofing measures are required, a registered professional engineer or architect shall
certify that the following floodproofing measures will be utilized, where appropriate, and are adequate to withstand the
flood depths, pressures, veloc1t1es, impact and uplift forces and other factors associated with the regional flood

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 Drstnct Specific Standards
Page 16 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

a Reinforcement of floors and walls to resist rupture, collapse, or lateral movement caused by water pressures or
debris buildup,

b Construction of wells, water supply systems and waste treatment systems so as to prevent the entrance of flood
waters m such systems and must be tn accordance wth provisions in Sectons 3 4(4) and 3 4(5),

c Subsurface drainage systems to relieve external pressures on foundation walls and basement floors,

d Cutoff valves on sewer Imes or the elimination of gravity flow basement drams, and

e Placement of utilities to or above the flood protection elevation

7 Public Utilities, Streets, and Bridges Public ut1lit1es, streets and bridges may be allowed by permit, 1f

a Adequate floodproofing measures are provided to the flood protection elevation, and

b Construction meets the development standards of s 2 1

8 Fills or Deposition of Materials Fills or depos1t1on of materials may be allowed by permit, 1f

a The requirements of s 2 1 are met,

b No matenal Is deposited In navigable waters unless a permit Is issued by the Department pursuant to ch 30,
Stats, and a permit pursuant to Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, Amendments of 1972, 33
U S C 1344 has been issued, 1f applicable, and all other requirements have been met,

c The fill or other materals wll be protected against erosion by nprap, vegetative cover, sheet ping or bulkheadng,
and

d The fill is not classified as a sohd or hazardous material

9 Prohibited Uses. All uses not listed as permitted uses m Subsection C(2) above are proh1b1ted, 1nclud1ng the following
uses

a Habitable structures, structures with high flood damage potential, and structures not associated with permanent
open-space uses,

b Storage of materials that are buoyant, flammable, explosive, or potentially mJurious to property, water quality, or
human, animal, plant, fish or other aquatic hfe,

c Uses not mn harmony with or detnmental to uses permitted in the adjoining districts,

d Any private or public sewage systems, except portable latrines that are removed por to flooding and systems
associated with recreational areas and Department- approved campgrounds that meet the applicable prov1s1ons of
City of Franklin ordinances and Chapter SPS 383, Wisconsin Admm1strative Code

e Any public or private wells which are used to obtain potable water, except those for recreational areas that meet
the requirements of City of Franklin ordinances and Chapters NR 811 and NR 812, Wisconsin Administrative
Code

Any solid or hazardous waste disposal sites,

g Any wastewater treatment ponds or fac1htles, except those permitted under Sections NR 110 15(3)(b), Wisconsin
Administrative Code,

h Any sanitary sewer or water supply Imes, except those to service existing or proposed development located
outside the floodway which compiles with the regulations for the floodplain area occupied

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 Drstnct Specific Standards
Page 17 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023
I

D Floodfringe District {FF)

Applicability This section applies to all floodfnnge areas shown on the floodplain zoning maps and those 1dent1fied
pursuant to s 5 1 (5)

2 Permitted Uses Any structure, land use, or development is allowed in the Floodfnnge District if the standards In s 4 3
are met, the use Is not proh1b1ted by the City of Franklin Land Development Regulations, or any other ordinance or
regulation of the City of Franklin, and all permits or certificates specified In s 71 have been issued

3 Standards for Development in the Floodfringe District The provIsIons of Subsection (C) above shall apply m
addition to the following requirements, according to the proposed use Any existing structure mn the Floodfnnge District
must meet the reqwrements of s 6 0, Nonconforming Uses

a Residential Uses Any existing structure in residentral use in the Floodfrnge DIstnct must meet the requirements
of s 6 0 Nonconforming Uses Any structure for residential use, including a manufactured home, which Is to be
newly constructed or moved into the Floodfnnge Dstnct, shall meet or exceed the following standards

All new construction, including placement of manufactured homes, and all substantial improvement of
residential structures, shall have the lowest floor elevated to or above the flood protection elevation on fill
The fill around the structure shall be one foot or more above the regional flood elevation for an area
extending at least 15 feet beyond the limits of the structure No area may be removed from the Floodfninge
DIstnct unless the resulting condition can be shown to meet s 1 5(5)

11 Notwithstanding Subsection (D)(4)(a) above, a basement or crawlspace floor may be placed at the regional
flood elevation tf the basement or crawlspace Is designed to make all portions of the structure below the flood
protection elevation watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water and with
structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and effects of
buoyancy No floor of any kind Is allowed below the regional flood elevation

111 Contiguous dryland access shall be provided from a structure to land outside of the floodplain, except as
provided in subsection (d)(1) through (d)(2) below

Iv In developments where existing street or sewer line elevations make complance wth Subsection (4)(c)
above 1mpract1cal, the City of Franklin may permit new development and substantial improvements where
roads are below the regional flood elevation, 1f

a) The City of Franklin Zoning Administrator has secured written assurance from police, fire and
emergency services that rescue and relief will be provided to the structure(s) by wheeled vehicles during
a regional flood event, or

b) The City of Franklin has adopted and in place a DNR-approved emergency evacuation plan applicable
to the site that follows acceptable hazard mrtgaton planning guidelines

b Accessory Structures and Uses In addition to meeting the provIsIons of Section B, General Standards, new
construction and substantial improvements of Accessory structures shall be constructed on fill with the lowest floor
at or above the regional flood elevation

c Commercial Uses In addton to meeting the provsons of Section B, General Standards, any commercial
structure which Is erected, altered or moved into the Floodfrnge Dstnct shall meet the requirements of s 4 3(1)
Subject to the requirements of s 4 3(5), storage yards, surface parking lots and other such uses may be placed at
lower elevations 1f an adequate warning system exists to protect life and property

d Manufacturing and Industrial Uses In addition to meeting the provIsIons of Section B, General Standards, any
manufacturing or industnal structure which is erected, altered or moved into the floodfnnge shall have the lowest
floor elevated to or above the flood protection elevation or meet the floodproofing standards in s 7 5 Subject to

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 D1stnct Specific Standards
Page 18 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

the requirements of s 4 3(5), storage yards, surface parking lots and other such uses may be placed at lower
elevations 1f an adequate warning system exists to protect hfe and property

e Storage of Materials Materials that are hazardous, buoyant, flammable, explosive, or potentially inJurious to
property, water quality or human, animal, plant, fish or aquatic life shall be stored at or above the flood protection
elevation or floodproofed in compliance withs 7 5 Adequate measures shall be taken to ensure that such
mater1als will not enter the water body dunng flooding

Public Utilities, Streets, and Bridges All pubhc ut1ht1es, streets and bridges shall be designed to be compatible
with comprehensive floodplain development plans In addition, the followingcntena shall apply

When failure of pubhc ut1ht1es, streets and bridges would endanger public health or safety, or where such
fac1hbes are deemed essential, construction or repair of such fac1ht1es shall only be permitted 1f the proposed
improvements are designed to comply with s 7 5

nu Minor roads or non-essential utilities may be constructed at lower elevations tf theyaredesigned to withstand
flood forces to the regional flood elevation

g Sewage Systems All sewage disposal systems shall be designed to mnmmrze or eliminate infiltration of flood
water into the system, pursuant to s 7 5(3), to the flood protection elevation and meet the provIsIons of all City of
Franklin standards and Chapter SPS 383, Wisconsin Admin1strat1ve Code

h Wells All wells shall be designed to mInim1ze or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system, pursuant to
s 7 5(3), to the flood protection elevation and shall meet the provIs1ons of Chapters NR 811 and NR 812,
Wisconsin Administrative Code

Solid Waste Disposal Sites Prohibited Disposal of solid or hazardous waste is prohibited mn floodfringe areas

Deposition of Material Any deposition of material must meet all the provisions of thus Section

k Manufactured Homes

Owners or operators of all manufactured home parks and subd1v1s1ons shall provide adequate surface
drainage to mInimIze flood damage, and prepare, secure approval and file an evacuation plan, 1nd1cat1ng
vehicular access and escape routes, with local emergency management authorities

11 In exIstIng manufactured home parks, all new homes, replacement homes on exasting pads, and substantially
improved homes shall

a) have the lowest floor elevated to the flood protection elevation, and

b) be anchored so that the manufactured home does not float, collapse or move laterally during a flood

111 Outside of existing manufactured home parks, including new manufactured home parks and all single units
outside of existing parks, all new, replacement and substantially improved manufactured homes shall meet
the residential development standards for the floodfnnge In s 4 3(1)

Mobile Recreational Vehicles A mobile recreational vehicle Is ready for highway use 1f It Is on its wheels or
jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick-disconnect utilities and security devices and has no
permanently attached add1t1ons All mobile recreational vehicles must be on site for less than 180 consecutive
days and be either

fully licensed and ready for highway use, or

11 shall meet the elevation and anchoring requirements ins 4 3 (11)(b) and (c)

E General Floodplain District (GFP)

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 Drstnct Specific Standards
Page 19 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Applicability The provIsIons for the General Floodplain District shall apply to development in all floodplains mapped
as A, AO, AH, and in AE zones within which a floodway Is not delineated on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps 1dent1fied
in s 152)a)

2 Floodway Boundaries For proposed development in zone A, or in zone AE within which a floodway Is not delineated
on the Flood Insurance Rate Map identified in s 15(2)(a), the boundaries of the regulatory floodway shall be
determined pursuant to s 51(5)

a If the development Is proposed to encroach upon the regulatory floodway, the development is subject to the
standards of s 3 0

b If the development 1s located entirely within the floodfnnge, the development is subject to the standards of s 4 0

3 Permitted Uses Pursuant to s 5 1(5) for any application for development, the Zoning Administrator shall determine
whether proposed use 1s located within the floodway or floodfnnge Those uses permitted in the Floodway (Section C)
and Floodfnnge (Secton D) Distncts are allowed within the General Floodplain D1stnct, according to the standards of s
51(4), provided that all permits or certificates required under s 7 1have been issued

4 Standards for Development in the General Floodplain District Any development within the floodway, as
determined pursuant to 5 1(5), shall comply wth the provisions of Section C, Floodway Any development wthin the
floodfrnge, as determined pursuant to Section 51(5), shall comply with the prov1sIons of Section D, FIoodfnnge

a New constructmn and substantial improvement of structures in zone AO shall have the lowest floor, including
basement, elevated

to or above the depth, in feet, as shown on the FIRM above the highest ad1acent natural grade, or

If the depth is not specified on the FIRM, to or above two (2) feet above the highest adjacent natural grade

b New Construction and substantial improvement of structures in zone AH shall have the lowest floor, including
basement, elevated to or above the flood protection elevation

c In AO/AH zones, adequate drainage paths shall be provided to gwde floodwaters around structures

d All development in zones AO and zone AH shall meet the requirements of s 4 0 applicable to flood fnnge areas

5 Determination of Floodway and Floodfringe Limits Upon receiving an application for development within zone A,
or within zone AE where a floodway has not been delineated on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps, the Zoning
Administrator shall

a Require the applicant to submit two copies of an aerial photograph or a plan which shows the proposed
development wth respect to the general floodplain dustnct limits, stream channel, and existing floodplain
developments, along with a legal descrpton of the property, fill limits and elevations, building floor elevations and
flood proofing measures, and the flood zone as shown on the FIRM

b Require the applicant to furnish any of the following information deemed necessary by the Department to evaluate
the effects of the proposal upon flood height and flood flows, regional flood elevation and to determine floodway
boundaries

A Hydrologc and Hydraulic Study as specified ins 71(2)(c)

11 A plan (surface view) showing elevations or contours of the ground, pertinent structure, fill or storage
elevations, sze, location and layout of all proposed and existing structures on the site, location and
elevations of streets, water supply, and sanitary fac11it1es, SOIi types and other pertinent information, and

111 Spec1ficat1ons for building construction and materials, floodproofing, filling, dredging, channel improvement,
storage, water supply and sanitary fac11it1es

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 20 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

F Non-Conforming Uses

Applicability

a The standards in this section shall apply to all uses and buildings that do not conform to the provIs1ons contained
wthin a floodplain zonng ordnance or wth Sect1on 87 30, Wisconsin Statutes, Sectons NR 116 12-14,
Wisconsin Adm1rnstrat1ve Code, and 44 CFR 59-72

b These standards shall apply to all modifications or additions to any nonconforming use or structure, and to the use
of any structure or premises which was lawful before the passage of this Section or any amendment thereto

c A party asserting existence of a lawfully established nonconforming use or structure has the burden of proving
that the use or structure was compliant with the floodplain zoning ordinance in effect at the time the use or
structure was created

As permit applications are received for additions, mod1ficat1ons, or substantial improvements to nonconforming
buildings In the floodplain, the City of Franklin shall develop a lust of those nonconforming buildings, therr present
equalized assessed value and a list of the costs of those acbv1t1es associated with changes to those buildings

2 Continuation of Use. The existing lawful use of a structure or its accessory use which 1s not in conformity with the
provisions of thus Section may continue subject to the following conditions

a No modifications or add1t1ons to a nonconforming use or structure shall be permitted unless such mod1ficat1ons or
additions comply wth applcable provisions of thus Section The words "modification" and "addition" Include, but
are not limited to, any alteration, add1t1on, modification, structural repair, rebu1ld1ng or replacement of any such
existing use, structure or accessory structure or use

Maintenance Is not considered a modification, maintenance shall include painting, decorating, paneling and
other nonstructural components and the maintenance, repair or replacement of existing private sewage or
water supply systems or connections to public ut11it1es

11 Any costs associated with the repair of a damaged structure shall not be considered maintenance

b The construction of a deck that does not exceed 200 square feet and that 1s adjacent to the exterior wall of a
principal structure shall not be considered an extension, mod1ficat1on or add1t1on The roof of the structure may
extend over a portion of the deck in order to provide safe ingress and egress to the pnnc1pal structure

c If a nonconforming use or the use of a nonconforming structure 1s discontinued for twelve (12) consecutive
months, the non-conforming use or use of the non-conforming structure Is no longer permitted Any future use of
the property, and any structure or bu1ld1ng thereon, shall conform to the applicable requirements of this Section

The murnc1pahty shall keep a record which lists all nonconforming uses and nonconforming structures, their present
equalized assessed value, the cost of all modifications or additions which have been permitted, and the percentage of
the structure's total current value those modifications represent,

d No mod1ficat1on or addition to any nonconforming structure or any structure with a nonconforming use, which over
the life of the structure would equal or exceed fifty (50) percent of its present equalized assessed value, shall be
allowed unless the entire structure 1s permanently changed to a conforming structure with a conforming use In
compliance with the applicable requirements of this ordinance Contiguous dry land access must be provided for
res1dent1al and commercial uses in compliance withs 4 3(1) The costs of elevating the lowest floor of a
nonconforming building or a building wth a nonconforming use to the flood protection elevation are excluded from
the 50% provstons of this paragraph,

e No maintenance on a per event basis to any nonconforming structure or any structure with a nonconforming use,
the cost of which would equal or exceed 50% of its present equalized assessed value, shall be allowed unless the
entire structure rs permanently changed to a conforming structure with a conforming use in compliance with the

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 21 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

applicable requirements of this ordinance Contiguous dry land access must be provided for res1dent1al and
commercial uses in compliance withs 4 3(1) Maintenance to any nonconforming structure, which does not
exceed 50% of its present equalized assessed value on a per event basis, does not count against the cumulative
calculations over the life of the structure for substantial improvement calculations

If on a per event basis the total value of the work being done under (d) and (e) above equals or exceeds 50% of
the present equalized assessed value the work shall not be permitted unless the entire structure 1s permanently
changed to a conforming structure with a conforming use in compliance with the applicable requirements of this
ordinance Contiguous dry land access must be provided for res1dent1al and commercial uses in compliance with
s 4 3(1)

g Except as provided in subdivision (h) below, If any nonconforming structure or any structure with a nonconforming
use Is destroyed or is substantially damaged, it cannot be replaced, re-constructed, or rebuilt unless the use and
the structure meet the current requirements of this Section A structure 1s considered substantially damaged tf the
total cost to restore the structure to its pre-damaged cond1t1on equals or exceeds 50% of the structure's present
equalized assessed value

h For nonconforming buildings that are substantially damaged or destroyed by a non-flood event , the repair or
reconstruction of any such nonconforming building shall be permitted in order to restore it to the size and use mn
effect pnor to the damage event, provided that the following minimum requirements are met and all required
permits have been granted prior to the start of construction

Residential Structures All such residential structures

a) Shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above the flood protection elevation
using fill, pilings, columns, posts or perimeter walls Perimeter walls must meet the requirements of s
7 5(2)

b) Shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the structure resulting from
hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy and shall be constructed with
methods and materials resistant to flood damage

c) Shall be constructed with electncal, heating, ventilation, plumbing and arr conditioning equipment and
other service fac11it1es that are designed and/or elevated so as to prevent water from entering or
accumulating wthin the components during conditions of flooding

d) In A Zones, obtain, review and utilize any flood data available from a federal, state or other source

e) In AO Zones with no elevations specified, shall have the lowest floor, including basement, meet the
standards ins 51(4)

f) In AO Zones, have adequate drainage paths around structures on slopes to guide floodwaters around
and away from the structure

11 Nonresidential Structures All such non-residential structures

a) Shall meet the requirements of s 6 1(2)b)1 a-f

b) Shall either have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above the regional flood elevation,
or, together with attendant utility and sanitary fac11it1es, shall meet the standards in s 7 5 ( 1) or (2)

c) In AO Zones with no elevations specified, shall have the lowest floor, including basement, meet the
standards ins 51(4}

d) A nonconforming historic structure may be altered 1f the alteration does not preclude the structure's
continued designation as a historic structure, the alteration will comply wth s 33(1), flood resistant

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 Distnct Specific Standards
Page 22 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

materials are used, and construction practices and floodproofing methods that comply with s 7 5 are
used Repair or rehab1htat1on of h1stonc structures shall be exempt from the development standards of s
6 1 (2)(h)1 1f 1t 1s determined that the proposed repair or rehab1htat1on will not preclude the structure's
continued designation as a histonc structure and is the minimum necessary to preserve the h1stonc
character and design of the structure

3 Floodway District.

a No mod1ficat1on or add1t1on shall be allowed to any nonconforming structure or any structure with a nonconforming
use In the Floodway DIstnict, unless such modification or addition

Has been granted a permit or variance in conformance with all ordinance requirements,

11 Meets the requirements of s 61,

111 Shall not increase the obstruction to flood flows or regional flood height;

Iv Any addition to the existing structure shall be floodproofed, pursuant to s 75,by means other than the use
of fill, to the flood protection elevation, and

v If any part of the foundation below the flood protection elevation 1s enclosed, the following standards shall
apply

a) The enclosed area shall be designed by a registered architect or engineer to allow for the efficient entry
and exit of flood waters without human Intervention A minimum of two openings must be provded wth
a minimum net area of at least one square inch for every one square foot of the enclosed area The
lowest part of the opening can be no more than 12 inches above the adJacent grade,

b) The parts of the foundation located below the flood protection elevation must be constructed of flood
resistant materials,

c) Mechanical and utility equipment must be elevated or floodproofed to or above the flood protection
elevation, and

d) The use must be limited to parking, building access or limited storage

v No new on-site sewage disposal system, or addition to an ex1st1ng on-site sewage disposal system, except
where an addition has been ordered by a government agency to correct a hazard to public health, shall be
allowed mn the Floodway Dstnct. Any replacement, repair or maintenance of an existing on-site sewage
disposal system in a floodway area shall meet the applicable requirements of all municipal ordinances, s
7 5(3) and Chapter SPS 383, Wisconsin Adm1nistrat1ve Code

v11 No new well or mod1ficat1on to an existing well used to obtain potable water shall be allowed mn the Floodway
DIstnct Any replacement, repair or maintenance of an existing well mn the Floodway DIstnct shall meet the
applicable requirements of all municipal ordinances, s 7 5(3) and Chapters NR 811 and N R 812, WIsconsn
Administrative Code

b No new on-srte sewage disposal system, or addition to an exsting on-site sewage disposal system, except where
an add1t1on has been ordered by a government agency to correct a hazard to pubhc health, shall be allowed mn the
Floodway D1stnct Any replacement, repair or maintenance of an ex1st1ng on-site sewage disposal system in a
floodway area shall meet the applicable requirements of all City of Franklin ordinances, s 7 5(3) of this Section,
and Chapter SPS 383, Wisconsin Admin1strat1ve Code

c No new well or mod1ficat1on to an existing well used to obtain potable water shall be allowed n the Floodway
District Any replacement, repair or maintenance of an existing well in the Floodway DIstnct shall meet the

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 D1stnct Specific Standards
Page 23 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

applicable requirements of all City of Frank1ln ordinances, s 7 5(3), and Chapters NR 811 and NR 812, Wisconsin
Administrative Code

4 Floodfringe District

a No mod1ficat1on or add1t1on shall be allowed to any nonconforming structure or any structure with a nonconforming
use unless such mod1ficat1on or add1t1on has been granted a permit or variance by the munic1pal1ty and meets the
requirements of s 4 3 except wheres 6 3(2) 1s applicable

b Where compliance with the prov1s1ons of subd (1) would result in unnecessary hardship and only where the
structure will not be used for human hab1tat1on or be associated with a high flood damage potential, the Board of
Zoning and Building Appeals, using the procedures established in s 73, may grant a variance from those
provisions of subd (1) for modifications or additions using the cntena listed below Modifications or additions
which are protected to elevations lower than the flood protection elevation may be permitted 1f all of the following
are met

No floor 1s allowed below the regional flood elevation for residential or commercial structures,

11 Human lives are not endangered,

111 Public fac11it1es, such as water or sewer, shall not be installed,

Iv Flood depths shall not exceed two feet,

v Flood veloc1t1es shall not exceed two feet per second, and

v The structure shall not be used for storage of materials as described in s 4 3(5)

c All new private sewage disposal systems, or addition to, replacement, repanr or maintenance of a private sewage
disposal system shall meet all the applicable prov1s1ons of all City of Franklin ordinances, s 7 5 (3) and Chapter
SPS 383, Wisconsin Admin1strat1ve Code

d All new wells, or addition to, replacement, repar or maintenance of a well shall meet the applicable provIsIons of
this Section, s 7 5 (3) and Chapter NR 811 and NR 812, Wisconsin Administrative Code

G Administration

Zoning Administrator; Land Use Permits; Certificates of Compliance

a Duties and Powers The Zoning Administrator is authonzed to administer thus Section and shall have the following
duties and powers

Advise applicants of the ordinance provisions, assist in preparing permit applications and appeals, and
assure that the regional flood elevation for the proposed development Is shown on all permit appl1cat1ons

11 Issue permits and inspect properties for compliance with prov1s1ons of this ordinance and issue certificates of
compliance where appropriate

111 Inspect and assess all damaged floodplain structures to determine 1f substantial damage to the structures
has occurred

1v Keep records of all official actions such as

a) All permits issued, inspections made, and work approved,

b) Documentation of certified lowest floor and regional flood elevations,

c) Floodproofing certificates

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 24 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

d} Water surface profiles, floodplain zoning maps and ordinances, nonconforming uses and structures
including changes, appeals, variances and amendments

e) All substantial damage assessment reports for floodplain structures m floodplain districts

f) Lusts of nonconforming structures and uses

v Submit copies of the following items to the Department of Natural Resources Regional office

a) Within 10 days of the dec1s1on, a copy of any dec1s1ons on variances, appeals for map or text
interpretations, and map or text amendments,

b} Copies of case-by-case analyses and other required information

c) Copies of substantial damage assessments performed and all related correspondence concernmg the
assessments

v Investigate, prepare reports, and report violations of thus ordnance to the municipal zoning agency and
attorney for prosecution Copies of the reports shall also be sent to the Department of Natural Resources
Regional office

vII Submit copies of amendments to the FEMA Regional office

b Land Use Permit A land use permit shall be obtained before any development, repair, mod1ficat1on or add1t1on to
an exIstIng structure, or change mn the use of a building or structure, Including sewer and water faclttes, may be
Initiated Application to the Zoning Administrator shall include

General Information

a) Name and address of the applicant, property owner and contractor,

b} Legal description, proposed use, and whether 1t 1s new construction or a mod1ficat1on,

11 Site Development Plan.

a) A site plan drawn to scale shall be submitted with the permit application form and shall contain

() Location, dimensions, area and elevation of the lot,

(11) Location of the ordinary h1ghwater mark of any abutting navigable waterways,

(111) Location of any structures with distances measured from the lot Imes and street center Imes,

(1v) Location of any existing or proposed on-site sewage systems or private water supply systems,

(v) Location and elevation of exstung or future access roads,

(vi) Location of floodplain and floodway limits as determined from the official floodplain zoning maps,

(vu) The elevation of the lowest floor of proposed bu1ld1ngs and any fill usmg the vertical datum from the
adopted study - either National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) or North American Vertical Datum
(NAVD),

(v111) Data sufficient to determine the regional flood elevation mn NGVD or NAVO at the location of the
development and to determine whether or not the requirements of s 3 0 or 4 0 are met, and

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 Distnct Specific Standards
Page 25 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

(x) Data to determine 1f the proposed development will cause an obstruction to flow or an increase in
regional flood height or discharge according to s 2 1 Thus may Include any of the mnformation
noted ins 3 3(1)

111 Hydraulic and Hydrologic Studies

a) All hydraulic and hydrolog1c studies shall be completed under the direct superv1s1on of a professional
engineer registered in the State of Wisconsin The study contractor shall be responsible for the technical
adequacy of the study All studies shall be reviewed and approved by the Wisconsin Department of
Natural Resources

() In Zone A floodplains and in AE zones within which a floodway is not delineated

1 Hydrology The appropriate method shall be based on the standards in Chapter NR
116 07(3), Wisconsin Administratve Code, Hydrologc Analysis Determination of Regional
Flood Discharge

2 Hydraulic modeling The regional flood elevation shall be based on the standards In Chapter
NR 116 07(4), Wisconsin Administrative Code, Hydraulic Analysis Determination of Regional
FloodElevation and the following

a Determination of the required limits of the hydraulic model shall be based on detailed
study information for downstream structures (dam, bndge, culvert) to determine adequate
starting WSEL for the study

b Channel sections must be surveyed

c A minimum four-foot contour data in the overbanks shall be used for the development of
cross section overbank and floodplain mapping

d Amaximum distance of 500 feet between cross sections 1s allowed in developed areas
wth additional intermediate cross sections required at transitions in channel bottom slope
including a survey of the channel at each location

e The most current version of HEC-RAS shall be used

A survey of bndge and culvert openings and the top of road 1s required at each structure

g Additional cross sections are required at the downstream and upstream limits of the
proposed development and any necessary intermediate locations based on the length of
the reach 1f greater than 500 feet

h Standard accepted engineenng practices shall be used when assigning parameters for
the base model such as flow, Manning's N values, expansion and contraction coefficients
or effective flow hm1ts The base model shall be calibrated to past flooding data such as
high water marks to determine the reasonableness of the model results If no htstorcal
data 1s available, adequate Justification shall be provided for any parameters outside
standard accepted engineenng practices

The model must extend past the upstream hm1t of the difference 1n the ex1stIng and
proposed flood profiles mn order to provde a te-mn to exstmng studies The height
difference between the proposed flood profile and the existing study profiles shall be no
more than O 00 feet.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 D1stnct Specific Standards
Page 26 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

(11) Mapping A work map of the reach studied shall be provided, showing all cross-section locations,
floodway/floodplain limits based on best available topographic data, geographic limits of the
proposed development and whether the proposed development is located in the floodway

1 If the proposed development s located outside of the floodway, then 1t 1s determined to have
no mmpact on the regional flood elevation

2 If any part of the proposed development 1s in the floodway, 1t must be added to the base
model to show the difference between existing and proposed cond1t1ons The study must
ensure that all coefficients remain the same as in the existing model, unless adequate
justification based on standard accepted engineering practices rs provided

(i) In Zone AE Floodplains:

1 Hydrology If the proposed hydrology will change the existing study, the appropriate method
to be used shall be based on Chapter NR 116 07(3), Wisconsin Administrative Code,
Hydrolog1c Analysts Determmat,on of Regional Flood Discharge

2 Hydraulic model The regional flood elevation shall be based on the standards in Chapter NR
116 07(4), Wisconsin Adm1rnstra!lve Code, Hydraultc Analysts Determmat,on of Regional
FloodElevation and the following

a Duplicate Effective Model The effective model shall be reproduced to ensure correct
transference of the model data and to allow integration of the revised data to provide a
continuous FIS model upstream and downstream of the revised reach If data from the
effective model 1s available, models shall be generated that duplicate the FIS profiles and
the elevations shown in the Floodway Data Table in the FIS report to w1th1n O 1 foot

b Corrected Effective Model The Corrected Effective Model shall not include any man
made physical changes since the effective model date but shall import the model into the
most current version of HEC-RAS for Department review

c Existing (Pre-Project Conditions) Model The Existing Model shall be required to
support conclusions about the actual impacts of the project associated wth the Revised
{Post-Proiect) Model or to establish more up-to-date models on which to base the
Revised (Post-Project) Model

d Revised {Post-Project Conditions) Model The Revised {Post-Project Cond1t1ons)
Model shall incorporate the Existing Model and any proposed changes to the topography
caused by the proposed development This model shall reflect proposed cond1t1ons

e All changes to the Duplicate Effective Model and subsequent models must be supported
by certified topographic mformat1on, bndge plans, construction plans and survey notes

f Changes to the hydraulic models shall be limited to the stream reach for which the
revision is being requested Cross sections upstream and downstream of the revised
reach shall be identical to those in the effective model and result in water surface
elevations and topwdths computed by the revised models matching those in the effective
models upstream and downstream of the revised reach as required The Effective Model
shall not be truncated

3 Mapping Maps and associated engineering data shall be submitted to the Department for
review which meet the following conditions

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 D1stnct Specific Standards
Page 27 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

a Consistency between the revised hydraulic models, the revised floodplain and floodway
delineations, the revised flood profiles, topographic work map, annotated FIRMs and/or
Flood Boundary Floodway Maps (FBFMs), construction plans, bridge plans

b Certified topographic map of suitable scale, contour interval, and a planmmetnc map
showing the applicable items lf a dgital version of the map is available, It may be
submitted in order that the FIRM may be more easily revised

c Annotated FIRM panel showing the revised 1 % and 0 2% annual chance floodplains and
floodway boundaries

d If an annotated FIRM and/or FBFM and d1g1tal mapping data (GIS or GADD) are used
then all supporting documentation or metadata must be included with the data
submission along wth the Universal Transverse Mercator (UTM) projection and State
Plane Coordinate System in accordance with FEMA mapping spec1ficat1ons

e The revised floodplain boundaries shall te mnto the effective floodplain boundaries

f All cross sections from the effective model shall be labeled in accordance with the
effective map and a cross section lookup table shall be included to relate to the model
input numbering scheme

g Both the current and proposed floodways shall be shown on the map

h The stream centerline, or profile baseline used to measure stream distances in the model
shall be visible on the map

Iv Expiration All permits issued under the authority of this ordinance shall expire no more than 180 days after
issuance The permit may be extended for a maximum of 180 days for good and sufficient cause If the
permitted work has not started within 180 days of the permit date, the development must comply with any
regulation, including any rev1s1on to the FIRM or FIS, that took effect after the permit date

c Certificate of Compliance No land shall be occupied or used, and no building which 1s hereafter constructed,
altered, added to, modified, repaired, rebuilt or replaced shall be occupied until a certificate of compliance Is
Issued by the zoning administrator, except where no permit rs required, subject to the followng provisions

The certificate of compliance shall show that the building or premises or part thereof, and the proposed use,
conform to the prov1s1ons of this Section,

Application for such certificate shall be concurrent with the application for a land use permit,

111 If all ordinance prov1s1ons are met, the certificate of compliance shall be issued within 10 days after written
notification that the permitted work 1s completed,

Iv The applicant shall submit a certification signed by a registered professional engineer, architect or land
surveyor that the fill, lowest floor and floodproofing elevations are m compliance with the permit issued
Floodproofing measures also require certification by a Wisconsin registered professional engineer or
architect that the requirements of s 7 5 are met

v Where applicable pursuant to s 51(4), the applicant must submit a certification by a registered Wisconsin
professional engineer or surveyor of the elevation of the bottom of the lowest horizontal structural member
supporting the lowest floor (excluding pilings or columns), and an indication of whether the structure contains
a basement

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 28 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

v Where applicable pursuant to s 51(4), the applicant must submit certifications by aWisconsin registered
professional engineer or architect that the structural design and methods of construction meet accepted
standards of practice as required bys 51(4)

d Other Permits Prior to obtanng a floodplain development permit the applicant must secure all necessary
permits from federal, state, and local agencies, including but not limited to those required by the U S Army Corps
of Engineers under Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, Amendments of 1972, 33 U S C 1344

2 Plan Commission; Role and Responsibilities.

a The Plan Commission of the City of Franklin shall, wth respect to thus Section

Oversee the functions of the office of the zoning adm1rnstrator, and

11 Review and advise the Common Council body on all proposed amendments to this ordinance, maps and
text, and

111 Publish adequate notice pursuant to Chapter 985, Wisconsin Statutes, specifying the date, time, place and
subject of any public hearing

b The Plan Commsston of the City of Franklin shall not, with respect to this Section

Grant variances to the terms of the ordinance in place of action by the Board of Zornng and Building Appeals,
or

11 Amend the text or zornng maps in place of official action by the governing body

3 Board of Zoning and Building Appeals; Role and Responsibilities. The Board of Zoning and Bu1ld1ng Appeals
established pursuant to Section 62 23(7)(e) Wisconsin Statues is hereby authonzed or shall be appointed to act for the
purposes of this Section The Board shall exercise the powers conferred by Wisconsin Statutes and adopt rules for the
conduct of business The Zoning Administrator shall not be the secretary of the Board

a Powers and Duties The Board of Zoning and BUIiding Appeals shall

Appeals - Hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is an error in any order, requirement, dec1s1on
or determination made by an administrative official in the enforcement or administration of this Section,

11 Boundary Disputes - Hear and decide disputes concerning the d1stnct boundaries shown on the official
floodplain zonng map, and

111 Variances - Hear and decide, upon appeal, vanances from the ordinance standards

b Appeals to the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals

Standing to Appeal Appeals to the board may be taken by any person aggneved, or by any officer or
department of the municipality affected by any decision of the Zoning Administrator or other administrative
officer Such appeal shall be taken within 30 days unless otherwise provided by the rules of the Board, by
filing wth the official whose decision ts in question, and with the board, a notice of appeal specrfyIng the
reasons for the appeal The official whose dec1s1on 1s in question shall transmit to the Board all records
regarding the matter appealed

Notice and Hearing for Appeals and Variances.

a) Notice The Board shall

() Fx a reasonable time for the heanng,

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 29 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

(11) Publish adequate notice pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes, specifying the date, time, place and
subject of the hearing, and

(111) Assure that notice shall be mailed to the parties in interest and the Wisconsin Department of
Natural Resources Regional office at least 10 days in advance of the hearing

b) Hearing Any party may appear in person or by agent The Board shall

() Resolve boundary disputes according to s 7 3(3),

(i) Decide variance applications according to s 73(4), and

(u) Decide appeals of permit denials according to s 74

c) Decision The final dec1s1on regarding the appeal or variance application shall

() Be made within a reasonable time,

(u) Be sent to the Department of Natural Resources Regional office within ten (10) days of the
decrston,

() Be issued in the form of a written determination signed by the chairman or secretary of the Board,

(v) State the specific facts which are the basis for the Board's dec1s1on,

(v) Either affirm, reverse, vary or modify the order, requirement, dec1sIon or determ1nat1on appealed, in
whole or in part, d1sm1ss the appeal for lack of jurisdiction or grant or deny the variance application,
and

(v) Include the reasons for granting an appeal, describing the hardship demonstrated by the applicant
in the case of a variance, clearly stated in the recorded minutes of the Board proceedings

c Boundary Disputes The following procedure shall be used by the Board in hearing disputes concerning
floodplain dustnct boundaries

If a floodplain district boundary 1s established by approximate or detailed floodplain studies, the flood
elevations or profiles shall prevail in locating the boundary

11 The person contesting the boundary location shall be given a reasonable opportunity to present arguments
and technical evidence to the Board, and

111 If the boundary Is incorrectly mapped, the Board should inform the zoning committee or the person
contesting the boundary location to petition the governing body for a map amendment according to s 8 O
Amendments

d Variance

The Board may, upon appeal, grant a variance from the standards of this ordinance 1f an applicant
convincingly demonstrates that

a) Literal enforcement of the ordinance will cause unnecessary hardship,

b) The hardship Is due to adoption of the floodplain ordinance and unique property cond1t1ons, not common
to adjacent lots or premises (in which case the ordinance or map must be amended to grant a permit),

c) Issuance of the vanance will_not result in an outcome or precedent contrary to the public interest, and

d) The variance Is consistent with the purpose of this ordinance as set forth in Subsection A

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 Distnct Specific Standards
Page 30 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

11 In add1t1on to the criteria in Subsection (1) above, to qualify for a variance under FEMA regulations, the Board
must find that the following cntena have been met

a) The variance shall not cause any increase in the regional flood elevation,

b} The applicant has shown good and sufficient cause for issuance of the variance,

c) Failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship,

d) Granting the variance will not result in additional threats to public safety, extraordinary expense, create
a nuisance, cause fraud on or vctmmzatIon of the public, or conflict wth existing local laws or
ordinances, and

e) The variance granted is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief

111 A variance shall not

a) Grant, extend or increase any use prohibited mn the zoning drstnct,

b) Be granted for a hardship based solely on an economic gain or loss,

c) Be granted for a hardship which Is self-created,

d) Damage the rights or property values of other persons in the area,

e) Allow actions without the amendments to this ordinance or map(s) required in s 8 0, Amendments, or

f) Allow any alteration of an historic structure, including its use, which would preclude its continued
designation as an hstonc structure

Iv When a floodplain variance Is granted the Board shall notify the applicant in writing that the authorized
action may increase risks to life and property and flood insurance premiums could increase up to $25 00 per
$100 00 of coverage A copy of this notice shall be maintained with the vanance record

4 Review of Appeals and Permit Denials.

a The Board of Zoning and Building Appeals shall review all data related to the appeal including, but not limited to

Permit application data listed in s 71(2).

11 Floodway/floodfringe determination data ins 51(5),

111 Data listed ins 3 3(1}(b} in cases where the applicant has not submitted this information to the Zoning
Administrator, and

Iv Other data submitted with the application or submitted to the Board with the appeal

b For appeals of aU denied permits, the Board shall

Follow the procedures of s 7 3,

Consider recommendations of the Plan Commrsson, and

111 Either uphold the denial or grant the appeal

c For appeals concerning increases in regional flood elevation the Board shall

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 Drstct Specific Standards
Page 31 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Uphold the denial where the Board agrees with the data showing an increase in flood elevation Increases
may only be allowed after amending the flood profile and map and all appropriate legal arrangements are
made with all adversely affected property owners as per the requirements of s 8 0 Amendments, QI

11 Grant the appeal where the Board agrees that the data properly demonstrates that the project does not
cause an increase provided no other reasons for denial exist

5 Floodproofing Standards.

a No permit or variance shall be issued for a non-residential structure designed to be watertight below the regional
flood elevation until the applicant submits a plan certified by a registered professional engineer or architect that
the floodproofing measures will protect the structure or development to or above the flood protection elevation and
submits a FEMA Floodproofing Certificate Floodproofing Is not an alternative to the development standards set
forth in ss 2 0, 3 0, 4 0, 51, or 5 3

b For a structure designed to allow the entry of floodwaters, no permit or variance shall be issued until the applicant
submits a plan either

Certified by a registered Wisconsin professional engineer or architect, or

It Meeting or exceeding the followng standards

a) A minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one square inch for every square
foot of enclosed area subJect to flooding, and

b) The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one-foot above grade, and

c) Openings may-be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or devices provided that
these permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters

111 Floodproofing measures shall be designed, as appropriate, to

a) Withstand flood pressures, depths, velocItIes, uplift and impact forces and other regional flood factors,

b) Protect structures to the flood protection elevation,

c) Anchor structures to foundations to resist flotation and lateral movement,

d) Minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters,

e) Minimize or eliminate discharges into flood waters,

f) Placement of Locate essential utthttes to or above the flood protection elevation, and

g) If any part of the foundation below the flood protection elevation Is enclosed, the following standards
shall apply

() The enclosed area shall be designed by a registered architect or engineer to allow for the efficient
entry and exit of flood waters without human intervention A minimum of two openings must be
provided with a mm1mum net area of at least one square inch for every one square foot of the
enclosed area The lowest part of the opening can be no more than 12 inches above the adjacent
grade,

(11) The parts of the foundation located below the flood protection elevation must be constructed of
flood-resistant matenals,

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 32 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

(111) Mechanical and utility equipment must be elevated or floodproofed to or above the flood protection
elevation, and

(v) The use must be limited to parking, building access or limited storage

H Amendments.

General Provisions Obstructions or increases may only be permitted 1f amendments are made to this ordinance, the
official floodplain zoning maps, floodway Imes and water surface profiles, in accordance with Section H 2 below

a In AE Zones with a mapped floodway, no obstructions or increases shall be permitted unless the applicant
receives a Conditional Letter of Map Rev1s1on from FEMAand amendments are made to this ordinance, the
official floodplain zoning maps, floodway Imes and water surface profiles, mn accordance with s 81 Any such
alterations must be reviewed and approved by FEMA and the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources

b In A Zones increases equal to or greater than 1 0 foot may only be permitted 1f the applicant receives a
Cond1t1onal Letter of Map Rev1s1on from FEMA and amendments are made to this Section, the official floodplain
maps, floodway Imes, and water surface profiles, m accordance with s 8 1

2 Action by Common Council The Common Council shall change or supplement the floodplain zoning distnct
boundaries and this ordinance m the manner outlined m s 8 2 below Actions which require an amendment to the
ordinance and/ or submittal of a Letter of Map Change (LOMC) include, but are not limited to, the following

a Any fill or floodway encroachment that obstructs flow causing any increase m the regional flood height,

b Any change to the floodplain boundaries and/or watercourse alterations on the FIRM,

c Any changes to any other officially adopted floodplain maps listed m s 1 5 (2)(b),

d Any floodplain fill which raises the elevation of the filled area to a height at or above the flood protection elevation
and is contiguous to land lyng outside the floodplan,

e Correction of d1screpanc1es between the water surface profiles and floodplain maps,

f Any upgrade to a floodplain zoning text required by Secton NR 116 05, Wisconsin Administrative Code, or
otherwise required by law, or for changes by the City of Franklin, and

g All channel relocations and changes to the maps to alter floodway Imes or to remove an area from the floodway or
the floodfnnge that 1s based on a base flood elevation from a FIRM requires pnor approval by FEMA

3 Procedures

a Amendments may be made upon petition of any party according to the prov1s1ons of Section 62 23, Wisconsin
Stautes The pet1t1ons shall include all data required bys 51(5) and 71(2) The Land Use Permit shall not be
issued until a Letter of Map Rev1s1on 1s issued by FEMA for the proposed changes

b The proposed amendment shall be referred to the Plan Comm1ss1on for a public heanng and recommendation to
the Common Council The amendment and notice of Common Council public heanng shall be submitted to the
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Regional office for revew pnor to the heanng The amendment
procedure shall comply wth the provsons of Section 62 23, Wisconsin Statutes

c No amendments shall become effective until reviewed and approved by the Wisconsin Department of Natural
Resources

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 Distnct Specific Standards
Page 33 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

d All persons petitioning for a map amendment that obstructs flow causing any increase in the regional flood height,
shall obtain flooding easements or other appropriate legal arrangements from all adversely affected property
owners and notify local units of government before the amendment can be approved by the governing body

Enforcement and Penalties Any violation of the provIsIons of this Section by any person shall be unlawful and shall be
referred to the City of Franklin attorney who shall exped1t1ously prosecute all such violators A violator shall, upon convcton,
forfeit to the mun1c1pality a penalty of not more than $50 00 (fifty dollars), together with a taxable cost of such action Each
day of continued violation shall constitute a separate offense Every volaton of thus ordnance is a public nuisance and the
creation may be enJoined and the maintenance may be abated by action at suit of the City of Franklin, the State of
Wisconsin, or any citizen thereof pursuant to Section 87 30, Wisconsin Statutes

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 3 DIstnct Specific Standards
Page 34 of 34



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Article 4. Use-Specific Standards

15-4-01 Res1dental Use-Specific Standards

15-4-02 Institutional Use-Specific Standards

15-4-03 Place of Assembly Use-Specific Standards

15-4-04 Recreation Use-Specific Standards

15-4-05 Lodging Use-Specific Standards

15-4-06 Retail Use-Specific Standards

15-4-07 Service Use-Specific Standards

15-4-08 Eating and Dnnking Use-Specific Standards

15-4-09 Vehicle-Related Use-Specific Standards

15-4-10 Agricultural Use-Specific Standards

15-4-11 Industnal Use-Specific Standards

15-4-12 Utility and Transportation Use-Specific Standards

15-4-13 Accessory Use-Specific Standards

15-4-14 Temporary Use-Specific Standards

3

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

8

8

9

14

21

15-4-01. Residential Use-Specific Standards

A Community Living, All Capacities.

No community living arrangement shall be established within two thousand five hundred (2,500) feet of any other such
facility regardless of its capacity

2 Foster homes housing four (4) or fewer children and licensed under Sec 48 62, Wis Stats , shal not be subject to
these provisions

B Duplex.

Duplexes primary entrances shall be oriented toward the designated front lot line

2 A minimum of one (1) of the parking spaces, as specified in Section 16-6-1 (E) of this UDO, shall be provided in an
attached or detached garage

3 Attached garages are encouraged to be located on rear fac;:ades If attached garages are located on the primary fac;:ade
they shall

a Not exceed forty-five (45) percent of the facade's total width,

b Be setback a minimum of twenty-five (25) feet from the property line, and

c Be recessed from the pnmary front facade (excluding porches) of the duplex a minimum of five (5) feet

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordnance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 1 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

4 Exterior building cladding matenals shall be time- and weather- tested materials and techniques such as but not limited
to masonry, stone veneer systems, stucco, precast panels with inlaid or stamped brick texture

C Townhome.

Townhomes shall be onented wth their primary entrances either

a Toward the designated front lot hne The primary entrance of end unit townhomes on corner lots may be oriented
toward the designated front or exterior side lot line

b Toward an internal courtyard space The primary entrance of end unit townhomes closest to the designated front
lot line shall be oriented toward the designated front lot line

2 Individual townhome units should be articulated through the extenor design of the townhome cluster This can be
accomplished through dormers, porches, vertical design elements, varying roof forms, or other architectural devices

3 The maximum length of a townhome cluster shall be two hundred (200) linear feet

4 The siting of the townhome units in a cluster shall be staggered in order to define street edges, entry points, and public
gathering spaces

5 A minimum of one (1) of the parking spaces, as detailed in Section##-#-## of this UDO shall be provided in an
attached or detached garage

6 Attached or detached garages shall be located on rear or side facades, unless otherwise approved

7 Exterior building cladding matenals shall be time- and weather-tested matenals and techniques such as but not limited
to masonry, stone veneer systems, stucco, precast panels with inlaid or stamped brick texture

D Multifamily Building.

The bu1ld1ng's primary far;;ade and principal entrance shall be oriented toward a public street

2 A maximum of one (1) curb cut allowing vehicular access to the site shall be permitted per street frontage unless
otherwise approved by the Zoning Administrator

3 All off-street parking, as specified in Section 16-6-1(E) of this UDO, shall be located in the rear and/or interior side of
the primary building Off-street parking located in the interior side yard setback shall be set back a m1n1mum of one (1)
foot from the front elevation of the primary building

4 ADA compliant pedestrian walkways shall be provided to all building entries and parking areas and shall connect to the
sidewalk at the street frontage

5 Service areas, dumpsters, utilities and the reqwred nonvegetat1ve screening of these features shall not be v1s1ble from
nghts-of-way

6 Mult1fam1ly uses shall operate in accordance with all other applicable federal, state, and local laws and, 1f add1t1onal
permits are required, such permits were obtained pnor to beginning operation

7 All multifamily buildings shall meet the design standards of Section 11-6-##

E Multifamily Complex

Primary Facade.

a The primary entrance and front facade of buildings within a multifamily complex shall be onented towards the
following, listed in priority order

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 2 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Perimeter streets,

II Primary internal streets,

111 Parks or other common open space,

IV Secondary internal streets, or

/ Parking areas only if approved by the Zoning Administrator

2 Parking shall be integrated into the overall site design to mnimrze visual impact, reduce the loss of trees, and be
visually concealed from public rights-of-way

3 ADA compliant pedestrian walkways shall be provided to all building entries and parking areas and shall connect to the
sidewalk at the street frontage

15-4-02. Institutional Use-Specific Standards

A Cemetery.

The mInImum lot size for a cemetery shall be three (3) acres

2 Adequate space shall be provided within the site for the parking and maneuvering of funeral corteges

3 All interment shall be set back at least fifty (50) feet from any ad1oining lot line

4 All structures shall be set back at least fifty (50) feet from any boundary hne of the cemetery property plus two (2) feet
for each one (1) foot of structure height over 25 feet to the maximum height permitted by the distnct in which it Is
located

5 All requirements of the Wisconsin State Statutes regarding the interment of human dead shall be met

15-4-03. Place of Assembly Use-Specific Standards
RESERVE

15-4-04. Recreation Use-Specific Standards

A Campgrounds.

All campgrounds shall have direct access to an arterial street, however no direct access to an md1v1dual site shall be
permitted from a public street

2 All campgrounds shall have a minimum site area of thirty (30) contiguous acres

3 All trailer and vehicle parking spaces are to be paved with asphalt1c concrete

4 No more than fifteen (15) percent of a travel trailer park site shall be used for campground purposes

5 The following accessory uses may be allowed

a Recreational facilities

b Laundry buildings

c One (1) service retail store not to exceed two-thousand (2,000) square feet in total floor area

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 3 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

d A manager's office and storage buildings, sanitary fac1ht1es, and fences, constructed in accordance with all the
provisions of thus Ordnance and all other applicable City of Franklin regulations

e No accessory buildings or structures shall be used for human occupancy, except as exphc1tly approved

6 A maximum density of fifteen (15) campsites per acre shall be allowed

7 One hundred (100) square feet of recreation area shall be provided per campsite

8 All public ut11it1es shall be placed underground

9 Campground areas of any travel trailer park shall provide a minimum of five-hundred (500) square for each tent site A
ten foot separation shall be maintained between tents

10 Every campground there shall be provided at least one (1) sanitary garbage pickup area on the site

11 All campgrounds shall comply with all State and local regulations

15-4-05. Lodging Use-Specific Standards

A Lodging House.

The property must be developed, maintained, and operated so that the pnncrpal building, accessory buildings, yard,
drive, and street frontage complement the appearance and character of its adjacent neighborhood and do not detract
from abutting properties

2 Cooking facilities shall not be permitted in any of the guest rooms

3 The Zoning Administrator may require a lodging house to be screened from abutting residential properties by the
erection and maintenance of a Transition Area per Section 11-60#, the type of which shall be determined by the Zoning
Administrator

4 The principal use Is for lodging with accessory uses such as catering or events venue requmng temporary use permit

B Short-Term Rental.

A maximum of two (2) adult guests per bedroom shall be allowed

2 The duration of guest stay shall be a minimum of five (5) days and a maximum of thirty (30) days

3 A residence may be utilized as a short-term rental for a maximum of one hundred eighty (180) days per calendar year

4 The res1dent1al dwelling in which short term rental operates shall be the primary residence of the property owner

5 Short-term rentals shall be subject to the hotel tax provIsIons established in Chapter 138-25 of the City of Franklin
Code of Ordinances

15-.4-06. Retail Use-Specific Standards

A Adult Establishment.

Adult establishments shall locate at least one-thousand (1,000) feet from any parcel in a res1dent1al district or with an
ex1sting use classified mn the following categones

a Residential

b Institutional

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 4 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

c Place of Assembly

d Lodgng

e Eating and dninking

2 Adult establishments shall locate at least one thousand (1,000) feet from another adult establishment

3 A Type D Bufferyard shall be provided along all property Imes shared with an existing use categorized m subsection
(A)(1) or when adjomnng a res1dental district

4 The hours of operation shall be limited to between 11 30 am and 1 00 am, except for cleaning and maintenance
act1v1t1es necessary for the property's operation, which may occur or after the hours specified m this subsection

5 No amplified sound equipment audible outside the principal building shall be allowed

6 Adult uses shall comply with all federal, state, county, and local laws, rules, and regulations, as amended

15-4-07. Service Use-Specific Standards

A Animal Boarding Facility/Kennel and/or Veterinary Services.

No livestock or large animals shall be boarded, treated, or kept on the premises

2 Buildings shall be located no closer than seventy-five (75) feet from any adjacent residential property

3 Enclosed exercise areas shall be at least one-hundred fifty (150) feet from any residental property All exercise areas
shall be enclosed by a fence and adjacent to the principal building

4 All litter and waste shall be contained and controlled on site by having appropriate flushing drams and other physical
elements to properly dispose of cleaning waste from the boarding area Solid waste shall be removed from outdoor
areas after each use of the area

5 All activities, except animal exercise areas, shall be conducted wthin an enclosed building designed wth noise
resistant matenals and which allows for adequate ventilation

6 Drainage from outdoor areas shall be directed to gravel, grassed, or other planted areas in a manner that prevents
direct discharge to storm dram inlets and surface waters

7 Solid waste will be removed from the outdoor area after each use of the area

8 All outdoor areas shall be screened with a solid opaque fence or wall at least six (6) feet in heght Slatted chain Ink
fences shall not meet this requirement

9 Use of outdoor exercise areas between the hours of 10 00 pm and 7 00 am 1s proh1b1ted

15-4-08. Eating and Drinking Use-Specific Standards

A Food Truck Court.

The maximum number of food trucks allowed on site shall depend on the size of the lot and site's ability to provide
required electncal access and parking Site plans shall be provded to the City for revew before permitting

2 A minimum of ten (10) feet of clearance shall be provided between food truck stalls

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 5 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

3 Food truck stalls shall be clearly defined and separated from all patron parking with an enclosure Any use of fencing or
planters to separate the food truck park from parking shall provide v1s1b1hty mto the site and shall not exceed four (4)
feet in height

4 Food truck courts are encouraged to create an mvItmg and attractive aesthetic environment and shall include seating
and shade elements

5 A minimum of (2) permanent restrooms that meet ADA standards shall be made accessible to patrons within two
hundred (200) feet of the food truck court dunng hours of operation

6 Electrical service shall be provided to each food truck

7 A minimum of one (1) trash receptacle and one (1) recycling receptacle shall be provided per food truck The food truck
park shall also provide a commercial dumpster outside of the designated patron area for waste disposal The dumpster
shall be screened mn accordance with Section 11-60#

15-4-09. Vehicle-Related Use-Specific Standards

A Auto Sales/Rental and Service.

All outdoor display areas for sales, rental, and service shall be improved with all-weather surfaces

2 Parking lots used for the outdoor display of motor vehicles for sale and/or rent shall be exempt from the landscape
spacing requirements for the parking area penmeter zone, as detailed m Section 11-60#, and instead may cluster
required landscape elements to preserve views to motor vehicles offered for sale and/or rent

3 No vehicles shall be parked wthin the publc nght-of-way

4 Repar bays shall not front adjacent public nights-of-way or face a parcel wth a residental use or in a residential
district

5 No more than one (1) elevated display shall be used, raising the vehicle no more than three (3) feet off the ground

6 Accessory uses and structures, such as car wash fac1htles and their incidental functions (vacuums and ar
compressors) shall be set back at least fifty (50) feet from publc nghts-of-way or a residential use or d1stnct

7 No exIstIng buildings shall be occupied or re-used for vehicle sales, rental and service unless all requirements of this
UDO are met The use shall operate n accordance with all other applicable federal, state, and local laws If add1t1onal
permits are required, such permits shall be obtained pnor to the operation's approval

8 Drainage from outdoor storage and/or activity areas shall be directed to gravel, grassed, or other planted areas In a
manner that prevents direct discharge to storm drain inlets and surface waters

9 Measures for containment of potentially contaminated runoff from vehicle-related activities shall be Incorporated Into
the site plan and drainage plan to ensure that contaminated runoff does not reach storm drams or surface waters

10 The City Engineer shall review plans to ensure sufficient measures, mcludmg grading and where necessary oil/water
separation or equivalent structures, have been incorporated mto the site plan to comply with Section ( 13)

B Carwash.

1 Hours of operation shall be restncted to between 7am and 10pm

2 All car wash fac1ht1es and accessory equipment such as vacuums, dryers, and accessory buildings and structures shall
be set back a mnmmum of two hundred (200) feet from any parcel wth an existing resdental use or n a residential
district Such facilities and equipment shall be enclosed within a building, except for self-servce vacuum units

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 6 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

3 If self-service vacuum fac1ht1es are provided, a mm1mum of one (1) parking space for each vehicle capable of being
serviced at any one time at such vacuum fac1hty shall be provided Such parking spaces for accessory vacuum
facilities shall not Interfere wth circulaton or entrance or ext drives

4 Accessory equipment such as vacuum fac1htles shall be set back a mnmum of twenty (20) feet from all property lnes

5 All full-service or conveyor-based carwash facilities shall be equipped with a water recycling system that shall recycle a
minimum of fifty (50) percent of the water being used by the facility

6 Drainage from outdoor storage and/or activity areas shall be directed to gravel, grassed, or other planted areas in a
manner that prevents direct discharge to storm dram inlets and surface waters

7 Measures for containment of potentially contaminated runoff from vehicle-related act1v1bes shall be incorporated into
the site plan and drainage plan to ensure that contaminated runoff does not reach storm drams or surface waters

8 The City Engineer shall review plans to ensure sufficient measures, mcludmg grading and where necessary 01I/water
separation or equivalent structures, have been incorporated mto the site plan to comply with Section ( 13)

C Major Automotive Repair.

A Type C transition area, as detailed m Section 11-60#, shall be required along lot Imes adJacent to any parcel In a
nonresidential dustnct

2 A Type D trans1t1on area, as detailed m Section 11-60#, shall be required along lot Imes adJacent to any parcel mn a
residential distnct

3 All vehicle repar actvties shall be within a completely enclosed building

4 All storage of vehicles awaiting needed parts shall be w1thm the building or in an enclosed or screened-in yard

5 All damaged or nonoperable parts shall be stored indoors until removed from the premises

6 All vehicle parts w1thm a completely enclosed building

7 Service bay entrances shall not front a pubhc right-of-way unless specifically approved

8 The maximum allowable number of tow trucks which can be parked at the site shall be determined by the Plan
Commission as a condition of approval of the Conditional Use Permit

9 Drainage from maor automotve repair areas shall be directed to gravel, grassed, or other planted areas in a manner
that prevents direct discharge to storm dram inlets and surface waters

10 Measures for containment of potentially contaminated runoff from vehicle-related act1v1t1es shall be incorporated into
the site plan and drainage plan to ensure that contaminated runoff does not reach storm drams or surface waters

11 The City Engineer shall review plans to ensure sufficient measures, mcludmg grading and where necessary 01I/water
separation or equivalent structures, have been incorporated mto the site plan to comply with Section (10)

D Vehicle Fuel Sales.

All fuel sales stations shall have direct access to an arterial or collector street

2 Any fuel pumps, underground fuel storage tanks, and islands, shall be at least fifty (50) feet from any street or abutting
lot line

3 All fuel pumps shall be set back a mm1mum of twenty-five (25) feet from the street right-of-way and side or rear lot
Imes

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 7 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

4 All fuel pump canopies shall be located a mmImum of twenty (20) feet from the street right-of-way and side or rear lot
lines

5 All fuel pumps and fuel pump canopies shall be located a minimum of fifty (50) feet from any res1dent1al district
boundary line

6 Fuel pump canopies shall have a maximum height of twenty-five (25) feet

7 Fuel pump canopy columns shall be clad m masonry, stucco, fiber cement, or stone veneer systems with a mm1mum
thickness of three (3) inches, for a minimum of four (4) feet from the base of the column

8 Fuel pump canopies shall be ht with only fully recessed hghtmg

9 A Type B transItIon area, as detailed m Section 11-60#, shall be required along lot Imes adjacent to any parcel in a
nonresidential dustrct

10 A Type D transIt1on area, as detailed m Section 11-60#, shall be required along lot Imes adjacent to any parcel ma
residential distnct

11 No signs shall be permitted on fuel pump canopy roofs or fasca

12 Drainage from vehicle fuel sales areas shall be directed to gravel, grassed, or other planted areas ma manner that
prevents direct discharge to storm dram inlets and surface waters

13 Measures for containment of potenbally contaminated runoff from vehicle-related acttvIbes shall be incorporated into
the site plan and drainage plan to ensure that contaminated runoff does not reach storm drams or surface waters

14 The City Engineer shall review plans to ensure sufficient measures, mcludmg grading and where necessary 011/water
separation or equivalent structures, have been incorporated mto the site plan to comply with Section ( 13)

15-.4-10. Agricultural Use-Specific Standards

A Nursery, Retail.

The overall area of any outdoor sales accessory use shall not exceed the area of the principal enclosed bu1ld1ng

2 All retail nurseries shall comply with Chapter 183 Orderly Conduct of the City of Franklin Municipal Code

15-4-11. Industrial Use-Specific Standards

A Artisan Manufacturing.

Gross floor area shall not exceed five thousand (5,000} square feet

2 Outdoor storage shall be proh1b1ted

3 Outdoor operations or activities may be approved wth a temporary use permit

4 Artisan manufacturing shall not create or cause any perceptible noise, odor, smoke, electrical interference, or
vibrations that constitute a public or private nuisance to neighboring properties

5 Retail sales of goods manufactured on-site shall be required and shall comprise a minimum of ten (10) percent of the
total area of the building Retail sales areas shall be located on the ground floor and shall be directly adJacent to
storefront windows

6 Manufacturing areas are encouraged to be v1s1ble from retail areas

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 8 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

7 A maximum of one (1) residential unit shall be permitted wthn the same unit/leasable area as the artisan
manufacturing use but shall be limited to twenty-five (25) percent of the total area of the bwld1ng

B Landfill.

Performance Criteria and Standards.

a All City of Franklin or County roads to be used to service the site shall be constructed to meet the City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, and Wisconsin Department of Transportation standards appropriate for the weight of the
trucks usmg the facility prior to the operation of the facility

b A bond written by a licensed surety company, a certified check, letter of credit, or other financial guarantee n an
amount sufficient to cover the costs associated with the repair of the affected road(s) to standard upon closure or
1f the road deteriorates due to the traffic to the facility shall be provided

c An add1t1onal three (3) feet of final cover shall be required m add1t1on to the amount required m the Wisconsin
Admm1stralive Code, and the facility shall be landscaped mn approved ground cover of prame plantings as
determined appropriate by the City of Franklin

d The disposal operation shall be conditioned on approval by those state agencies having authority for such
approval, and the use shall meet all applicable federal, Milwaukee County, and City of Franklin requirements

2 The City of Franklin shall enter into negotaton and arbitration procedures as set forth m Chapter 144 445 of the
W1scons1n Statutes as amended for the approval of a solid waste disposal fac1hty or expansion thereof

C Self-Service Storage Facility.

Outdoor storage, with the exception of recreational vehicles, boats, and other recreational equipment as regulated 1n
subsection 2 below, shall be proh1b1ted

2 Outdoor storage of recreational vehicles, boats, and other recreational equipment shall be allowed 1f screened with a
solid wall or opaque fence constructed from materials approved by the Zoning Admm1strator and not less than six (6)
feet or more than eght (8) feet in height in areas vsible from an existing or proposed arteral roadway or from a
property in any distnct other than the LI Lmighted Industrial DIstnct

3 The storing of hazardous or toxic materials rs prohibited

4 No storage space shall be used for res1dent1al occupancy, business sales or operation, the storage of commercial or
Industrial inventory or raw matenals, or the operation of machinery

15-4-12. Utility and Transportation Use-Specific Standards

A Airport/Heliports.

The site shall be at least fifteen (15) contiguous acres in area

2 The site shall be sufficient m size to meet the standards for the type of facility proposed of the Federal Avaton
Adm1nistrat1on and the Department of Transportation m accordance with their published rules and regulations

3 Any proposed landing area shall be situated so that any structures, high voltage power Imes, towers, chimneys, and
natural obstructions wthin the approach zones, shall comply wth regulations for height restnctions in airport approach
zones of the Federal Avaton Administration, Wisconsin Division of Aeronautics, or other airport authority qualified to
establish zoning regulations

4 No planned approach areas shall be permitted over parcels with existing residential uses or planned res1dent1al uses,
according to the City of Franklin's Comprehensive Plan

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 9 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

5 Landing and take-off areas shall be at least one hundred fifty (150) feet from any lot boundary and at least five hundred
(500) feet from any dwelling unit or residential zoning distnct

6 Hangers, repair facities, or other airport/heliport buildings shall be at least one hundred (100) feet from any street
right-of-way line and least one hundred fifty (150) feet from any lot boundary

7 All repair of airplanes and mechanical equipment shall take place ms1de enclosed hangars

8 Res1dent1al uses shall not be located wthmn the approach path unless measures to achieve a noise level reduction of
25 dBA (outdoor to mndoor) are Incorporated mnto the design and construction of the res1dent1al structures

9 Heliports shall meet all applicable Federal, state and local regulations

B Helistops. Helistops shall meet the following requirements

The srte shall be sufficient n sze and the srte shall otherwise be adequate to meet the rules and regulations
established by the Federal AvIat1on Administration and the Department of Transportation

2 Landing and take-off areas shall be located a minimum of one-hundred fifty (150) feet from any parcel boundary and a
minimum of five hundred (500) feet from any residential parcel boundary

3 Landing areas shall be situated so that any structures, high voltage power Imes, towers, chimneys, and natural
obstructions w1thm the approach zones, shall comply with regulations for height restrictions m airport approach zones
of the Federal Avat1on Administration, Wisconsin Dvson of Aeronautics, or other arport authority qualified by law to
establish hazard zoning regulations

4 No planned approach areas shall be permitted over parcels wth exstng resdental uses or planned resdental uses,
according to the City of Franklin's Comprehensive Plan

5 Heliports shall meet all applicable Federal, state and local regulations

C Solar Farm.

Properties on which a pubhc utility owns or leases the land shall be exempt from the standards for solar farms

2 No solar farm shall be erected on any lot less than four (4) acres m size

3 A certified professional engineer shall certify that the foundation and design on the solar panels are wthin accepted
professional standards, given local soil and climate conditions

4 Power and communication Imes running between banks of solar panels and to electric substations or interconnections
wth buildings shall be buried underground

5 Systems, equipment, and structures shall not exceed thirty feet (30) m height when ground mounted

6 Ground mounted solar energy collection systems as part of a solar farm shall have a minimum setback for all
equipment, excluding fences, of

a Front and Corner Yards one hundred (100) feet,

b Side and Rear Yards fifty (50) feet from nonresidential property hnes and one hundred (100) feet from res1dent1al
property Imes

7 Systems equipment and structures shall be fully enclosed and secured by a fence or wall with a height of eight (8) feet
Knox boxes and keys shall be provided at locked entrances for emergency personnel access

a Warnings.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 10 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Warning signs shall be provided at the entrance to the fac1lity and along the perimeter of the solar farm In
locations determined necessary by the Zoning Administrator

11 The signs shall be made with letters and numbers at least three (3) inches in height and shall include the 911
address and an emergency phone number of the operator which shall be answered twenty-four (24) hours a
day by a hve operator A nonemergency phone number for the operator shall also be displayed These phone
numbers shall remain active with all calls being voice recorded for verification purposes and with comments
and complaints logged and reported to the City monthly The recorded calls shall be maintained for at least
twelve (12) months

8 Outdoor Storage. Only the outdoor storage of materials, vehicles, and equipment that directly support the operation
and maintenance of the solar farm shall be allowed except for outdoor storage that is expressly allowed mn the zoning
distnct specified elsewhere in this title

9 Materials Handling, Storage, and Disposal.

a All solid wastes related to the construction, operation, and maintenance of the solar farm shall be removed from
the site promptly and disposed of in accordance with all federal, state, and local laws

b A list of hazardous fluids that may be used on site shall be provided All hazardous materials related to the
construction, operation, and maintenance of the solar farm shall be handled, stored, transported, and disposed of
in accordance with all applicable local, state and federal laws

10 Decommissioning Plan. Prior to receiving approval, the applicant shall submit a decomm1ss1onrng plan to ensure that
the solar farm project is properly decommissioned, which shall include

a Provisions describing the triggering events for decommissioning the solar farm project Any nonfunctionng solar
panel/array of the project shall be decomm1ss1oned within thirty (30) days unless the operator has shown to the
Zoning Administrator that it is diligently repanng such solar panel/array or component

b Procedures for the removal of structures, debris, and cabling, including those below the soil surface,

c Prov1s1ons for the restoration of the natural soil and vegetation,

d An estimate of the decommIss1oning costs certified by a professional engineer, to be updated every three (3)
years or as determined necessary by the Zoning Administrator The Zoning Administrator may request an
Independent thrd-party venficaton of the decommissioning costs at any time The costs for thus verification shall
be reimbursed by the applicant and/or operator

e Financial assurance, secured by the owner or operator, for the purpose of performing the decomm1ss1oning, In an
amount equal to the professional engineer's certified estimate of the decommissioning cost

11 A provision that the terms of the decomm1ss1onmg plan shall be bmdmg upon the owner or operator and any of his
successors, assigns, or hers

D Wind Farm.

Public ut11it Ies shall be exempt from the standards for wind farms

2 No wind farm shall be erected on any lot less than four (4) acres In s1ze

3 Design and Installation.

a Safety Certification.

Wind farm systems shall conform to applicable industry standards, including those of the American National
Standards Institute (ANSI} Applicants shall submit certificates of design comphance that equipment

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 11 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

manufacturers have obtained from Underwriters Laboratories (UL), Det Norske Ventas (DNV), German1scher
Lloyd Wind Energc (GL), or an equivalent thrd party pnor to plan approval

nt Followng plan approval, a professional engneer shall certify, as part of the building permit applcaton, that
the foundation and tower design of the wInd farm system is within accepted professional standards, given
local sol and climate conditions

b Controls and Brakes. All wnd farm systems shall be equipped with a redundant braking system This includes
both aerodynamic overspeed controls (Including van1able pitch, tip, and other similar systems) and mechanical
brakes Mechanical brakes shall be operated m a fail-safe mode Stall regulation shall not be considered a
sufficient braking system for overspeed protection

c Electrical Components. All electrical components of the wind farm systems shall conform to applicable local,
state, and national codes, and relevant national and international standards (e g,ANSI and international electrical
comm1ss1on) Utility Imes connecting the towers, substations, etc, shall be placed underground where practical

d Turbine Consistency To the extent feasible, the project shall consist of turbines of smmlar design and size,
1ncludmg tower height Further, all turbines shall rotate in the same direction

e Warnings.

A reasonable v1s1ble warning sign concerning voltage must be placed at the base of all pad-mounted
transformers and substations

11 Visible, reflective, colored objects, such as flags, reflectors, or tape shall be placed on the anchor points of
guy wires and along the guy wires up to a height of fifteen (15) feet from the ground

111 Warning signs shall be provided at the entrance to the facility and along the perimeter of the solar farm In
locations determined necessary by the Zonmg Admm1strator

Iv The signs shall be made with letters and numbers at least three (3) mches 1n height and shall include the 911
address and an emergency phone number of the operator which shall be answered twenty-four (24) hours a
day by a hve operator A nonemergency phone number for the operator shall also be displayed These phone
numbers shall remain active with all calls bemg v01ce recorded for verification purposes and with comments
and complaints logged and reported to the Zoning Administrator monthly The recorded calls shall be
maintained for at least twelve (12) months

Climb Prevention. All wind farm towers must be unclimbable by design or protected by ant1-climb1ng devices
such as

Fences wth locking portals at least srx (6) feet high, or

11 Anti-climbing devices twelve (12) feet vertically from the base of the wmd farm tower

g Setbacks. Wind farm towers and appurtenant structures shall meet the following minimum setbacks

Wind farm towers shall be six (6) times the height of the wmd farm tower or at least three thousand, two
hundred fifty (3,250) feet. whichever 1s greater, from any principal structure or use on the subject or
neghbonng property

11 Wind farm towers shall be one and one-tenth (110) times the wind farm tower height from public roads, third
party transm1ss1on Imes, and communication towers

111 Wind farm towers shall be one thousand six hundred forty (1,640) feet from adjacent property lines, as
measured from the center of the wind farm tower foundation

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 12 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Iv No part of a wind farm tower or foundation shall encroach on a public or pnvate sewage disposal (septic)
system

v Above ground transm1ss1on facilities and poles shall be set back one-hundred fifty (150) feet from any portion
any pnnc1pal structure or use on the subject or ne1ghbonng property

h Use of Public Roads. An applicant, owner, or operator proposing to use any City or County Road for the purpose
of transporting and installation of wind farm or substation parts and/or eqwpment for construction, operation, or
maintenance of the wind farm or substations, shall

Identify all such public roads, and

11 Obtain applicable weight and size permits from relevant government agencies pnor to construction

111 To the extent an applicant, owner, or operator must obtain a weight or size permit from the City, County, or
State, the applicant shall provide

a) Financial assurance, In a reasonable amount agreed to by the relevant parties, for the purpose of
repamng any damage to public roads caused by constructing, operating, or maintaining the wind farm
prior to the issuance of building permits

b) A signed copy of any agreements pertaining to the use of public roads pnor to the issuance of building
permits

Outdoor Storage. Only the outdoor storage of materials, vehicles, and equipment that directly support the
operation and maintenance of the wnd farm shall be allowed except for outdoor storage that 1s expressly allowed
In the zoning district specified elsewhere mn thus title

4 Operation.

a Maintenance.

The owner or operator of the wnd farm must submit, upon request a summary of the operation and
maintenance reports to the county In addition to the annual summary mentioned in this subsection, the
owner or operator must furnish such operation and maintenance reports as the City reasonably requests

11 Any replacement of equipment that is not a like-kind replacement using the same equipment in plan as
approved shall require that an amendment to the Cond1t1onal Use

b Materials Handling, Storage, and Disposal.

All solid wastes related to the construction, operation, and maintenance of the wind farm shall be removed
from the site promptly and disposed of in accordance with all federal, state, and local laws

11 A 11st of hazardous fluids that may be used on site shall be provided All hazardous materials related to the
construction, operation, and maintenance of the wind farm shall be handled, stored, transported and
disposed of in accordance with all applicable local, state and federal laws

c Decommissioning Plan. Pnor to recervng approval, the applicant shall submit a decomm1ss1ornng plan to ensure
that the wnd farm project is properly decommissioned, which shall include

Provisions describing the tnggering events for decommissioning the wnd farm project. Any nonfunctionng
wmnd turbine of the project shall be decommissioned within thirty (30) days unless the operator has shown to
the Zoning Administrator that it is diligently repanng such wind turbine or component

11 Procedures for the removal of structures, debns, and cabling, including those below the soil surface,

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 13 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

It Provisions for the restoration of the natural sol and vegetation,

Iv An estimate of the decommIssIoning costs certified by a professional engineer, to be updated every three (3)
years or as determined necessary by the Zoning Administrator The Zoning Administrator may request an
independent third-party verification of the decommissioning costs at any time The costs for this verification
shall be reimbursed by the applicant and/or operator

v Financial assurance, secured by the owner or operator, for the purpose of performing the decomm1ss1oning,
In an amount equal to the professional engineer's certified estimate of the decommissioning cost

v A provision that the terms of the decommissioning plan shall be binding upon the owner or operator and any
of his successors, assigns, or hers

15-4-13. Accessory Use-Specific Standards

A Accessory Dwelling, Detached/ Attached

One (1) detached, attached, or internal accessory dwelling urnt shall be allowed per lot

2 No lot may have both a detached garage and a detached accessory structure On any lot with a detached garage, a
detached accessory dwelling urnt may be located above the detached garage

3 The detached I attached accessory dwelling shall be located to the interior side or rear of the principal dwelling

4 The maximum size of a detached accessory dwelling shall be thirty (30) percent of the gross floor area of the pnnc1pal
dwelling or one thousand two hundred {1,200) square feet, whichever Is less

5 The maximum height of a standalone detached accessory dwelling shall be seventeen (17) feet or the height of the
principal dwelling, whichever Is less

6 The maximum, combined height of a detached accessory dwelling located above a detached garage and the detached
garage shall be twenty-seven (27) feet or the height of the principal dwelling, whichever Is less

7 Detached accessory dwellings shall be setback a minimum of five (5) feet from the rear and interior side lot lines

8 Attached accessory dwellings shall be located fully within the buildable area of the lot

9 The pnnc1pal dwelling and detached/ attached accessory dwelling shall be served by a common driveway

10 The detached/ attached accessory dwelling shall have sIm1lar architectural features including roof pitch, window type,
srze, and placement, and extenor building cladding matenals and similar extenor colors as the principal dwelling

11 The pnnc1pal dwelling or detached/ attached accessory dwelling shall be the primary residence of the owner of the
property

B Accessory Dwelling, Internal

One (1) detached, attached, or internal accessory dwelling urnt shall be allowed per lot

2 The maximum size of the internal accessory dwelling shall be thirty (30) percent of the gross floor area of the pnnc1pal
dwelling

3 The pnnc1pal dwelling and internal accessory dwelling shall be served by a common driveway

4 The pnnc1pal dwelling or internal accessory dwelling shall be the primary residence of the owner of the property

C Accessory Retail.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 14 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

The total area devoted to retail acllv1ty shall not exceed twenty-five (25) percent of the total area of the building m
which the accessory retail act1v1ty shall be located

2 Restroom fac11it1es, 1f provided, shall be directly accessible from the accessory retail/restaurant sales area

3 Accessory retail sales areas shall be physically separated from other act1v1ty areas by a wall

D Accessory Structures.

No accessory building shall be constructed on a site without a pnncpal building and a principal use

2 Accessory structures shall have a maximum height of seventeen (17) feet, or the height of the principal bu1ld1ng,
whichever 1s less

3 No accessory structure shall be constructed w1thm or on an easement

4 Location. An accessory structure shall be located as follows

a Completely w1thm the required rear yard setback and five (5) feet from rear yard lot Imes

b Completely w1thm the buildable area of the lot and to the mterior side or rear of the principal building

c At least ten (10) feet from the principal building unless constructed with a one (1) hour fire rating, m which case
the accessory structure shall be set back at least six (6) feet from the principal building

d Wetland setbacks and buffers as specified m Article 6 may further limit the location of accessory structures

5 Maximum Area.

a Accessory structures shall not exceed one thousand two hundred (1,200) square feet in area

b Accessory structures may exceed one-thousand two-hundred (1,200) square feet on parcels mn the RC 
Conservation Residence or R-SE - Suburban/Estate Residence DIstnct use subject to the following regulations

The mnmmum lot area shall be three (3) acres

11 The maximum accessory structure size shall be five hundred (500) square feet per acre No accessory
structure shall exceed five thousand (5,000) square feet

111 No accessory over twelve hundred (1,200) square feet structure shall exceed forty (40) feet m height

Iv An accessory structure over twelve hundred (1,200) square feet shall not be located closer to a side or rear
lot line than a distance equal to its height.

v An accessory structure over twelve hundred (1,200) square feet shall not be used for commercial or
resident1al use

E Artisan Workshop.

The artisan workshop shall be wholly w1thm the principal building and any accessory building

2 The principal building shall be the primary residence of the property owner

3 No alterations shall be made to the principal building or accessory building that changes its residential character or
appearance or otherwise gives evidence of the artisan workshop

4 The sale of goods or matenals on site shall be prohibited

5 No persons, other than the residents of the dwelling urnt, shall be employed on site

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 15 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

6 Mechanical or electrical equipment supporting the artisan workshop shall be self-contained within the structure and
normally used for office, domestic, or household purposes

7 The outdoor display or storage of goods, materials, merchandise, or equipment related to the artisan workshop shall be
prohibited

8 The artisan workshop shall not require the delivery or shipment of goods, materials, merchandise, or equipment
beyond what Is typical for a residential use

9 The artisan workshop shall not create or cause any perceptible noise, odor, smoke, electrical interference, or v1brat1ons
that constitute a public or private nuisance to neighboring properties

10 The artisan workshop shall not dscharge any matenal which is radioactive, poisonous, or detrimental to ether
wastewater or storm water systems

F Drive Through.

Drive throughs shall be permitted a maximum of four (4) total menu boards with a combined maximum area of 100
square feet

a Each menu board or pre-order board shall not exceed sixty (60) square feet in area and ten (10) feet in height
Menu boards and pre-order boards may utilize electrically activated changeable copy message centers for one
hundred (100) percent of the permitted menu board or pre-order board area and must follow all regulations of
Section 11-825 04 C 2

2 Any speaker or intercom associated with a drive through shall not be audible beyond the boundaries of the property

3 Drve through canopies shall maintain a uniform and consistent rooflinewth the building to which the drve-through Is
associated

4 Stacking spaces and lanes for drive through stations shall not impede on- and off-street traffic movement, shall not
cross off-street parking areas or drive aisles and shall not impede pedestrian access to a public building entrance

5 Drive through lanes shall be separated from off-street parking areas lnd1v1dual lanes shall be striped, marked, or
otherwise delineated

6 Drive through fac11it1es shall be provided with a bypass lane with a minimum width of ten (10) feet unless an alternative
means of exit 1s approved

7 Stacking lanes shall have a minimum depth of twenty (20) feet per stacking space and the following mInImum lane
widths

a One (1) lane twelve (12) feet,

b Two (2) or more lanes ten (10) feet per lane

8 Drive through fac1ht1es shall be required to provide a minimum number of stacking spaces as detailed in Table 11-
511 (E)

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 16 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

order box (1)

stall entrance
stall entrance

teller machine
teller or window

machine or window
service bay entrance

3 per stall

2 per lane

5 per stall

4 per lane

3 per machine

6 per order box

3 per service bay

Table15-413/F): Drive Through StackingRequirements
Use Minimum Stack Measure From
'AutomatedTellerMachine
L------·-------···c-····~-- · ..c..__·_-. __ · · · -'--"-----'-'-c-· '----"--'---= -

[Bank TellerLane
1•·-·· - - - .. -·• ------ - . -

[Restaurant
[cawashSail,Automaticr• - ···-cc~·• .. ---- --- - - -

[CanwashStall,Manual_
[oilChange Shop

•- -nee
(1) 4 of the required stacking spaces are to be located between the order-box and pick-up window, 1nclud1ng the
stacking space at the order box

G Donation Drop Box.

Donation drop boxes shall be on properties that contain a legally existing and operating use

2 No more than two (2) donation drop boxes shall be permitted on a lot

3 Each donation drop box shall not exceed seven (7) feet in height and twenty-five (25) square feet in ground area

4 Donation drop boxes shall only be located mn street or mtenor side or rear yard setbacks

5 Donation drop boxes shall be located on an asphalt or concrete paved surface

6 Donation drop boxes shall not locate in a dnveway or dnve aisle and shall not reduce the width of paved clear space
for the passage of pedestnans to less than five (5) feet Boxes shall not locate in such a way as to disrupt the flow of
vehicular or pedestnan traffic

7 Donation drop boxes shall not be located nearer than forty (40) feet from an adJoining lot in a res1dent1al district

8 Donation drop boxes shall be located to the side or rear of the pnmary fai;:ade of the building

9 A notice must be permanently affixed to each donation drop box in a highly v1s1ble location proh1b1t1ng the placement of
items outside of the box The name and twenty-four (24) hour telephone number of the owner/operator must be
permanently affixed to each donation drop box

H Electric Vehicle Charging Stations

Equipment.

a Electric Vehicle Charging stations that are accessory to all mixed-use, mult1fam1ly, and nonres1dent1al uses shall
be a level 2 charging capacity

b Electric vehicle charging station equipment shall be protected by a wheel stop, curb, or bollards

c In parking lot apphcat1ons, all connections of the charging station to electrical ut1hty equipment shall be
underground

d All electric vehicle charging station eqrnpment shall comply with the National Fire Protection Assoc1at1on/Nat1onal
Electrical Code and be approved by the Underwriters Laboratory

e All equipment should be made of low-maintenance, durable materials and shall be vandal-proof to the extent
possible

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 17 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

All equipment shall provide a cord management system that m1rnm1zes tripping hazards for pedestrians Charging
cords may not cross sidewalks, walkways, or driveways

2 Design Considerations.

a Electric vehicle charging station equipment shall be located in a manner that will not obstruct pedestrian
walkways A minimum of three (3} feet of clear area shall be maintained

b Electric vehicle charging stations shall be located to optimize ease of use for all potential users

c Electric vehicle charging station shall provide a safe and clearly delineated area for maneuvering around the
vehicle for connecting to the equipment

d A sign indicating that the electnc vehicle parking rs for use while charging only shall be provided

e All charging stations shall be illuminated Lighting shall comply with the limitations mn Section ##-#-###

3 Electrical Equipment Siting and Screening.

a Electric vehicle charging stations shall be located to minimize the distance to electncal supply equipment

b When locating the electrical supply equipment consider blind spots and v1s1b1hty obstructions for drivers and
pedestrians

c To the extent practical, electrical supply equipment shall be screened by walls, fences, landscaping, or a
combination thereof to be effective year-round

4 Accessibility. Aminimum of one (1} accessible charging station rs required with any installation of electric vehicle
charging stations The accessible charging station shall provide equipment, reach, clear area, route, and other
applicable building blocks to comply with the current Wisconsin Building code and federal access1b1hty
recommendations

5 Maintenance.

a The property owner on which electric vehicle charging stations are located rs responsible for ensuring that the
equipment rs intact and will not pose a hazard to any v1s1tors to the property This shall include ensuring that cords
are hung to prevent tripping hazards

b All electnc vehicle charging station equipment shall be maintained to working condition Equipment that is no
longer functional must be decommissioned wthin sxty (60) days

Home-Based Business.

The home-based business shall be conducted wholly within the pnnc,pal building and any accessory building

2 The home-based business shall only employ mndvduals that reside on-site

3 The home-based business shall encompass no more than twenty five (25) percent of the floor area of the dwelling unit
shall

4 The home based business shall not alter the outside appearance of the buldng, accessory structure, or premises that
changes 1n a way that changes ,ts res1dent1al character or appearance

5 The outdoor display, storage, sale of goods, materials, merchandise, or equipment related to the home-based business
shall be proh1b1ted

6 No mechanical equipment shall be used except such that rs normally used for purely domestic or household purposes,
and shall be contained within the pnnc,pal or accessory building or structure

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 18 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

7 No commodity or good produced off-site shall be sold on the premises, displayed on the exterior or interior of the
premises or warehoused on the premises for sale elsewhere

8 No vehicular or pedestrian traffic shall be generated by such home occupation or home office m greater volume than
would normally be expected from the principal use

9 No norse, emissions, radaton, vibration, heat, glare, smoke, dust, fumes, odors, or electrical Interference created
which Is detectable to the normal senses outside the dwelling umt m excess of that normally associated with a
res1dent1al household use shall be allowed

10 The home-based business shall not generate refuse exceeding the amount allowable for regular res1dent1al pick-up
shall be generated by any home occupation

11 The home-based business shall not generate or store toxic, explosve, flammable, combustible, corrosive, etologIc,
rad1oact1ve, or other restricted materials on the site except those which are ordnanly used for household

12 Nuisance Causing Activities. No home occupation shall cause or create any nuisance, cause or create any
substantial or undue adverse impact on any adJacent property or the character of the area, or threaten the public
health, safety, or general welfare, or be noxious, offensive, or hazardous

13 Materials Which Decompose by Detonation Prohibited. No materials which decompose by detonation shall be
allowed in conjunction wth a home occupation

14 No home-based business shall be permitted which generates wastewater or water use m excess of the quantity
typically required for a res1dental dwelling unut

J Outdoor Activity/Operation/Storage, Accessory.

Any property with permanent outdoor act1v1ty/operat1on/storage shall have a minimum lot size of five (5) acres

2 Outdoor act1v1ty/operation/storage shall be conducted between the hours of 7 00 am and 9 00 pm

3 Outdoor act1v1ty/operat1on/storage shall be located to the rear or mtenor side of the principal building on the lot

4 Outdoor activity/operation/storage shall be prohibited mn front or street side yards

5 Outdoor actIvIties and operations shall be setback a minimum of fifty (50) feet from all property lines when adjacent
properties are zoned B-G and B-R DIstncts

6 Outdoor actIvItIes and operations shall be setback a minimum of one hundred (100) feet from all property Imes when
adJacent properties m the R-C, R-SE, R-SR, R-M, R-V, B-N, B-MU, and B-SM Districts

7 The following minimum screening requirements shall apply to permanent outdoor activities and operations vstble from
the right-of-way of an existing or proposed arterial or collector roadway or a property zoned R-C, R-SE, R-SR, R-M, R
V, B-N, B-MU, B-SM DIstncts

a A solid wall constructed from materials, not mcludmg metal, identical to those used on the exterior of the principal
bu1ld1ng, unless otherwise approved by the Planning Comm1ss1on, and not less than six (6) feet and not more than
eight (8) feet m height shall be erected to screen the portions of permanent outdoor actIvIty and operations areas
visible from an existing or proposed arterial or collector roadway or a property zoned m the R-C, R-SE, R-SR, R
M, R-V, B-N, B-MU or B-SM D1stncts

b A landscape strip, not less than five (5) feet wide shall be located m front of the wall The landscape strip shall be
improved with a Type ATransition Area per Secton 11-60#

K Outdoor Dining.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 19 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

The outdoor d1rnng area shall be located on an approved hard paved surface or a deck or other feature appurtenant to
the prncpal building as approved by the Zoning Administrator

2 Outdoor dining areas may ut1hze a maximum of twenty (20} percent of the parking spaces required for the operation of
the principal use or two thousand (2,000) square feet, whichever 1s less

3 Outdoor d1n1ng areas shall not block a pedestrian walkway or public sidewalk in a manner which reduces the width of
that walkway or sidewalk to less than five (5} feet

4 A fence, landscape hedge, or wall with a height of four (4) feet shall be utilized to segregate the outdoor dining area

5 Use of outdoor d1rnng areas shall be hm1ted to the posted operational hours of the associated eating and drinking use

6 Review by the City Engineer and other Cty staff shall be required in addton to the revew requirements of Section ##
###

L Outdoor Display/Sale of Merchandise.

Only those goods and materals associated wth the existing on-site use may be drsplayed or sold

2 Permanent outdoor display or sales areas shall not be located w1thm any required yard setback or parking area

3 Permanent outdoor display or sales areas shall be surfaced with an approved hard surface material Unpaved outdoor
display or sales areas shall be prohibited

4 Permanent outdoor display or sales areas shall not exceed ten (1 O} percent of the gross floor area of the primary
building on the property unless approved as a Conditional Use

M Solar Energy Collection System, Canopy.

1 The height of canopy solar energy collection systems shall not exceed the height of the primary building that the
parking area serves

2 The mm1mum height of solar energy collection systems shall allow clearance for emergency and service vehicles

N Solar Energy Collection System, Ground-Mounted.

Ground mounted solar energy collection systems shall be permitted m the rear yard only

2 The maximum height of ground mounted solar energy collection systems shall be five (5} feet m height, measured from
the grade at the base of the pole to the highest edge of the system

3 Minimum clearance between the lowest pont of the system and the surface on which the system 1s mounted 1s twelve
(12) inches

4 All parts of the freestanding system shall be set back ten (10) feet from the side and rear lot Imes and shall not be
located in a pubhc utility easement

5 No part of the freestanding system shall be v1s1ble from any public right of way

0 Solar Energy Collection System, Roof Mounted.

Roof mounted solar energy collection systems may be located on any roof face of principal or accessory buildings
Systems should be flush mounted when possible

2 Systems on res1dent1al structures shall not extend beyond twelve (12) mches parallel to the roof surface of a pitched
roof or flat roof

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 20 of 21



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

3 Systems on nonres1dent1al structures shall not extend beyond thrty-sx (36) inches parallel to the roof surface of a
pitched roof or flat roof

4 Systems on all structures shall not extend above the highest peak of a pitched roof Height is measured from the roof
surface on which the system Is mounted to the highest edge of the system

5 All materials used for racking, mounts, mounting clamps, and flashings shall be of a color consistent with the color of
the roof surface to mnrmze visibility

15-4-14. Temporary Use-Specific Standards

A Food Truck.

The location of a food truck on landscape areas, in reqwred setbacks, an ADA parking stall, or a pedestrian path 1s
prohibited

2 Food trucks shall obtain written permIssIon from the property owner(s) and shall submit such documentation as part of
the temporary use approval process specified in Section ##-#-tffl

3 A food truck, including all vending activity, tables, chairs, and trash receptacles may occupy no more than four (4)
parking stalls or six hundred and fifty (650) square feet of parking area, whichever Is less

4 Tables and chairs shall be permitted and located on improved or paved surfaces and shall not locate in parking stalls,
landscape areas, or drive aisles, aside from the four (4) parking stalls designated for vending

5 A minimum of one (1) trash receptacle and one (1) recycling receptacle shall be provided per food truck

6 Required tables, chairs, and trash and recycling receptables shall not be retained on-site overnight

7 Drve aisles, sidewalks, access to trash enclosures, and similar areas may not be blocked by any vending activity

8 Food trucks shall be located a minimum of five hundred (500) feet from any bnck-and-mortar restaurant as measured
from the property line

B Seasonal Sales.

Seasonal sales shall be permitted for a penod not to exceed ninety (90) days per calendar year, unless otherwise
approved

2 Seasonal sales areas shall not block pedestrian walkways in a manner which reduces the width of that walkway to less
than five (5) feet

3 All tents, canopies, or other temporary structures shall reqwre review and approval by the Director of Inspection
Services

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 4 Use Specific Standards
Page 21 of 21



l 1%[J ~~-J
HOUSEAL
LAVIGNE
ASSOC ATES

PLANNING

MEMORANDUM

Date: October 25, 2022

To: City of Franklin UDO Update Task Force
Regula Martinez-Montilva, AICP, Pnnc1pal Planner
Manon Eeks, AICP, Associate Planner

From: Houseal Lavigne Associates
Jackie Wells, AICP, Project Manager
Ruben Shell, AICP, Planner II

Re: Franklin, WI Unified Development Ordinance
Draft Articles 5 - 6 Overview

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

SENT VIA EMAIL

HOUSEAL LAVIGNE
ASSOCIATES LLC
CHICAGO IL
188 'est Randolph Street. Suite20
Chcago, llnos 60601
(312)372 1008

The purpose of this memorandum Is to provide an overview of the content contained w1th1n the draft Article 5
- General Development Standards and Article 6 - Sign Standards and portray the substantial changes to
those Articles from the current Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Questions 1dent1fied by City staff and
the project team for d1scuss1on by the Task Force are also provided

ARTICLE 5. GENERAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS
Article 5 contains all the UDO provIsIons that regulate the physical development of sites In the City The
Article includes regulations for a variety of topics, parking, driveways, landscaping, screening, fencing,
building design, outdoor lighting, and vIsIon clearance areas

Section 15-5-01 includes the City's standards for off-street parking and loading which are proposed to be
updated to

• Establish an allowed maximum quantity of off-street parking per land use
• Require vehicular cross access between adjacent development along an Arterial Road
• Require on-site pedestnan circulation systems for multifamily, mxed-use, and nonresidential

development only
• Require the provson of off-street bicycle parking
• Require the provson of infrastructure to electric vehicle charging stations in any commercial or

mtxed-use distnct

Section 15-5-02 establishes new driveway standards for the City Driveways on lots with s1ngle-fam1ly and
duplex uses are proposed to d1fferent1ate between driveways, garage access drives, and parking pads to
provide more flex1b11ity while maintaining safe and consistent curb cut widths New standards are proposed
for driveways on lots with townhouse, mult1fam1ly, and nonresIdent1al uses to regulate driveway width and
placement to provide for motorist and pedestrian safety The existing UDO provIsIon restricting the
placement of driveways near street intersections Is retained

Sections15-5-03 establishes the location of required landscaping including bufferyards between adjacent
uses Meanwhile, Section 15-5-04 establish detailed regulations regarding the provIsIon of landscaping
including the number of trees, shrubs, grasses, and b1oretent1on plantings tor different types of land uses
The regulations of this section are retained from the existing UDO and revsons and additions are made to
introduce more green infrastructure, healthier trees, and more ecologically useful plantings Section 15-5-06

s.hlplanngcon
to_hlplanng,com Houseal Lavigne I Frankhn WI Unified Development Ordinance Page 1 of 3



contains the City's existing minimum landscaping standards for off-street parking areas and lots These
standards are revised to include additional detail for the quantity and spec1ficat1ons of landscaping provided
within and along the exterior of parking areas

Section 15-5-07 contains entirely new and enhanced standards for the screening of grease traps, trash, and
recycling receptacles, ground/wall mounted mechanical units, roof-mounted mechanical units, and loading
docks and truck-parking areas

Next Section 15-5-08 establishes new standards that regulate the placement and provIsIon of fencing The
section includes an allowance for privacy fences with a maximum height of 6 feet in street-facing side yards
when set back from the property line Several existing UDO regulations regarding fence maintenance,
proh1b1bon on the storage of material, and allowances for snow fencing are retained

After that, standards are established to regulate townhouse, multifamily, mixed-use, and nonres1dent1al
design in Section 15-5-09 including minimum requirements for extenor building cladding matenals, facade
articulation, and glazing on sites wth these uses

Section 15-5-10 establishes standards for outdoor lighting on lots, including requirements for full cut-off
lighting and regulations for the maximum light level at the property line for nonres1dent1al and res1dent1al uses
to further mnmmze land use incompatibilities The existing UDO's allowed lighting pole height by district Is
retained in Table 15-5-10/(C)(2)

Section 15-5-11 includes the City's standards for vIsIon clearance areas at the intersection of streets and
driveways wth streets

Questions For Task Force Discussion
The following issues have been identified for discussion and policy direction as the Task Force considers the
draft Article 5

• Are the pedestrian CJrculat1on standards in Section 15-5-01(C)(11), which require on-site
pedestnan circulation systems for pedestnans on sites wth multifamily, mxed-use, and
nonresidential development appropriate for Franklin?

• Are the requirements for the provston of infrastructure to support electric vehicle charging stations
in Section 15-5-01(F) appropriate for Franklin? Would the City prefer more stringent measures
such as requirements for electric vehicle charging stations, or less stringent requirements such as
an incentive?

• What Is the appropriate width limit for driveways for single-family and duplex uses m Section 15-5-
02(0)? A standard of twelve feet in width at the property hne has been discussed and Is included in

the draft
• What matenals should be allowed for fencing in Section 15-5-08(0)? Should chain link fences be

proh1b1ted, and should vinyl-coated chain link fences be allowed instead?
• Are the exterior building cladding material standards in Section 15-5-09 appropriate to regulate the

appearance of townhouse, multifamily, mixed-use, and nonres1dent1al buildings m Franklin?

Houseal Lavigne I Franklin WI Unified Development Ordinance Page2 of3



ARTICLE 6. SIGN STANDARDS

Article 6- Signs features fully new language proposed to replace the current language in Chapter 210 The
proposed Article includes content neutral regulations that comply with the SCOTUS dec1s1on in the Reed vs
the Town of Gilbert, AZ case Where applicable, the ex.sting sign area, location, projection, and height
standards have been earned forward into the draft of Article 6 and are shown without tracked changes in the
redhne version of the Article The existing standards that regulate wind pressure, allowable stresses, and
materials are also earned forward

Two sign types that are currently allowed in the City, billboards and marquee signs, are proposed to be
prohibited per Section 15 6-08 Cold air inflatable signs and other signs that feature moving parts or on which
movement 1s caused either by wmd or mechanical devices are also proh1b1ted per Section 15-6-08

Questions For Task Force Discussion
The following issues have been identified for discussion and polcy direction as the Task Force considers the
draft Article 6

• Billboards, roof signs, and marquee signs are currently allowed under the ex1st1ng UDO but are
prohibited in Article 6 as drafted Should these signs continue to be allowed in the City7

• Cold-ar inflatable signs and other signs wth movng parts that are activated by the wnd or
mechanically are proh1b1ted in Article 6 as drafted Should these signs be allowed in the City?

• Feather signs are allowed in several commercial districts in the draft of Article 6 Are these types of
signs appropriate to allow in Franklin?

Houseal Lavigne I Franklin WI Unified Development Ordinance Page 3 of3



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Article 5. General Development Standards

15-5-01. 0ff-Street Parking and Loading

15-5-02. Driveways
15-5-03. Required Landscaping.

15-5-04. Minimum Landscape Standards.

15-5-05. General Landscaping Requirements

12

17

18
22

15-5-06. Minimum Landscaping Standards for Off-Street Parking Areas and Lots 23

15-5-07. Screening. 24

15-5-08. Fencing 28

15-5-09. General Townhouse, Multifamily, Mixed-Use, and Nonresidential Design Standards. ......................... 31

15-5-10. Outdoor Lighting 34

15-5-11. Vision Clearance Areas .. . .. . .. . . .. . .. .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . . .. .. .. . .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. . .. . .. . . .. . .. . .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. . .. . .. . . 35

15-5-01. Off-Street Parking and Loading

A. Applicability. The off- street parking and loading provision provisions of this Article shall apply as follows.

No Off-Street Parking Required. The off-street parking maximums in Section##-#-## establish maximum quantities
of off-street parking that may be provided for each use on a lot. The off-street parking maximums do not constitute a
parking requirement. Applicants may provide off street parking less than the maximum established for the applicable
use.

2. Existing Uses Established Prior to the Effective Date of This Ordinance. This article shall not require the reduction
or addition of any parking or loading spaces for uses existing as of the effective date of this UDO.

B. Off-Street Parking Limited.

Maximum Requirements. To minimize the creation of impervious surface, no off-street parking area shall be designed
or used to provide a greater number of off-street parking spaces than the limit established in Table##-#-##.

2. Parking Increases Allowed. The Zoning Administrator may allow an increase in the number of off-street parking
spaces allowed of up to thirty (30) percent of the spaces provided above the maximum when the following provisions
are met.

a. The additional spaces over the maximum are surfaced with a permeable paving system or one hundred (100)
percent of the first half (1/2) inch of runoff from the additional parking area is treated with green infrastructure.

b. Additional parking area landscaping equivalent to an area fifteen (15) percent greater the minimum square feet of
parking area landscaping specified in Section##-#-## is provided.

c. The parking lot perimeter landscape zone required in Section##-#-## is at least ten (10) feet in width.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 1 of 35



I

DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

d. No more than fifty (50) percent of the parking spaces over the maximum parking allowed shall be located in the
front yard.

3. Calculations. The following rules shall apply when calculating the specified maximum quantity of parking spaces.

a. Area Measurements. Parking calculations shall be based upon the definition of Gross Floor Area as defined in
this UDO.

b. Fractions. When measurements of the maximum quantity of off-street parking spaces result in a fractional
number, the resulting number shall be rounded up to the next higher whole number

c. Combined Uses on the Same Parcel. When a combination of the uses in Table ##-#-##t are located on the same
parcel, the maximum quantity of off-street parking allowed shall be the largest quantity allowed for any of the
individual uses.

d. Uses Not Listed. Off-street parking spaces for uses not listed in Table ##-#-#it shall be provided for a use
deemed similar, as determined by the Plan Commission.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 2 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Table 15-5-01(B): Maximum Parking Requirements
Use Maximum Parking

2 / dwelling

Townhouse

Senior Care
e Care

Educational Facilit
Governmental Uses

Health Care Facility

Indoor Commercial Place of Assembl , ###### s ft or less
Indoor Commercial Place of Assembl , more than ###### s ft
Outdoor Commercial Place of Assembl

ft

Lod in House
Hotel
Recreation Area
Short Term Rental
REIEIIEE
Adult Establishment
Retail, less ###### s ft or less
Retail, More Than ###### s ft
Multitenant Sho in Center
Wholesale Establishment

Animal Boardin Facilit /Kennel and/or Veterinar Service
General Service, ###### s ft or less
General Service, more than ###### s ft
Financial Institution

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

1.5 / dwelling

2 / dwelling
3 I dwelling
1 / dwelling

0.5 I dwelling

As determined by the Plan Commission

0.5 I bed for in-patient facilities; 0.5 / examining
or operating room for out-patient facilities
As determined by the Plan Commission

1 / 3 Individuals at Maximum Occupancy

1 /campsite

1 / lodging unit

1 / 250 sq ft

1 / 200 sq ft
1 / 250 sq ft

1 / 300 sq ft

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 3 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Funeral Home
Office, above qround floor only
Office, ###### sqft or less
Office, more than ######### saft
Office Complex/Business Park
dllh±ill -- 3de " ; : , ,...........,-, ... ,.. ' . .. ·,•

Bar/Tavern
Brewery/Winery/Distillery
Brewery/Winery/Distillery Tastinq Room 1 / 150 sq ft
Food Truck Court
Micro Brewery/Winery/Distillery
Restaurant
............... ...,;,,;, - - pee

3) r.,,,"chldMki

Carwash 1 / stall
Vehicle Fuel Sales 1 / 250 sqft
Auto Sales/Rental and Service 1 / 500 sq ft
Major Automotive Repair 3 / Service Bay
Minor Automotive Repair

b lulu -! et

0.25 per garden plot or as determined by Plan
Community Garden Commission
Crop Production 1 or as determined by Plan Commission
Animal Husbandry
Indoor Aqriculture
Nursery Retail 1 / 500 sqft
Nursery Wholesale
II7TEIIEIE9
Artisan Manufacturing
Brewery/Winery/Distillery
Composting/ Recycling Facility
Distribution Facility 1 / 1,000 sq ft
Equipment Rental, Sales, and Service
Extractive Industry
Heavy Industry
Home Improvement Center/ Lumberyard
Landfill As determined by the Plan Commission
Solid Waste Facility
Light Industry
Self-Service Storage Facility 1 / 1,000 sq ft
Storage Yard
Warehouse

+t; #one

·flt/MM{0]till»]l

Airport/ Heliport As determined by the Plan Commission

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 4 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Helistop
Loading Areas, Parking Areas, and Landing Strips As a Principal Use
Railroad Use
Sanitary Sewer or Water Supply Lines
Solar Farm
Telecommunications Tower
Wastewater Treatment Ponds and Facilities
Waterborne Transportation Uses
Wind Farm- : r
[;J}($ .

,8¢

Accessory Dwelling, Detached / Attached 1 / dwelling
Accessory Dwelling, Internal
Accessory Retail 1 / 250 sq ft
Accessory Structure
Artisan Workshop
Drive Through
Donation Drop Box
Outdoor Activity/Operation/Storage
Outdoor Dining n/a
Outdoor Display/Sale of Merchandise
Home Based Business
Solar Energy Collection System, canopy
Solar Energy Collection System, ground mounted
Solar Enerqy Collection System, roof mounted- -Jg¢/]/r .
Construction Related
Farmers Market As required through Temporary Use Permit
Food Truck Court process

Seasonal Sales

C. Off-Street Parking Design, Location, and Size. In all districts and in connection with every use, there shall be provided at
the time any use or building is erected, enlarged, extended, or increased, off-street parking stalls for all vehicles in
accordance with the regulations of this section.

Access and Cross-Access.

a. Access. Adequate access to a public street shall be provided for each off-street parking lot Each required off
street parking space shall open directly onto an aisle meeting the requirements specified in Table ##t-####t .

b. Cross Access. To facilitate vehicular access between adjoining developments and to minimize off-street parking
area access points along streets and alleys, all development other than single-family residential development
located on a lot fronting on a collector or arterial roadway shall comply with the following standards:

I. Internal vehicular circulation systems shall be designed to allow for vehicular cross-access between the
development's off-street parking areas and off-street parking areas in an adjoining non-single-family
development, or to the boundary of an adjoining vacant parcel.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 5 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

II. Required vehicular cross access between adjoining off-street parking areas shall be provided through the
use of a single two-way maneuvering lane or two one-way maneuvering lanes that comply with the
requirements of Table 15-5-01 are sufficiently wide to accommodate traffic by automobiles, service vehicles,
loading vehicles, and emergency vehicles.

Ill. Vehicular cross access between off-street parking areas on adjoining lots shall cross the lot line at right
angles or as close to right angles as possible to provide site access.

IV. The Zoning Administrator or their designee may waive or modify the requirement for vehicular cross access
on determining that such cross access is impractical or undesirable because it would require crossing a
significant physical barrier or environmentally sensitive area, would create unsafe conditions, or if the Zoning
Administrator determines there exists an inability to connect to the adjacent property due to a site constraint.

V. Easements allowing cross access to and from properties served by a vehicular cross-access, along with
agreements defining maintenance responsibilities of property owners, shall be recorded with the Milwaukee
County Register of Deeds before issuance of a building permit for the development.

VI. Zoning Administrator Waiver. The Zoning Administrator or their designee may waive the cross access
requirement in any instance in which site conditions, including lot configuration, topography, or size, would
prohibit the connection's establishment when the waiver does not obviate state or county requirements.

2. Standards For Parking Spaces, Aisles, and Parking Bays. Minimum parking space and aisle dimensions shall be in
accordance with the standards specified in Table ##-#-### .

/Table 15-5-01(C): Parking Stall and Aisle Dimensional Requirements
I I (A) I (B) I (C) I (D)
I l,I, Ase id t-/ Ase %@
Parking Angle (Degrees) Space Width Space Depth Way) (2-Way)

o

Depth of
Interlocking
Spaces Overhang

10'
10'
10'

18'
18'

12'
16'
24'

18'
18'
24'

28.25'
32'
36'

1.5'
1.5'
n/a

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 6 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023
- - ' , - -

o· {Parallel Parking)

II I I

45 Parking
EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY -

REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TE T

45'..-

90' Parking

» ?

a 1
i

o I
O I
IT I

00\__

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 7 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

3. Location on Lot. Any off-street parking provided shall be located on the same lot as the use being served, or within
the limits of a common parking lot serving one or more buildings.

4. Setback Required. Off-street parking spaces and aisles shall be set back from front, street side, interior side, and rear
property lines as follows.

a. In Residential Districts. Off-street parking shall be set back at least six (6) feet from lot lines.

b. In Nonresidential Districts. Off-street parking shall be set back at least ten (10) feet from lot lines, except when
a larger setback is explicitly required by this section.

5. Minimum Distance of Truck Parking from Any Residential Zoning District. No designated truck parking shall be
allowed within one hundred fifty (150) feet of any residential district.

6. Permanent Off-Street Parking Area Surfacing. All permanent open, off-street loading and parking spaces shall be
improved with a dust-free, all-weather paving system and stormwater management measures as approved by the City
Engineer

7 Temporary and Event Off-Street Parking Area Surfacing. All off-street parking serving a temporary use or event
may be surfaced with grass or gravel subject to the approval of a temporary use permit as specified in Section##-#-##.

8. Edging and Stormwater Management.

a. Approved Edging and Stormwater Management Required. Concrete curb and gutter, wheel stops, or an
equivalent barrier sufficient to prevent cars from driving into or on any landscaped area shall be installed at the
perimeter of all new off-street parking areas, and around all interior landscape areas. A barrier of a minimum of 4"
in height generally shall be provided except where required to allow for stormwater inflows as part of an approved
stormwater management plan. Curb and gutter shall not be required for additions to existing parking areas where
curb and gutter is not present, is not installed on the adjacent street right-of-way, or is not anticipated to be
constructed on the street right-of-way in a future street.

b. Minimum Distance of Required Concrete Curbing from Property Lines. Perimeter edging for off-street
parking areas shall be installed a minimum of ten (10) feet from a property line as measured from the back of curb
to prevent the parked vehicles from extending over any lot lines.

9. Off-Street Parking Stalls. Off-street parking stalls shall be marked by painted lines or other approved material and
shall be maintained to be legible at all times.

10. Parking of Trucks and Equipment. The parking of trucks or other vehicular equipment of a commercial or industrial
nature shall be allowed subject to the following regulations.

a. Agricultural equipment shall be allowed in the R-C - Conservation Residence, R-SE - Suburban/Estate Residence,
A- Agricultural, or A-P - Agricultural Prime District.

b. The parking of any passenger automobiles, panel trucks, vans, or pick-up trucks, each individually exceeding
eight thousand (8,000) pounds manufactured Gross Vehicle Weight in a residential district, P Park and Open
Space, or I- Institutional District, FW- Floodway, GFP - General Floodplain, or FF - FIoodfringe District shall
require a Temporary Use Permit as specified in Section##-#-##.

c. Any vehicle over eight thousand (8,000) pounds rated Gross Vehicle Weight may be parked in districts not
previously mentioned in the normal course of business in conjunction with a commercial or industrial use of the
subject property. Any overnight parking shall be allowed only with a Conditional Use.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 8 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

11 Pedestrian Circulation Standards.

a. Off-street parking areas serving multifamily, mixed-use, and nonresidential development and consisting of twenty
(20) or more off-street parking spaces shall incorporate on-site circulation systems exclusively for the use of
pedestrians and other non-motorists to navigate the site. Pedestrian circulation systems are encouraged in off
street parking areas with fewer than twenty (20) spaces but are not required.

a. The on-site pedestrian circulation system shall comply with all ADA standards.

b. The on-site pedestrian circulation system shall be marked, shall connect all buildings on the site to one another,
and shall provide connections to required parking spaces.

c. The on-site pedestrian circulation system must connect building entrances to adjacent public rights-of-way when
public sidewalks are either existing or planned. The on-site pedestrian circulation system shall form a direct route
between the building entrance and adjacent public right-of-way that does not require significant out-of-direction
travel unless approved as follows.

i. For pedestrian circulations system with a significant out-of-direction travel, the applicant must submit
sufficient evidence of the special conditions to support such alternative design. Special conditions may
include, but not limited to, presence of natural resources, steep slopes, street grades, landscape features
and building orientation or similar

d. The on-site pedestrian circulation system shall provide at least one (1) connection to all adjacent properties along
a shared street frontage. Connections must provide access to existing walkways on adjacent properties, or to the
likely future location of walkways on those properties. The Zoning Administrator may waive this requirement upon
determining that no walkway exists, a future walkway is unlikely to exist, or such connection would create a safety
hazard.
__________________,)

Ll
•

I

--------~~

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY 
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

I
I

E, R II

··-··-··-··-·0-··_J\_________ ----

Primary Street

a5e
Cf)

>ro
'Os
Cf)

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 9 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

D. Snow Storage Requirements For Off-Street Parking and Loading Areas.

Snow Storage Prohibited in Required Off-Street Parking, Drive, and Loading Areas. The storage of snow for
more than forty-eight (48) hours is hereby prohibited in provided off-street parking, driveway, and loading areas.

2. On-Site Snow Storage Standards for Parking and Loading Areas. If an off-site snow repository is not used,
adequate on-site snow storage shall be provided using the following standards:

a. A minimum site area representing ten (10) percent of the total required off-street parking or loading area, inclusive
of access drives, shall be provided as the snow storage area.

b. The required snow storage area may be paved or unpaved. In either case, provision for adequate drainage of the
snow storage area shall be provided to accommodate snowmelt, and no snowmelt shall drain onto abutting
properties.

3. Use of Setbacks, Yards, Bufferyards, and Stormwater Management Facilities for Snow Storage. Required
setbacks, yards, and bufferyards may be used to accommodate the required snow storage area. However, landscaped
areas specified in Section ##-#-##t shall not be used as snow storage areas. Stormwater management facilities shall
not be used as snow storage areas unless specifically approved by the City Engineer as part of a stormwater
management plan per Section 15-18.0600 of the Franklin Municipal code.

E. Off-Street Bicycle Parking.

Location.

a. Required bicycle parking shall be provided on the same lot as the use it is intended to serve.

b. Bicycle parking spaces shall be adequately lit and located such that they are highly visible from the street and/or
building entrance(s) from points where bicyclists approach the site.

c. The location of bicycle parking shall not conflict with pedestrian and/or vehicle circulation.

d. Bicycle parking shall be sited within fifty (50) feet of a building's main entrance. If provided indoors, bicycle parking
shall be located within a common area designated for secure bicycle storage.

e. Bicycle parking adjacent to a pedestrian walkway shall be sited to ensure that a minimum five (5) foot walkway
clearance is maintained.

2. Design Criteria. All bicycle parking facilities shall be designed in accordance with standards established by the
National Association of City Transportation Officials.

3. Dimensional Standards.

a. Each bicycle parking space shall be a minimum of six (6) feet in length.

b. Bicycle racks shall be located at least three (3) feet in all directions from any obstruction, including but not limited
to other bicycle racks, walls, doors, posts, columns, or landscaping.

c. A minimum vertical clearance of seven (7) feet shall be maintained above all bicycle parking facilities.

4. Off-Street Bicycle Parking Required.

a. Bicycle parking as specified in this subsection shall be required for all multifamily residential, mixed-use, and
nonresidential development. Vehicle-related uses as defined in this UDO shall be exempt from the requirement.

b. The number of required bicycle parking spaces shall be equal to five (5) percent of the off-street vehicle parking
spaces provided, up to ten (10) required bicycle parking spaces.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 10 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

c. When the required amount of bicycle parking is less than two (2) spaces, the use shall provide a minimum of two
(2) spaces in a bicycle parking area.

d. Off-street bicycle parking spaces provided on vertical racks mounted on a building wall shall not count toward the
minimum quantity required.

F Electric Vehicle Charging Stations.

VEOPTION 1 - REQUIREMENT

a. Applicability. The requirements for electric vehicle charging stations shall apply to new parking lots or parking
lots undergoing substantial rehabilitation as defined in Chapter#: Nonconformities.

b. Any parking structure or parking area in the R-M - Multiple-Family Residence District shall install the infrastructure
required to accommodate a minimum of one (1) electric vehicle charging station for every twenty-five (25) off
street parking spaces.

c. Any parking structure or parking area in a commercial or mixed-use district shall install the infrastructure required
to accommodate a minimum of one (1) electric vehicle charging station for every fifty (50) off-street parking
spaces.

d. Required electric vehicle charging stations shall comply with the use-specific standards for electric vehicle
charging stations in Section ##-#-##.

EEOPTION 2 - INCENTIVE

a. Applicability. All parking lots may utilize the Electric Vehicle Charging Station incentive.

b. For any applicant providing ten (10) or more electric vehicle charging stations on-site, twenty (20) percent of the
applicable permit fee required per the City of Franklin fee schedule may be waived by the Zoning Administrator

c. Electric vehicle charging stations shall comply with the use-specific standards for electric vehicle charging stations
in Section ##-#-##.

G. Off-Street Loading.

Purpose. The purpose of this Section is to prevent congestion of public rights-of-way and private lots to promote the
safety and general welfare of the public by establishing minimum requirements for the provision of loading facilities on
various sites.

2. Location. All required loading spaces shall be located on the same lot as the use served. No permitted loading space
shall be located within forty (40) feet of the nearest point of intersection of any two streets. No loading space shall be
located in a required side yard abutting a parcel in a residential zoning district, a parcel with an existing residential use,
or in a required front yard.

3. Access. Each required off-street loading space shall be designed with appropriate means of vehicular access to a
street or alley in a manner which will least interfere with traffic movement. Loading spaces on lots located adjacent to
public ways shall be so situated as to enable the vehicles to back into the loading dock from areas other than public
ways unless as otherwise approved by the Plan Commission. The blocking of loading spaces by other loading spaces,
permanent or moveable structures of any type, including trash receptacles or compactors, shall be prohibited.

4. Surfacing. All open, off-street loading and parking spaces shall be improved with asphalt, concrete, or a permeable
paving system approved by the City Engineer, and with stormwater management facilities as approved by the City
Engineer

5. Repair and Service. No motor vehicle repair work or service of any kind shall be permitted in conjunction with loading
facilities provided in any residential or nonresidential zoning districts.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 11 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

6. Maneuvering Space Required to Service Outdoor Loading Areas. Adequate off-street truck maneuvering area
shall be provided on-site and shall not interfere with internal site circulation, ingress or egress to the site, access to or
use of required off-street parking areas and pedestrian circulation areas. Maneuvering areas shall not be provided
within any public street right-of-way or other public lands except as may be allowed by the Plan Commission for
properties in the B-P - Business Park and LI- Limited Industrial Districts where permanently dead-ended streets and
cul-de-sacs may serve as off-street truck maneuvering. The Plan Commission shall consider the number of proposed
loading docks, the proposed use and frequency of loading and unloading and the number of businesses located on the
dead-end street or cul-de-sac and determine that the adjacent businesses will not be adversely impacted or affected.

7 Interference With Fire Exit or Emergency Access Prohibited. Off-street loading facilities shall be designed so as
not to interfere with any fire exits or emergency access facilities to either a building or site.

8. Required Loading Spaces. The number of loading spaces provided shall be determined by the developer and shall
provide for adequate space for standing, turning, loading, and unloading services in a manner that does not interfere
with vehicle or bicycle parking, drive aisles, pedestrian walkways, or landscaped areas.

15-5-02. Driveways

A Driveways on Controlled Access Arterials and Highways Prohibited. No direct private access shall be permitted to the
existing or proposed rights-of-way of expressways or to any controlled access arterial street without permission of the
highway agency with access control jurisdiction.

B. Right Angles Required. Driveways shall cross the lot line at right angles or as close to right angles as possible to provide
site access.

C. Arterial Street and Highway Access and Street Intersections. No new direct public or private access shall be permitted
to an arterial street or highway within one-hundred and fifteen (115) feet of the intersection of the right-of-way lines of
another arterial street or highwayunless approved by the Plan Commission.

D. Single-Family and Duplex Driveway Standards. A single slab or ribbon driveway from the property line to legal, on-site
parking shall be provided and shall be in conformance with the following criteria.

Limit of One. One (1) single slab or ribbon driveway and one (1) curb cut shall be permitted per seventy-five (75) feet
of lot frontage.

2. Single-Slab Driveway Design Standards.

a. Single-slab driveways shall not exceed twenty (20) feet in width at the property line.

b. Surfacing.

I. Single-slab driveways shall be surfaced with an all-weather, dustless concrete material which may include
decorative concrete, patterned concrete, exposed aggregate concrete, concrete pavers, permeable paver
blocks, or similar materials approved by the City Engineer

Asphalt Surfacing Option 1 • Allowance for Driveways Constructed Prior to UDO Adoption

II. Single-slab driveways surfaced with asphalt and constructed prior to the adoption date of this UDO
MM/DD/YYYY shall be allowed to continue or be reconstructed in kind.

Asphalt Surfacing Option 2 • Allowance for Driveways Over a Set Length

Ill. Driveways longer than fifty (50) feet may be surfaced with asphalt.

Asphalt Surfacing Option 3 • Allowance for Driveways in Low-Density Residential Districts.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 12 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

IV. Driveways on lots in the R- - Conservation Residence District and R-SE Suburban/Estate Residence
District may be surfaced with asphalt.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 13 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY -
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH~

C Single-Slab Driveway

3. Garage Access Drive. A garage access drive is permitted and shall meet the standards below.

a. Width. The maximum width of a garage access drive shall be the width of the garage, as measured from the
garage door(s) plus an additional three (3) feet on either side of the garage door(s).

b. Length. The maximum length of a garage access drive shall be sixteen (16) feet from the garage doors.

c. Taper. The garage access drive shall taper, within ten (10) feet, back to the maximum driveway width.

d. Surfacing. Garage access drives shall adhere to the surfacing requirements for single-slab driveways in Section
###-#-##t.

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY -
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

--6~ r:J Garage Access Drive

- +

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 14 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

4. Parking Pad.

a. Limit of One. A garage access drive may be extended to include one (1) parking pad.

b. Configuration.

I. A parking pad shall be a minimum of nine (9) feet and a maximum of ten (10) feet in width.

II. The portion of the parking pad adjacent to the garage access drive shall have a maximum length of twenty
(20) feet, as measured from the front facade line of the garage. A minimum seven (7) foot taper shall be
included in the twenty (20) foot maximum.

Ill. The portion of the parking pad adjacent to the garage shall have a maximum length equal to the depth of the
garage, as measured from the front facade line of the garage.

c. Location. The parking pad shall be set back a minimum of five (5) feet from any side property line.

d. Screening. A fully opaque fence with a minimum height of six (6) feet shall be constructed in the side yard
abutting the parking pad.

e. Surfacing. A parking pad may be surfaced with asphalt, concrete, grass, gravel, or a permeable paving system.
The first half (1/2) inch of runoff over the entire surface shall be treated with green infrastructure if the parking pad
is surfaced with asphalt or concrete.

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY -
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TE

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 15 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

E. Townhouse, Multifamily, and Nonresidential Driveway Standards.

1. Location.

a. Where an off-street parking area of a corner lot abuts an alley or a corner side street, access to the off-street
parking area shall be obtained from a driveway off the alley or corner side street.

b. No lot other shall have multiple driveways for purposes of vehicular ingress and egress without a minimum three
hundred (300) foot separation between such curb cuts along a street, unless otherwise approved by the City
Engineer

GRAPHIC IN DEVELOPMENT

2. Townhouse Driveway Design Standards.

a. One-way driveways for townhouse uses shall be a minimum of ten (10) feet wide and a maximum of twenty (20)
feet wide at the property line.

b. Two-way driveways for townhouse uses shall be a minimum of twenty (20) feet and a maximum of thirty-three (33)
feet in width at the property line.

c. Driveways for townhouse uses shall comply with the surfacing standards for single-slab driveways as specified in
Section ##-#-###.

GRAPHIC IN DEVELOPMENT

3. Multifamily and Nonresidential Driveway Standards

a. One-way driveways for multifamily and nonresidential uses shall be a minimum of ten (10) feet wide and a
maximum of thirty-three (33) feet wide at the property line.

b. Two-way driveways for multifamily and nonresidential uses shall be a minimum of twenty (20) feet wide and a
maximum of thirty-six (36) feet wide at the property line.

c. Driveways for multifamily uses shall comply with the surfacing requirements for single-slab driveways in Section
##-#-### above. Asphalt shall be prohibited for driveways serving lots with a nonresidential use.

d. Islands between the vehicle lanes in opposing directions shall be provided at driveway openings with a minimum
width of twelve (12) feet and located six (6) feet from all lot lines.

e. Setbacks Required.

I. Pedestrian Entrance. Driveways for all retail, service, eating and drinking, vehicle-related, and industrial
uses shall be at least two hundred (200) feet from any pedestrian entrance to any institutional or place of
assembly use.

II. Property Line. No driveway shall be located closer than ten (10) feet to any front, street side, side, or rear
property line except as follows.

i. Where a shared driveway between neighboring lots or parcels is provided to serve as access to a State
or County Highway for the purposes of highway safety as approved by either the Wisconsin Department
of Transportation or Milwaukee County Highway Department, any minimum driveway setback as
required by this Section may be waived, provided that such waiver of setback is for the shared driveway
that is constructed over or abutting property lines of lots or parcels that benefit from the shared
driveway.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 16 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

ii. Approved access points to public streets or cross access between neighboring properties as required in
Section ##-#-## may be allowed to cross the required setbacks at or as close to right angles as possible
to provide site access.

GRAPHIC IN DEVELOPMENT

f. Edge Barrier Required. Concrete curb and gutter, or an equivalent barrier of a minimum of four (4) inches in
height, shall be installed along the length of all new driveways serving multifamily, mixed-use, or nonresidential
development.

I. The edge barrier may be interrupted where necessary to provide for stormwater outflows.

II. This provision may be waived by the Plan Commission for additions to existing structures located in areas
without a predominance of curb and gutter when curb and gutter is not installed on the adjacent street right
of-way or is not anticipated to be constructed on the street right-of-way in a future street reconstruction in a
reasonable period of time.

15-5-03. Required Landscaping

A. Landscaping Required. Landscaping is required in the form of on-lot landscaping, street bufferyards, peripheral
bufferyards, and in off-street parking areas and in areas where vegetative mitigation (see Section 15-4.0103 of this
Ordinance) is required. The area and/or length of each, as required herein must be measured in order to determine the
amount of landscaping required.

B. Exemptions and Modifications. All developments shall meet the provisions of this Division except as specifically
exempted below:

Residential Development on Existing Lots of Record in the A - Agricultural, A-P - Prime Agricultural, and Residential
Districts.

2. Additions to Existing Buildings where the Total Floor Area is not Increased More than Ten (10) Percent. Additions to
existing buildings where the total floor area is not increased more than ten (10) percent of the existing total floor area.

3. Additions to Buildings Which Increase Overall Building Area from Ten (10) to Fifty (50) Percent. Additions to buildings
which increase their overall building area from ten (10) to fifty (50) percent shall conform to the landscaping standards
set forth in this Division reduced by up to thirty (30) percent.

4. Floodplain and Wetland Areas. Areas located within the FW - Floodway and FF - Floodfringe Districts are exempt from
the landscaping requirements set forth in this Section except where mitigation or restoration is required by this UDO.

C. Bufferyards to Ameliorate Nuisances Between Certain Adjacent Zoning Districts. A bufferyard is a combination of a
setback and a visual buffer or barrier and is a yard or area together with the planting and/or landscape structure required
thereon. The amount of land, the type of planting, and the amount of planting specified for each bufferyard requirement of
this UDO are designed to ameliorate nuisances between certain adjacent zoning districts. Bufferyards are also designed to
ensure a desired character along public streets and roads.

D. Bufferyards Required to Separate Different Zoning Districts. Bufferyards shall be required to separate different zoning
districts from each other Bufferyards function to eliminate or minimize potential nuisances such as dirt, litter, noise, glare of
lights, signs, and unsightly buildings or parking areas, or to provide spacing to reduce adverse impacts of noise, odor, or
danger from fires or explosions.

E. Integration with Stormwater Management. Vegetated features designed and installed to provide stormwater infiltration or
treatment, including but not limited to bioretention areas or rain gardens, vegetated swales, or deep-rooted plantings with
amended soils, may be incorporated into landscaped areas and bufferyards required under this Section. The plant selection
requirements of this Section may be varied in order to accommodate planting plans specific to a vegetated stormwater

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 17 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

infiltration or treatment area, provided the overall landscaping and/or screening plan installed is equivalent or greater to the
amount required under this Division.

15-5-04. Minimum Landscape Standards.

A. Standard Plant Units. This Section defines the standard plant unit and its definitions of this Section. The following Table
15-5.0302 specifies the plant unit requirements. Tree requirements shall refer to the diameter measured six (6) inches
above root flare. For purposes of this Section, bioretention plantings shall be equivalent to small flowering shrubs or native
grasses/forbs at a rate of 9 SF of plantings per large deciduous shrub, small flowering shrub, or native grass/forb.

Industrial

1/10 parking spaces

Land Use Type

Retail, Service,
Institutional, Place of
Assembly, Vehicle
Related, and SimilarMulti-Family

1/dwelling unit 1/5 parking spaces 1/10 parking spaces

1/dwelling unit 1/5 parking spaces 1/10 parking spaces

1.5/ dwelling unit

3

6'

Minimum Height
t@ ' « ,¢

Planting size

18" wide

Minimum
Diameter/Size

above root flare

3" diameter at 6"
above root flare

Table 15-5-0302(A): Standard Plant Units

Planting Type

I
fr;- :. .• . •· ·,::H:k~t,}V,tJ'.:&'-: :- ..·· ';:; :~
Canopy/Shade Tree ?
ks~ff$Sh$sj
g.egg@2}.g±3t@#}
EvergreenTree OR ,gg
k.• 28
##ti

I

Per storm water management plan; Max Spacing 18" on3"-4 pot (or as specified by Landscape center; 9 SF = one 18" small flowering shrub or 1 gallon pot of
Architect) native rasses/forbs

SmallFlowering Shrubs ORateGassesrors OR 1 gallon pot

18" 3/dwelling unit 1/5 parking spaces 1/10 parking spaces

B. Definition and Conditions. The following definitions and conditions shall apply to the application of Table 15-5.0302.

Trees.

a. Canopy/Shade trees are deciduous trees providing over-hanging canopy at maturity.

b. Evergreen Trees refers to coniferous trees, tamarack trees, and upright-growing arborvitae; bush-type arborvitae
may be used as an Evergreen Shrub.

c. Ornamental Trees are flowering and/or fruit bearing trees, normally growing to full growth shorter than a shade
tree.

GRAPHIC IN DEVELOPMENT

2. The number of plantings required per parking space shall be rounded to the next highest range. For example, fifty-two
(52) spaces in a commercial development shall require eleven (11) shade trees, not ten (10).

3. The minimum number of plantings shall be five (5) per property for each type.

4. The minimum amount of landscaping shall be twenty (20) canopy/shade trees per acre, twenty (20) evergreen trees
per acre, ten (10) ornamental trees per acre, and thirty (30) small shrubs per acre. Each acre shall be divisible,
rounded to the next number of plantings (i.e., 1.68 acres= 34 shade trees).

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 18 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

5. In the event ornamental trees and/or shrubs are not appropriate for a development, then those types may be replaced
by the following schedule:

a One (1) canopy/shade tree for every one (1) required ornamental tree.

b. One (1) canopy/shade tree or evergreen tree for every two (2) required large deciduous or evergreen shrubs.

6. In the event evergreen trees are not appropriate for a non-multi-family development, then each required evergreen tree
may be replaced by a canopy/shade tree.

7 Tree requirements are stated in terms of the required diameter measured six (6) inches above root flare.

C. Bufferyard. When development abuts or is across a street from a residential zoning district or existing residential use, or an
existing, less intensive use as determined by the Zoning Administrator the following bufferyard requirements shall apply:

Additional planting density shall be required; for the site as a whole, the minimum density of plantings required in Table
15-5.0302 shal be increased by twenty (20) percent.

2. Emphasis shall be on placing the increased amount of plantings within the bufferyard, except where preservation of
existing plant material does not allow additional plantings, or where a combination of fencing and landscaping is
provided to accommodate vegetated stormwater management areas.

3. A combination of evergreen trees (which may include arborvitae), other deciduous vegetation, and fencing are
recommended within the buffer yard. The minimum planting height of evergreens and fencing at installation shall be six
(6) feet.

4. On-site pedestrian circulation systems provided on-site, whether required in Section 15-5-## or not, may traverse a
bufferyard required in this subsection subject to Zoning Administrator approval.

GRAPHIC IN DEVELOPMENT

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 19 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

D. Credit For Preserved Existing Plant Materials. The preservation of healthy, existing plant materials is strongly
encouraged. [REF TO NATURAL RESOURCE STANDARDS- removal of invasives] Where plant materials and trees are to
be preserved on the site, the following shall apply:

In a non-bufferyard landscape area, preservation of existing canopy/shade trees, evergreen trees, and ornamental
trees over six (6) feet in height with a minimum diameter of three inches (3") measured six inches (6") above root flare
shall replace one (1) equivalent type of required planting.

2. In a bufferyard landscape area, existing canopy/shade trees, evergreen trees, and ornamental trees over six (6) feet in
height shall replace one-half (1/2) an equivalent type of required planting.

3. In either a non-buffer or bufferyard, existing large deciduous or evergreen shrubs over five (5) feet in height shall
replace one (1) required large shrub planting.

4. Plantings to be preserved including exact location, size, and type shall be shown on the submitted landscape plan and
in any required maintenance and replacement schedules. The City Forester may be consulted to determine the
likelihood of survival of canopy/shade, evergreen, and ornamental trees through construction, and may specify
required measures for construction-phase protection as a condition of approval of the landscape plan.

E. Alternative Minimum Landscape Surface Ratio. Use of the Alternative Minimum Landscape Surface Ratio shall require a
minimum diameter measured six (6) inches above root flare of three (3) inches for canopy/shade trees and two (2) inches
for ornamental trees, and a minimum height of six (6) feet for evergreen trees, along with an increase by twenty (20) percent
of the minimum quantity of plantings required by Table 15-5.0302. If a bufferyard is present, then the required quantity of
plantings increases to thirty (30) percent.

F Ground Cover. All areas not covered by buildings or paving shall be covered with landscaping. The specific type(s) of
groundcover to be used shall be shown on the landscape plan.

Open areas not covered by formal landscape plantings shall be planted with deep-rooted plantings (which may include
native short-stature grasses or forbs), low growing ground cover, or other living landscape materials, except where
existing natural vegetation of the site makes such plantings impossible.

2. The use of conventional sod or turf grass as ground cover should be limited to those areas planned for active or
passive recreation use, or other areas where substantial use of the area is anticipated.

3. The use of low-growing ground cover on slopes to provide stabilization and where appropriate, pollinator habitat, is
encouraged.

4. The use of salt-tolerant species is recommended in all parking lot landscaped islands and perimeter areas.

5. Low-growing ground cover such as Barren Strawberry (Waldesteinia) is preferred to grass. The use of stone, wood
chips, artificial or plastic mulches, or other non-living material to cover more than twenty-five (25) percent of any
parking lot landscaped island shall be prohibited.

G. Placement. Generally, placement of all types of plantings shall be dispersed across the entire site at discretion of
developer, with the following minimum guidelines:

Species of plantings best suited for high traffic areas shall be placed in the highest vehicular and pedestrian traffic
areas.

2. Native species of canopy/shade trees should be placed away from the highest vehicular and traffic areas.

3. Plantings shall be located so as not to obscure vehicle sight lines.

4. Plantings shall be located so future growth is not over a sidewalk or parking/ drive area.

5. Plantings shall be located to soften tall and long building walls.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 20 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

6. Plantings within buffer yards, in combination with any fencing provided, shall provide visual opacity within two (2) years
of planting.

7 Any fruit, nut, or seed-bearing trees shall be located away from parking/drive areas and pedestrian walkways.

8. Canopy/shade trees and evergreen trees shall be separated from one another to ensure the health and longevity of the
trees. In no instance shall canopy/shade or evergreen trees be located closer than five (5) feet from one another

H. Landscape Plan Contents.

Landscape Plans shall be prepared by a professional Landscape Architect or Landscape Designer Each Landscape
Plan shall include:

a. Preparer's name and date of preparation.

b. A base site plan that matches the site plan submitted for approval, showing planting locations and existing
plantings to be preserved, and the Landscape Surface Ratio percentage.

c. A planting schedule of common names, botanical names, and planting sizes and quantities of all planting
materials and ground cover

d. Calculations showing how the plan meets or exceeds the minimum quantity of plant materials required,
including calculations of preserved plant materials, landscape area plantings, and bufferyard plantings.

e. A diagram or plan showing the integration of drainage patterns and stormwater management measures with
landscape areas.

2. Landscape Plans shall be submitted with the initial application subject to the following procedures.

a. An applicant must at a minimum file a preliminary landscape plan generally depicting the landscaping for the site
at the time of initial application filing.

b. Landscape Plans must be approved by the Zoning Administrator and, where integrated with a Stormwater
Management Plan, the City Engineer

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 21 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

15-5-05. General Landscaping Requirements

A. Physical Containment of Landscaped Areas. All landscaped areas located within or adjacent to a parking area, or
adjacent to a public street or sidewalk, shall be designed to contain landscape materials and to prevent vehicular
encroachment through the use of concrete curbing, headers of a minimum four (4) inches in height, or wheel stops.

B. Artificial Landscape Materials. Artificial trees, shrubs, turf, or plants shall not be permitted as landscaping.

C. Groundcover. The use of landscape fabrics or mulches under all areas landscaped with non-living materials, except as
required per an approved stormwater management plan, is recommended to prevent weed growth.

D. Irrigation. Appropriate on-site, outdoor water supply (e.g., underground or drip irrigation, hose bibs, etc.) that provides
complete coverage to all new living landscaped areas sufficient to provide for plant establishment and ongoing maintenance
is required. Watering systems shall be designed to water landscaped areas efficiently and avoid irrigation of adjacent
parking areas and access drives, sidewalks, buildings, and public streets. If hose bibs are used, they must be located within
one hundred (100) feet of any landscaped area. Temporary or permanent irrigation of bioretention areas or other vegetative
stormwater management areas shall be implemented per an approved Stormwater Management Plan, or as specified by a
Landscape Architect or landscape designer on the approved landscape plan.

E. Location. New vegetation shall be selected, planted, and maintained so that at maturity it will not interfere with utility lines,
snow storage areas, vehicular parking, pedestrian circulation, traffic sight visibility at driveways and street intersections, and
will not cause damage or upheaval of sidewalks and pavement.

F Installation.

Timing of Installation. Landscaping and irrigation shall be installed in accordance with the approved landscape plan
prior to issuance of a Zoning Compliance Permit or commencement of operations. The City will have the right to refuse
approval of any project not meeting the provisions of this Section.

2. Surety to Include the Cost of Ground Cover. The cost of vegetative ground cover shall be reflected in the financial
surety held in accordance with this Division.

3. Return of Financial Surety. When it is determined that the landscaping and watering systems have been installed in
accordance with the approved plans, the City shall return the surety to the applicant.

G. Maintenance.

Responsibility for Maintenance.

a. Maintenance of all landscaping shall be the responsibility of the owner, lessee, heirs, assigns, agents,
homeowners' association, or other liable entity of the property and shall consist of regular watering, pruning,
mowing, fertilizing, removal and replacement of irrigation systems, and architectural features.

b. The owner or liable entity in control of any private premises shall at all times maintain the premises free of litter
and weeds.

c. Landscape maintenance shall be coordinated, where applicable, with maintenance provisions in an approved
Stormwater Management Plan.

2. Landscape Phasing. Future building pads within a phased development shall be maintained in a dust-free condition
vegetated with groundcover.

H. Preservation of Existing Trees During Grading. During grading operations, those existing trees to be preserved and
retained as a part of the subdivision, certified survey map, or condominium approval (See§ 15-8.0204 of this Ordinance)
shall be protected through the following measures:

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 22 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

All trees to be retained shall be identified on site by flagging tape. Trees selected for transplanting shall be flagged with
a separate distinguishing color

2. Construction limit fencing shall be erected at the perimeter drip line of all trees to be retained and all protected areas as
identified in a Natural Resource Protection Plan. Tree protection devices shall be installed where required over tree
roots, branches and/or tree trunks, as identified in the Natural Resource Protection Plan.

3. Fences and tree protection devices installed shall be maintained and all construction materials, supplies and
equipment shall be kept outside of the protected areas throughout construction.

I. Plant Replacement. Any plant materials included in an approved landscaping plan that do not survive a plant establishment
period of two (2) years after installation shall be replaced with plant material(s) of the same or like species of equal size
within the next planting season, but in any event, within six (6) months of the plant's demise. Said replacement shall be
made by the property owner or, in the case of landscape plant materials located within a landscape easement under the
control of a homeowners' association, the homeowners' association shall be responsible for said replacement.

J. Plant Material Species Mixture.

All landscape plant materials selected shall be adequately mixed so that no singular species exceeds forty (40) percent
of the total planting requirements. Where four (4) or more canopy/shade trees are to be installed, at least two (2)
species of canopy/shade tree must be installed that include one or more species suitable to the region, such as but not
limited to Sugar Maple, Red Maple, Red Oak, Tilia Americana and improved cultivars, or Hybrid Elm.

2. For every ten (10) trees a minimum of three (3) different species are recommended.

3. Trees shall be selected from a tree species list as recommended by the City Forester

K. Invasive Species Prohibited. Plant species listed in WI Ch. NR 40 invasive species plant list shall not be used in any
landscape areas.

15-5-06. Minimum Landscaping Standards for Off-Street Parking Areas and Lots

A. Minimum Landscaping Requirements for Residential, Mixed-Use, and Nonresidential Off-Street Parking Areas and
Lots. Each residential, mixed-use, and nonresidential off-street parking lot shall contain landscaping within the parking lots,
along the perimeter of parking lots, and along adjoining entrance drives and circulation drives.

A minimum of ten (10) percent of the interior area of the parking lot shall be landscaped, with a minimum total
interior planting area of three hundred (300) square feet.

2. The minimum dimension of any planting area shall be nine (9) feet by eighteen (18) feet, with a minimum planting
depth of three (3) feet.

3. A minimum of two (2) cubic feet of soil volume per one (1) square foot of projected tree canopy at maturity shall
be provided per canopy/shade or ornamental tree planted in an interior parking lot island.

4. In general, larger, contiguous planting areas are preferred over smaller planting areas in order to promote healthy
plant growth.

GRAPHIC IN DEVELOPMENT

B. Existing Vegetation May Count Toward the Provision of Minimum Off-Street Parking Landscape Requirements.
Existing trees that can, in the opinion of the City Forester, be preserved in a healthy condition after construction, shall count
toward the minimum off street parking landscape requirements. The City Forester shall find that conditions during and after
construction:

Shall not cut off the tree from a reasonable supply of water,

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 23 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

2. Shall incorporate sufficient soil volume (i.e. 2 cubic feet of soil per 1_square foot of projected canopy area at
maturity) and protected from compaction, with the area under the canopy remaining undisturbed; and

3. Plantings that are preserved within parking lot islands shall be located within islands with a minimum of three
hundred (300) square feet in area.

C. Barriers Required to Contain Landscape Areas. The barrier around landscape areas may incorporate wheel-stops,
provided the area of vehicle overhang does not exceed two (2) feet and does not damage or interfere with the landscaping.
Where vehicle overhangs abut required landscape areas, a minimum five (5) foot wide planting area is required for a single
vehicle overhang, and an eight (8) foot wide planter for a double vehicle overhang is required. Vehicle overhang into the
public right-of-way is not permitted.

D. Uses Not Permitted in Required Landscaped Areas. Parking (except where vehicle overhang is permitted), buildings,
and display of equipment or vehicles are not permitted in required landscaped areas. Required landscaped areas shall not
be used for snow storage.

E. Required Landscape Materials Not to Constitute a Driving Hazard. To ensure that landscape materials do not constitute
a driving hazard, trees used to landscape parking islands shall have a clear trunk height of six (6) feet; mature shrubs,
groundcover, or other landscaping material shall not exceed three (3) feet in height. The landscaped area within these
planters may be used to satisfy, to the extent provided, the landscaping requirements.

15-5-07. Screening

A. Grease Traps, Trash, and Recycling Receptacles. The following regulations shall apply to all nonresidential, mixed use,
and multifamily development.

Visibility From Public Right-of-Way Prohibited. Grease traps, trash, and recycling receptacles shall be located to be
completely concealed from visibility from any public right-of-way. The Zoning Administrator may provide an exemption
from these requirements when the Zoning Administrator determines that the site's conditions require the exemption.

2. Screening Required.

a. Grease traps, trash, and recycling receptacles shall be screened on three (3) sides with a solid, opaque material
with a minimum height of six (6) feet and a maximum height of eight (8) feet.

b. Materials used for screening shall complement the exterior building cladding materials of the primary building.

c. Materials and elevations for enclosures that are attached to buildings shall be designed to be integrated into the
primary building.

d. If enclosures are to be attached to buildings, they shall comply with applicable fire and building codes.

e. Shrubs, native grasses, or other vegetation shall be installed along the exterior of the enclosure, except for the
enclosure openings, to provide a softening effect.

f . Enclosure openings shall be gated with an opaque material.

g. Enclosure openings shall be kept closed at all times except for when the receptacle is being accessed.

h. Property owners shall be responsible for ensuring that grease traps, trash, and recycling receptacles be placed in
the enclosure at all times other than when it is being accessed.

i. Access drives shall be constructed of materials and to a thickness which accommodates truck loading. Year
round access to the enclosure area for service trucks shall be maintained by the property owner or tenant.

j. Enclosures shall be of an adequate size to accommodate expected containers. The enclosure shall be designed
to be expandable to accommodate future additional containers.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 24 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

k. All enclosures shall be curbed, graded and drained in a manner that prevents the discharge of contaminated
runoff to surface waters or storm drainage facilities.

I. Enclosure structures shall be designed to protect the walls from damage by containers. Such protection may be
provided by the use of barrier curbing, reinforced masonry walls, or other similar means.

m. Grease traps, trash, and recycling receptacle enclosures shall not occupy areas used for required parking spaces.

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY -
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

B. Ground/Wall Mounted Mechanical Units. The following regulations shall apply to all ground/wall-mounted mechanical
units, including but not limited to generators, air-conditioning condensers, heat pumps, ventilation units, computer cooling
equipment, etc., and any related utility structures and equipment. Tanks and/ or silos accessory to a brewery, winery,
and/or distillery or microbrewery, microwinery, or microdistrillery are exempt from these requirements.

Locating mechanical units within the primary building is strongly encouraged to minimize exterior visual impacts.
Ground-mounted mechanical units are prohibited within the front yard, regardless of whether screening is provided.

2. Ground/wall mounted mechanical units that are visible from any public right-of-way or adjacent residential property
shall be screened from public view.

3. Materials used for screening shall be designed and established so that the area or element being screened is no more
than twenty (20) percent visible through the screen. Evergreen hedges or non-transparent walls such as stone
masonry shall be allowed.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 25 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

4. Chain-link fence or slats in chain-link fence shall not be used to meet this requirement.

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY -
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

C. Roof Mounted Mechanical Units. The following regulations shall apply to all roof mounted mechanical units, including but
not limited to air-conditioning condensers, heat pumps, ventilation units, computer cooling equipment, etc., and any related
utility structures and equipment which service multifamily, non-residential, or mixed-use developments.

Locating mechanical units within the primary building is strongly encouraged to minimize exterior visual impacts.

2. Roof mounted mechanical units that are visible from the closes right-of-way line or adjacent residential property shall
be completely screened from public view from those locations.

3. Materials used for screening shall be architecturally integrated with the building and shall be continuous and
permanent.

4. Screening shall be required when new equipment is installed and shall be provided around both new and existing roof
mounted mechanical units in order to provide visual continuity. Normal maintenance of roof mounted mechanical units
shall not mandate the screening requirements.

5. Additional screening may be required due to topographic differences in the adjoining properties.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 26 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023
I

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY 
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

! I Mechanical Units

sieLill-
Primary
Buildinge ti

Public Right-of-Way

D. Off-Street Loading Areas. Off-Street loading areas that are visible from any property in a residential district shall be
completely screened from view with a bufferyard as specified in Section ##-#-###

Primary Street

Loading
Bay

EXAMPLE owowvots-.•
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT I

I
[ aI
~0(2 1

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 27 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

15-5-08. Fencing

A. General Provisions.

Maintenance Required. All fences shall be maintained in good repair and in structurally sound condition. All fences
shall be constructed and maintained in a good aesthetic condition and of such materials and colors so as not to
adversely affect the value, visual character, and visual appeal of adjoining property or property in the immediate
neighborhood. All fences shall be constructed and maintained straight, plumb, and of an even height along its length,
except for such deviations as required by grade.

2. Building Permit Required. No fence shall be constructed in the City without first obtaining a Building Permit as
specified in Section ##-#-##.

3. Material Storage Prohibited. No materials shall be stored between a fence located adjacent to a lot line and the lot
line. No materials shall be stored against the fence on its interior side.

4. Snow Fencing Allowed. Snow fencing will only be allowed between November 15 and April 15 of each year No
Building Permits for the installation of said snow fencing shall be required.

5. Utilities. An applicant seeking to construct a fence shall call Diggers Hotline or similar service to obtain information on
the location of underground utilities located on-site.

6. Finished Side Facing Adjacent Property. Fencing shall be constructed with the finished or decorative side facing the
adjacent or abutting property or street.

B. Height. Fence height shall be the vertical distance measured from the mean elevation of the natural lot grade along the
fence to the highest point on the fence, excluding fence posts and supports. Fence posts and supports may protrude an
additional six (6) inches above the highest point on the fence.

C. Location. All fences allowed in this Section shall be located:

Wholly within property lines; no part of the fence, post hole, or fence material may encroach or cross a property line

2. A minimum of one (1) foot from any property line abutting a right-of-way,

3. A minimum of one (1) foot from any City easements unless otherwise approved by Common Council

4. Outside of a vision clearance area as detailed in Section ##-#-##,

5. In a manner which does not block access to underground utility access structures or fire hydrants, and

D. Material Standards.

Materials Permitted. Permitted fence materials shall be only those materials which are designed and intended for use
in fence installations and shall be limited to:

a. Masonry

b. Vegetation (including but not limited to "green wall" systems),

c. Wood, chemically treated or naturally resistant to decay,

d. Wood Composites,

e. Aluminum,

f. Vinyl/PVC,

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 28 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

g. Wrought Iron,

h. Trellises composed of materials allowed in this subsection, and

i. As approved by the Zoning Administrator or their designee.

2. Chain Link Fences. Chain link fences shall be allowed in the interior side or rear yard on a lot with any single-family or
duplex use.

3. Masonry Fences. Masonry fences shall be prohibited in the Floodplain Districts. The Zoning Administrator may
forward applications for masonry fences to the City Engineer for further review on sites outside the Floodplain Districts
on which drainage and flooding concerns are present. Adverse impact of drainage and flooding shall constitute the
ground for denial of the application.

E. Fences on Lots with Single-Family and Duplex Uses. Fences on lots with single-family and duplex uses shall meet the
requirements established below. Barbed wire, razor wire, agricultural fencing, or unconventional materials such as plywood
or tarps or others as determined by the Zoning Administrator shall be prohibited on lots with single-family and duplex uses.
All fences shall be erected so that the posts and all other supporting members face inward toward the owner's property.

Fences in Front and/or Street Side Yards.

a. Height. Fences in front and/or street side yards shall not exceed four (4) feet in height except fences in street side
yards which may have a maximum height of six (6) feet if located at least five (5) feet from the property line.

b. Materials. Fences in front yards and/or street side yards shall be of non-sight barrier construction and have a
maximum opacity of fifty (50) percent except for fences in street side yards, which may be one hundred (100)
percent opaque if located a minimum of seven (7) feet from the street side lot line.

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY -
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

I -..-------=
I

I
I
I ...._... ...... .. >····._J

%
0
0
>0

Fence (max. 4' height)

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Primary Street
Fence (max. 6' height) IE] LandscapedArea EA Clear Sight Triangle

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 29 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

2. Fences in Interior Side and Rear Yards.

a. Height. The maximum height of a fence in interior side yards and rear yards shall be six (6) feet. A height of up to
eight (8) feet shall be allowed for fences in rear yards abutting an arterial road.

b. Materials. Fence materials utilized in interior side yards and rear yards shall complement fence materials utilized
in other yards. Fences in interior side and rear yards may be one hundred (100) percent opaque.

F Fences on Lots with Townhome, Multifamily, Mixed-Use, and Nonresidential Uses.

Height. The maximum height of fences on a lot with townhome, multifamily, mixed-use, and nonresidential uses shall
not exceed six (6) feet.

a. Rear Lots Abutting An Arterial Road. A height of up to eight (8) feet shall be allowed for fences in rear yards
abutting an arterial road.

b. Plan Commission Exception. The Plan Commission may approve a height above six (6) feet for a fence located
in any lot where the proposed increase provides a functional or aesthetic benefit for the proposed use.

2. Location. Fences on lots with townhome, multifamily, mixed-use, and nonresidential uses shall be located in rear and
interior side yards only, with the exception of fences on lots in the LI- Limited Industrial District which may be located
in street side, interior side, and rear yards only. Fences located in the street side yard in the LI- Limited Industrial
District shall be buffered from the sidewalk by a landscaped area as specified in Section t#f.-#-t#f..

3. Barbed Wire. In the LI- Limited Industrial District, barbed wire may be utilized in interior side and rear yard fences and
shall be limited to a maximum height of one (1) foot, and a maximum of three (3) strands of wire. The barbed wire shall
not be included in the determination of fence height.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 30 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

15-5-09. Retaining Walls

A Applicability. The standards of this Section shall apply to retaining walls constructed in any zoning district.

B. Location.

General Location Standards. All retaining walls shall be located:

a. Wholly within property lines; no part of the retaining wall or material may encroach or cross a lot line

b. A minimum of one (1) foot from any property line abutting a right-of-way,

c. A minimum of one (1) foot from any City easements unless otherwise approved by Common Council

d. In a manner which does not block access to underground utility access structures or fire hydrants, and

2. The setback from any lot line for retaining walls shall be one (1) foot for each foot of retaining wall height.

3. A minimum horizontal distance of four (4) feet is required between walls installed in a tiered installation.

a. The area between the tiers shall be graded with no more slope than needed to facilitate shedding of surface
waters and must be landscaped with natural material and be properly maintained.

C. Design.

Retaining walls shall not exceed four (4) feet in height above the natural lot grade at the wall's location.

2. Retaining walls shall not exceed the height of the grade that is supported.

3. The exterior of all retaining walls shall be natural materials, decorative wall blocks, textured concrete, or other similar
materials as approved by the Zoning Administrator The use of standard concrete block or untreated landscape ties are
prohibited.

15-5-10. General Townhouse, Multifamily, Mixed-Use, and Nonresidential Design Standards

A Applicability. The standards of this section shall apply to all townhome, multifamily, mixed-use, and nonresidential
development.

B. Exterior Building Cladding Materials. Allowable exterior building cladding materials shall be as detailed in Table ##-####
below. Glazing shall not be included in the facade material calculations. When part of a common development, buildings
shall utilize materials that are consistent with or complement surrounding development.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 31 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Table 15-5-10(B): Exterior Building Cladding Materials

District
Building Facade

Elevation

Vinyl Siding,
Lap Siding, Architectural Unifinished

Masonry (1) Stucco (2) EIFS, Concrete Metal Siding (3) Concrete Block

Max. 50% Max. 15% Max. 15% Not pennitted

Min. 25% Max. 75% Max. 25% Max. 25% Not permitted

Any% allowed Any% allowed Max. 25% Max. 25% Max. 25%

Min. 30% Max 60% Max. 30% Max. 30% Not permitted

Any% allowed Max. 80% Max 40% Max 40% Not penn itted

Any% allowed Any% allowed Max. 40% Max. 40% Max. 40%

(1) Masonry shall include brick, stacked stone, stone, stone masonry units, and architectural concrete masonry units.
(2) Lap siding shall include cementitious fiber board.
(3) Architectural metal siding shall not be corrugated.

GRAPHIC IN DEVELOPMENT

C. Facade Articulation. Articulation involves the horizontal and vertical variation of the facade so that walls are subdivided
into bays or sections that are vertically proportioned. The following provisions for facade articulation shall apply to any
building elevations facing a public right of way or property in a residential district.

The frontage of the building shall be divided into architecturally distinct sections or bays with each section taller than it
is wide.

2. Sections or bays shall be visually established by architectural features such as columns, ribs, pilasters, piers,
recesses, projections, windows, awnings, arcades, or an equivalent element that visually subdivides the wall with a
roof or cap features that provides a rational terminus and integrates with the overall design of the facade.

3. The required dividing elements shall have a minimum width of one (1) foot and minimum projection to width ratio of 1:4.

GRAPHIC IN DEVELOPMENT

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 32 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

D. Roofline Modulation. The width of any continuous flat roofline should not extend more than one-hundred (100) feet without
modulation. Modulation shall consist of either one or a combination of the following treatments:

For flat roofs or facades with a horizontal eave, fascia, or parapet, the minimum vertical dimension of roofline
modulation is the greater of two feet or ten (10) percent of the wall height.

2. For gable, hipped, or gambrel roofs roofs a minimum slope of three (3) feet vertical to twelve (12) feet horizontal.

E. Glazing.

Transparency Zone. Glazing that is transparent under all lighting conditions shall extend from a base of contrasting
material (not exceeding four (4) feet in height above the adjacent grade) to at least the height of the door head. Table
##t-### details the minimum required percentage of square footage in the transparency zone that must have a glazing
treatment.

20%
20%
20%
30%
30%
40%

30%
30%
30%
40%

50%
40%

I Table 15-5-10(E): Transparency Zone Glazing Requirements

I

Elevation Facing Yard
District Front Street Side.su4,"ult@ eses.Mu qI"-res

l"""a N-'if"f'l1;:t;. .''«a....o "I- ,. ,.
[

30% 20%

2. Upper Story Glazing. A minimum of twenty (20) percent of the square footage of upper stories of buildings in the B
SM - Saint Martin's Road Historic Village Business and B-MU - South 27 Street Mixed-Use Districts shall include
glazing.

3. Glazing to be Dispersed. Required glazing shall not be aggregated into a single, undivided area of glazing treatment.
Individual glazing areas shall not span more than fifteen (15) linear feet.

4. Entrance Orientation. Main entrances to buildings shall be oriented toward the primary street adjoining the subject
property. Secondary entrances are encouraged along secondary streets or along building frontages not adjoining a
street.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 33 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

15-5-11. Outdoor Lighting

A. Fixture Classification. All outdoor lighting fixtures, with the exception of wall-mounted accent lighting, shall either have a
fixture cutoff classification of "Full Cutoff' or be fully shielded, unless otherwise expressly permitted in this UDO.

B. LED Fixtures. All outdoor lighting utilizing a light-emitting diode (LED) fixture shall meet the following standards:

Color Rendering. Outdoor LED fixtures shall be rated a minimum Color Rendering Index (CRI) value of seventy (70)
or higher

2. Color Temperature. Outdoor LED fixtures shall have a correlated color temperature between four thousand (4,000)
and five thousand (5,000) degrees Kelvin.

C. Pole Mounted Outdoor Lighting.

Pole Placement. Pole-mounted outdoor lighting shall be located outside of utility easements, designed in coordination
with required landscape zones.

2. Maximum Lighting Height. Pole-mounted fixtures shall be mounted at heights as specified in Table 15-#-##.

A post height of 60 feet shall be allowed for outdoor place of assembly uses
including ball diamond, playing fields, golf driving ranges, tennis courts and
similar outdoor recreational facilities.

D. Wall Mounted Accent Lighting. Wall mounted accent lighting shall be integrated with the architectural character of the
building and shall use low-luminosity lamps, with two thousand (2,000) source lumens or less. The illumination on any
vertical surface shall not exceed one-half (0.5) maintained foot candle and shall not spill over roof lines or building edges.

E. Outline Lighting, Flickering, and Flashing Prohibited. Outline lighting shall be prohibited from signs, buildings, and
structures. No flickering or flashing lights shall be permitted.

F State Requirements For Street Lighting. Street lighting shall conform to the standards set forth by the State of Wisconsin
for State Trunk Highways, Milwaukee County for County Trunk Highways, and the City for City streets and highways.

G. Maximum Light Level at Property Line.

On lots adjacent to lots in a Nonresidential District, all outdoor lighting fixtures shall be designed and located so that
the maximum light level shall be one-half (0.5) maintained foot candles at any property line.

2. On lots adjacent to lots in a Residential District, all outdoor lighting fixtures shall be designed and located so that the
maximum light level shall be zero (0) maintained foot candles at any property line.

3. The Zoning Administrator may approve light level in excess of the limits of this section at a front property line for
lighting fixtures that meet the City's specifications for streetlighting as specified in Section 15-##-##(F)

H. Light Level Measurement.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 34 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Location. Light level measurements shall be made at the property line of the property upon which the light to be
measured is being generated. If measurement on private property is not possible or practical, light level measurements
may be made at the boundary of the public street right-of-way that adjoins the property of the complainant or at any
other location on the property of the complainant. Measurements shall be made at finished grade (ground level), with
the sensor in the horizontal position and not mounted more than six (6) inches above ground level, and with the light
registering portion of the meter held parallel to the ground and pointing upward.

2. Light Meter Specifications. Light levels shall be measured in foot candles with a direct-reading portable light meter
The meter shall have:

a. Cosine and color correction,

b. An accuracy tolerance of no greater than plus or minus five (5) percent, and

c. Been calibrated within the last two (2) years.

15-5-12. Vision Clearance Areas

A. No visual obstructions, such as structures, parking, or vegetation, taller than three (3) feet above grade shall be permitted in
any district in the triangular area of the lot measured as a set distance from the center of the intersection of a driveway and
a street or from the center of the intersection of two (2) or more streets. This area shall be referred to as a clear sight
triangle and shall be determined as follows:

In the case of an arterial or collector street intersecting with another arterial or collector street, the clear sight triangle
shall be sixty (60) feet from the center of the intersection of the two (2) streets.

2. In the case of the intersection of any two (2) other street types or between a street and a driveway, the clear sight
triangle shall be thirty (30) feet from the center of the intersection of the two (2) streets or between the street and the
driveway.

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY 
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

±

Stree t

•Ia ·IEl

•°
City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 5. General Development Standards
Page 35 of 35



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Article 6. Sign Standards

15-6-01. Intent, Purpose, and Applicability

15-6-02. Limit on Sign Area

15-6-03. Sign Measurement.

15-6-04. Permitted and Allowed Sign Types by District.

15-6-05. Standards For Permanent Signs

15-6-06. Standards For Temporary Signs.

15-6-07. General Sign Standards

15-6-08. Prohibited Signs and Content.

15-6-09. Safety, Maintenance, and Abandonment.

15-6-10. Comprehensive Sign Plan

2

.4

.6

14

""" , .20

21

22

23

15-6-01. Intent, Purpose, and Applicability

A. Purpose and Intent. The purpose of this Article is to preserve and protect the public health, safety, and welfare by
regulating signs of all types. It is intended to:

Enhance the physical appearance of the City,

2. Make Franklin a more enjoyable and pleasing community and create an attractive economic and business climate,

3. Reduce sign distractions which may increase traffic accidents,

4. Eliminate hazards caused by unsafe signs,

5. Relieve pedestrian and traffic congestion, and

6. Avoid the canceling out effect of adjacent signs.

B. Applicability. Except as otherwise regulated herein, the regulations of this Article shall govern all outdoor signs, advertising
structures or devices with respect to location, safety, size, construction, erection, attachment, support, anchorage and
maintenance.

15-6-02. Limit on Sign Area

A. Permanent Sign Area Limit. Each lot shall be allowed aggregate permanent sign area equal to two (2) square feet of sign
area per linear foot of lot frontage.

B. Temporary Sign Area Limit. Each lot shall be allowed aggregate temporary sign area equal to one (1) square foot of sign
area per linear foot of lot frontage.

C Premises Having Frontage on More Than One Dedicated Street. Premises having frontage on more than one (1)
dedicated street will be allowed an additional one (1) square foot of aggregate sign area for each lineal foot of the
secondary lot frontage; however additional sign area shall only be displayed on the secondary frontage.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 1 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

D. Irregularly Shaped Lots. Irregularly shaped lots with minimal lot frontage, relative to more typically shaped lots in the
district, may petition for additional aggregate sign area through the Comprehensive Sign Plan process as detailed in Section
##-#-###.

r
I
I

I
I

LotA

7

I

I

I

I

Lot B

,·---
!
I

I
I

la.

a5
%
z>ro

R
0en

LotA
Loi Frontage: 100'
Aggregate Permanent Sign Area: 100'
Aggregate Temporary Sign Area: 50'

LotB
Lot Frontage:. 250'
Aggregate Permanent Sign Area: 175'
Aggregate Temporary Sign Area: 87.5

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY -
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT1

1 11

-----.ml-------

c]

Primary Street Primary Street

15-6-03. Sign Measurement

A. Sign Height. Sign height shall be measured by the total distance between the highest point on the sign to the average
elevation of the ground upon which the sign supports are placed, except when:

The sign supports rest upon a berm or other area elevated above the surrounding ground, or

2. The sign supports rest upon a ditch or other area lower than the surrounding ground.

B. In the cases detailed in Section ##-#-##t above, the elevation of the centerline of the adjacent roadway shall be considered
as the ground level.

C. Sign Area.

Unless otherwise defined, sign area is determined by the total area enclosed by a continuous perimeter along the
edges of a sign, including any frame or border

2. The area of a sign composed of individually-affixed letters is determined by the total area of the smallest geometric
shape enclosing the copy.

3. A maximum of two (2) geometric shapes may be utilized in sign area calculation.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 2 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

4. The calculation for a double-faced sign shall be the area of one (1) face only.

Measurement of sign
area with backi ng

Measurementofsign -
area without backi ng

Measuremen t ofsign
area with backing

Measuremen t ofsign
area without backing

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY 
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 3 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

15-6-04. Permitted and Allowed Sign Types by District

A. The following key is to be used in the interpretation of Table##-#-## Permitted and Allowed Sign Types by Residential
District and Table ##t-#-### Permitted and Allowed Sign Types by Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Districts.

Sign Types Requiring a Permit. Sign types marked as "·" in the tables shall be permitted subject to all applicable
regulations of this Ordinance and only after the issuance of a Sign Permit as detailed in Section ##-#-##

2. Sign Types not Requiring a Permit. Sign types marked as "o" in the tables shall be allowed subject to all applicable
regulations of this UDO without the issuance of a Sign Permit.

3. Prohibited Sign Types. A blank space in the table indicates that a sign type is prohibited in the respective district.

4. Interpretation of Similar Sign Type. If a proposed sign is not listed in the table, the Zoning Administrator shall
determine if the sign is substantially similar to a sign listed in the table. If it is, the standards applied to the proposed
sign shall be the standards applicable to the similar sign. If not, the sign shall be regarded as prohibited.

B. Permitted and Allowed Sign Types by Residential District.

' Table 15-6-04(B): Permitted and Allowed Sign Types by Residential District
District

'Sign Type R-C R-SE R-SR I R-M R-V

Wall Sign
Single-Tenant Monument Sign ·(1) ·(1) ·(1) ·(1)2)
Multi-Tenant Monument Sign
Awning/Canopy Sign
Projecting Sign
Window Sign, Permanent
On-Site Traffic Directional Sign o(2)

gpsa
gt[)/hNl[/

Wall Mounted Banner Sign
Ground Mounted Banner Sign
Window Sign, Tern porary
A-Frame/Sandwich Board Sign
Post Sign 0 0 0 0 0

Yard Sign 0 0 0 0 0

III9I
(1) Sign shall be permitted at entryways or gateways to subdivisions or neighborhoods only.
(2) Sign shall be permitted for multifamily developments only.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 4 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

C. Permitted and Allowed Sign Types by Nonresidential and Mixed-Use District.

Table 15-6-04(C): Permitted and Allowed Sign Types by Nontresidential and Mixed-Use District
District

Sign Type B-N B-G B-R B-MU B-SM B-P LI A A-P I p L FW
Paronestoe #±#«lit&4a$#8488040/a4
Wall Sign • • • • • • • • • • • •
Single-Tenant Monument Sign • • • • • • • • • • • •
Multi-Tenant Monument Sign • • • • • • • • • •
Awning/Canopy Sign • • • • • • • • • • • •
Projecting Sign • • • • •
Window Sign, Permanent • • • • • •
On-Site Traffic Directional Sign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0- - .,,•:
ggz/]@)/h#Yo/

Wall Mounted Banner Sign • • • • • • • • • • • • •
Ground Mounted Banner Sign • • • • • • • • • • • • •
Window Sign, Temporary • • • • • • • • • • •
A-Frame/ Sandwich Board Sign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 •
Post Sign 0 0 0 0

Yard Sign 0 0 0 0

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 5 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

15-6-05. Standards For Permanent Signs

A. Wall Signs.

Sign Area. The maximum sign area of wall signs shall be ten (10) percent of the total area of the face of the wall to
which the sign is to be affixed.

2. Sign Height. No wall sign shall protrude above the sill of a second-story window or windows of the building or structure
to which such sign is to be attached.

3. Projection.

a. No part of any wall sign, except lighting reflectors, shall extend more than twelve (12) inches from the face of the
wall to which such sign is attached.

b. No wall sign shall be erected or maintained to extend beyond the end of the wall facing a street to which such sign
is attached.

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY -
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

-- @Poe0ton)

(Vertical Clearance)

€aimum son copy Area

4. Number of Signs.

a. Primary Wall Signs.

I. Single tenant buildings shall be permitted a total of three (3) primary wall signs; however only one (1) wall
sign shall be displayed on any single building facade.

II. Multi-tenant buildings shall be permitted one (1) primary wall sign per unit.

b. Secondary Wall Signs. A maximum of two (2) secondary wall signs may be authorized for buildings with lineal
frontage in excess of seventy-five (75) feet by the Zoning Administrator provided such additional signage is:

I. In keeping with the overall design and architecture of the building,

II. A minimum of twenty (20) feet from the primary wall sign and other secondary wall signs,

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 6 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Ill. A maximum of fifty (50) percent of the size of the primary wall sign,

IV. Less visually prominent on the site than the building's primary wall sign, and

V The total area of all primary and secondary wall signs does not exceed the maximum wall sign area as
established in Section ##-#-##t.

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY 
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

Sign CopyArea

5. Sign Copy.

a. If the sign copy is individually affixed letters, the Zoning Administrator may approve an increase in sign area up to
an additional five (5) percent of the total area of the face of the wall to which the sign is to be affixed.

b. Box/cabinet wall signs shall be prohibited.

6. Other Provisions.

a. No wall sign shall cover any architectural features (architectural features shall include but not be limited to,
pediment, cornice, belt course, pier, windows, pilaster, roof, decorative stone or inlay, kick plate/bulkhead, raised
or colored brick pattern, and corbel) of the building to which it is affixed.

b. No wall sign shall be affixed to HVAC screening, elevator overrun, or other structures protruding from the roof of
the principal building, excluding architectural features that are an integral part of the principal building.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 7 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

B. Single-Tenant Monument Signs.

Sign Area. The maximum sign area of a single-tenant monument sign shall be one-hundred-twenty (120) square feet.

2. Sign Height. The maximum sign height of a single-tenant monument sign shall be fourteen (14) feet.

3. Number of Signs. A maximum of one (1) single-tenant monument sign shall be permitted per lot frontage except with
approval from the Plan Commission.

4. Location.

a. A single-tenant monument signs shall not be closer than five-hundred (500) feet to another single-tenant or multi
tenant monument sign, except where necessary to ensure that each business may have one (1) monument sign.

b. No part of any single-tenant monument sign may be closer than fourteen (14) feet to a lot line.

5. Sign Base.

a. The base of a single-tenant monument sign, including all structural components, shall extend horizontally from the
sign face a minimum of ten (10) percent and a maximum of twenty-five (25) percent of the width of the sign face.

b. The base of single-tenant monument signs shall be constructed from masonry, stone, or similar high-quality
materials in keeping with the materials and design of the principal building of the lot.

6. Landscape Requirement.

a. All single-tenant monument signs shall be required to plant and maintain a landscape area at the base of the sign.

b. The minimum area of the landscape area shall be equal to half of the square footage of the sign area of the
associated sign.

c. Landscape areas shall be planted with one (1) shrub or native grass per every three (3) square feet of required
landscape area.

7 Other Provisions.

a. The address of the building(s) to which the single-tenant monument sign is associated shall be displayed on the
single-tenant monument sign but shall not count towards maximum sign area.

b. The color scheme of a single-tenant monument sign must be consistent with the color scheme of the principal
building unless an alternate color scheme is required by an approved comprehensive sign plan.

c. All signs shall be designed to comply with the applicable provisions of the Wisconsin Commercial Building Code.

Primary
Building

·l1-s.
Triangle

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

.L} o

J
Maximum Sign Area

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY -
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 8 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

C. Multi-Tenant Monument Signs.

Sign Area. The maximum sign area of a multi-tenant monument sign shall be one-hundred-twenty (120) square feet.

2. Sign Height. The maximum sign height of a multi-tenant monument sign shall be sixteen (16) feet.

3. Number of Signs. Number of Signs. A maximum of one (1) single-tenant monument sign shall be permitted per lot
frontage except with approval from the Plan Commission.

4. Location.

a. A multi-tenant monument sign shall not be closer than five hundred (500) feet to another single-tenant or multi
tenant monument sign, where necessary to ensure that each business may have one (1) monument sign.

b. No part of any multi-tenant monument sign may be closer than sixteen (16) feet to a lot line.

5. Sign Base.

a. The base of a multi-tenant monument sign, including all structural components, shall extend horizontally from the
sign face a minimum of ten (10) percent and a maximum of twenty-five (25) percent of the width of the sign face.

b. The base of multi-tenant monument signs shall be constructed from masonry, stone, or similar high-quality
materials in keeping with the materials and design of the principal building of the lot.

6. Landscape Requirement.

a. All multi-tenant monument signs shall be required to plant and maintain a landscape area at the base of the sign.

b. The minimum area of the landscape area shall be equal to half of the square footage of the sign area of the
associated sign.

c. Landscape areas shall be planted with one (1) shrub or native grass per every three (3) square feet of required
landscape area.

7 Other Provisions.

a. The address of the building(s) to which the multi-tenant monument sign is associated shall be displayed on the
multi-tenant monument sign but shall not count towards maximum sign area.

b. The color scheme of a multi-tenant monument sign must be consistent with the color scheme of the principal
building unless an alternate color scheme is required by an approved comprehensive sign plan.

Primary
Building

·l-1
Cklar ~- ........
Sight ['//

Triangle . -
_... Jt-o o

Maximum Sign Area

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY -
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 9 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

D. Awning/Canopy Signs.

Sign Area.

a. The maximum sign area of awning/canopy signs shall be forty (40) percent of the face of the awning/canopy upon
which the sign shall be printed or affixed.

b. The area of the awning/canopy sign shall count towards the maximum amount of sign area permitted for wall
signs as detailed in Section ##-#-###.

2. Other Provisions. Awning/canopy signs shall only be permitted on awnings/canopies extending above ground floor
entrances or windows.

Canopy signs Awning signs

MaximumSign Area

E. Projecting Signs.

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY -
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

Sign Area. The maximum permitted sign area of projecting signs shall be four (4) square feet.

2. Sign Height.

a. Projecting signs shall not extend above the roofline of the building to which it is attached, or a maximum of twelve
(12) feet, whichever is less.

b. Projecting signs shall maintain a minimum vertical clearance of ten (10) feet.

3. Number of Signs.

a. A maximum of one (1) projecting sign shall be permitted per ground floor tenant space.

b. A projecting sign shall not be displayed on the same building frontage as an awning/canopy sign.

4. Projection.

a. Projecting signs shall horizontally project a maximum of four (4) feet from the building to which it is attached.

b. Projecting signs erected over marquees shall be set back not less than two (2) feet from the outer edge of such
marquee.

c. No projecting sign shall at the lowest point be less than ten (10) feet above the established grade immediately
below

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 10 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

5. Other Provisions.

a. Projecting signs shall not be internally illuminated.

b. Projecting signs may encroach upon, extend, or project over a public right-of-way or easement. The property
owner may be required to provide a release or hold harmless to the City prior to issuing permits for any such
signs.

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY 
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Maximum Sign Area

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 11 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

F Window Signs, Permanent.

Sign Area.

a. The maximum permitted aggregate sign area of a permanent window sign shall be twenty-five (25) percent of the
square footage of the individual window on which the sign shall be located.

b. The aggregate area of the permanent window sign(s) shall count towards the maximum amount of sign area
permitted for wall signs as detailed in Section ##-#-##.

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY 
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Maximum Sign Area

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 12 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

G. On-Site Traffic Directional Signs.

Sign Area.

a. The maximum sign area of an on-site traffic directional sign shall be four (4) square feet.

b. Permitted on-site traffic directional sign area shall not count towards the maximum allowed aggregate sign area as
detailed in Section ##t-#-###.

2. Sign Height. The maximum height of an on-site traffic directional sign shall be four (4) feet.

3. Number of Signs. The permitted number of on-site traffic directional signs shall be determined by the Zoning
Administrator or their designee as necessary to assist in the safe movement of vehicular, bicycle, and pedestrian traffic
on a property and between properties with vehicular cross access.

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY -
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

0 Maximum Sign Area

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 13 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

15-6-06. Standards For Temporary Signs

A. General Standards Temporary Signs.

Temporary Signs Requiring a Permit.

a. Single-Tenant Building. A maximum of two (2) permitted temporary signs, as permitted per district in Table ##-#
##, may be displayed concurrently on a lot with a single-tenant building.

b. Multi-Tenant Building.

I. A maximum of one (1) permitted temporary sign, as permitted per district in Table ##-#-###, may be displayed
per unit on a lot with a multi-tenant building concurrently.

II. In no instance shall more than two (2) freestanding temporary signs be displayed concurrently.

2. Display Period.

a. The permitted display period of a permitted temporary shall be a maximum of thirty (30) days.

b. A total of three (3) nonconcurrent display periods shall be permitted per single-tenant building or unit of a multi
tenant building per calendar year

c. Display periods shall be separated by a minimum of thirty (30) days.

3. Temporary Freestanding Signs. Temporary freestanding signs shall include ground mounted banner, feather, post,
and yard signs.

a. Temporary freestanding signs shall be securely anchored into the ground or secured in a portable base designed
for such function.

b. Temporary freestanding signs shall be maintained in good condition and shall not sag, lie on the ground, be torn,
or otherwise kept in a disorderly state.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 14 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

B. Wall Mounted Banner Sign.

Sign Area. The maximum area of a wall mounted banner sign shall be five (5) percent of the total area of the face of
the wall to which the sign is to be affixed.

2. Sign Height. No wall mounted banner sign shall protrude above the highest roofline or the top of the parapet wall or
mansard roof.

3. Location. Wall mounted banner signs shall be affixed to a building only.

4. Projection. Wall mounted banner signs shall be affixed fiat against the building to which they are mounted.

N
EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY 

REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

Maximum Sign Area

C. Ground Mounted Banner Sign.

Sign Area. The maximum sign area of a ground mounted banner sign shall be twenty (20) square feet.

2. Sign Height. The maximum sign height of a ground mounted banner sign shall be five (5) feet.

Maximum Sign Area

•~Right-of-way
/. orlotline

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY 
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 15 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

D. Window Signs, Temporary.

Sign Area. The aggregate maximum sign area of a temporary window sign shall be twenty-five (25) percent of the
individual window on the sign shall be affixed.

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY -
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

Maximum Sign Area

E. A-Frame/Sandwich Board Signs.

Sign Area. The maximum sign area of an a-frame/sandwich board sign shall be six (6) square feet.

2. Sign Height. The maximum sign height of an a-frame/sandwich board sign shall be four (4) feet.

3. Number of Signs. One (1) a-frame/sandwich board sign shall be permitted per single-tenant building or unit of a multi
tenant building.

4. Sign Separation. Each a-frame/sandwich board sign shall be separated from another a-frame/sandwich board sign by
at least twenty-five (25) feet.

5. Location.

a. A-frame/sandwich board signs shall be placed in a manner to preserve a continuous sidewalk width of a minimum
of five (5) feet.

b. No part of any a-frame/sandwich board sign shall block points of ingress or egress.

c. A-frame/sandwich board signs shall be placed no more than one (1) foot from the wall of the building or unit of a
building to which the sign is associated.

d. A-frame/sandwich board signs shall be placed no less than three (3) feet and no more than six (6) feet from the
building entrance of the building or unit of a building to which the sign is associated.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 16 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

6. Other Provisions. The display of a-frame/sandwich board signs shall only be permitted during the operating hours of
the use to which the sign is associated.

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY 
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 17 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

F Post Signs.

Sign Area. The maximum sign area of a post sign shall be six (6) square feet.

2. Sign Height. The maximum sign height of a post sign shall be six (6) feet.

3. Number of Signs. A maximum of one (1) post sign shall be allowed per lot frontage.

0 Maximum Sign Area

/
/ .,,<__Sqrt«~,

or lot line

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY -
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 18 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

Right-of-way
or lot line

€Maximum Sign copyArea

G. Yard Signs.

Sign Area. The maximum sign area of a yard sign shall be four (4) square feet.

2. Sign Height. The maximum sign height of a yard sign shall be three (3) feet.

3. Number of Signs. A maximum of two (2) yard signs may be displayed concurrently with the exception of thirty (30)
days before and fifteen (15) days after a local, state, or federal election in which case a maximum of six (6) yard signs
may be displayed.

4. Other Provisions. Yard signs in residential districts displayed for a period of forty-eight (48) hours or less shall be
exempt from the requirements of this Section.

EXAMPLE DIAGRAM ONLY -
REFERENCES DO NOT MATCH TEXT

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 19 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

15-6-07. General Sign Standards

A. Location of Freestanding Signs. Free standing signs shall include single-tenant monument signs, multi-tenant monument
signs, on-site traffic directional signs, ground mounted banner signs, feather signs, post signs, and yard signs.

Be located a minimum of five (5) feet from all property lines, rights-of-way, and utility easements;

2. Not block points of ingress or egress;

3. Not be placed in any sidewalk or pedestrian circulation system, and

4. Not be located in a clear sight triangle as detailed in Section ##-#-###

B. Illumination.

Location and Design of Light Source. Whenever an external artificial light source is used for a sign, such source
shall be located, shielded, and directed so as not to be directly visible from any public right-of-way or residential
property. No receptacle or device housing a permitted light source for a sign shall protrude more than twelve (12)
inches from the face of the sign or building to which it is attached except if such light source is ground mounted, locked
in place, and cannot be redirected.

2. Level of Illumination. In no event shall the illumination of any sign, resulting from any internal or external artificial light
source, exceed the outdoor lighting standards established in Section tt#-#-tt#. All artificial illumination shall be so
designed, located, shielded, and directed as to prevent the casting of glare or direct light upon adjacent property or
streets.

C. Wind Pressure, Allowable Stresses and Materials.

All signs shall be constructed, erected, and maintained to safely withstand a wind pressure of at least thirty (30)
pounds per square foot.

2. The allowable stresses in chains, wire ropes, and steel guy rods and their fastenings shall not exceed one-quarter (1/4)
of their ultimate strength.

3. All ferrous chains, wire ropes, guy rods and their fastenings and anchor bolts shall be galvanized or be of other
approved equivalent protection. All other ferrous parts of signs subject to corrosion shall be protected and maintained
free from corrosion by approved corrosion-resistant coating.

D. Identification. All signs hereafter erected shall bear the manufacturer's name, and the name trademark or other approval
mark or symbol of the person erecting such sign.

E. Combustible Materials. All signs shall be constructed of noncombustible materials, provided however, that the letters,
decorations, and facings may be made of combustible plastics approved by the Zoning Administrator and Director of
Inspection Services.

F Electronic Message Boards. Single-tenant and multi-tenant monument signs may incorporate electronic message boards
in accordance with the following:

One-third (1/3) of the sign area must be permanent copy.

2. The area of the sign devoted to an electronic message board shall be part of, not in addition to, the maximum sign area
allowed.

3. The electronic message format shall conform to the following requirements:

a. The message will contain a static message or image only and not have movement, or the appearance of
movement, during the static display period.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 20 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

b. The transition to change from one message or image to another shall be instant and not dissolve, fade, scroll,
travel, or have similar transitions.

c. The message shall not change more frequently than once every ten (10) seconds.

4. Electronic message boards must be equipped with a default mechanism that will stop the messaging or freeze the
image in one position when a malfunction in electronic programming occurs.

5. Electronic message boards shall be equipped with a sensor or other device that automatically determines the ambient
illumination and is programmed to automatically dim according to light conditions.

6. Illumination of electronic message signs shall not exceed 0.3 foot-candles over the ambient lighting conditions when
measured at a distance equal to the square footage of the sign area.

7 Applications shall be reviewed by the Zoning Administrator to determine that the sign placement does not interfere with
traffic control devices within three hundred (300) feet of the sign or traffic circulation upon roadways. If deemed
necessary by the Zoning Administrator a report from a traffic engineer certifying that the proposed sign does not
interfere with the design characteristics of the traffic circulation and traffic control devices may be required.

15-6-08. Prohibited Signs and Content

A. The following signs are specifically prohibited:

Billboards;

2. Off-premises signs;

3. Pole/pylon signs;

4. Flashing signs;

5. Roof signs;

6. Marquee signs;

7 Feather signs;

8. Signs attached to a utility pole, a tree, a fence, a standpipe, gutter, drain or fire escape;

9. Signs erected so as to impair access to a roof;

10. Signs located, erected or maintained upon, over or project into any public right-of-way or easement unless otherwise
allowing by this Article;

11 Pennants, streamers, and portable signs not specifically permitted or allowed by this Article;

12. Signs, not specifically permitted or allowed by this Article, which move or have moving parts, which movement is
caused either by the wind or mechanically;

13. Signs in conflict with traffic signals, vehicular or pedestrian travel, access to fire hydrants and fire lanes and exits, and
other signs which reasonably impede or impair the public health, safety and welfare;

14. Signs on vehicles, boats, or trailers parked so as to be visible from a public right-of-way;

15. Attention getting devices;

16. Signs hung across any street or alley;

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 21 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

17 Signs employing exposed neon lights not completely covered by other acceptable sign materials;

18. Signs painted on or otherwise affixed to fences;

B. Prohibited Content.

The following content is prohibited without reference to the viewpoint of the individual speaker·

a. Text or graphics of an indecent or immoral nature and harmful to minors,

b. Text or graphics that advertise unlawful activity,

c. Text or graphics that are obscene, fighting words, defamation, incitement to imminent lawless action, or true
threats, or

d. Text or graphics that present a clear and present danger due to their potential confusion with traffic control signs
or signs that provide public safety information (for example, signs that use the words "Stop," "Yield," "Caution," or
"Danger," or comparable words, phrases, symbols, or characters in such a manner as to imply a safety hazard
that does not exist).

2. The narrow classifications of content that are prohibited by this subsection are either not protected by the United States
or Wisconsin Constitutions or are offered limited protection that is outweighed by the substantial governmental
interests in protecting the public safety and welfare. It is the intent of the Common Council that each paragraph of this
Subsection be individually severable in the event that a court of competent jurisdiction were to hold one or more of
them to be inconsistent with the United States or Wisconsin Constitutions.

15-6-09. Safety, Maintenance, and Abandonment

A. Every sign and all parts thereof, including base, copy, framework, supports, anchors, and wiring systems shall:

Be constructed and maintained in compliance with the applicable codes of the City.

2. Be kept in proper repair

3. When not galvanized or constructed of approved corrosion resistive, noncombustible materials, be painted, when
necessary, to prevent corrosion, rust, peeling paint, and excessive fading.

B. Failure of owners to keep signs maintained in good mechanical and visual repair shall be deemed a violation of this
Ordinance and shall be subject to a penalty as provided in Section ##-#-###.

C. It shall be the duty and responsibility of the owner of every sign to maintain the immediate premises occupied by the sign in
a clean condition, free of rubbish. Any landscaping surrounding the sign shall be kept trimmed and in good repair If the
landscaping installed at the time of sign approval dies, said landscaping shall be replaced immediately or as soon as
weather permits.

D. Every existing sign shall be subject to an inspection whenever the Zoning Administrator deems it necessary. In the event an
inspection demonstrates that repairs, and/or maintenance is necessary, the sign owner shall be notified and required to
complete said repairs and/or maintenance within thirty (30) days of notification. The Zoning Administrator is authorized to
grant one (1) thirty (30) day extension, if, upon written request, it is deemed necessary due to extenuating circumstances.

E. If the Zoning Administrator shall find that any sign is unsafe or unsecure, or is a threat to the public safety, or was, after the
adoption of this UDO constructed, erected, or maintained in violation of the provisions of this UDO, they shall give written
notice to the sign owner Such notice shall specify the manner in which the sign is unsafe or in violation of this UDO.

F Sign copy shall be removed and in the case of a wall sign, the building facade shall be repaired, by the sign owner when the
use which the sign is associated is no longer conducted on the premises. The sign copy shall be removed within thirty (30)

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 22 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

days of when the use ceases to operate. If the owner fails to remove the sign copy, the Zoning Administrator or their
designee shall give the owner thirty (30) days written notice to remove it. Failure to comply with the notice shall be deemed
a violation of this UDO.

15-6-10. Comprehensive Sign Plan

A. Intent. The intent of the comprehensive sign plan is to provide an alternative procedure under which signs can be designed,
constructed, and erected with innovation, imagination, and creative architecture. The objective of the comprehensive sign
plan is to encourage a higher level of design and amenity than is possible to achieve under otherwise applicable sign
regulations.

B. Applicability. Any building or development may elect to submit a comprehensive sign plan. After the approval of a
comprehensive sign plan, no permanent sign shall be erected, placed, or maintained except in conformance with the
Comprehensive Sign Plan.

C. Conditions. The Zoning Administrator may attach conditions, requirements, or standards necessary to assure that the
signs covered by the Comprehensive Sign Plan will not be materially detrimental to persons or property in the vicinity. In
making its determination, the Zoning Administrator shall not base any condition on the content of a sign.

D. Evaluation Criteria.

Placement. All signs shall be placed where they are visible and legible. Factors to be considered include the location
of a sign relative to traffic movement and access points, site features, other structures, and orientation relative to
viewing distances and viewing angles. Wall Signs may be approved on building walls other than the wall of a unit of a
multi-tenant building in which some units have little or no visibility from the street.

2. Quantity. The number of signs that may be approved within any development shall be sufficient to provide necessary
facilitation of internal circulation of vehicular and pedestrian traffic and wayfinding for safety of the occupants of
vehicles and pedestrians. Factors to be considered shall be those that impact safety considerations such as the size of
the development and the number of development sub-areas.

3. Area and Height. All signs shall comply with the sign area and height requirements established for the sign type as
established in Section 15-6-05 and Section 15-6-05.

E. Application. A comprehensive sign plan shall be submitted on a form established by the Zoning Administrator The
application shall contain the following information as well as all other information required by the Zoning Administrator to
ensure compliance with the comprehensive sign plan evaluation criteria.

Name, address, and telephone number of the applicant.

2. Location of building, structure, or lot to which or upon which the comprehensive sign plan shall apply.

3. Name of person, firm, corporation, or association developing the comprehensive sign plan.

4. Written consent of the owner or lessee of the building, structure, or land to which the proposed comprehensive sign
plan is applicable.

5. Scale drawing of all signs included in the comprehensive sign plan indicating the dimensions, the materials to be used,
the type of illumination, if any, and the method of construction and attachment. Said drawings shall be drawn at a scale
no smaller than one-eight (1/8) inch equals one (1) foot and shall be prepared, signed, and sealed by a registered
professional engineer when required by the Zoning Administrator

6. A scaled drawing indicating the location and position of all signs included in the comprehensive sign plan in relation to
nearby buildings or structures. Said drawing shall be at a scale no smaller than one (1) inch equals fifty (50) feet.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 23 of 24



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY 01/30/2023

F Review and Action. The Plan Commission shall review the comprehensive sign plan application and approve, approve with
conditions, or deny the application based on the evaluation criteria. A written decision including the findings on the
evaluation criteria shall be rendered to the applicant.

G. Appeals. Any applicant who receives a notice of denial from the Plan Commission may, within thirty (30) days after receipt
of such decision, appeal such decision to the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals by filing a written notice of appeal with
the Zoning Administrator with an explanation as to why said decision was not warranted according to the applicant.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 6. Sign Standards
Page 24 of 24



I
j l
HOUSEAL
LAVIGNE
ASSOC ATES

PLANNING

MEMORANDUM

Date: January 30, 2023

To: City of Franklin UDO Update Task Force
Regula Martinez-Montilva, AICP, Pnnc1pal Planner
Manon Ecks, AICP, Assoc1ate Planner

From: Houseal Lavigne Associates
Jackie Wells, AICP, Practice Lead
Ruben Shell, AICP, Planner II

Re: Franklin, WI Unified Development Ordinance
Draft Articles 8 - 9 Overview

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

SENT VIA EMAIL

HOUSEAL LAVIGNE
ASSOCIATES LLC
CHICAGO IL
188 st RandolphStreet. Si 20
Chicago. hl nos60601
312) 372 1008

The purpose of this memorandum 1s to provide an overview of the content contained within the draft Article 8
- Subd1v1s1on Standards and Article 9 - Administrative Standards and Procedures and portray the substantial
changes to those Articles from the current Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Questions 1dent1fied by
City staff and the project team for d1scuss1on by the Task Force are also provided

ARTICLE 8. SUBDIVISION STANDARDS
Article 8 contains all the UDO provsons that regulate the subdivision of land wthin the City The Article
includes regulation on a vanety of topics, the configuration and onentaton of lots, arrangement of streets,
required street design and features, easements, water, sewer, and stormwater features, cluster
development, building vanety standards, and park and recreation land and school site requirements

Section 15-8-02 Lots includes the standards regarding the configuration and onentat1on of lots within
subdivisions The City's existing standards, which prohibit flag lots, requinng adequate lot depth to wdth, and
require adequate access from a public street for each lot are retained and revised for clarity

Section 15-8-03 Street Arrangement includes standards regarding the layout and arrangement of streets
The City's existing standards, which 1dent1fy the purpose each type of street serves are retained A new
provision rs added to require that recreational trails be provided in accordance wth the Comprehensive
Outdoor Recreation Plan The standards for alleys are revised to allow the Plan Comm1ss1on to require alleys
in the nonresidential and mixed-use d1stncts and to allow for the prov1s1on of alleys in the R-M Multiple-Unit
Residence DIstnct and R-V - Village Residence DIstncts and require that alleys be privately maintained

Section 15-8-03 contains requires certain street elements The standards are revised as follows

• Cul-de-sac standards are revised to allow their use for snow storage or stormwater management
• New standards require that streets be terminated wth stubs at subdivision perimeters
• A new connectivty Index rs established to limit the number of nodes (intersections and cul-de-sacs)

relative to the number of !mks (road sections between intersections) w1th1n a given development
• Block widths are revised to require shorter blocks in res1denlial, commercial, and mixed-use

d1stncts and allow longer blocks in all other d1stncts
• Street tree standards are revised to require that developers provide compensation to plant street

trees and cover the cost of tree replacement over time

hlpl8 ng. .or
fohlpla no on Houseal Lavigne I Franklin WI Unified Development Ordinance Page 1 of 3



• MmImum nght of-way and paving widths for each type of street are revised to comply with Chapter
7 of the City's Comprehensive Master Plan

• Requirements for features such as ditches, sidewalks, bicycle lanes, curb lawns, and medians/turn
lanes, are revised to comply with Chapter 7 of the City's Comprehensive Master Plan

Next, Section 15-8-05 Easements establishes the City's standards for the provIsIon of easements, while
Secton 15-8 06 Water, Sewer, and Stormwater establishes the City's standards for the provston of water,
sewer, and stormwater facilities The City's existing standards are retained for both of these sections and
revised for clarity

Section 15-8-08 Cluster Development allows for an increase m density and reduction m the base district's
bulk and d1mens1onal standards when natural features such as wetlands, oak Savanna are preserved

Section 15-9-09 establishes anti-monotony standards that require that dwellings placed on consecutive
adJacent lots be vaned architecturally from one another

Section 15-9-10 Park and Recreation Land and School site Dedication requires that mnmum quantities of
certain types of recreation areas be provided within development, based on standards in the City's
Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan The Section also allows the City to consider public school site
dedication In the approval of subdivisions

Questions For Task Force Discussion
The following issues have been identified for discussion and policy direction as the Task Force considers the
draft Article 8

• Are alleys appropnate mn residential districts? In previous discussions, the Task Force discussed
allowing alleys so long as they are privately maintained

• The anti-monotony standards in Section 15-8-09 are designed to promote architectural variety
within subd1v1s1ons Are the draft standards appropriate for Franklin?

• The draft of Article 8 contains a connectIvIty index in Section 15-8-04(H)(5) that hmIts the number
of nodes (like cul-de-sacs) to lmks Is this an appropriate control on the number of cul-de-sacs for
Franklmn?

ARTICLE 9. ADMINISTRATIVE STANDARDS AND
PROCEDURES
Article 9 contains all the UDO provIsIons regarding the City's zoning procedures and processes The Article
begins by descnbng the roles and responsibilities of the Individuals, boards, and commissions Involved In
zoning procedures and processes It then establishes the process and approval cntena for all procedures
that involve review by City staff, followed by those that involve review by the City's Boards and Comm1ss1ons

Section 15-9-01 establishes standards for applicants to file a complete application, regardless of the
applicable zoning process The steps include filing with the Zoning Administrator, a completeness check, and
submittal of fees

Section 15-9-02 Zoning Procedures Responsibilities establishes the role and responsibilities of the Zoning
Administrator, Plan Comm1ss1on, Board of Zoning and Building Appeals, Architectural Review Board, and
Histonc and Preservation Commission The City's existing standards are retaned and revsed for clarity

Section 15-9-03 Administrative Procedures establishes the City's admm1strat1ve processes which are
approved by City staff Procedures for zoning compliance permits, which are required for change of use
applications or construction of duplex or single-family dwellings, and site plan review, which Is required for
any new development other than duplex or single-family dwellings New processes are also established for
temporary uses, sign permits, and interpretations, which are approved by staff

Houseal Lavigne I Franklin WI Unified Development Ordinance Page 2 of 3



Section 15-9-05 Cond1t1onal Uses estabhshes the process for Cond1t1onal Uses, including review and
recommendation by the Plan Comm1ss1on, and action by Common Council A process Is also established to
allow the amendment of previously approved Conditional Uses

Section 15-9 06 Variance estabhshes the process for Variances New criteria for the Board of Zoning and
Building Appeals to review and approve or deny variances are estabhshed to ensure that the Board uses the
same standards to evaluate each successive variance apphcat1on The existing process for Area Exceptions
Is removed from the UDO, given its similarity in purpose to the Variance procedure

Section 15-9-07 estabhshes procedures and standards for the Plan Comm1ss1on to review and Common
Council to approve of Map Amendments New critena are estabhshed including the proposal's consistency
with the Comprehensive Master Plan Similarly, Section 15-9-08 establishes procedures for the approval of
Text Amendments, and includes new objective standards for Plan Commission and Common Council review

Section 15-9-10 Appeal contains a new procedure for the Plan Comm1ss1on to review and consider appeals
of administrative interpretations or dec1s1ons made by the Zoning Administrator

Section 15-9-11 Subd1v1s1on Procedures includes the City's procedures for the review and approval of
subdrvsion applications, Including minor land divisions, which are land divisions resulting in four or fewer
parcels, land combinations, which involve the consolidation of parcels, and subdivisions involving the
creation of more than four parcels

Last, Section 15-9-12 V1olatlons, Penalties, and Remedies contains the City's existing standards regarding
volatons of UDO provisions

Questions For Task Force Discussion
The following issues have been identified for d1scuss1on and pohcy direction as the Task Force considers the
draft Article 9

• Should the final decision to approve conditional uses be with Common Council or the Plan
Commission?

• Land d1v1s1on variances currently exist in 15-9 0310 and appeals exist m 15-9 0311 We've
removed these from the draft of Article 9 as the general appeal and variance procedures w1th1n the
Article should cover the same intent Are these two processes important to retain 1n the UDO?

• The existing process for area exceptions 1s removed, as the process 1s redundant with the variance
process All exceptions to bulk and d1mens1onal standards should be covered under the variance
process Is the area exception process important to keep as a distinct process?

• The list of authorized variances that applicants can apply for are eliminated Instead, the new text
allows the BZBA to consider any variance on a case-by-case basis Is this appropriate?

• Minor Land DsIons are proposed to be an administrative approval by staff unless the dedication
of easements 1s required, in which case Common Council approval 1s required Is this the
appropriate process for Franklin?

Houseal Lavigne I Franklin WI Unified Development Ordinance Page 3 of 3



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

Article 8. Subdivision Standards

15-8-01 Intent and Purpose

15-8-02. Lots.

15-8-03. Street Arrangement

15-8-04. Street Design and Improvements

15-8-05. Easements.

15-8-06. Water, Sewer, and Stormwater

15-8-07 Soil Erosion and Sediment Control.

15-8-08. Cluster Development

15-8-09. Anti-Monotony Standards

15-8-10. Park and Recreation Land and School Site Dedication.

2

3

10

11

12

12

14

15

15-8-01. Intent and Purpose

A. The purpose of this Article is to:

Establish reasonable rules and regulations governing the subdivision, development and platting of land, the
preparation of plats, the location and extension of streets and highways, the installation of utilities and the provision of
necessary public grounds for parks, playgrounds, and public open space,

2. Conserve, protect, and enhance property and property values;

3. To secure the most efficient use of land;

4. Discourage scattered development beyond existing public utilities and to facilitate the adequate provision of public
improvements;

5. To ensure the provision of sufficient utilities with new development;

6. Limit and control the pollution of the environment that can be caused by inadequate or incomplete development;

7 Provide common grounds of understanding and a sound working relationship between the City and the subdivider;

8. Implement the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan;

9. Prescribe reasonable rules and regulations governing the subdivision and platting of land; the preparation of plats;

15-8-02. Lots

A. Size, Shape, and Orientation. The size, shape, and orientation of lots shall be appropriate for the location of the
subdivision and for the type of development and use contemplated as determined by the Plan Commission.

B. Lot Lines. Lot lines shall follow municipal boundary lines rather than cross them.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 8. Subdivision Standards
Page 1 of 16



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

C. Double Frontage Lots. Double frontage and reverse frontage lots shall be prohibited except where necessary to provide
separation of development from through traffic or to overcome specific disadvantages of topography and orientation, as
determined by the Plan Commission.

D. Access. Each lot shall front or abut a public street where possible. In the event any parcel does not front on a public street,
due to the street's right-of-way width or other site conditions, a dedicated right-of-way providing access to the parcel from a
public street, with a minimum width of thirty (30) feet, shall be provided.

E. Area and Dimensional Requirements of Lots. Lot area and width shall conform to the requirements of this UDO for land
under the jurisdiction of the City of Franklin. Building sites not served by a public sanitary sewage system or other approved
system shall be of sufficient area to permit the use of an on-site soil absorption sewage disposal system designed in
accordance with Chapters ILHR 83 and 85 of the Wisconsin Administrative Code as amended and Section 190-22 of the
City of Franklin Municipal Code.

F Lot Depth to Width. Lots with a lot depth to width ratio greater than two (2) to one (1) are prohibited, except for the creation
of outlots as approved by the Zoning Administrator

G. Corner Lots. Corner lots shall a minimum depth not less than ninety (90) percent of the minimum required lot width.

H. Plats Abutting a Lake or Stream. In any plat abutting a lake or stream, lands lying between the meander line and the
water's edge and any otherwise unplattable lands which lie between a proposed subdivision and the water's edge shall be
included as part of lots, outlots, or public dedications.

I. Land Remnants. All land remnants below the minimum lot size shall be platted as "Outlots" which may be combined with
adjacent parcels in the future.

J. Large Lots. Where lots are created of a size larger than the minimum lot size required by the underlying zoning district, the
Plan Commission shall require that the plat be designed as to allow for the future resubdivision of such lots into sizes
compliant with the underlying zoning district.

K. Flag Lots Prohibited. Flag-shaped lots, or lots not meeting the minimum lot width requirements of this Ordinance or where
access to a public street right-of-way to such lots is by a narrow strip of land, shall not be permitted.

15-8-03. Street Arrangement

A. Street Layout to Conform to Official Map and/or Adopted Plans. In any new subdivision, certified survey map, or
condominium the street layout shall generally conform to the arrangement, width, and location indicated on the official map,
County jurisdictional highway system plan, County Development Plan, City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan or plan
component, detailed planning district plan, or detailed neighborhood development plan of the City.

8. Street Layout in Areas With No Official Map or Adopted Plans. In areas for which such plans as enumerated in
Paragraph A above have not been completed, the street layout shall recognize the functional classification of the various
types of streets and shall be developed and located in proper relation to existing and proposed streets, to the topography, to
such natural features as streams and tree growth, to public convenience and safety, to the proposed use of the land to be
served by such streets, and to the most advantageous development of adjoining areas.

Arterial Streets. Arterial streets shall be arranged to provide ready access to centers of employment, centers of
governmental activity, community shopping areas, community recreation, and points beyond the boundaries of the
community. They shall also be properly integrated with and related to the existing and proposed system of major
streets and highways and shall be, insofar as practicable, continuous and in alignment with existing or planned streets
with which they are to connect.

2. Collector Streets. Collector streets shall be arranged to provide ready collection of traffic from residential areas and
conveyance of this traffic to the arterial street, major street, and highway system and shall be properly related to the
mass transportation system, to special traffic generators such as schools, churches, or shopping centers, business

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 8. Subdivision Standards
Page 2 of 16



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

parks, and other concentrations of population or employment and to the arterial and/or major streets to which they
connect. Where neighborhoods and/or commercial activity/employment centers abut along arterial streets or highways,
collector streets shall be planned to align to provide secondary interconnections between abutting neighborhoods or
between abutting commercial activity/employment centers.

3. Minor Streets. Minor streets shall be arranged to conform to the topography, to discourage use by through traffic to
permit the design of efficient storm and sanitary sewerage systems, and to require the minimum street area necessary
to provide safe and convenient access to abutting property.

4. Recreational Trails. Any recreational trail identified in the City of Franklin Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan
shall be provided in the subdivision in accordance with the plan.

5. Proposed Streets. Proposed streets shall extend to the boundary lines of the tract being subdivided or developed as a
Condominium unless prevented by topography or other physical conditions or unless, in the opinion of the Plan
Commission, such extension is not necessary or desirable for the coordination of the layout of the subdivision or
Condominium or for the advantageous development of the adjacent tracts.

6. Arterial Street and Highway Protection. Whenever a proposed Certified Survey Map or subdivision contains or is
adjacent to an arterial street or highway, for adequate protection of residential properties, the limitation of access and
separation of through and local traffic shall be provided by reversed frontage, with screen planting contained in a
non access reservation along the rear property line, or by the use of frontage streets.

7 Stream or Lake Shores. Stream or lake shores shall have a minimum of sixty (60) feet of public access platted to the
low water mark at intervals of not more than one-half (1/2) mile as required by $ 236.16(3) of the Wisconsin Statutes.

8. Reserve Strips. Reserve strips, which intentionally prevent access to a public street from an abutting property, shall
not be provided on any plat or Condominium to control access to streets or alleys, except where control of such strips
is placed with the City under conditions approved by the Plan Commission.

9. Alleys.

a. Commercial, Mixed-Use, and Industrial Districts. Alleys may be provided in the commercial and mixed-use, B
P Business Park, and LI- Limited Industrial Districts for off-street loading and service access and may be
required by the Plan Commission.

b. Residential Districts. Alleys may be provided in the R-M Multiple-Unit Residence District and R-V - Village
Residence Districts but shall not be approved in other residential districts. New dead-end alleys shall not be
approved by the Plan Commission.

c. Thoroughfare Connection Prohibited. Alleys shall not connect to a major thoroughfare, including an arterial or
collector street.

d. Private Maintenance Required. All newly-constructed alleys shall be privately maintained.

C. Street Names. Street names shall not duplicate or be similar to existing street names elsewhere in southern Milwaukee
County, and existing street names shall be projected wherever possible. "Court" may be used in a street name only for cul
de-sac streets. The naming of streets shall be coordinated with the City Engineer

15-8-04. Street Design and Improvements

A. Cul-de-Sac Streets.

Length. Cul-de-sac streets designed to have one end permanently closed shall not exceed three-hundred (300) feet in
length.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 8. Subdivision Standards
Page 3 of 16



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

2. Adequate Turn-Around Required. Cul-de-sac streets shall terminate in a circular turn-around having a minimum
radius of

a. Sixty (60) feet the center of the island to the edge of right-of-way and

b. Forty-five (45) feet from the center of the island to the outside curb.

3. Islands. Islands in the center of cul-de-sacs with a minimum radius of twenty (20) feet shall be required. Where
approved by the City Engineer, cul-de-sac islands may be designed with a vegetated snow storage area or stormwater
management area. Curbing may be varied as required to accommodate snow plowing or stormwater inflow per the
approved design.

B. Street Stubs.

In new developments, the subdivider shall terminate streets as stubs at the outer perimeter boundaries of the
development based on the criteria of this section. If the street in question meets at least two (2) of the criteria, then the
street must be built to an appropriate collector street standard:

a. The street intersects directly with any street designated as an arterial street and provides access to an area with
an overall density of ten (10) dwelling units per acre or provides access to more than one hundred fifty (150)
dwelling units.

b. The street by its general configuration, in relationship to the existing development of the area, serves any collector
function.

c. The street extends into an undeveloped area in such a manner as to serve any future collector function.

d. The street serves as the primary access to a significant nonresidential, institutional, or recreational land as well as
an access to a residential area of twenty (20) or more acres.

2. Street stubs shall be clearly demarcated and identified for future street extension by street signage.

3. All street stubs shall terminate with a turn-around for vehicles.

4. All stub streets shall conform to the City's adopted version of the International Fire Code.

C. Roadway Elevations. Elevations of roadways passing through floodplain areas shall be designed in the following manner·

Freeways and arterial streets and highways shall be designed so they will not be overlapped by the one-hundred-year
recurrence interval flood.

2. Collector and local minor land access streets shall be designed so they will not be overtopped by the ten-year
recurrence interval flood.

D. Street Grades.

Street grades shall be established wherever practicable to avoid excessive grading, the indiscriminate removal of
ground cover and tree growth, and general leveling of the topography.

2. All changes in street grades shall be connected by vertical curves as approved by the City Engineer Vertical curves
for arterial street shall have a minimum length equivalent in feet of three (3) times the design speed of the street in
miles per hour

3. Minimum Grade. The minimum centerline grade of any street or public way shall be one-half (0.5) percent unless a
flatter grade is approved by the City Engineer

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 8. Subdivision Standards
Page 4 of 16



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

4. Maximum Grade. Unless necessitated by exceptional topography and subject to the approval of the City Engineer, the
maximum centerline grade of any street or public way shall not exceed the following:

a. Arterial Streets: Five (5) percent.

b. Collector Streets: Six (6) percent.

c. Minor Streets, Alleys, and Frontage Streets: Six (6) percent.

d. Pedestrian Ways: Eight (8) percent and meeting all applicable "American with Disabilities Act (ADA) Accessibility
Guidelines."

E. Radii of Curvature.

When a continuous street centerline deflects at any one point by more than ten (10) degrees, a circular curve shall be
introduced having a radius of curvature on said centerline of not less than the following unless approved by the City
Engineer·

a. Arterial Streets and Highways: Five-hundred (500) feet.

b. Collector Streets: Three-hundred (300) feet.

c. Minor Streets: Two-hundred (200) feet.

d. Rural and Suburban Streets: May be less than two-hundred (200) feet only in areas where natural resource
features are to be preserved as determined by the Plan Commission.

2. A tangent at least one-hundred (100) feet in length shall be provided between reverse curves on arterial and collector
streets.

F Half-Streets. Where an existing dedicated or platted half-street is adjacent to the tract being subdivided by either a
subdivision plat or certified survey map, the other half of the street shall be dedicated by the subdivider The platting of new
half-streets shall not be permitted.

G. Excessive Street Right-of-Way Length to Serve Subdivision to be Avoided. The use of excessive street right-of-way
length, as determined by the City Planner and/or City Engineer, to serve a subdivision shall be avoided.

H. Street Intersections and Connectivity.

Right Angles Required. Streets shall intersect each other at as nearly right angles as topography and other limiting
factors of good design permit.

2. Maximum Number of Streets Converging at Single Intersection. With the exception of roundabout intersections
approved by the City Engineer, the number of streets converging at one conventional intersection shall be two (2).

3. Distance Between Intersections Along Arterial Streets and Highways. The distance between street intersections
along an arterial street or highway shall be at least one-thousand two-hundred (1,200) feet.

4. Alignment of Minor Streets Required. Local streets crossing any collector or arterial street shall align with each
other Minor streets that cross a collector or arterial street and whose center lines are less than two-hundred-fifty (250)
feet apart, measured along the centerline of the arterial or collector street, shall be prohibited.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 8. Subdivision Standards
Page 5 of 16



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

5. Connectivity Index. A connectivity index shall be used to determine the adequacy of street layout design. A
connectivity index is calculated as the ratio of the number of street links (road sections between intersections) in the
subdivision street layout divided by the number of street nodes (intersections and cul-de-sac heads). Streets within a
subdivision shall have a minimum connectivity index measurement of one and four-tenths (1.4).

)»

Connectivity Index Calculation

Links = 17
Nodes = 13

Connectivity Index = 17113=13

EXAMPLE
DIAGRAM ONLY

Links

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 8. Subdivision Standards
Page 6 of 16



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

I. Blocks. The widths, lengths, and shapes of blocks that are created shall be suited to the planned use of the land, zoning
requirements, overall residential density, the need for convenient access, control and safety of street traffic, and the
limitations and opportunities of topography. In addition:

Maximum Block Length. The length of blocks shall be limited as follows unless exceptional topography natural
resource features, request of the Plan Commission, or other factors necessitate an alternative design.

a. Residential, Commercial and Mixed-Use Districts. In residential, commercial, and mixed use districts, blocks
shall not, exceed eight-hundred (800) feet in length.

b. All Other Districts. In all other districts, blocks shall not exceed one-thousand five-hundred (1,500) feet in length.

2. Block Width. The width of blocks shall be wide enough to provide for two (2) tiers of lots of appropriate depth except
where otherwise required to separate residential development from through traffic. Width of lots or parcels reserved or
laid out for commercial or industrial uses shall be adequate to provide for off-street service and parking required by the
use contemplated and the area zoning restrictions for such use.

I
!
I

\
\

Street EXAMPLE
DIAGRAM ONLY

[T " T " 7

' II I I I I I
}.=-- 
LDID1I I I I I I
1= ..-.. I .. I .._.. I .. I ··-··_j /o

Street

3. Mid-Block Utility Easements Required. Utility easements for electric power and telephone service shall, where
practical, be placed on mid-block easements along rear lot lines, unless the protection of natural resources require
placement elsewhere. When natural resources to be protected are present, all utility easements shall be shown on the
final plat, certified survey map, or condominium plat prior to approval by the City.

I. General Improvement Requirements.

Payment For Improvements.

a. The improvements prescribed in this Ordinance are required as a condition of approval of a subdivision.

b. The required improvements described in this Ordinance shall be installed, furnished, and financed at the sole
expense of the developer However, in the case of required improvements in a commercial, industrial, or other
nonresidential area, the cost of such improvements, at the sole discretion of the Common Council, may be
financed through special assessments.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 8. Subdivision Standards
Page 7 of 16



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

c. A contract, or "Development Agreement," with the developer as specified under $ 15-2.0303 of this Ordinance
shall be required. Financial sureties described in § 15-2.0303 of this Ordinance shall be required.

2. General Standards.

a. The required improvements set forth in this Ordinance shall be installed in accordance with the City Engineer's
"City of Franklin Design Standards and Construction Specifications." Where the City has no prescribed standards
and specifications, the improvements shall be made in accordance with good engineering practices, approved
prior to the commencement of construction by the City Engineer

b. Any and all improvements or utility services required by this Ordinance, shall be extended to the limits of the
parcel or lot upon which a building permit is requested unless exempted by the Plan Commission. Monuments
shall be installed at all lot corners no later than upon completion of final utility installation.

c. In the event the improvements are required to the end of the parcel or lot, the owner, Subdivider, or Condominium
Developer shall be required to post financial sureties with the City pursuant to§ 15-2.0303 of this Ordinance if
improvements are not made.

3. Survey Monuments. The Subdivider shall install survey monuments placed in accordance with the requirements of
Chapter 236.15 of the Wisconsin Statutes. Monuments shall be installed at all lot corners no later than upon
completion of final utility installation and as may be required by the City Engineer

4. Grading.

a. Right-of-Way and Roadbed Grading. After the installation of temporary block corner monuments and
establishment of street grades, the Subdivider shall grade the full width of the right-of-way of all streets proposed
to be dedicated The Subdivider shall grade the roadbeds in the street rights-of-way to subgrade.

b. Grading of Cut and Filled Lands. Cut and filled lands shall be graded to a maximum slope of one to four, or the
soil's angle of repose, whichever is less, and covered with permanent vegetation.

c. Preservation of Septic Field Areas During Grading. During grading operations, every effort shall be made by
the Subdivider or Condominium Developer to preserve and protect any active or planned septic field areas from
damage.

5. Surfacing. Unless superseded by a developer's agreement, the Subdivider shall complete the base and binder
courses of street paving prior to issuance of building permits for structures within the subdivision after the installation of
all required utility and stormwater drainage improvements. The final surface course shall be placed no earlier than at
ninety (90) percent completion of the subdivision or when required by law, whichever is earlier

6. Curb and Gutter. In all subdivisions, certified survey maps, and condominiums the subdivider shall construct concrete
curbs and gutters except where an alternative street edge is incorporated as part of an approved stormwater
management plan. Where possible, provision shall be made at the time of construction for driveway access curb cuts.

7 Traffic Control and Street Name Signs. The developer shall pay all costs associated with the City's installation of
traffic control and street name signs along all streets proposed to be dedicated to the public. Traffic control and street
name signs shall meet the following standards:

a. Traffic Control Signs. The design and placement of traffic control signs shall follow state and local regulations or
the requirements specified in the most current edition of the Wisconsin Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices
for Streets and Highways published by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation and the Federal Highway
Administration.

b. Street Name Signs. The Developer shall install at least two (2) street name signs, of a design and color as
approved by the City, at each street intersection proposed to be dedicated and one at each "T" intersection. Signs
shall be installed to be free of visual obstructions.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 8. Subdivision Standards
Page 8 of 16



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

8. Sidewalks. Sidewalks shall be a minimum of five (5) feet in width.

9. Bicycle Lanes. Bicycle lanes shall be at least six (6) feet in width.

10. Street Trees.

a. Compensation Required. The developer will provide compensation to plant street trees in the form of a letter of
credit or escrow as established in a fee schedule as established by Common Council. In addition, an amount
equivalent to ten (10) percent of the fee for required trees shall be provided in a letter of credit or escrow for a
minimum period of three (3) years to ensure that any failed trees are replaced.

b. Waiver. In the event an applicant or property owner requests specific accommodation or modification pursuant to
the City planting of street trees in accordance with this section, the City Forester may in his/her sole discretion
vary the planting plan, provided the overall number of required trees is planted within the perimeter of the
development and provided the accommodation or modification does not adversely affect safety, aesthetic,
drainage, or environmental conditions in the vicinity of the site.

11 Street Lights. The developer shall pay all costs associated with the installation of streetlights. Wisconsin Electric
Power Company system leased lights shall be installed at all intersections and other critical locations within residential
developments as determined by the City Engineer Other nonresidential locations shall be served by a dedicated
lighting system to be owned and maintained by the City unless otherwise superseded by an agreement with the
Common Council.

J. Street Design Requirements.

Right-of-Way and Paving Widths. The minimum right-of-way and paving widths of proposed streets shall be as
detailed in Table##-#-##.

Table 15-8-04(J)(1) Minimum Paving and Right-of-Way Widths
Minimum Right-of-Way Widths (Feet)

As required by WisDOT
Minimum Paving Width (Feet)Type of Street

Fret way
Maj 36 - Dual 130

24- Dual 130
IRUTMTETE» 30 -Dual 130
IIIRTETTIE 24- Dual 130
UITTITESIEET 36 80
IEIenIETIETSIEI 24 80

24 66
28 60

III.SIEREIIIIEITI 20 50

EE
The paving widths shall include required bicycle lanes.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 8. Subdivision Standards
Page 9 of 16



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

2. Required Design Elements. Required street design elements shall be as established per street type in Table##-##.
The dimensions and placement of street design elements required in Table ###-#-## shall comply with the requirements
of the City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan as adopted.

a. A"•" indicates an element that is required on both sides of a given street.

b. A"■" indicates an element that is required on one side of a given street.

c. A"+" indicates an element that is required.

d. AA"indicates an element that is required at the discretion of the City.

Table 15-8-04(J)(2) Required Street Design Elements

Type of Street Ditch

Required Street Design Element

Sidewalk Bicycle Lane Curb Lawn
Median/Tum

Lane

UTE@el#SIl

IIIEESIEEIIeIIE.IIDA7AIOI

As required by the WisDOT

• • A

• A

• • • A

• A

• • •
•

• • •
• • •

•

Freeway or Expressway
I:=::,;:::::;;;;;;.::;::;::;;::;:

K. Rural Street. When permanent rural street sections have been approved by the Common Council in areas not located
within the urban service boundaries of the City of Franklin, the Subdivider shall finish grade all shoulders and road ditches,
install all necessary culverts at intersections and, if required, surface ditch inverts to prevent erosion and sedimentation in
accordance with plans and standard specifications approved by the City, including the City of Franklin Design Standards
and Construction Specifications" and as set forth in Table 15-5.0103 of this Ordinance.

15-8-05. Easements

A. Natural Resource Features Protection/Mitigation, Conservation, Landscape Buffer yard, and Utility Easements
Required. The Plan Commission shall require natural resource features protection/mitigation, conservation, landscape
bufferyard, and/or utility easements of widths deemed adequate for the intended purpose on each side of all rear lot lines
and on side lot lines or across lots where necessary or advisable for natural resource feature protection, landscape
bufferyards (see Division 15-5 0300 of this Ordinance), electric power and communication lines, wires, conduits, stormwater
management systems, storm and sanitary sewers, and gas, water, and other utility lines.

B. Site, Subdivision, Certified Survey Map, or Condominium Plat Traversed by Watercourse, Drainageway Channel, or
Stream. Where a site, subdivision, certified survey map, or condominium plat is traversed by a watercourse, drainageway
channel, or stream, an adequate drainageway or easement shall be provided as may be required by the City Engineer The
location, width, alignment, and improvement of such drainageway or easement shall be subject to the approval of the Plan
Commission, and parallel streets or parkways may be required in connection therewith. Where necessary, stormwater
drainage shall be maintained by landscaped open channels of adequate size and grade to hydraulically accommodate
maximum potential volumes of flow. These design details are subject to review and approval by the City Engineer

C. Minimum Width Required for All Utility Easements. All public utility easements shall be a minimum of twenty (20) feet in
width or wider where required by the City Engineer

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 8. Subdivision Standards
Page 10 of 16



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

15-8-06. Water, Sewer, and Stormwater

A. When public sanitary sewer facilities are available to the subdivision plat, certified survey map or condominium, the
Subdivider or Condominium Developer shall construct sanitary sewer facilities in such a manner as to make adequate
sanitary sewer service available to each lot within the subdivision or certified survey map or dwelling unit within a
condominium. In addition:

Extent of Required Installation of Lateral Sewer Lines. The Plan Commission shall require the installation of sewer
laterals to the street lot line.

2. Costs Associated with Sanitary Sewers Eight Inches or Less in Diameter. The developer shall assume the cost
of installing all sanitary sewers that are eight inches in diameter or less.

3. Costs Associated with Sanitary Sewers Larger than Eight Inch in Diameter. If larger than eight (8) inch diameter
sanitary sewers are required, the costs of such larger sewers shall be prorated in proportion to the ratio which the total
sewage of the proposed subdivision, Certified Survey Map, or Condominium is to the total sewage capacity to be
served by such larger sewer and the excess cost shall be either borne by the City of Franklin or assessed against the
total tributary sewer area.

B. Wastewater Holding Tanks. Where public sanitary sewer facilities are not available in the Commercial and Mixed-Use,
Industrial and Agricultural, and Miscellaneous zoning districts only, the Plan Commission or Common Council may require
the developer to construct either individual or common wastewater holding facilities sufficiently sized and placed to
accommodate the proposed development. The individual or common wastewater holding facilities shall be constructed
pursuant to all applicable State, County, and local regulations as amended and in such a manner to make available
wastewater holding facilities to the proposed development.

C. Stormwater Management Facilities. The developer shall construct stormwater management facilities adequate to serve
the proposed development. These facilities may include curbs and gutters, catch basins and inlets, storm sewers, road
ditches, open channels, water retention and detention structures, infiltration/biofiltration basins, and other green
infrastructure. All such facilities shall be of adequate size and grade to hydraulically accommodate the design volumes of
flow and shall be so designed as to prevent and control soil erosion and sedimentation and to present no hazards to life or
property. All stormwater management facilities shall be constructed in accordance with the provisions of the City of Franklin
Stormwater Management Ordinance. In addition:

Detailed Site-Specific Stormwater Management Plan Required. A detailed stormwater management plan consistent
with the requirements of $15-8.0609, Storm Water Management Plan, shall be submitted.

a. The design criteria, the size, type, grades, and installation of all stormwater management measures shall be in
accordance with the plans and standard specifications, including the City of Franklin Design Standards and
Construction Specifications.

2. Storm Sewers. The developer shall assume the cost of installing all required storm sewers within the proposed
development.

3. Cost Responsibility. Subdivider shall be responsible for all City costs to review the stormwater management plan.

D. Water Supply Facilities.

Adequate Public Water Supply Facilities to be Made Available. When public water supply and distribution facilities
are available to the subdivision plat, certified survey map, or condominium or when it is proposed to establish a private
water supply and distribution system to serve two (2) or more lots or dwelling units, the Subdivider or Condominium
Developer shall cause such public water supply and distribution facilities to be installed in such a manner as to make
adequate water service available to each lot within the Subdivision or Certified Survey Map or to each Condominium
dwelling unit. Said water supply facilities shall be made available pursuant to City of Franklin Water Utility extension
rules and policies.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 8. Subdivision Standards
Page 11 of 16



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

2. Additional Water Supply Facilities Requirements. When a public water supply is not available, the Common Council
may allow the subdivider of a subdivision or certified survey map or condominium developer to make provision for
adequate private water systems as required by the City in accordance with the standards of the State of Wisconsin. In
addition:

a. Water Laterals to Street Lot Line. The installation of water laterals to the street lot line are required.

b. Size, Type, and Installation of Public and Private Water Mains. The size, type, and installation of all public and
private water mains proposed to be constructed shall be in accordance with plans and standard specifications,
including the City of Franklin's public water supply comprehensive system plan and the City of Franklin Design
Standards and Construction Specifications.

c. Costs of Installing Water Mains, Water Laterals, Water System Appurtenances or Wells. The Subdivider or
Condominium Developer shall assume the cost of installing all water mains, water laterals, water system
appurtenances or wells within the proposed subdivision, Certified Survey Map or Condominium except for the
added cost of installing public water mains greater than eight inches in diameter pursuant to City of Franklin Water
Utility extension policies. The cost of such larger water mains or other water system-related facilities shall be
pursuant to City of Franklin Water Utility extension rules and policies.

d. Installation of Water Main. The Subdivider or Condominium Developer shall install water mains in accordance
with this Ordinance and specifications of the City, including the City of Franklin Design Standards and
Construction Specifications. For all residential development (except Certified Survey Maps abutting existing public
street rights-of-way), all water mains shall be extended to the farthest property line of any property served which
shall include the full property frontage along a public street right-of-way.

E. Other Utilities. The Subdivider or Condominium Developer shall cause appropriate utilities such as gas, electrical power,
cable television, and telephone facilities to be installed in such a manner as to make adequate service available to each lot
in the subdivision or Certified Survey Map and to each dwelling unit in a Condominium. No such electrical, cable television,
or telephone service shall be located on overhead poles. In addition, plans indicating the proposed location of all gas,
electrical power and telephone, and distribution and transmission lines required to service the subdivision, certified survey
map, or condominium shall be approved by the City.

15-8-07. Soil Erosion and Sediment Control

A. The provisions of§ 15-8.0118 shall apply to all subdivisions.

15-8-08. Cluster Development

A. Cluster development is allowed in residential subdivisions in the R-C, R-SE, and R-SR Districts to encourage and
accommodate in a unified project, creative and imaginative approaches to development that preserve sensitive natural
areas.

B. Resources to be Conserved. To qualify for cluster development any land located in a special flood hazard area, as
determined by the Federal Emergency Management Agency, shall be placed in a conservation easement.

C. Maximum Density per Acre. The gross density of a cluster development shall not exceed the maximum dwelling units per
acre detailed in Table ##t-#-##.

4.35 dwelling units/acre
2.42 dwelling units/acre
4.35 dwelling units/acre

rate1ss-0sc)to»imumDensityperAen
stet__9i8fol/,j text@umDensity
R-C
R-SE
ERG

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 8. Subdivision Standards
Page 12 of 16



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

D. Maximum Dimensional Standards Reduction. The dimensional standards established in Table t#t--#jjjj, may be reduced
by thirty (30) percent or by the cumulative total land area to be placed in a conservation easement, whichever is less.

E. Density Bonus. The maximum gross density per acre, per district, may be exceeded by a maximum of thirty (30) percent if
a minimum of one (1) of the following sensitive natural areas are placed in a conservation easement. The maximum allowed
density bonus shall be as determined by the Common Council and shall be directly tied to the amount of land area placed in
a conservation easement.

Wetlands,

2. Oak Savanna landscapes,

3. Mature tree stands,

4. Prime farmland,

5. Critical habitat, and/or

6. Other as approved by the Zoning Administrator

'7''\
t

land \atlon

/.'

Conservation Development
This example shows 32 homes
Gross Density = 1 Dwelling Units/Acre
Net Density= 4 Dwelling Units/Acre

l

j
h
'

,,,/
4

____ ,_::::,Trails ----... Creek

Co
Open>P@CG go.gag..o.g.,go.,go.,gall..-.e

Conventional Sprawl
This example shows 32 homes
Gross Density = 1 Dwelling Units/Acre
Net Density = 1 Dwelling Units/Acre

EXAMPLE
DIAGRAM ONLY

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 8. Subdivision Standards
Page 13 of 16



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

15-8-09. Anti-Monotony Standards

A. Building Variety Standards.

No new single-family or duplex dwelling units shall be similar in appearance to any other single-family detached or
duplex dwelling units within three (3) units on either side of the subject property or on any of the five (5) units across
the street from the subject property.

2. On cul-de-sac turnarounds, no single-family or duplex dwelling shall be similar in appearance to another dwelling
fronting on the turnaround.

B. Similarity Standards. Any two (2) dwelling units shall be considered similar in appearance if they are identical or nearly
identical to one another in any three (3) of the following characteristics:

Roof type (gable, hip, mansard, gambrel, flat, combination);

2. Roof height;

3. Approximate dimensions {height and length) of the front wall closest to the front lot line;

4. Shape of the front elevation silhouette;

5. Relative location and size of windows on the front elevation;

6. Relative location and dimensions of garage door(s), if included on the front elevation; and

7 Type(s) of exterior building cladding materials on the front elevation.

LJLULILL'I I I I I I I I I I
L.l....1...._....l...._....L.J
-EXAMPLE

DIAGRAM ONLY
17"7"T"7"7"T"7"7"

I III IIII I I I I I I I I I
D Single-Family Detached or Duplex Permitted to

Have Same Configuration or Exterior
Building Cladding Materials Package

Street

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 8. Subdivision Standards
Page 14 of 16



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

15-8-10. Park and Recreation Land and School Site Dedication
As a condition of approval of a final plat of a subdivision, the developer shall dedicate land for park and recreational purposes
and for school sites to serve the needs of residents of the development, or a cash contribution in lieu of the land dedication, or a
combination of both, at the discretion of the City, in accordance with the criteria and formula below.

A. Criteria For Requiring Park and Recreation Land Dedication.

Requirements and Population Ratio. The quantity of land required for park dedication shall result directly from the
total population of the proposed development. The total requirement shall be ten and one-fifth (10.2) acres of land per
one thousand (1,000) residents. The required ten and one-fifth (10.2) acres shall be allocated into different types of
recreation areas as shown in Table ###-#-###, or as may be required by Common Council at its discretion.

Table 15-8-10(A) Parkland Dedication Requirements
Type of Recreation Area Size Range Minimum Acres Per 1,000 People

2.2

1.7
5-25 acres
12-20 acres
25-99 acres

Minimum 8 acres
Less than 5 acres

Neighborh

Community Level Public OutdoorRecreation Land
CommunityPlayfields

Mini- vel Public Outdo
ood Playgrou

IRE2IEE.IEIEIMEL,IDI2EMIOIt.CIE2I2II2ZIEILEGO.IE
ReRIII 250 acres or greater 5.3

10.2

B. Public School Site Dedication. To properly locate and preserve sites for public schools as the City develops on the basis
of the additional need created by the individual certified survey map, subdivision plat, or condominium, the following
provisions are established:

Reservation of Potential Future School Sites.

a. In designing the certified survey map, subdivision plat, or condominium, consideration shall be given to the
adequate provision of, and correlation with, public school sites.

b. When a certified survey map, subdivision plat, or condominium, is filed with the City for approval, the Zoning
Administrator shall notify Franklin Public Schools and when it is determined by the School Board of Franklin Public
Schools that a portion of the certified Survey Map, subdivision plat, or condominium, is required for such future
school sites, or that the Plan Commission determines that a portion of the certified survey map, subdivision plat,
or condominium, is so required under the City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan, the Subdivider or
Condominium Developer (as applicable) may be required to reserve such area for not more than five years, during
which Franklin Public Schools, through the City, shall either acquire the property or release the reservation. If the
parties are unable to agree on an acquisition price, either party may commence an action for declaratory judgment
to determine the fair market value of such property and to compel conveyance accordingly; the filing of such
action shall toll the expiration of the five (5) year time period.

2. Dedication of Land.

a. Where land has been required to be reserved pursuant to§ 15-5.0111 (A) above, or when the subdivider or
developer (as applicable) owns other land that has been determined by the Plan Commission and Franklin Public
Schools to be acceptable for school site purposes, the subdivider or condominium developer (as applicable) may
be required to dedicate such land.

b. The representative cash value of the land to be dedicated shall be determined by the City and subdivider or
Condominium Developer (as applicable) on the basis of full and fair market value of the land to be dedicated. If
the value of such land cannot be determined satisfactorily by the City and the subdivider or condominium

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 8. Subdivision Standards
Page 15 of 16



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

developer (as applicable}, an appraisal board consisting of one appraiser selected by the City at its own expense,
one selected by the subdivider or condominium developer (as applicable} at his own expense, and a third selected
by the other two appraisers at City expense, shall determine the value upon a consensus of a majority of the Plan
Commission. If a majority determination is not made by the appraisal board within forty-five (45) days of the date
of selection of the third appraiser, the average of the three appraisals shall be the value.

c. The determination as to the feasibility of dedication shall be made by the Plan Commission.

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 8. Subdivision Standards
Page 16 of 16



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

Article 9. Administrative Standards and Procedures

15-9-01 General Application Requirements

15-9-02 Zoning Procedures Responsibilities

15-9-03 Admm1strat1ve Procedures

15-9-04 Board/Commission General Review and Action Procedures

15-9-05 Conditional Uses

15-9-06 Variance

15-9-07 Map Amendments

15-9-08 Text Amendments

15-9-09 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map Amendment

15-9-10 Appeal

15-9-11 Subdivision Procedures

15-9-12 Violations, Penalties, and Remedies

2

9

14

15

17

18

20

20

21

21

27

15-9-01. General Application Requirements

A Authorization

An application for any zoning procedure, except for amendments, may be filed only by the owner or lessee of the
property, or by an agent or contract purchaser specifically authorized by the owner to file such application

2 An application for an amendment may be filed by an owner, lessee, agent or contract purchaser of property located 1n
the City or by Common Council, Plan Commission, or the Zoning Administrator

B Filing

An application for any zoning procedure shall be filed with the Zoning Administrator

2 The application shall be on forms provided by the City and shall be filed in such number as the instructions provide

3 All plans shall be at a scale sufficient to permit a clear and precise understanding of the proposal

4 The applicatlon shall include all information, plans, and data, specified in the application reqwrements manual

C Completeness

The Zoning Administrator shall determine whether the application 1s complete

2 If the application 1s not complete, the Zomng Administrator shall notify the applicant of any defic1enc1es and shall take
no steps to process the applcaton until the deficiences are remedied

3 Once the Zoning Adm1mstrator has determined that the application 1s complete, the application shall be reviewed and
acted upon by the Zoning Administrator or scheduled for cons1derat1on at the appropriate meeting

City of Frankhn
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Admin1strat1ve Standards and Procedures
Page 1 0f 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

D Fees

Every application shall be accompanied by the required filing fee as established and modified, from time to time, by
Common Council

2 The failure to pay such fee when due shall be grounds for refusing to process the apphcat,on and for denying or
revoking any permit or approval for the subject property

3 No fees shall be waived and no fees shall be refunded except those authorized by the Common Council

4 The Common Council shall adopt the City Fee Schedule by resolution

E Withdrawal of Application An applicant shall have the nghl lo withdraw an applicallon at any time prior lo the decIsIon on
the application by a City official, comm1ss1on, or board Such withdrawal shall be made in a written statement lo the City

F Successive Applications

A subsequent apphcat1on shall not be reviewed or heard within one (1) year of the date of denial unless there 1s
substantial new evidence available or 1f a significant error in law or of fact affected the prior denial

2 Such subsequent application shall include a detailed statement of the grounds Justifying ,ts cons1derat1on

3 The Zoning Administrator shall make a determination as lo whether the subsequent apphcat1on 1s substantially the
same as the ongmnal applcaton

4 If the Zoning Administrator finds that there are no grounds for cons1derallon of the subsequent application, they shall
summarily and without heanng deny the request

15-9-02. Zoning Procedures Responsibilities

A Zoning Administrator. The City Planning and Zoning Adm1mstralor of the City of Franklin 1s designated as the Zoning
Administrator of said City, to be responsible for enforcing this UDO The Zoning Administrator shall have the power and
shall see that the prov1s1ons of this Ordinance are properly enforced

Duties of the Zoning Administrator. In the enforcement of this Ordinance the Zoning Administrator shall perform the
followng duties

a Issue the necessary Zoning Compliance Perrnits and other permits as provided form the provIsIons of this
Ordinance and assure that the prov1s1ons of this Ordinance have been compiled with

b Keep an accurate record of all permits and interpretation, numbered in order of issuance, in a record book for this
purpose The Zoning Administrator shall further record the first-floor elevations of any structure erected or placed
In the floodplain districts

2 Authority. In the enforcement of this Ordinance the Zoning Administrator shall have the power and authority for the
followng

a At any reasonable llme, and for any proper purpose, to enter upon any public or private premises and make
inspection thereof

b Upon reasonable cause or question as to proper compliance, to revoke any Building or Occupancy Permit and
Issue cease and desist orders requring the cessaton of any building, movng, alteraton, or use which is in
violation of the provisions of thus Ordinance, such revocation to be in effect until reinstated by the Zonng
Administrator or the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals

c In the name of the City, and wth authonzation of the Council for matters initiated in Circuit Court and without
authonzaton of the Council for matters 1nit1ated in Municipal Court, commence any legal proceedings necessary

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Adm1nistrat1ve Standards and Procedures
Page 2 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

to enforce the provisions of thrs Ordinance or the City of Frankin Bulding Code including the collection of
forfeitures provded for herein

B City Plan Commission. The City Plan Comm1ss1on shall have the following functions and duties

Make and Adopt a Comprehensive Plan. To make and adopt a Comprehensive Plan for the physical development of
the municipality Including any areas outside of its boundaries in accordance wth 62 23 of the Wisconsin Statutes

2 Make and Recommend an Official Map. To make and recommend an Official Map to the Common Council In
accordance with § 62 23 of the Wisconsin Statutes

3 Prepare and Recommend a Zoning District Plan and Regulations. To prepare and recommend a zoning district
plan and regulations to the Common Council in accordance with § 62 23 of the Wisconsin Statutes

4 Prepare and Recommend Land Division Regulations. To prepare and recommend land d1vIs1on regulations to the
Common Council n accordance with § 236 45 of the Wisconsin Statutes

5 Changes to the Comprehensive Plan. To make any changes to the Comprehensive Plan they deem necessary or
desirable and to recommend any changes or amendments to the Common Council that they deem necessary or
desirable concernng the Officral Map and Official Map Ordnance, Zoning and Land Dvision provisions of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and Fire Prevention Ordinances

6 Matters Referred to the City Plan Commission. To consider and report or recommend on all matters referred to
them including, but not hm,ted to, Conditional Use Permits

7 Variances to the Land Division and Platting Provisions of this Ordinance. The granting of variances to the land
d1v1s1on and platting related aspects of this Ordinance shall be the sole charge of the Plan CommIss1on [See State ex
rel Westbrook v Cty of New Berlin, 120 Wis 2d 256, 354 NW 2d 206 (Ct App 1984)]

8 Hold Public Hearings and Informational Meetings. To hold pubhc hearings and informational meeting on matters
referred to the City Plan Comm1ss1on

C Board of Zoning and Building Appeals. The Board of Zoning and Building Appeals shall have the following powers
pertaining to the City of Franklin's zoning regulations and Chapter 30 "Building Code" of the City of Franklin's Muncrpal
Code

Errors. To hear and decide appeals where tt is alleged there rs error in any order, requirement, dec1s1on, or
determ1nat1on made by the Zoning Administrator or the Director of Inspection Services, and also where 1! Is alleged
there Is an error in any order, requirement, decIsIon or determination made by the Fire Official, to hear and decide an
appeal of such error pursuant to and upon the standards set forth in §§ 26 10 and 26 11 of the City of Franklin
Municipal Code

2 Variances. To hear and grant applications for variances pursuant to the provisions of $ 62 23(3) of the Wisconsin
Statutes as amended and to hear and grant applications for minor variances pursuant to this D1v1s1on of this Ordinance
Use variances shall not be granted No variance shall be granted which may vary any term or provIsIon of this UDO as
11 pertains to any property which Is subject to a Cond1t1onal Use resolution or a Planned Unit Development or vary any
term of such Cond1t1onal Use resolution or Planned Unit Development itself, unless the application for such variance Is
specifically author1zed wthin such Conditional Use resolution or Planned Unit Development ordinance

3 Interpretations. To hear and decide applications for interpretation of the zoning regulations, also to hear and decide
disputes relative to the boundanes of the zoning distncts

4 Substitutions. To hear and grant applications for substitution of more restrictive nonconforming uses for existing
nonconforming uses provided no structural alterations are to be made and the Plan Comm1ss1on has made a review
and recommendation Whenever the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals permits such a subst1tut1on, the use may
not thereafter be changed without application

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Admin1strat1ve Standards and Procedures
Page 3 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

5 Permits. The Board of Zoning and Building Appeals may reverse, affirm wholly or partly, modify the requirements
appealed from, and may issue or direct the issue of a permit

6 Assistance. The Board of Zoning and Building Appeals may request assistance from other City officers, departments,
commissions, and boards

7 Oaths. The Chairman of the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals may administer oaths and compel the attendance
of witnesses

D Architectural Review Board.

Establishment. There 1s hereby established an Architectural Review Board for the City of Franklin for the purpose of
promoting compatible development, aesthetics, stability, or property values, and to prevent 1mpa1rmenl or deprec1al1on
of existing developments

2 Compliance. No structure shall hereafter be erected, moved, reconstructed, extended, enlarged, or have its exterior
s1gn1ficantly altered or changed without the Architectural Review Board's approval, however, on matters that require
zoning approval by the Plan Comm1ss1on, they shall act as the Architectural Review Board, and the Plan Comm1ss1on
may request the assistance of the Architectural Review Board Small accessory structures are exempt unless the
Zoning Administrator requests a determnaton by the Architectural Revew Board

3 Membership. The Architectural Review Board shall consist of six (6) regular and two (2) alternate members The City
Director of Inspection Services or hus/her desgnee shall be an ex officio member Members shall be residents of the
City of Franklin appointed by the Mayor, subject to confirmation by the Common Council Alternate members shall act
only when a regular member 1s absent or refused to vole due to a conflict of interest Terms shall be staggered for
three-year penods

a Chairman. Chairman shall be appointed by the Mayor

b Recording Secretary. Recording Secretary shall be the Director of Inspection Services or his/her des1gnee

c Officials Oaths Official oaths shall be taken by all members in accordance wth $ 19 01 of the Wisconsin
Statutes wthin ten (10) days of recervng notice of their appointments

d Vacancies. Vacancies shall be filled for the unexpired term in the same manner as apprnntmenls for the full term
within one month of the occurrence of the vacancy

4 Organization. The Architectural Review Board shall organize and adopt rules for its own government in accordance
wth the provisions of thus subsection

a Meetings. Meetings shall be held semimonthly or at the call of the Chairman or when requested by the Director of
Inspection Services or his/her des1gnee and shall be open to the public

b Minutes. Minutes shall be kept showing all actions taken and shall be a public record The grounds for every
decision shall be stated

c Quorum Quorum shall be four members, and all actions shall require the concurring vote of at least four
members

5 Powers. The Architectural Review Board shall have the following power

a Hear and Decide Applications. Hear and decide applications for perm1ss1on to erect, move, reconstruct, extend,
alter, or significantly change the extenor of all structures

b Approve, Deny, or Conditionally Approve the Application. Approve, Deny, or Conditionally Approve the
application and may request such modifications as they may deem necessary to carry out the purpose of this
section

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Adm1rnstrat1ve Standards and Procedures
Page 4 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

c Assistance. The Architectural Review Board may request assistance from other municipal officers, departments,
boards, and commissions

d Additional Information. Request applicant to furnish additional information

6 Application. Applications for approval by the Architectural Review Board shall be made to the Director of Inspection
Services and shall be accompanied by plans showing the exterior elevations of the existing and proposed structure,
description of the proposed materials, proposed floor grades, and a list of the names and addresses of the parties m
interest Applications for Architectural Review shall include that information and data as required under§ 15-7 0800 of
thus Ordinance

7 Findings. The Architectural Review Board shall not approve any application unless they find beyond a reasonable
doubt that the following facts and conditions exist and shall so indicate in the minutes of their proceedings

a Conformance with Architectural Review Principles and Standards. The exterior design proposed 1s 1n
conformance with the principles and standards set forth in§ 15-7 0802 of this Ordinance

b No Depreciation of Property Values. The exterior design 1s not unsightly or obnoxious and 1s not d1sharmon1ous
or so smmlar to existing or proposed neghbonng developments that substantial depreciation of neighboring
property or development will be caused by the applicant's proposal

8 Decision. The Architectural Review Board shall decide all applications within five (5) days after its review The Director
of Inspection Services or hus/her desgnee shall notify the apphcant within five days after the Architectural Review
Board's decision Is made on the review of any application

9 Appeals. Any person or persons aggrieved by any dec1s1on of the Architectural Review Board may appeal the dec1s1on
to the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals Such appeal shall be filed with the City Clerk within thirty (30) days after
filing of the decson wth the Zoning Administrator

B Historic Preservation Commission. There is hereby established a Historic Preservation Comm1ss1on for the City of
Franklin to safeguard the City's historic and cultural heritage, stabilize and improve property values, promote c1v1c pride in
the beauty and noble accomplishments of the past, protect and enhance the City for its residents, tourists and v1s1tors for
education, pleasure, and general welfare, and to strengthen the economy of the City

Membership

a Members. The Historic Preservation Comm1ss1on shall consist of seven (7) residents of the City appointed by the
Mayor subject to confirmation by the Common Council Memberships shall consist of the following one (1) shall
be a registered architect or graduate architect, one (1) shall be a recognized local historian with qualifications in
historic preservation, architectural history, or history, one (1) shall be a licensed real estate broker, one shall be an
alderman, one shall be a Plan Comm1ss1on member, and two shall be citizen members with known interest in local
history and histonc preservation

b Terms. Terms shall be for staggered three (3) year periods

Chairman. Chairman shall be apprnnted by the Mayor

II Secretary. Secretary shall be selected by the members

Ill Official Oaths. Official oaths shall be taken by all members in accordance wth $ 19 0 of the Wisconsin
Statutes wthin ten (10) days of recerving notice of their appointment

IV Vacancies. Vacancies shall be filled for the unexpired term in the same manner as appointments for a full
term within one month of the occurrence of the vacancy

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Admin1strat1ve Standards and Procedures
Page 5 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

2 Organization. The H1stonc Preservation Comm1ss1on shall organize and adopt rules for its own government in
accordance wth the provisions of thus Section

a Meetings. Meetings shall be held at the call of the Chairman of the Historic Preservation Comm1ss1on or when
requested by the Common Council or City Plan Comm1ss1on and shall be open to the public

b Minutes. Minutes shall be kept showing all actions taken and shall be a public record The grounds for every
decision shall be stated in the minutes

c Quorum. Quorum shall be four members, and all actions shall reqwre the concurring vote of at least four
members

3 Powers. The HIstonc Preservation Commission shall have the following powers

a Designation The Historic Preserva!ton Comm1ss1on shall have the power to recommend the des1gnat1on of
landmarks, landmark sites and historic dstncts wthmn the City to the City Plan Commission based upon critera
established in $ 15-10 0405 of this Ordinance

b Regulation of Construction, Reconstruction and Exterior Alteration. No owner or person 1n charge of a
landmark, landmark site, or structure within a historic district shall reconstruct or alter all or any part of the exterior
of such property or construct any improvement upon such designated property or cause or permit any such work
to be performed upon such property unless a Certificate of Appropriateness has been granted by the City Plan
Comm1ss1on upon recommendation by the Historic Preservation Comm1ss1on Applications for a Certificate of
Appropriateness shall be filed with the Historic Preserva!ton Comm1ss1on Within thirty (30) days of Subm1ss1on of
the application, the Historic Preservation Comm1ss1on shall make a recommendation to the City Plan Comm1ss1on
based upon the following determinations

Whether, in the case of a designated landmark or landmark site, the proposed work would detrimentally
change, destroy or adversely affect any exterior architectural feature of the improvement upon which said
work is to be done, and

II Whether, in the case of the construc!ton of a new improvement upon a landmark site, the exterior of such
improvement would adversely affect or not harmonize with the external appearance of other neighboring
improvements on such site, and

Ill Whether, in the case of any property located in a historic district designated pursuant to the cnteria
established mn $ 11 5, hereunder, the proposed construction, reconstruction or exterior alteration does not
conform to the objectives and design cntena of the h1stonc preservation plan for said distnct as duly adopted
by the City Plan Commission

4 Regulation of Demolition. No person in charge of a landmark, or improvement in a historic district shall be granted a
permit to demolish such property without review and recommendation by the Historic Preservation Commsson to the
City Plan Commission

5 Recognition of Landmarks and Landmark Sites. At such time as a landmark or landmark site has been properly
designated in accordance with this D1v1s1on, the Historic Preservation Comm1ss1on may cause to be prepared and
erected on such property, at City expense, a swtable plaque declaring that such property 1s a landmark or landmark
site Such plaque shall be so placed to be easily vsible to passing pedestrians In the case of a landmark, the plaque
shall state the accepted name of the landmark, the date of its construction, and other information deemed proper by
the Historic Preservation Comm1ss1on In the case of a landmark site which 1s not the site of a landmark building, such
plaque shall state the common name of the site, and such other information deemed appropriate by the Historic
Preservation Commsston

6 Sale of Landmark Sites. Any party who 1s listed as the owner of record of a landmark or landmark site at the time of
Its designation, who can demonstrate to the Historic Preservation Commsson that by virtue of such designation he Is

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Administrative Standards and Procedures
Page 6 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

unable to find a buyer willing to preserve such landmark site, even though he has made reasonable attempts in good
faith to find and attract such a buyer, may petition the Historic Preservation Comm1ss1on to recommend to the City Plan
Commission a rescission of ts designation Following the filing of such petition wth the secretary of the Huston1c
Preservation Commission

a The owner and the Historic Preservation Comm1ss1on shall work together in good faith to locate a buyer for the
subject property who 1s willing to abide by its des1gnat1on

b If, at the end of a period not exceeding six months from the date of such pellt1on, no such buyer can be found, and
f the owner still desires to obtain such resc1ss1on, the Historic Preservation Comm1ss1on shall recommend to the
City Plan Commission to rescind its designation of the subject property

c In the event such resc1ss1on, the Historic Preservation Comm1ss1on shall notify the City Clerk, the Director of
Inspection Services and the City Assessor of same, and shall cause the same to be recorded, at the City's
expense, in the office of the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds

d Following any such resc1ss1on, the Historic Preservation Comm1ss1on may not recommend to redes1gnate the
subject property a landmark or landmark site for a period of not less than five years following the date of
rescssIon

7 Other Duties of the Historic Preservation Commission. In addition to those duties already specified 1n this section,
the Historic Preservation Commission shall

a Actively work for the passage of enabling leg1slallon which would permit the granting of full or partial tax
exemptions to properties 1t has designated under the prov1s1ons of this section m order to encourage landmark
owners to assist in carrying out the provisions of ths Ordinance

Cooperate with the State of Wisconsin H1stonc Preservation Officer and the State H1stonc Preservation
Review Board m attempting to include such properties designated as landmarks or landmark sites, or historic
dstncts on the Natonal Register of Histonc Places

b Work for the continuing education of the citizens about the historic heritage of the City of Franklin and the
landmarks and landmark sites

c As tt deems advisable, receive, and solicit funds for the purpose of landmarks preservation in the City Such funds
shall be placed m a special City account for such purpose

C Landmark, Landmark Site, and Historic District Designation Criteria.

Landmark or Landmark Site Designation. For the purposes of this Ordinance, a landmark or landmark site
des1gnat1on may be placed on any site, natural or improved, including any building, improvement or structure located
thereon, or any area of particular historic, architectural or cultural significance to the City of Franklin, such as historic
structures or sites which

a Exemplify or reflect the broad cultural, pohllcal, economic, or social history of the nation, state or community, or

b Are 1dent1fied with historic personages or with important events in national, state or local history, or

c Embody the d1sllngu1shing characteristics of an architectural type specimen, inherently valuable for a study of a
period, style, method of construction, or of indigenous materials or craftsmanship, or

d Are representative of the notable work of a master builder, designer or architect whose ind1v1dual genius
influenced his age

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Admin1strat1ve Standards and Procedures
Page 7 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

2 Historic Preservation Commission Operating Guidelines. The Historic Preservation Comm1ss1on may adopt
specific operating guidelines for landmark and landmark sites desgnaton provdng such are in conformance with the
provisions of thus paragraph

D Procedures.

Designation of Landmarks, Landmark Sites and Historic Districts.

a The Historic Preservation Commission may, after notice and public hearing, recommend to the City Plan
Commission establishment of landmarks, landmark sites and hustonc distncts, after application of the critena in }
15-10 0405 of this Ordmance

b At least ten (10) days prior to such hearing, the Historic Preservation Comm1ss1on shall notify the owners of
property mn whole or in part situated within two-hundred (200) feet of the boundaries of the property affected
These owners shall have the right to confer with the Historic Preservation Comm1ss1on prior to its
recommendation to the Plan Commission on the designation

c Notice of such hearing shall also be published as provided n DsIon 15-9 0200 and $ 15-10 0406(D) of this
Ordinance

d The Historic Preservallon Comm1ss1on shall also notify the City Plannmg and Zoning Admm,strator, Engineering
Department, the Department of Public Works, Park Comm1ss1on, Fire and Police Departments, City Director of
Inspection Services, and City Plan Comm1ss1on Each such department shall respond to the Historic Preservation
Commission wthin thrty (30) days of notification wth its comments on the proposed designation or rescission

e The Historic Preservation Comm1ss1on shall then conduct such public heanng and, In addition to the notified
persons, may hear expert witnesses and shall have the power to subpoena such witnesses and records as 11
deems necessary The Historic Preservation Commsston may conduct an mdependent mvest1gation into the
proposed des,gnallon or resc1ss1on

Within ten (10) days after the close of the public hearing, the H,stonc Preservation Comm1ss1on may recommend
designation of the property as either a landmark, a landmark site, or tts inclusion in an historic distnct to the Plan
Comm1ss1on or recommend to the Plan Comm1ss1on to rescind the des,gnallon

g After the recommendation has been made, notification shall be sent to the property owner or owners and to the
persons who appeared at the pubhc hearing Notificatton shall also be given to the Ctty Clerk, Director of
Inspection Services, and the City Assessor The Historic Preservatton Comm1ss1on shall cause the City Plan
Comm1ss1on approved designation or resc1ss1on to be recorded, at City expense, m the MIiwaukee County
Register of Deeds office

2 Voluntary Restrictive Covenants The owner of any landmark or landmark site may, at any time following such
designation of his property, enter into a restrictive covenant on the subject property after negotiation with the Historic
Preservation Commission The Hustonc Preservation Commission may assist the owner mn preparing such covenant In
the interest of preserving the landmark or landmark site and the owner shall cause to be recorded such covenant 1n the
Milwaukee County Register of Deeds office and shall notify the City Assessor of such covenant and the cond1t1ons
thereof

3 Creation of a Historic District. For preservation purposes, the Historic Preservation Comm1ss1on may recommend to
the City Plan Comm1ss1on that certain geographically defined areas within the City of Franklin be designated as historic
districts under the provisions as outlined in thus DIsion of thus Ordinance A hustonc distnct may be recommended by
the Historic Preservation Commission for designation by the Cty Plan Commission which meets those crtena set forth
In $ 15-10 0405 of thus Ordinance Each histonc dstnct recommended by the Histonc Preservation Commission shall
be supported by a Historic Preservation Plan for the district which plan shall include a cultural and architectural
analysis supporting the historic significance of the area, specific gu1dehnes for the development of the district and a
statement of preservation objectives

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Administrative Standards and Procedures
Page 8 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY
E Compliance.

General. Every person in charge of any landmark, landmark site or improvement in a historic district shall maintain
same or cause to permit t to be maintained mn a condition consistent wth the provision of thus Section Insofar as they
are applicable to a landmark, landmark site or improvement in a hustonc district, designated under thus Dison of this
Ordinance, any provIsIon of the Plumbing Code, the Minimum Housing and Property Maintenance Code, Building
Code, Heating, Ventilating and AIr Conditioning Code, may be vaned or waved, on application, by the appropriate
board having such 1unsd1ction over such chapter or, in the absence of such board, by the Director of Inspection
Serv1cesr, provided such variance or waiver does not endanger public health or safety

2 Government Order. Nothing contained In this Drvs1on of thrs Ordinance shall prohibit the making of necessary
construction, reconstruction, alteration or demolition of any improvement on a landmark site or in a h1stonc d1stnct
pursuant to order of any governmental agency or pursuant to any court Judgement, for the purpose of remedying
emergency conditions determined to be dangerous to life, health or property In such cases, no approval from the
Hustonc Preservation Commission or City Plan Commission shall be required

15-9-03. Administrative Procedures

A Zoning Compliance Permit.

Purpose and Applicability. In all zoning districts a zoning compliance permit shall be required for any new use or
change of use of a building, structure, or land not involving the construction of new buildings or structures, alteration of
existing buildings or structures, or other exterior changes to the City Any use necessitating construction of a new
building or structure, addition, accessory structure or any other similar expansion of the use on the site, such as
additional parking spaces, except single family and duplex development shall comply with Site Plan Review of this
Ordinance

2 Zoning Administrator Review and Action

a The Zoning Administrator shall review the zoning compliance permit application to determine whether tt conforms
to all applicable provIsIons of this UDO

b Based upon their review the Zomng Adm1mstrator shall

Issue the Zoning Compliance Permit,

II Issue the Zoning Compliance Permit with conditions,

Ill Refer the zoning compliance permit application to the Plan Comm1ssIon for review and approval, or

IV Deny the Zoning Compliance Permit

3 Expiration and Lapse of Approval. A Zomng Compliance Permit shall expire 1f within six (6) months of the date of
issuance of a Zoning Compliance Permit the use has not commenced or that the use has not occupied the structure or
location Upon the showing of a valid cause by the applicant, the Zomng Administrator may grant an extension of such
Zomng Compliance Permit for a period not to exceed six (6) months

4 Enforcement Failure to comply with this Section relating to Zoning Compliance Permits may be enforced pursuant to
this Ordinance, or any other provIsIon of law including, but not limited to, revocation of the Zoning Compliance Permit,
Injunction, or other crvl surt

B Site Plan Review.

Purpose and Applicability. Site Plan Review Is required pnor to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy to certify
compliance with all applicable provIsIons of this UDO Site Plan Review shall be reqwred for any development
involving construction of a new building, accessory structure, or any other similar expansion such as the construction of

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Admin1strat1ve Standards and Procedures
Page 9 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

add1t1onal Imperv1ous area or parking spaces Single-family and duplex res1dent1al development shall be exempt from
site plan review and shall only reqwre a Zoning Compliance Permit as specified in Section ##-#-##

2 Standards of Review.

a Conformity of Use to Zoning District. The proposed use(s) conform(s) to the uses permitted as a Permitted Use
In the zoning dstnct

b Dimensional Requirements. The d1mens1onal arrangement of buildings and structures conform to the required
area, yard, setback, and height restnct1ons of the UDO

c Use and Design Provisions. The proposed use conforms to all use and design provisions and requirements (ff
any) as found in this Ordinance for the specified uses

d Relation to Existing and Proposed Streets and Highways. There 1s a proper relationship between the existing
and proposed streets and highways within the v1cin1ty of the project to assure the safety and convenience of
pedestnan and vehicular traffic In the case of artenal streets and highways not under the junsd1ct1on of the City of
Franklin, that the applicable highway authonty (County, State, or Federal) has been contacted and the needed
permits have been obtained and submitted to the Ctty for review

e Impact on Surrounding Uses. The proposed on-site buildings, structures, and entry ways are situated and
designed to m1nim1ze adverse effects upon owners and occupants of adjacent properties by providing for
adequate design of ingress/egress, and intenor/extenor traffic flow, stormwater drainage, erosion, grading
lighting, and parking, as specified by this Ordinance or any other codes or laws

Natural Resource Features Protection. Natural features of the landscape are retained to enhance the
development on the site, or where they furnish a barrier or buffer between the project and adjoining properties
used for d1ss1m1lar purposes or where they assist in preservmg the general safety, health, welfare, and
appearance of the neighborhood The requirements set forth n Drvsions 15-4 0100, 15-7 0100, and 15-11 0100
are to be met Where required, a "Natural Resource Protection Plan" meeting the requirements set forth in
DISIon 15-7 0100 has also been submitted for Plan Commission revew and approval

g Required Landscaping and Landscape Bufferyards. Adverse effects of the proposed development and
actIvI1ies upon adjoining residents or owners are m1mm1zed by design and installation of landscape bufferyards to
provde for appropn1ate screening, fencng, or landscaping as requred mn DIson 15-5 0300 of this Ordnance
Where required, a Landscape Plan meeting the requirements set forth in D1v1s1on 15-5 0300 has also been
submitted for Plan Comm1ss1on review and approval

h Provision of Emergency Vehicle Accessibility. Land, buildings, and structures are readily accessible to
emergency vehicles and persons wth physical disabilities

Building Location. No building shall be permitted to be sited in a manner which would unnecessarily destroy or
substantially damage the beauty of the area, particularly insofar as 1t would adversely affect values incident to
ownership of land in the area, or which would unnecessanly have an adverse effect on the beauty and general
enjoyment of existing structures on adjoining properties

Location and Design of On-Site Waste Disposal and Loading Facilities. No on-site waste disposal and/or
loading facility shall be permitted to be designed or sited in a manner which would substantially damage the
beauty of the area, particularly insofar as 1t would adversely affect values incident to ownership of land in the area,
or which would unnecessanly have an adverse effect on the beauty and general enjoyment of the existing
structures on adjoining properties

k Consistency with the Intent of the Unified Development Ordinance. The Site Plan 1s consistent with the intent
and purposes of the UDO as established in Section #ft#t###and governing zoning d1stnct in Section ##-#-##

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Administrative Standards and Procedures
Page 10 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

Consistency with the Intent of the Comprehensive Master Plan. The Sile Plan Is consistent with the public
goals, objectives, principles, standards, poles, and urban design cnlena set forth in the City-adopted
Comprehensive Master Plan or component thereof

m Plan Commission Reserves the Right to Determine a Site Unsuitable for Planned Use. The Plan
Commission reserves the nght to declare land or structures unsuitable for planned use when Plan Comm1ss1on
review occurs during the site plan review process

3 Zoning Administrator Review and Action

a The Zoning Adm1rnslrator shall review the site plan review application to determine whether it conforms to all
applicable provisions of this UDO

b Based upon their revew the Zoning Administrator shall

Approve the site plan,

II Approve the site plan with cond1llons, or

111 Deny the site plan

IV. Plan Commission Referral.

For any proposed development that results in a change or add1tIon of one-hundred thousand (100,000)
square feet or more, the Zoning Administrator to the Plan Comm1ss1on for review

The Plan Commsson shall then review and approve the site plan, approve the site plan with cond11lons,
or deny the Site Plan in accordance with the standards of Section ##t#### above

4 Expiration and Lapse of Approval Except in the case of an approved Planned Unit Development, no site plan
approval shall be valid for a penod longer than two (2) years unless a Building Permit Is issued and construction Is
actually begun within that penod and Is thereafter diligently pursued lo completion or unless a Zoning Compliance
Permit, Conditional Use Permit, or Occupancy Permit is Issued and a use commences wthin that period

5 Site Plan Amendments.

a Determination of Level of Change. Upon receiving a Site Plan amendment application, the Zoning Administrator
shall determine whether the amendment Is a minor amendment, or a mayor amendment based on the cntena
detailed in Section ##-#--## below

b Process. Any minor amendment (as set forth herein) to an approved Site Plan may be submitted to the Zoning
Administrator for admin1stral1ve approval

c Major Amendment. A major amendment 1s an amendment which results m one (1) of the following

A change of five (5) percent or more of the structures' floor area

II An increase in the off street parking localed on site

III Significant change in architectural styles, colors or building matenals that are inconsistent wth the approved
Site Plan,

d Minor Amendment. A Minor Sile Plan amendment Is any change that does not qualify as a mayor stte plan
amendment per Section ##-#--## above

e Approval Process. A major amendment to an approved Sile Plan shall follow the Sile Plan Review procedure mn
Section##-#--## A minor amendment to an approved Site Plan may be approved by the Zoning Administrator

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Admin1strallve Standards and Procedures
Page 11 0f 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

C Temporary Use Permit

Purpose A Temporary Use Permit shall be required prior to the establishment of a temporary use per Secton#t###f
of this UDO to certify compliance with all applicable regulations of this UDO and the applicable sections of the buldng
code as adopted by the City

2 Temporary Use Permit Review Criteria To approve the issuance of a Temporary Use Permit, the Zoning
Administrator shall make an affirmative finding that all applicable prov1s1ons of this UDO, the applicable building code,
and all other City ordinances are met

3 Zoning Administrator Action. The apphcat1on shall be reviewed by the Zoning Administrator to ensure the application
conforms to the criteria in Subsection 2 above Based upon their review, the Zoning Administrator shall

a Issue the Temporary Use Permit,

b Issue the Temporary Use Permit with cond1t1ons, or

c Deny the Temporary Use Permit

D Sign Permit

Purpose A Sgn Permit shall be required pnor to the dsplay, construction, erection, or alteration of a sign and its
structural components on any property All signs must comply with Article 6, and the applicable sections of the building
code as adopted by the City All electrical installations associated with the erection and installation of a sign must be
done in accordance with the adopted Building and Electrical Codes

2 Exemptions Signs exempt from a permit are detailed in Section##-#-##

3 Sign Permit Review Criteria To approve the issuance of a Sign Permit, the Zonmg Administrator shall make an
affirmative finding that all applicable prov1s1ons of this UDO, the applicable building code, and all other City ordinances
are met

4 Zoning Administrator Action. The application shall be reviewed by the Zoning Administrator to ensure the application
conforms to the criteria m Subsection 3 above Based upon their review, the Zoning Administrator shall

a Issue the Sign Permit,

b Issue the Sign Permit wth conditions, or

c Deny the Sgn Permit

5 Expiration and Lapse of Approval A Sign Permit shall become void, 1f work authorized under the permit has not
been completed within six (6) months of the date of issuance

E Interpretations

Purpose

a The interpretation authority established by this section is intended to recognize that the provisions of thus UDO,
though detailed and extensive, cannot, as a practical matter, address every specific s1tuat1on to which they may
have to be applied

b The Zoning Administrator may issue Interpretations of the provisions of thus UDO to clanfy the standards or
requirements as they relate to a particular type of development on a particular property

c The interpretation authority established herein 1s not intended to add or change the essential content of this UDO
but 1s intended only to allow authoritative application of that content to specific cases

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Adm1rnstratlve Standards and Procedures
Page 12 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

2 Request. The Zoning Administrator may issue an Interpretation at the written request of a petitioner who Is proposing
to take action requinng the issuance of a permit or certificate The request for an Interpretation shall set forth the facts
and circumstances, a description of the proposed development, and the precise interpretation claimed by the applicant
to be correct

3 Content of Letter. The Interpretation does not itself authorize the establishment of a use but provides guidance for
any approvals or permits required by this UDO, and the Interpretation shall be advisory in nature and shall not be
binding upon the Plan Commission or the Common Council in their functons under this UDO The Interpretation shall
specify the facts, reasons, analysis, and standards upon which the Interpretation 1s based

4 Records. A record of all Interpretations shall be kept on file in the Zoning Administrator's office

F Certificate of Occupancy.

Certificate of Occupancy Required. A Certificate of Occupancy to be issued by the Director of Inspection Services or
his/her desgnee shall be required for any of the followng, except buildings incidental to agricultural operations other
than residences

a Occupancy and use of a building hereafter erected or enlarged

b Change mn use of an ex.sting building

c Any change in the use of a nonconforming use

2 No Occupancy, Use, or Change of Use Shall Take Place. No such occupancy, use, or change of use shall take
place until a Certificate of Occupancy has been issued

3 Undeveloped Land Within Floodplain Districts.

a No undeveloped land within the floodplain districts shall be occupied, developed, or used, and no structure
hereafter erected, altered, substantially improved, or moved shall be occupied until the applicant submits to the
Zoning Administrator a certification by a Wisconsin registered professional engineer or land surveyor that the
floodplain regulations set forth in this ordinance have been fully complied with Such cert1ficat1on shall include the
first-floor elevation of any structure on the site

b Pending the issuance of such certificate, a temporary Certificate of Occupancy may be issued by the Zoning
Administrator for a penod of not more than srx (6) months dunng the completion of the construction of the building
or of alterations which are required under the terms of any law or ordinance Such temporary certificate may be
renewed, but it shall not be construed in any way to alter the respective rights, duties, or obligations of the owner
or the City relating to the use or occupancy of the land or building, or any other matter covered by this ordinance,
and such temporary Certificate of Occupancy shall not be issued except under such restrictions and provIsIons as
will adequately ensure the safety of the occupants

4 Application for a Certificate of Occupancy. Written application for a Certificate of Occupancy for the use of vacant
land, or for a change in a nonconforming use, as herein provided, shall be made to the Director of Inspection Services

5 Issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. If the proposed uSe IS In conformity with the prov1s1ons of this ordinance, the
certificate of occupancy shall be issued within three working days after the apphcat1on for the same has been made,
only after the occupancy conforms to this Ordinance and other applicable City Codes, and any lack of conformance to
this Ordinance or other codes are corrected

6 Form of Certificate of Occupancy and Permanent Record. Each Certificate of Occupancy shall state that the
building or proposed use of a building or land comples wth all prov.sons of thus Ordnance A record of all Certificates
of Occupancy shall be kept on file in the office of Inspection Services and a copy shall be forwarded, on request, to any
person having proprietary or tenancy interests in the building or land affected

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Admin1strat1ve Standards and Procedures
Page 13 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

7 Certificate of Occupancy Not Required for Gas and Electric Utility Uses Issued a Certificate of Public
Convenience and Necessity. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be required for gas and electric utility uses which
have been issued a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity pursuant to $ 196 491 of the Wisconsin Statutes
as amended

15-9-04. Board/Commission General Review and Action Procedures

A Summary of Board/Commission Review and Approval Procedures. Table ttlt---#-##- summarizes the Board and
Comm1ss1on Review and Approval procedures and 1dent1fies the appropriate boards or comm1ss1ons that serve as
recommending or decision-making bodies

Table 15-9-04(A): Summary of Board/Commission Review and Approval Procedures
Board of Zoning and

Petition Review Procedure Plan Commission Common Council Building Appeals
Cond1t1onal Use Permit R* D
Major Condtonal Use Pert Amendment R D
Vanance
Text Amendment R* D
Map Amendment R D
Comprehensive Master Plan Future Land Use
Amendment R* D
Appeal
Minor Land DvsIon RID D
Land Combination R
Subdvison R D
Planned Unit Development R D
Major Planned Unit Development Amendment R D

D'

D'

R = Recommending Body
D = Dec1son Making Body
= Pubc Notice Required

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Administrative Standards and Procedures
Page 14 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

B Notice Requirements. Table #ff###tsummanzes the required method for each type of required notice All notices shall be
made 1n compliance with Chapter 985 of the Wisconsin Statutes Require wntten notice shall be delivered by regular mail to
all owners of properties or portions of properties within five hundred (500) feet of the lands described m the application,
mailed not less than ten (10) days pnor to the heanng

Table 15-9-04(8): Notice Requirements by Procedure
Published Notice

Procedure Class 1 Class 2 Written Notice
Conditional Use Pert • •
M aor Conditional Use Pert Amendment • •
Vanance • •
Text Amendment •
Map Amendment • •
Appeal •
Planned Unit Development (1) • •
Major Planned Unt Development Amendment (1) • •
• = Required form of notice
Notes
(1) Process specified m Article 10 Planned Development Standards and Procedures

C Recording of Documents Recording of documents as reqwred by the City in instances of subd1v1s1on, consol1dat1on,
amendment, or Planned Unit Development or otherwise required by state statutes, shall be completed by the Zoning
Administrator in a timely manner and at the expense of the applicant. Notice of all fees shall be furnished II the applicant by
the Zoning Administrator and pad pnor to the recording of documents

15-9-05. Conditional Uses

A General II 1s recognized that there are uses which, because of their unique characteristics, cannot be properly classified 1n
any particular zoning drstnct or distncts wthout consideration, mn each case, of the impact of those uses upon neighboring
land and of the public need for the particular use at the particular location Such conditional uses fall mto two categories

Uses publicly operated or trad1t1onally affected with a public interest

2 Uses entirely private in character but of such an unusual nature that their operation may give rise to unique problems
wth respect to ther Impact upon neghboning property or public facilities

B Initiation of Conditional Uses Any person owning or having an interest in the subject property may file an application to
use such land for one or more of the cond1t1onal uses provided for in this UDO and in the zomng district 1n which the land Is
situated

C Application for Conditional Uses. A cond1t1onal use application for a cond1t1onal use, or for the expansion of an existing
condit ional use, shall be filed wth the Zoning Administrator or desgnee on an applcaton form prescnbed by the Zoning
Administrator

D Notice Required.

At least ten (10) days in advance of the Plan Comm1ss1on hearing, but not more than thirty (30) days, a Class 2 notice
as specified in Chapter 985 of the Wisconsin Statutes specifying the time and place of such hearing shall be published
in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Franklin

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Admin1strat1ve Standards and Procedures
Page 15 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

2 Written notice of the public hearing shall also be delivered by regular mail to all owners of properties or portions of
properties within five hundred (500) feet of the lands described in the application, mailed not less than ten (10) days
pnor to the heanng, with the ownership to be determined by the records on file in the Office of the City Assessor; notice
to one of joint or in-common owners being notice of all

3 The Common Council shall request a review of each such special use in the floodplain districts by the Wisconsin
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Final action on floodplain applications shall not be taken for at least thirty
(30) days or until DNR has made its recommendations, whichever comes first A copy of all dec1s1ons relating to
cond1t1onal uses in the floodplain d1stncts shall be transmitted to DNR within ten (10) days of the effective date of such
decision

E Plan Commission Hearing. Upon receipt in proper form of the application and statement referred to above, the Plan
Comm1ss1on shall hold at least one (1} public hearing At the close of the public heanng the Plan Comm1ss1on shall
recommend to Common Council to

Approve the Cond1t1onal Use Permit,

2 Approve the Conditional Use Permit with cond1bons, or

3 Deny the Conditional Use Permit

F Common Council Action. For each application for a cond1t1onal use, the Plan Comm1ss1on shall report to the Common
Council its findings and recommendations, including the stipulations of additional conditions and guarantees that such
conditions will be complied with when they are deemed necessary for the protection of the public interest The Common
Council shall

Approve the Condtonal Use Permit,

2 Approve the Conditional Use Permit wth conditions, or

3 Deny the Conditional Use Permit

G Protest Petition. In the event ofwntten protest against any proposed conditional use, duly signed and acknowledged by the
owners of twenty (20) percent or more either of the areas of the land included in such proposed amendment, or by the
owners of twenty (20) percent of more of the area of the land 1mmed1ately adjacent extending one-hundred (100) feet
therefrom, or by the owners of twenty (20} percent or more of the land directly opposite thereto extending one-hundred
(100) feet from the street frontage of such opposite land, such conditional use shall not be granted except by the favorable
vote of three-quarters (3/4) of all the members of the Common Council

H General Standards For Conditional Uses. In cons1denng an application for a cond1t1onal use permit the Plan Comm1ss1on
and Common Council shall review the responses by the applicant to the standards set forth below

Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent. The proposed use and development will be In
harmony with the general and specific purposes for which this UDO was enacted and for which the regulations of the
zoning distnct mn question were established and with the general purpose and intent of the City of Franklin
Comprehensive Master Plan or element thereof

2 No Undue Adverse Impact. The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse or
detnmental effect upon or endanger adjacent property, the character of the area, or the public health, safety, morals,
comfort, and general welfare and not substantially d1m1rnsh and impair property values within the community or
neighborhood

3 CompatibilityWith Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development wilt be constructed, arranged,
and operated so as not to dominate the mmmedate vcnuty or to interfere wth the use and development of neighboring
property in accordance with the applicable zoning d1stnct regulations

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Adm1mstratIve Standards and Procedures
Page 16 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

4 Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served adequately by essential pubhc
facilities and services such as streets, pubhc ut1lit1es including public water supply system and sanitary sewer, police
and fire protection, refuse disposal, public parks, lbranes, schools, and other public facities and utilities or the
applicant will provide adequately for such fac11it1es

5 Adequate Circulation. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic congestion nor draw
s1gn1ficant amounts of traffic through res1dent1al streets Adequate measures will be taken to provide ingress and
egress so designed as to mnmze traffic congestion mn the publc streets

6 No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not result in the destruction, loss, or
damage of any natural, scenic, or histonc feature of significant importance This cntenon shall be deemed to have been
met with respect to natural features upon approval of a Natural Resource Protection Plan for the proposed use

Effect of Denial of a Conditional Use. No application for a cond1llonal use which has been denied wholly or in part by the
Common Council shall be resubmitted for a penod of one-hundred eighty (180) days from the date of said order of denial

J Revocation. In any case where a cond1t1onal use has not been established within one (1) year after the date of granting
thereof, then without further action by the Plan Comm1ss1on or the Common Council, the conditional use authorization shall
be null and void The cntena for determining establishment of a conditional use may be set forth by the Common Council 1n
the approving conditional Use Resolution

K Amendments to Approved Conditional Uses.

Determination of Level of Change. Upon receiving a Cond1bonal Use amendment application, the Zoning
Administrator shall determine whether the amendment is a minor amendment, or a major amendment based on the
cntena detailed mn Section ###t#### and Section ###f#### below

a Mayor Amendment. A mayor amendment is any proposed change to an approved Cond1t1onal Use that results in

one or more of the following

Increase m the intensity of the site's use, mcludmg

A five (5) percent Increase In Impervious surface or modification to the approved stormwater
management plan

11 Request for hours of operation before 8 am or after 6 pm

111 Additional nrnse, glare, odor, or other impacts that are detectable from off-site

b Minor Amendment. A minor amendment 1s any proposed change to an approved Conditional Use that Is
consistent with the standards and conditions upon which the Cond1llonal Use was approved, which does not alter
the concept or intent of the Conditional Use, and which is not considered a major amendment as detailed In
Section ####-##it

c Approval Process. A major amendment to an approved Cond1t1onal Use shall follow the procedure for a
Cond1t1onal Use approval set m Section ##--#-## A minor amendment to an approved Cond1t1onal Use may be
approved by the Zoning Administrator

15-9-06. Variance

A Purpose. The Variance process is designed to provide a narrowly circumscribed means by which rehef may be granted
from unforeseen applications of this Ordinance that create practical d1fficult1es or particular hardships A Variance may be
granted for practical d1fficult1es or particular hardships resulting from the stnct application of the regulations of this
Ordinance

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Admin1strat1ve Standards and Procedures
Page 17 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

B Applicants Receiving Variances in Floodplains. Pursuant to Federal regulations set forth mn 44 CFR Part 60 6(5),
applcants recevng vanances mn floodplains shall be notified, In wrtung, by the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals that
increased flood insurance premiums and increased threat to life and property may result from the granting of the variance
The Board shall keep a record of the not1ficalion in its files

C Variance Review Criteria. In determining whether a Variance should be granted, the Board of Zoning and BuIld1ng Appeals
must consider whether the practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship claimed by the applicant was created by the applicant
and take into account the nature of the hardship No Variance shall be granted unless the Board of Zoning and Building
Appeals makes all the following findings

The application of the ordinance to the particular piece of property would create an unnecessary hardship,

2 Such cond11tons are peculiar lo the particular piece of property involved,

3 Relief, 1f granted, would not cause substantial detriment lo the public good, or impair the purposes and intent of the
ordinance or the comprehensive master plan, and

4 The vanance, tf granted, would be the minimum necessary to alleviate the unnecessary hardship

D Hearing on Application.

Upon receipt of an eligible application for an area exception, the Board of Zoning and Building appeals shall hold a
public hearing on the application Notice of the lime, place and purpose of such heanng shall be given by publication of
a Class 1 Notice, pursuant lo Ch 985 of the Wisconsin Statutes

2 The time, place and purpose of such hearing shall also be delivered by regular mail to the applicant and to all owners
of properties or portions of properties within five-hundred (500) feet of the lands descnbed in the application, mailed not
less than ten (10) days prior lo the hearing, with the ownership lo be determined by the records on file in the Office of
the City Assessor, notice to one of Joint or in-common owners being notice to all

E Board of Zoning and Building Appeals Hearing and Action The Board of Zoning and Building Appeals shall review the
applcaton for a Vanaton, hold a public heanng, and after consideration of the recommendation of the Zoning Administrator,
recommendation of the Zoning Administrator and public comment received either

Approve the Vanation,

2 Approve the Vanation wth conditions, or

3 Deny the Vanaton

F Effect of Denial. No application for a vanatIon shall be filed by property owner which is identical or substantially similar to
the requested variation which has been denied within one (1) year of the date of the denial

15-9-07. Map Amendments

A Purpose The Zoning Map may be amended from lime to time by ordinance, in accordance with the slate statute The
amendment process is intended to adjust this UDO mn response to changed cond1t1ons or changes in City policy
Amendments are not intended lo relieve particular hardships or confer special privileges or rights upon any person or party

B Map Amendment Review Criteria The following review crileria shall be considered in the review and action on Map
Amendment applicalions

The proposed map amendment Is consistent with the City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan and other adopted
polices of the City

2 Major land uses, conditions or circumstances have changed since the UDO was adopted or amended

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Administrative Standards and Procedures
Page 18 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

3 Sites do not exast for the proposed use in existing distncts permitting such use

4 The requested map amendment 1s compatible with the ex1sbng uses, development patterns and zoning of nearby
properties

5 The present development of the area complies with existing ordinances

6 The ex1st1ng zoning imposes an unreasonable hardship and a reasonable economic benefit cannot be realized from
uses permitted by the existing zoning

7 The proposed map amendment does not conflict with ex1st1ng or planned public improvements or will not adversely
impact schools, parks or other public fac11it1es

8 The natural environment or traffic patterns in the v1cin1ty will not be adversely affected in a manner inconsistent with the
planned character of the area

9 The proposed map amendment 1s not detrimental to the health, safety and welfare of the neighborhood or of the City
as a whole

C Hearing and Notice Required

The Plan Commrsson shall hold a public hearing upon each proposed change or amendment gyving notice of the tme
and place of such hearing by publication in the City of a Class 2 notice under Chapter 985 of the Wisconsin Statutes

2 Written notice of the public hearing shall also be delivered by regular mail to all owners of properties or portions of
properties within five hundred (500) feet of the lands descnbed in the applicabon, mailed not less than ten (10) days
prior to the heanng, with the ownership to be determined by the records on file in the Office of the City Assessor, notice
to one of Joint or in-common owners being noltce to all

3 At least ten (10) days prior wntten notice shall be given to the clerk of any municipality within one-thousand (1,000) feet
of any land to be affected by the proposed change or amendments Due notice of all public heanngs on pet1t1ons for
changes to the floodplain d1stncts or amendment to the regulations affecting the floodplain d1stncts shall be transmitted
to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)

4 Amendments to the floodplain d1stnct boundaries or regulations shall not become effectve until approved by the DNR
and the FEMA In the case of floodplain district boundary changes, an official letter of map amendment from the FEMA
shall also be required and the provsons set forth in $ 15-9 0207 of this Division shall be followed Only statutorily
required notice is to be given for text amendment applications, wntten and mailed notice to owners of properties is not
required for the heanng upon an applicalton for a text amendment

D Plan Commission Hearing and Recommendation The Plan Comm1ss1on shall hold a public hearing and at the close of
the public hearing and after consideration of the recommendation of the Zoning Administrator and public comment received,
either recommend to the Common Council

Approve of the Map Amendment, or

2 Deny of the Map Amendment

E Common Council Action The Common Council shall review the applicallon for the map amendment and after
cons1derat1on of the recommendation of the Plan Comm1ss1on, recommendallon of the Zoning Administrator, and public
comment received either

Approve the Map Amendment, or

2 Deny the Map Amendment

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Adm1nistrat1ve Standards and Procedures
Page 19 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

15-9-08. Text Amendments

A Purpose The regulations imposed and the dstncts created by this UDO may be amended from time to time by ordinance,
in accordance with the state statute The amendment process 1s intended to adjust this UDO in response to changed
cond1t1ons or changes in City policy Amendments are not intended to relieve particular hardships or confer special
privileges or rights upon any person or party

B Text Amendment Review Criteria The following review cntena shall be considered in the review and action on Text
Amendment applications

The proposed text amendment 1s consistent with the City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan and other adopted
polices of the City

2 The proposed text amendment addresses a particular issue or concern for the City

3 The proposed text amendment does not impose an unreasonable hardship on existing uses

4 Mayor land uses, conditions, or circumstances have changed since the UDO was adopted or amended

5 The requested amendment 1s compatible with the existing uses and development patterns of the City

6 The proposed amendments 1s not detrimental to the health, safely and welfare of the neighborhood or of the City as a
whole

C Hearing and Notice Required

The Plan Commission shall hold a public heanng upon each proposed change or amendment gvng notice of the time
and place of such hearing by publication in the City of a Class 2 notice under Chapter 985 of the Wisconsin Statutes

2 Amendments to the floodplan district boundanes or regulations shall not become effective unlll approved by the DNR
and the FEMA In the case of floodplain district boundary changes, an official letter of map amendment from the FEMA
shall also be requred and the provisions set forth mn 15-9 0207 of thus Drvsion shall be followed Only statutorily
required notice is to be given for text amendment applications, written and mailed notice to owners of properties is not
required for the hearing upon an application for a text amendment

D Plan Commission Hearing and Recommendation The Plan Comm1ss1on shall hold a public hearing and al the close of
the public hearing and after cons1deral1on of the recommendation of the Zoning Administrator and public comment received,
either recommend to the Common Council

Approve of the Text Amendment, or

2 Deny of the Text Amendment

E Common Council Action The Common Council shall review the apphcat1on for the text amendment and after
cons1deral1on of the recommendation of the Plan Comm1ss1on, recommendallon of the Zoning Admm1strator, and public
comment received either

Approve the Text Amendment, or

2 Deny the Text Amendment

15-9-09. Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map Amendment

A Amendments to the future land use map in the City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan shall follow the process
established 1n the Comprehensive Master Plan

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Adm1rnslrat1ve Standards and Procedures
Page 20 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

15-.9-10. Appeal

A Purpose. An appeal may be taken to the Zonmg Board of Appeals for any order, requirement, dec1s1on, interpretation or
determination of the regulations of thus title made by the Zoning Administrator, by any mndrvdual aggrieved by the action
taken under The Board of Zoning and Building Appeals shall hear the Appeal, hold a publc meeting, and render a dec1s1on

B Initiation. An Appeal may be taken within thirty (30) days of the action of the Zoning Administrator by filing a notice of
Appeal specifying the grounds thereof, who shall forward such Appeal to the Board of Zoning and Bu1ld1ng Appeals

C Board of Zoning and Building Appeals Hearing and Action. A public hearing shall be conducted by the Board of Zoning
and Building Appeals for each Appeal The Board of Zonmg and Building Appeals may reverse or affirm, wholly or partly, or
may modify the order, requirement, decson, or determination relating to thus title, made by the Zoning Administrator subject
to the cntena m Section #If.-#-##

G Notice Required. Notice of the time, place and purpose of such heanng shall be given by pubhcat1on of a Class 1 Notice,
pursuant to Ch 985, Wis Stats, said lime, place and purpose of such hearing shall also be delivered by regular mail to the
applicant and to all owners of properties or portions of properties within five-hundred (500) feet of the lands described mn the
application, mailed not less than ten (10) days prior to the heanng, wth the ownership to be determined by the records on
file in the Office of the City Assessor, notice to one of Joint or in-common owners being notice to all

D Appeal Review Criteria. An Appeal of admin1strat1ve dec1s1ons shall be granted only if the Plan Commission makes one of
the followng findings

The decIsIon constituted an erroneous application or interpretation of this UDO

2 The decision constituted an abuse of the administrative official's discretion to interpret or apply thus UDO

3 The dec1s1on was rendered based upon an erroneous material fact.

E Record of Action. The Plan Comm1ss1on's dec1s1on shall be filed and recorded with the City Clerk

15-9-11. Subdivision Procedures

A Minor Land Division.

Applicability. When it is proposed to drvde land into at least two (2) but not more than four (4) parcels or building
sites, or when 1t 1s proposed to create by land d1v1s1on not more than four (4) parcels or building sites wIth1n a recorded
Subdrs1on Plat without changing the extenor boundanes of a block, lot, or outlot the Subdrvder shall subdivide by
use of a certified survey map The certified survey map shall include all parcels of land in any size

2 Filing of a Certified Survey Map. The Subd1v1der shall prepare the certified survey map in accordance with D1v1s1on
15-7 0700 of this Ordinance

a The Subd1v1der shall file at least thirty (30) copies of the certified survey map, Natural Resource Protection Plan 1f
required, Landscape Plan for any landscape bufferyard easement areas as required in Section##-#-##, and the
application with the Zoning Administrator, or their des1gnee at least fifteen (15) days prior to the meeting of the
Plan Commission at which action Is desred One (1) ongnal copy of the Certified Survey Map shall be submitted

b The Zoning Administrator shall, within two (2) working days after filing, transmit copies of the map and application
along with a cover letter to all approving authorities including extraterntonal plat review agencies if not waved mn
writing

c The Zoning Administrator, wthwn two (2) work days after filmg, transmit the certified survey map, natural resource
protection plan, landscape plan, and application

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Adm1nistrat1ve Standards and Procedures
Page 21 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

d The applicant shall be responsible for transmitting copies of the certified survey map to all affected ut11it1es for their
respective review and comments

e The recommendations of all approving authorities shall be transmitted to the Plan Commission wthin twenty (20)
days from the date the map Is filed wth the Zoning Administrator, or pnor to the next available meeting

3 Plan Commission Review and Action or Recommendation.

a The Certified Survey Map shall be reviewed by the Plan Comm1ss1on for conformance with this Ordinance and all
other ordinances, rules, regulations, adopted regional, County, or City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plans or
adopted plan components

b For all Minor Land D1v1s1ons that do not involve the ded1cat1on of land or public improvements, the Plan
Commission shall wthin sixty (60) days from the date of filing of the certified survey map either

Approve,

II Conditionally approve, or

111 Deny of the map

c For all Mnor Land DIIsions that do involve the dedication of land or publc improvements, the Plan Commission
shall within sixty (60) days from the date of filing of the Certified Survey Map make a recommendation to the
Common Council to

Approve,

II Conditionally approve, or

Ill Deny the map and shall transmit the map along with its recommendations to the Common Council

4 Common Council Action. In cases where a certified survey map has been transmitted by the Plan Comm1ss1on to the
Common Council, the Common Council shall approve, approve cond1t1onally and thereby require resubm1ss1on of a
corrected Certified Survey Map, or reject such Certified Survey Map within ninety (90) days from the date of filing of the
map unless the time Is extended by agreement with the Subdrvder

a If the map Is approved, the Common Council shall cause the City Clerk to so certify on the face of the original map
and return the map to the Subd1v1der

b If the map Is re1ected, the reason shall be stated in the minutes of the meeting and a written statement forwarded
to the Subdivider

5 Natural Resource Protection Plan Required. For properties proposed to be drvded by certified survey map, and that
contain natural resource features as described in D1v1s10ns 15- 4 0100 and 15-11 0100 of this UDO, a Natural
Resource Protection Plan, as descnbed mn DIson 15-7 0200 of the UDO application manual , shall be submitted for
review by the Zoning Administrator and Plan Commisston

6 Deed Restrictions, Conservation Easements, and Landscape Bufferyard Easements. For properties proposed to
be dvded by Certified Survey Map and which contain natural resources required to be preserved or landscape
bufferyard easements under the provIsIons of this Ordinance, the Plan Comm1ss1on shall require that deed restnctIons
and/or conservation easements, and landscape bufferyard easements be filed with the Certified Survey Map or
submitted for review as a cond1bon of any approval thereof, in the manner and for the purposes as set forth under $ 15
7 0603D for final plats

7 Contract Required. For Certified Survey Maps reqwring the installation of public improvements, pnor to 1nstallat1on of
any required improvements and prior to approval of the Certified Survey Map, the Subdvder shall enter into a written
contract (Development Agreement) with the City of Franklin requmng the Subd1v1der to furnish and construct said

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Administrative Standards and Procedures
Page 22 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

improvements at Subd1v1der's sole cost and in accordance with plans and spec1ficat1ons and usual contract cond1t1ons,
which shall include provision for inspection of construction by the City of Franklin or its agent

8 Recordation.

a All improvement requirements, specified by all approving agencies in matters over which they have jurisdiction,
shall be met before recording the Certified Survey Map

b The Subd1v1der shall record the map with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds within twelve (12) months after
the date of its last approval and within th1rty-s1x (36) months after the date of its first approval

9 Copies. The Subd1v1der shall file at least thirty (30) copies of the Certified Survey Map and its accompanying Natural
Resource Protection Plan wth the City Clerk for distnbution to the Plan Commission, vanous City departments, and
other affected agencies for their files as set forth under§ 15-9 0309(B)

B Land Combination.

Application Transmittal to Plan Commission. The City Clerk shall receive the application for a Land Combination,
and after scheduling a review of the Application for a Land Combination Permit by the Plan Comm1ss1on, shall refer the
application and related data to the Zoning Administrator and City Engineer and other appropriate City departments for
their review, study, and recommendations to the Plan Comm1ss1on

2 Plan Commission Review and Approval.

a The Plan Comm1ss1on shall consider the Application for Land Combination Permit relative to City staff
recommendations, the lot area and other dimensional requirements of the zoning distnct(s) wthin which the
parcels are located, the City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan and planned land use districts for the
parcels, present use of the parcels and proposed use of the parcels, for the purpose to ensure that upon
combination, such properties shall comply wth the purposes and provisions of thus Ordinance

b The Plan Comm1ss1on shall consider these matters set forth under§ 2 above and shall take one of the following
actions wth the Land Combination application

Approve,

II Cond1t1onally approve, or

111 Deny the application

c Recordation. If approved, the City Clerk shall record the resolution with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds

C Subdivisions.

Sketch Plan Required. Pnor to the filing of an application a Preliminary Plat, the subd1v1der shall be required to file an
application for a "Sketch Plan Review" and to consult with all affected utilities, the City Planner, City Engineer, and
affected City Departments to obtain their advice and assistance This consultation is mandatory and Is Intended to
inform the Subd1v1der of the purpose and objectives of these regulations, the City of Franklin Comprehensive Master
Plan, Comprehensive Master Plan components, duly adopted plan implementation devices of the City of Franklin, the
ava1\ab11ity of sanitary sewer, public water supply, stormwater management facltues, and site grading requirements,
and to otherwise assist the Subdrvder mn planning the development In so dong, both the Subdivider and City of
Franklin may reach mutual conclusions regarding the general program and objectives of the proposed development
and its possible effects on the neighborhood and surrounding area The Subdvder wll gain a better understanding of
the subsequent required procedures

2 Sketch Plan Review. The Sketch Plan shall be prepared in accordance with Section##-#-## of the UDO application
requirements manual, and the Subd1v1der shall file at least twenty (20) copies of the Sketch Plan and the apphcat1on

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Administrative Standards and Procedures
Page 23 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

with the City Clerk, or designee together with all necessary fees Within thirty (30) days of the filing of a Sketch Plan
application wth the City Clerk, the City Planner, City Engineer, and all other affected City Departments shall revew the
Sketch Plan and conduct the Pre-Application Conference with the applicant In addition

a City Departments Review. The City Clerk shall within three (3) days transmit a copy of the Sketch Plan Review
Applications and Sketch Plan to all affected City Departments, the City Planner, the City Engineer, or Milwaukee
County and affected local utilities for their review and recommendations concerning matters wthin therr
jurisdiction

The recommendations of the City Departments, City Planner, City Engineer and Milwaukee County and of
affected local ut11it1es shall be transmitted to the Plan Comm1ss1on within twenty (20) days from the date the
Sketch Plan Review Applications Sketch Plan are filed

II The Sketch Plan Review Apphcat1ons and Sketch Plan shall then be reviewed by the City Planner, City
Engineer, and all other affected City Departments for general conformance with this Ordinance and all other
ordinances, rules, regulations, adopted regional or county development, City of Franklin Comprehensive
Master Plan or adopted components thereof which affect it

3 Preliminary Plat Review. Before submitting a Final Plat for approval, the Subdvder shall prepare a Preliminary Plat
and an application The Preliminary Plat shall be prepared n accordance wth Section #t####f of the UDO application
requirements manual, and the Subd1v1der shall file at least thirty-five (35) copies of the Preliminary Plat, Natural
Resource Protection Plan 1f required "Landscape Plan" for any landscape bufferyard easement areas and the
application with the City Clerk, or des1gnee together with all necessary fees at least twenty five (25) days pror to the
meeting of the Plan Commission at wch first consideration is desired Sad copes shall be in addit ion to those copes
which may be required or requested by Milwaukee County or other agencies In add1t1on

a Copies of Preliminary Plat, Natural Resource Protection Plan, Landscape Plan, and Application to be
Transmitted by City Clerk. The City Clerk shall, within two (2) normal workdays after filing, transmit copies as
required in the UDO apphcat1on requirements manual

4 Copies of Preliminary Plat to be Transmitted by City Clerk to Affected City Commissions or Departments. The
City Clerk shall transmit a copy of the Preliminary Plat to all affected City Commissions or Departments for therr revew
and recommendatons concerning matters within their junsdcton The recommendations of Cty Commissions,
Departments, City Planner, City Engineer, Milwaukee County, State agencies, and affected local utilities shall be
transmitted to the Plan Comm1ss1on within twenty (20) days from the date the plat is filed

5 Plan Commission Review and Recommendation.

a Plan Commission Review. The Preliminary Plat including Natural Resource Protection Plan and Landscape Plan
as applicable shall then be reviewed by the Plan Comm1ss1on for conformance with this Ordinance and all other
ordinances, rules, regulations, adopted regional or county development plans, City of Franklin Comprehensive
Master Plan or adopted components thereof which affect it

b Plan Commission Recommendation to Common Council. The Plan Comm1ss1on shall w1th1n sixty (60) days of
the date of the filing of a Preliminary Plat including Natural Resource Protection Plan and Landscape Plan as
applicable with the City Clerk or other Common Council authorized agent, recommend to the Common Council
approval, cond1ttonal approval, or denial of the Preliminary Plat and shall transmit the Preliminary Plat including
Natural Resource Protection Plan and Landscape Plan as applicable and apphcat1on, along with its
recommendation, to the Common Council

6 Preliminary Plat Approval

a Notification by Objecting Agencies. The objecting agencies shall, wthn twenty (20) days of the date of
receiving thenr copies of the Preliminary Plat, notify the Subduder and all other approving and objecting agencies
of any objections

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Admin1strat1ve Standards and Procedures
Page 24 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

Certification of No Objections Required. If there are no ob1ect1ons, they shall so certify on the face of the
copy of the plat and shall return that copy to the City Clerk

II Failure of Objecting Agency to Act on Preliminary Plat. If an obJecting agency fails to act w1th1n twenty
(20) days, tt shall be deemed to have no ob1ect1ons to the Plat

b Common Council Action. The Common Council within ninety (90) days of the date of fihng a Preliminary Plat
with the City Clerk shall approve, approve cond1t1onally, or deny such plat, unless the time 1s extended by
agreement wth the Subdrvder

Notification to Subdivider of Common Council Action. One (1) copy of the plat may thereupon be
returned to the Subdivider with the date and action endorsed thereon, and 1f approved cond1t1onally or
denied, a letter setting forth the cond1t1ons of approval or the reasons for denial shall accompany the plat

II Filing of Preliminary Plat in Common Council's Permanent File. One (1) copy each of the plat and letter
shall be placed in the Common Council's permanent file

c Failure of Common Council to Act. Failure of the Common Council to act within ninety (90) days of the date of
fihng, or within the time extended by agreement with the Subd1v1der, shall constitute an approval

d Approval or Conditional Approval of a Preliminary Plat. Approval or cond1t1onal approval of a Prehm1nary Plat
shall not constitute automatic approval of the Final Plat unless the Final Plat is submitted wthn thrty-s1x (36)
months after the last required approval of the Preliminary Plat or within an extended time frame specified by a
cond1t1onal approval and the Final Plat conforms substantially to the Preliminary Plat as approved, including any
cond1t1ons of that approval, and to City of Franklin plans and ordinances adopted as authorized by law

D Final Plat Review.

Designation of Approving Authorities. The Common Council, the town wherein the plat 1s located 1n the case of a
plat located wthin the extraterntonal plat jurisdiction of the Ctty of Franklin, and each adjoining city or village mn whose
extraterritorial plat approval unsdiction the subdrv1son les pursuant to§ 236 10(1)b) of the Wisconsin Statutes are
designated approving authorities

2 Designation of Objecting Agencies. The Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection, the
Wisconsin Department of Industry, Labor and Human Relations, Wisconsin Department of Transportation, and county
planning agency as defined by§ 236 02(a) of the Wisconsin Statutes shall be hereinafter referred to as ob1ect1ng
agences

3 Final Plat and Application Submittal. The Subd1v1der shall prepare a Final Plat and an apphcat1on 1n accordance with
Section##-#-## of the UDO application requirements manual and shall file an adequate number of copies of the Final
Plat and the application as set forth below·

a Submittal of Final Plat to the Wisconsin Department of Administration. Before any approvals of the Final Plat
are made, the Subd1v1der or Subd1v1der's agent shall submit the onginal Final Plat to the Wisconsin Department of
Administration

Two (2) copes to the Wisconsmn Department of Transportation if the subdvson abuts or adons a State
Trunk Highway or a connecting street,

II Two (2) copies to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources if shorelands are contained w1th1n the
proposed subdivision

b Submittal of Final Plat to the City Clerk. After approval by required State Departments, the Subdrvder shall file
at least thirty (30) copies of the Final Plat and an application with the City Clerk, or desgnees along with the
proper fees as estabhshed in the City of Frankhn fee schedule, and the receipt of the proper filing fees of each of
the other approving authontes and objecting agencies

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Administrative Standards and Procedures
Page 25 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

c City Clerk Transmittal of Final Plat. The City Clerk shall, within two working days after the filing by the
Subdivider, transmit wth a cover letter and copes of the Final Plat and application as specified mn the UDO
application requirements manual

4 Plan Commission Examination. The Plan Comm1ss1on shall examine the Final Plat as to its conformance with the
approved Preliminary Plat, any conditions of approval of the Prehminary Plat, this Ordinance, and all ordinances, rules,
regulations, adopted regional and County development, City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan (, or other local
comprehensive plans and adopted plan components which may affect the Final Plat

5 Partial Platting.

a Plat Phasing. The Final Plat may, 1f permitted by the Common Council, be platted as a Final Plat in phases with
each phase constituting only that portion of the approved Preliminary Plat which the Subdvder proposes to
record at that lime It 1s required that each such phase be platted as a Final Plat and be designated as a phase of
the approved Preliminary Plat

b Time Extension for Approval of a Final Plat for Portion of Preliminary Plat. Final Plat for only a portion of the
Preliminary Plat shall extend approval for the rernaining portion of the Prehrninary Plat for six (6) months from the
date of such Final Plat approval

6 Contract Required. Pnor to installation of any required improvements and pnor to approval of the Final Plat, the
Subd1v1der shall enter into a wntten contract (Development Agreement) with the City of Franklin requinng the
Subdvder to furnish and construct said improvements at Subdvder's sole cost and in accordance with plans and
specifications and usual contract conditions, which shall include provision for inspection of construction by the City of
Franklin or its agent The Subd1v1der may construct the project in such phases as the Common Council approves,
which approval may not be unreasonably withheld If the Subd1v1der's proJect will be constructed in phases, the amount
of any surety bond or other secunty required by the Common Council shall be limited to the phase of the project that Is
currently being constructed The Common Council may not require that the Subdvder provde any security for
improvements sooner than 1s reasonably necessary before the commencement of the installation of the improvements

E Final Plat Approval.

Objecting Agencies. The objecting agencies shall, wthin twenty (20) days of the date of recervng ther copes of the
Final Plat, notify the Subdrvder and all other approving authorities and objecting agencies of any objections

a If there are no obJecllons, they shall so certify on the face of the copy of the plat and shall return that copy to the
Plan Commission va the City Clerk

b If an obJecting agency fails to act within twenty (20) days, it shall be deemed to have no obJect1ons to the plat

2 Submission. If the Final Plat is not submitted within six (6) months of the required approval of the Preliminary Plat, the
approving authont1es may refuse to approve the Final Plat Extensions may be granted upon mutual agreement of all
approving authont1es

3 Plan Commission Recommendation to the Common Council. The Plan Comm1ss1on shall, within forty (40) days of
the date of filing of the Final Plat with the City Clerk or other Common Council authonzed agent, recommend approval,
conditional approval, or denal of the plat and shall transmit the Final Plat and application along wth its
recommendations to the Common Council

4 Approval or Rejection of Final Plat. The Common Council shall within sixty (60) days of the date of filing the ongmnal
Final Plat with the City Clerk approve or reject such Final Plat unless the lime 1s extended by agreement with the
Subdivider

a If the Final Plat 1s denied, the reasons shall be stated in the minutes of the meeting and a written statement of the
reasons forwarded to the Subd1v1der and surveyor

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Administrative Standards and Procedures
Page 26 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

b The Common Council may not inscribe its approval on the Final Plat unless the Department of Agriculture, Trade
and Consumer Protection has certified on the face of the Final Plat that the copies were forwarded to the objecting
agencies as required herein, the date thereof, and that no ob1ect1ons have been filed within twenty (20) days, or, if
filed, have been met.

c Failure of the Common Council to act within sixty (60) days, the time having not been extended and no unsatisfied
objections havng been filed, the Final Plat shall be deemed approved

d The Planning Manager shall provide the Common Council with his or her conclusions as to whether the final plat
conforms substantially to the preliminary plat and with his or her recommendation shall be made a part of the
record of the proceeding at which the final plat 1s being considered and are not required to be submitted 1n writing

5 Recordation.

a After the Final Plat has been approved by the Common Council and improvements as shall be required by the
City to be installed or a contract and sureties ensuring their installation filed, the City Clerk shall cause the
certificate inscribed upon the Final Plat attesting to such approval to be duly executed and the plat returned to the
Subdivider for recording wth the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds

b The Register of Deeds cannot record the Final Plat unless 1t 1s offered within twelve (12) months from date of last
approval or thirty (36) months from first approval

6 Copies of the Recorded Final Plat. The Subd1v1der shall file at least ten (10) copies of the recorded Final Plat with
the City Clerk and copies, as necessary, to other affected agencies for their files

F Plats Within the Extraterritorial Plat Approval Jurisdiction. When the land to be subd1v1ded hes w1th1n one and one-half
(1 ½) miles of the corporate hm1ts of a fourth-class city or village or within three (3) miles of the corporate hm1ts of a first,
second, or third class city, the Subd1v1der shall proceed as specified mn $$ 15-9 0301 through 15-9 0306 except

Transmittal Responsibility. The City Clerk to whom the Certified Survey Map, Subdrvs1on Plat, or Condomnum Is
first submitted shall be responsible for transmitting copies of the Certified Survey Map, Subdivision Plat, or
Condominium to designated objecting agencies The Subdvder or Condomnum Developer (as applicable) shall
specify in the Subdivider's application to whom the original application was submitted

2 Improvement and Design Requirements. If the extraterntorial Certified Survey Map, Subd1v1s1on Plat, or
Condominium contains lands located within a City of Franklin adopted sanitary sewer service area, the Subdrder or
Condom1n1um Developer (as applicable) shall comply with all of the improvement requirements of D1v1s1on 15-8 0100 of
thus Ordnance and wth all of the design requirements of Dvson 15-5 0100 of thus Ordnance

3 Park Dedication and Public Site Fees. In extraterntonal plat approval 1unsd1ction areas of the City of Franklin, the
subdder or condominium developer shall not be required to dedicate park and open space land to the City of Franklin
or be required to pay a pubhc site fee or other development impact fees to the City of Franklin

G Replat. Except as provided in§ 70 27(1) of the Wisconsin Statutes, when 1t ts proposed to replat a recorded subdvson, or
part thereof, to change the boundaries of a recorded subd1v1s1on, or part thereof, the Subdrder or person wshing to replat
shall vacate or alter the recorded plat as provided mn $ 236 40 through 236 44 of the Wisconsin Statutes The Subd1v1der, or
person wishing to replat, shall then proceed as specified mn $ 15-9 0301 through 15-9 0306 of this Ordinance

15-9-12. Violations, Penalties, and Remedies

A Zoning Violations. Unlawful to Use or Improve Any Structure or Land, or to Use Water or Air in Violation of Any Prov1s1ons
of This Ordinance It shall be unlawful to use or improve any structure or land, or to use water or air in v1olat1on of any
provisions of this Ordinance In case of volation, the Common Council, the Zoning Administrator, the City Attorney, the Plan
Comm1ss1on or any property owner who would be specifically damaged by such v1olat1on, may institute appropriate action or
proceeding to en1oin a v1olat1on of this Ordinance or cause a structure to be vacated or removed

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Administrative Standards and Procedures
Page 27 of 28



DRAFT FOR REVIEW ONLY

B Structure, Fill, or Development Placed or Maintained Within Any Floodplain Area in Violation of this Ordinance.
Every structure, fill, or development placed or maintained within any floodplain area in violation of this Ordnance is hereby
declared a public nuisance and the creation thereof may be enJrnned and maintenance thereof may be abated by action of
SUit of the State, the County, the City or any citizen thereof

C Actions and Proceedings to Enjoin Violations. The City of Franklin may institute appropriate action or proceedings to
en)on violations of thus Ordnance or the applicable Wisconsin Statutes or Wisconsin Administrative Code

D Land Division Violations.

Unlawful to Violate Ordinance Provisions. It shall be unlawful to build upon, d1v1de, convey, record or place
monuments on any land in violation of this Ordinance or the Wisconsin Statutes, and no person firm, or corporation
shall be issued a Building Permit by the City of Franklin authonzmg the building on, or improvement of, any
Subdivision, Certified Survey Map, Condominum, or replat wthin the junsdiction of this Ordinance not of record as of
the effective date of this Ordinance until the prov1s1ons and requirements of this Ordinance have been fully met

2 Actions and Proceedings to Enjoin Violations. The City of Franklin may institute appropriate action or proceedings
to enjoin volations of thus Ordnance or the applcable Wisconsin Statutes or Wisconsin Administrative Code

E Penalties and Remedies.

Double Fee. A double fee shall be charged by the Zoning Administrator 1f work 1s started before a permit 1s applied for
and issued Such double fee shall not release the applicant from full compliance with this Ordinance nor from
prosecution for volation of thus Ordnance

2 Remedial Action. Whenever an order of the Zoning Administrator has not been complied with w1th1n thirty (30) days
after written notice has been mailed to the owner, resident agent, or occupant of the premises, the Common Council,
the Zoning Administrator, the Director of Inspection Services, or the City Attorney may institute appropriate legal action
or proceedings to proh1b1t such owner, agent, or occupant from using such structure, land, or water

3 Forfeiture and Imprisonment. Any person, firm, or corporation who violates or fails to comply with the prov1s1ons of
this Ordinance shall, upon conv1ct1on thereof, in addition to all other remedies set forth under this Ordinance, be
subject to the penalty provisions set forth under§ 31 04 of the Municipal Code, as amended

4 Separate Offense. Each day a violation exists or continues shall constitute a separate offense

5 Injunctive Relief. In add1t1on to the above-described fines, the Common Council or its agent shall have the power to
Institute appropnate action for Injunctive relief to prevent persons, firms, or corporations from acting in volation of the
provision of thus Ordnance

6 Violations and Concomitant Penalties Relating to Land Division. Violations and concomitant penalties shall
include

a Improper Recordation. Recordation improperly made carries penalties as provided in § 236 30 of the Wisconsin
Statutes

b Conveyance of Lots in Unrecorded Plats. Conveyance of lots in unrecorded plats carries penalties as provided
for in § 236 31of the Wisconsin Statutes

c Monuments Disturbed or Not Placed Monuments disturbed or not placed carries penalties as provided for in §
236 32 of the Wisconsin Statutes

City of Franklin
Unified Development Ordinance Update

Article 9 Admin1strat1ve Standards and Procedures
Page 28 of 28



City of Franklin

Proposed Zoning
c:,,m
,,,.Franklin

WISCONSIN

Proposed Zoning

El A- Agricultural

A-P - Prime Agricultural

R-SE - Suburban/Estate Residence
■ R-SR - Suburban Residence
II R-M- Multiple-Unit Residence
ii R-V- Village Residence

B-N- Neighborhood Business

■ B-G - General Business
I::'! B-R - Regional Business

E:] B-MU - South 27th Street Mixed-Use
IEE] B-P- Business Park

RI B-SM- Saint Martin's Road Historic Business
Ill R-C - Conservation Residence
■ I - Insitutional

Iles
1

■ LI - Limited Industrial
ID P - Park and Open Space

PDL- Planned Development Legacy
GFP- General Floodplain
FF - Floodfringe

A FW- FIoodway
L- Land Fill

0 0.25 0.5



APPROVAL COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MTG. DATE
February 6, 2023

Reports &
Recommendations

An Ordinance to Repeal Chapter 165 of the Municipal Code and ITEM NO.
to Repeal and Recreate Chapter 129 of the Municipal Code and "-

to Rename Chapter 129 From "Filling and Grading" to l-),
"Land Disturbing Construction Activities"

BACKGROUND
This topic was presented at the November 1, 2022 Common Council meeting (G.11). The topic
was tabled to the February 6, 2023 Committee of the Whole.

The Engineering Department has discussed updating the permit and process for land disturbing
construction activities. This would include significant revisions to Municipal Code Chapter 129
"Filling and Grading" and Chapter 165 "Land Disturbances". These two chapters are in need of
revisions to become more consistent with the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), Wisconsin
Administrative Code, and our permitting related to land disturbing construction activities.
Attached is Chapter 165 to be repealed and the proposed version of Chapter 129 with revisions
shown.

Also attached are the current "fill/soils disturbing permit" and the proposed "construction site
erosion control permit". These are for reference only as Common Council did not approve the
current permit and does not approve content and format of any other permit application.

ANALYSIS
The current "Fill/Soils Disturbing Permit Application" is not directly referenced in Municipal
Code Chapter 129, Chapter 165, or the UDO. The intent of the proposed changes is to attain
consistency and clarity throughout the Municipal Code, UDO, and permitting related to land
disturbing construction activities. This change will allow for City Staff to more easily review,
approve, process, and administer permit requirements. Additionally, these revisions are consistent
with the requirements of the City's Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) permit with
the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) and Wisconsin Administrative Codes.

A summary of the proposed changes are as follows:
1. Repeal Chapter 165. The current chapter was put in place in 1997 and is not in line with

the UDO or permitting related to land disturbances. The proposed repeal and recreation of
Chapter 129 and current UDO render Chapter 165 ineffective. There are no direct
references in the Municipal Code or UDO to Chapter 165.

2. Repeal and Recreate Chapter 129 and rename Chapter 129. The current chapter title does
not align with the existing or proposed permit and does not encompass other land disturbing
construction activities that trigger erosion control requirements.

Land disturbing construction activity defined by Wisconsin Administrative Code NR 151
- "Any man-made alteration ofthe land surface resulting in a change in the topography or
existing vegetative or non-vegetative soil cover that may result in storm water runoff and
lead to increased soil erosion and movement ofsediment into waters ofthe state. Land
disturbing construction activity includes clearing and grubbing, demolition, excavating,
pit trench dewatering, filling and grading activities. "

3. Expanding the definitions of Chapter 129 to better align with the UDO and Wisconsin
Department of Natural Resources relating to construction site erosion control.

4. The City would be allowed to issue verbal stop work orders, citations, and revoke a permit
for non-compliance.



5. Updated erosion and sediment control plan requirements in Chapter 129. The proposed
changes will require a more comprehensive erosion and sediment control plan for
applicable sites. This references what is currently in the UDO and required by WDNR.

6. Revise permit fee and class schedule for easier administration and includsion of a
maximum permit fee. Permit fees will not increase.

a. Class 1 would remain ¼ to ½ acre area of disturbance, $50.
b. Class 2 would remain ½ to 2 acre area of disturbance, $100.
c. Class 3 would rmain 2+ acres area of disturbance, $250. Plus additional $5 per

1,000 square feet of disturbance beyond 2 acres. Maximum permit fee of $3,000.

7. Responsibility of the applicant to pay for the costs of construction site review, inspection,
and enforcement charges in Chapter 129 and acknowledgement and agreement of these
charges in the proposed construction site erosion control permit application.

a. The current (and historical) practice by the City is for consulting firms to perform
erosion control inspections on City permitted construction sites. When the
Engineering Department receives invoices from these firms for inspections, the
City pays the invoices and bills back the developer/applicant the cost of the invoice
plus 5% for administration and overhead.

b. Currently, there is no clear indication within the existing permit that the charges for
these inspections are the responsibility of the permittee, it is only relayed to the
developer/applicant during the review process or if the development is part of a
development agreement with public infrastructure.

c. The proposed version of the permit has a section to outline the inspection
requirements and acknowledgement of the applicant's responsibility for inspection
charges. The potential charges for inspection are summarized and current hourly
rates are provided so that the applicant can estimate an approximate total for the
charges over the life of the permit.

i. The City's MS4 requires the City to inspect permitted construction sites for
erosion control at minimum once per month. Historically the City
consultants have performed these inspections weekly. The proposed permit
application outlines the minimum frequency of inspection by the City, but
also notes that site conditions may require more frequent inspections.

d. Staff reached out to other municipalities and verified that a majority charge for this
inspection work using a variety of methods.

e. Staff explored using an escrow deposit at the time of application for inspection
charges, but after discussions with several developers, they confirmed that the
invoicing method is the preferred way to process these charges so they can review
and track the charges.

f. Not all permitted sites will include review, inspection, and enforcement charges.
These charges typically come with larger developments that require storm water
management plans and significant land disturbance. In general this would be sites
adding ½ acre or more of impervious surface and/or disturbing 1 or more acre.

It should be noted that Staff frequently fields questions from contractors and developers asking if
the City has an erosion control permit as the current "fill/soils disturbing permit" is not clear in
this regard when searching the City website or Municipal Code.

Similarly, the Engineering Department utilities consultant engineering services for storm water
management plan review for developments. The charges for those reviews are also billed back to
the developer/applicant in a similar process to the inspection charges. There is no formal
application for engineering and storm water management plan review at this time and the
responsibility for review charges is only relayed to the developer/applicant during pre-application
meetings. To allow for a formal acknowledgement of these review charges, Engineering Staff has
created an engineering and storm water management plan (SWMP) review application form.
There is no base application fee for the review application, however it allows for a formal
acknowledgement and agreement that the developer/applicant is responsible for any review



charges (plus 5 percent for administration and overhead). The application for engineering and
storm water management plan review is attached for reference.

OPTIONS
Approve or Modify Ordinance as proposed by Staff.

FISCAL NOTE
Consultant invoices are first paid for by the City (01.0321.5216) and the City then bills back the
developer/applicant the invoice cost plus 5% (01.0000.4479).

Permit application base fees and classes will remain unchanged, the additional fee calculation is
being modified and a maximum permit fee is being proposed.

Rates of compensation for inspection services are common for all firms and revised every 2 years.

Engineering: TAB



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2023---

ORDINANCE TO REPEAL CHAPTER 165 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE AND TO
REPEAL AND RECREATE CHAPTER 129 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE AND TO

RENAME CHAPTER 129 FROM "FILLING AND GRADING" TO
"LAND DISTURBING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES"

WHEREAS, the City wishes to update the permit and process for land disturbing construction
activities; and

WHEREAS, Staff has recommended to the Common Council to repeal Franklin Municipal
Code Chapter 165 Land Disturbances; and

WHEREAS, Staff has recommended to the Common Council the adoption of a significant
rewrite ofFranklin Municipal Code Chapter 129 Filling and Grading, including the title ofthe chapter;
and

WHEREAS, among many changes, the significant changes provide for: uniformity between
the Municipal Code, the Unified Development Ordinance, the Wisconsin Administrative Code and
City permit applications; applicant responsibility for the cost of construction site inspection, review,
and enforcement charges; and the issuance of stop work orders, citations, and revoking a permit for
non-compliance; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the recommendation and having
determined same to be reasonable and in the public interest.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City ofFranklin, Wisconsin, do
hereby ordain as follows:

SECTION 1:

SECTION 2:

SECTION 3:

Chapter 165 "Land Disturbances" ofthe Municipal Code of the City ofFranklin,
Wisconsin, is hereby repealed

Chapter 129 "Filling and Grading" of the Municipal Code of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby is renamed "Land Disturbing Construction
Activities"

Chapter 129 ofthe Municipal Code ofthe City ofFranklin, Wisconsin, is hereby
repealed and recreated to read as follows:

Chapter 129
Land Disturbing Construction Activities

§129-1 Land disturbing construction activities.
§129-2 Construction site erosion control permit.
§129-3 Definitions.
§129-4 Land disturbing construction activity regulations.
§129-5 Inspector; powers and duties.



ORDINANCE NO. 2023
Page 2

$129-6 Persons liable.
129-7 Public nuisance.
129-8 Special permit; emergency.
$129-9 Intent and purpose.
$129-10 Violations and penalties.

§129-1 Land disturbing construction activities.
A permit is required. No person or entity shall conduct land disturbing construction activities upon
any lot, tract or parcel of land unless the person or entity shall first obtain a construction site erosion
control permit pursuant to $129-2 hereof and post the same upon the premises in the manner provided
for the posting of a building permit as set forth in Chapter 92, Building Construction.

§129-2 Construction site erosion control permit.
A. Applicability and Jurisdiction. This section applies to the sites of any land disturbing

construction activities, as provided in $15-8.0302 of the Unified Development Ordinance
(UDO).

B. Application; revocation. A construction site erosion control permit shall be issued by the City
Engineer upon application being made and filed with him or her upon payment of the permit
fee as set forth herein. Such application shall be signed by the owner ofthe premises involved,
together with the person or entity applying for the permit, if the person or entity be other than
the owner. It shall contain the location ofthe premises and an accurate description of the same
and include an estimate of the number of cubic yards or acreage of land area to be disturbed.
The permit shall be for a period of one year and subject to renewal each successive year upon
reapplication.

1. The City Engineer or designee may issue a stop-work order verbally or in writing to
the applicant and may post a stop-work order on all building, construction, land
disturbing or land development activities if:

a. Any land disturbing activity regulated under this chapter is being undertaken
without a permit; or

b. The control plan is not being implemented in a good faith manner; or
c. The conditions of the permit are not being met.

2. If the responsible party or any other person or entity performing or suffering the activity
does not cease the activity or comply with the control plan or permit conditions
forthwith, the City Engineer or designee may revoke the permit.

3. If the landowner or land user or any other person or entity performing or suffering the
activity, where no permit has been issued, does not cease the activity forthwith, the City
Engineer or designee may request the City Attorney to obtain a cease and desist order.

4. In addition to the foregoing provisions of this section, this subsection may be enforced
by way of injunction, the imposition of forfeitures and other available relief pursuant
to $15-9.0500 of the UDO and the undertaking by the City to cure any defects or
complete any plans or measures, with the costs thereof to be assessed against the
property owner and entered upon the tax roll pursuant to the procedures for a special
charge under Wis. Stat. § 66.0627. It shall not be necessary to prosecute for forfeiture
or a cease and desist order before resorting to injunctional proceedings. Any violation
of this subsection is hereby declared to be a public nuisance.



ORDINANCE NO. 2023
Page 3

5. In addition to the foregoing provisions ofthis section, any person who shall violate any
provision ofthis Chapter shall be subject to a penalty as provided in Chapter 1, General
Provisions, §1-19.

C. Permit fee schedule and applicable charges.
1. Class 1: land disturbing construction activities upon a site of 1/4 acre up to 1/2 acre:

$50.00.
2. Class 2: land disturbing construction activities upon a site of 1/2 acre up to2 acres, any

land disturbing construction activity with Supporting or Adjoining Natural Resource
Features, and any Adverse Drainage Impacting land disturbing construction activity:
$100.00.

3. Class 3: land disturbing construction activities upon a site of 2 or more acres and/or:
$250.00, plus an additional $5.00 for each 1,000 square feet disturbed or portion thereof
in addition to the base 2 acres.

4. Surety Bond. As a condition of approval and issuance of the permit, the City Engineer
or designee may require the applicant to deposit a surety bond or irrevocable letter of
credit to guarantee a good faith execution ofthe approved erosion control plan and any
permit conditions.

5. Charges for costs of construction site inspection, review, and enforcement. As a
condition of approval and issuance of the permit, the City Engineer or designee may
require construction site inspection, review, and enforcement by a City representative
or other personnel on behalf of the City. If required by the City Engineer or designee,
the applicant shall be responsible for any and all charges related to the costs of
inspection, review, and enforcement of the construction site plus five (5) percent for
administration and overhead. These inspection, review, and enforcement charges are
in addition to any permit fees or surety that may be required. City completed
construction site erosion control inspections shall not be used as the applicant's
inspections as required under Franklin Municipal Code $129, UDO $15- 8.0300, and/or
Wis. Stat. § 216.46.

D. Erosion and sediment control plan, statement, and amendments.
This section is also regulated by and subject to the Unified Development Ordinance, including,
but not limited to $15-8.0300 of the UDO and more specifically, $15-8.0307, Erosion and
Sediment Control Plan, Statement, and Amendments.

$129-3 Definitions.
For the purpose of this Chapter, the following words and phrases are defined and shall be construed
to mean, unless the context in which they are used clearly indicates an intent to the contrary, as
follows:

ADVERSE DRAINAGE IMPACTING
Construction sites of any size that, in the opinion of the City Engineer or designee, are likely
to result in runoff that exceeds the safe capacity of the existing drainage facilities or receiving
body of water, that causes undue channel erosion, that increases water pollution by scouring
or the transportation of particulate matter or that endangers property or public safety.



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-
Page 4

BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICE or BMP
Structural or non-structural measures, practices, techniques or devices employed to avoid or
minimize soil, sediment or pollutants carried in runoff to waters of the State.

CEASE AND DESIST ORDER
A court-issued order to halt land disturbing construction activity that is being conducted
without the required permit.

CONSTRUCTION SITE
An area upon which one or more land disturbing construction activities occur, including areas
that are part of a larger common plan of development or sale where multiple separate and
distinct land disturbing construction activities may be taking place at different times on
different schedules but under one plan.

CONSTRUCTION SITE EROSION CONTROL PERMIT
A written authorization made by the City ofFranklin to the applicant to conduct land disturbing
construction activity or to discharge post-construction runoff to waters of the State.

CONTROL PLAN
Erosion control and sediment control plan for the construction site.

EROSION
The detachment and movement of soil, sediment or rock fragments by water, wind, ice, or
gravity.

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN
A comprehensive plan developed to address pollution caused by erosion and sedimentation of
soil particles or rock fragments during construction.

FILL
Earth, clay, soil, ground, or any mixture or combination of the foregoing. Stones, rocks or
broken concrete, not exceeding 18 inches in diameter, need not be removed from fill, if not
constituting more than 5% of the individual load. At no time shall stones, rocks, or broken
concrete be used in any degree of concentration as fill, except as aforesaid. No
asphalt/bituminous products are allowed as fill material. Unusable topsoil from grubbing
operation(s) cannot be used for fill.

HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE
Any substance or combination of substances including any waste of a solid, semisolid, liquid
or gaseous form which may cause or significantly contribute to an increase in mortality or an
increase in serious irreversible or incapacitating reversible illness or which may pose a
substantial present or potential hazard to human health or the environment because of its
quantity, concentration or physical, chemical or infectious characteristics. This term includes,
but is not limited to, substances which are toxic, corrosive, flammable, irritants, strong
sensitizers or explosives as determined by the Wisconsin Department ofNatural Resources.



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-
Page 5

INFLAMMABLE AND COMBUSTIBLE MATERIALS
Includes oils and oil lights, sweepings from garage floors, barrels, boxes or other containers
containing oil or other similar liquids, rags, clothes, paper, shavings, paper or cardboard boxes
or cartons, grease, paints, varnish or other similar substances, any of which are likely to be
readily inflammable or combustible.

INSPECTOR
The City Engineer or designee. The references to the Building Inspector in this chapter are
separate and distinct from the references to "Inspector" as provided herein.

LAND DISTURBING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY
Any man-made alteration ofthe land surface resulting in a change in the topography or existing
vegetative or non-vegetative soil cover that may result in storm water runoff and lead to
increased soil erosion and movement of sediment into waters of the State. Land disturbing
construction activity includes clearing and grubbing, demolition, excavating, pit trench
dewatering, filling and grading activities.

LANDOWNER
Any person or entity holding fee title, an easement, or other interest in property, which allows
the person or entity to undertake cropping, livestock management, land disturbing construction
activity, or maintenance of storm water BMPs on the property.

PERFORMANCE STANDARD
A narrative or measurable number specifying the minimum acceptable outcome for a facility
or practice.

PERSON
Includes any natural person, firm, corporation or partnership.

POLLUTANT
Has the meaning given in Wis. Stat. § 283.01(13).

POLLUTION
Has the meaning given in Wis. Stat.§ 281.01(10).

RESPONSIBLE PARTY
Any person or entity holding fee title to the property or performing services required to meet
the performance standards of this chapter through a contract or other agreement or otherwise.

RUNOFF
Storm water or precipitation including rain, snow or ice melt or similar water that moves on
the land surface via sheet or channelized flow.

SEDIMENT
Settleable solid material that is transported by runoff, suspended within runoff or deposited by
runoff away from its original location.



ORDINANCE NO. 2023
Page 6

SITE
The entire area included in the legal description of the land on which the land disturbing
construction activity is proposed in the permit application or is occurring without a permit
therefore.

STOP WORK ORDER
An order issued by the City ofFranklin, which requires that all construction activity on the site
be stopped.

SUPPORTING OR ADJOINING NATURAL RESOURCE FEATURES
Land disturbing construction activities which are within 100 feet of any natural resource
feature listed in $15-8.0300, Table 4.0100.

TECHNICAL STANDARD
A document that specifies design, predicted performance, and operation and maintenance
specifications for a material, device, or method.

WATERS OF THE STATE
Has the meaning given in Wis. Stat.§ 281.01(18).

$129-4 Land disturbing construction activity regulations.
A. Every person who shall conduct land disturbing construction activities upon any lot, tract

or parcel of land shall do so as evenly as possible, and at the end of such activities shall
level and grade the surface and shall see to it that the top thereof shall be of soil, free from
broken concrete and relatively free from gravel, and that the upper four inches thereof shall
be of soil suitable for growing grass. The person shall keep the surface of such land
disturbing construction activities free from dust at all times during the filling operations
and thereafter.

B. Land disturbing construction activities shall be operated and maintained in a safe and
sanitary manner, rodent free, with no emission ofdust or dirt beyond its site boundary lines.

C. All materials delivered to the construction site shall be deposited in a manner to prevent
erosion into any watercourses, roadside ditches or onto adjoining properties.

D. All construction operations shall be confined to the hours of7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. daily
and 7:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. on Saturdays, unless otherwise shown and permitted on the
application. No such activity shall be permitted on Sundays.

E. No permittee hereunder shall operate equipment or otherwise cause noise which interferes
with nearby property owners in the peaceable enjoyment of their properties. The permittee
shall maintain roadways to and across the site in a smooth condition to minimize noise of
delivery vehicles.

F. Roadways across the construction site shall be treated to prevent dust nuisances. Roadways
to the construction site shall be kept free of sediment, debris, or any other construction
materials. The permittee shall perform street sweeping at the permittee' s expense upon the
order of the City Engineer. At no point shall construction materials be stored in public
right-of-way.

G. No natural drainageways or swales shall be blocked, and construction activities shall be
performed in a manner to prevent formation ofwater nuisances or insect-breeding ponds.



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-
Page 7

H. Should any construction material erode into any watercourse or onto any adjoining
property, the permittee shall remove such material at the permittee' s expense upon the
order of the City Engineer.

I. Fencing or suitable visual screen as required and/or approved by the City Engineer or
designee shall be provided on all sides of the site, unless otherwise required or waived by
the City Plan Commission upon an application for a site plan approval prior to any land
disturbing construction activities on the site.

J. No permittee hereunder nor the owner of the property shall deny the City Engineer,
Building Inspector, Police Officer or other authorized officer or employee of the City the
right of entry on the person's or entity's property during normal business hours for the
purpose of inspection thereof or for the purpose of enforcing or carrying out the provisions
of this Chapter.

K. No permittee shall fail to obey a stop order or revocation order issued by the City Engineer,
Building Inspector or authorized City officer for a violation of this Chapter. The permittee
may appeal such stop order or revocation order to the City Common Council, such appeal
to be filed, in writing, with the City Clerk within five days of service of the order. If no
appeal is taken within such time, the order shall be final. Such appeal shall be heard within
five days, unless a quorum of the Common Council members is not available, and then at
such later time as a quorum is reasonably available, in public, at which time the permittee
may be represented by legal counsel. The City Common Council may affirm, reverse or
modify the order appealed from and shall do so within five days of the hearing. The
permittee shall not operate under the permit until the appeal is decided.

L. For permits of 500 cubic yards or more, the permittee shall be required to compact all fill
in layers to achieve a density of 3,000 pounds per square foot or to a density approved by
the City Engineer or designee to support the final use of the lands. The permittee shall
make an effort to maintain the density through proper drainage and ground cover and shall
be responsible to maintain the approved density until the final completion of the land
disturbing construction activities. The permittee shall provide professional geo-physical
technician daily inspection, or as established by the City Engineer or designee, with
sufficient density testing such that the area can be certified by a geo-physical engineer as
meeting the established density. Weekly reports shall be submitted to the City Engineer or
designee for review and approval. Upon completion of the filling operation, the permittee
shall submit a full geo-physical report signed and stamped by said engineer.

M. If any person fails to complete or correct the person's land disturbing construction activities
in accordance with the terms of the person's permit and the provisions of this Chapter, the
City Engineer shall notify the permittee that the City Common Council will hold a hearing
on his or her recommendation that the City complete or correct such work, either by the
City staff or by contract, and assess the reasonable cost thereof against the property on
which located. Notice shall be given by personal service or certified mail at least seven
days prior to the hearing. The permittee shall have the right to be heard and to be
represented by legal counsel. The City Common Council by resolution may order the work
completed or corrected and levy a special charge for the reasonable cost thereof, which
shall be a lien on the property, collected as other special charges. The permittee may appeal
to the Circuit Court within 20 days after a copy of the final resolution is served upon the
permittee by personal service or certified mail. If no appeal is taken within such time, the
special charge shall be final.



ORDINANCE NO. 2023
Page 8

N. The Common Council may, in an individual case, upon recommendation by the Inspector,
as a condition to issuance of a construction site erosion control permit or at any time as a
condition for the continuance of such permit, require compliance by the permittee with any
or all of the regulations set forth in this section.

0. Land disturbing construction activities are also regulated by and subject to the Unified
Development Ordinance, including, but not limited to §15-8.0300 and more specifically,
$15-8.0305, Performance Standards.

$129-5 Inspector; powers and duties.
A. There is hereby created the position of Inspector, who shall have such power, authority and

duties concerning the inspection, supervision and control of land disturbing construction
activities within the City as hereinafter set forth.

B. Such Inspector shall have complete charge and supervision over the regulation and operation
of land disturbing construction activities. He or she shall have at all times full power and
authority to require complete compliance with this chapter and with all other rules, regulations
and orders for the regulation of land disturbing construction activities and for the enforcement
of this chapter, rules, regulations and orders. He or she shall have full power and authority to
require of any person engaged in land disturbing construction activities, the person's agent,
servants or employees, compliance in all respects with the terms and provisions of this Chapter
and all other rules and regulations concerning land disturbing construction activities within the
City.

C. Should the Inspector find that any person engaged in land disturbing construction activities is
failing to conform to the provisions of this Chapter or other rules, regulations or orders, he or
she may require that the person discontinue operations immediately and until such time as the
person engaged in land disturbing construction activities thereofmay conform to this Chapter,
rules, regulations or orders. Should the operator, the operator's servants, agents or employees
or any other person, bring upon any such land materials which are prohibited by the terms and
provisions of this Chapter, the Inspector shall refuse to permit such materials to be unloaded.
He or she shall, in the event that any portion or all of such materials shall have been unloaded,
cause the operator or the person bringing such materials upon such land to reload the same and
remove them from the premises.

D. The Inspector shall be the representative of the City at any land disturbing construction activity
site within the City. He or she may require the ceasing of operations and the discontinuing of
the operations until such time as there may be proper compliance with this Chapter and such
other rules, regulations and orders as may be necessary in the control, supervision and
regulation of land disturbing construction activities.

$129-6 Persons liable.
The owner, lessee or any other person having possession and control over any land disturbing
construction activities, be it public or private under, the terms ofthis Chapter, shall be responsible for
the actions of the person's agents, servants or employees to the same extent as though they were the
acts of such principal, and such owner, lessee or other person shall be subject to arrest for violation
of the provisions ofthis Chapter by any ofthe person's agents, servants or employees, and any penalty
imposed under the terms of this Chapter may be imposed upon the principal and/or upon the agents,
servants or employees of either or both of them.



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-
Page 9

$129-7 Public nuisance.
The depositing on any land ofhazardous, flammable and/or combustible materials and the depositing
of fly ash, foundry refuse and other similar materials of such texture or material that they will be
capable of being airborne and the permitting of such depositing shall be and is hereby declared to be
a public nuisance.

§129-8 Special permit; emergency.
The Common Council may, however, in any emergency to be determined by it involving the
abatement of a nuisance or in the protection ofthe public health, welfare or safety, permit the dumping
of suitable materials even though prohibited by the terms of this Chapter, provided that, in each
instance, application therefor shall be made in writing to the Common Council. It shall determine the
type of materials to be dumped, the circumstances surrounding the issuance of the permit, the
justification therefore and the manner in which such operations may be performed. Any permit issued
pursuant to such approval shall be in the nature of a special permit, separated and apart from any other
permit issued to the applicant and from any permit for the operation of a land disturbing construction
operation upon the same premises, and shall specifically indicate the type ofmaterials to be dumped,
the manner in which the same are to be dumped and shall contain such other specifications and
requirements as the Common Council may determine to be necessary and desirable.

§129-9 Intent and purpose.
It is specifically determined by the Common Council that it is the intent and purpose of this Chapter
to regulate land disturbing construction activities within the City limits on a basis whereby such
operation may be readily controlled, supervised and regulated in the protection of the public health,
welfare and safety.

§129-10 Violations and penalties.
A. Any person in violation of this Chapter shall be liable to the City and to any individual whose

person or property was damaged by such violation for any and all expenses incurred by the
City and loss or damage sustained by the City by reason of such violation.

B. In addition to the suspension or revocation ofany license or permit granted under this Chapter,
any person who shall violate any provision of this Chapter shall be subject to a penalty as
provided in Chapter 1, General Provisions, §1-19.

SECTION 4:

SECTION 5:

SECTION 6:

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain in full force and
effect.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in contravention to this Ordinance are
hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and
publication.



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-
Page 10

Introduced at a regular meeting ofthe Common Council of the City ofFranklin on the
day of , 2023, by Alderman _

Passed and adopted by the Common Council on the day of
2023.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



$ 129-1Land disturbing construction activities.
_A permit is required. No person or entity shall conduct land disturbing construction
activities upon any lot, tract or parcel ofland unless the person or entity shall first obtain
a construction site erosion control permit pursuant to § 129-2 hereofand post the same
upon the premises in the manner provided for the posting of a building permit as set
forth in Chapter 92, Building Construction.

§ 129-2 Construction site erosion control permit.
A. Applicability and Jurisdiction. This section applies to the sites ofany land disturbing
construction activities, as provided in § 15-8.0300 of the Unified Development
Ordinance (UDO).

B. Application; revocation. A construction site erosion control permit shall be issued
by the City Engineer upon application being made and filed with him or her upon
payment of the permit fee as set forth herein. Such application shall be signed by the
owner of the premises involved, together with the person or entity applying for the
permit, if the person or entity be other than the owner. It shall contain the location of
the premises and an accurate description of the same and include an estimate of the
number of cubic yards or acreage of land area to be disturbed. The permit shall be for
a period of one year and subject to renewal each successive year upon reapplication.

1. The City Engineer or designee may issue a stop-work order verbally or in
writing to the applicant and may post a stop-work order on all building,
construction, land disturbing, or land development activities if:

a. Any land disturbing activity regulated under this chapter is being
undertaken without a permit; or
b. The control plan is not being implemented in a good faith manner; or
c. The conditions of the permit are not being met.

2. If the responsible party or any other person or entity performing or suffering
the activity does not cease the activity or comply with the control plan or permit
conditions forthwith, the City Engineer or designee may revoke the permit.
3. If the landowner or land user or any other person or entity performing or
suffering the activity, where no permit has been issued, does not cease the
activity forthwith, the City Engineer or designee may request the City Attorney
to obtain a cease and desist order.
4. In addition to the foregoing provisions ofthis section, this subsection may be
enforced by way of injunction, the imposition of forfeitures and other available
relief pursuant to § 15-9.0500 of the UDO and the undertaking by the City to



cure any defects or complete any plans or measures, with the costs thereof to be
assessed against the property owner and entered upon the tax roll pursuant to the
procedures for a special charge under Wis. Stat. § 66.0627. It shall not be
necessary to prosecute for forfeiture or a cease and desist order before resorting
to injunctional proceedings. Any violation ofthis subsection is hereby declared
to be a public nuisance.
5. In addition to the foregoing provisions of this section, any person who shall
violate any provision of this Chapter shall be subject to a penalty pursuant to
§ 15-9 .0500 of the UDO and as provided in Chapter 1, General Provisions, § 1-
19.

C. Permit fee schedule and applicable charges.

(1) Class 1: land disturbing construction activities upon a site of 1/4 acre up to
1/2 acre: $50.00.

(2) Class 2: land disturbing construction activities upon a site of 1/2 acre up to 2
acres, any land disturbing construction activity with Supporting or Adjoining
Natural Resource Features, and any Adverse Drainage Impacting land disturbing
construction activity: $100.00.

(3) Class 3: land disturbing construction activities upon a site of 2 or more acres:
$250.00, plus an additional $5.00 for each 1,000 square feet disturbed or portion
thereof in addition to the base 2 acres. Maximum permit fee $3,000.00.

(4) Surety Bond -As a condition ofapproval and issuance ofthe permit, the City
Engineer or designee may require the applicant to deposit a surety bond or
irrevocable letter of credit to guarantee a good faith execution of the approved
erosion control plan and any permit conditions.

(5) Charges for costs of construction site inspection, review, and enforcement.
As a condition of approval and issuance of the permit, the City Engineer or
designee may require construction site inspection, review, and enforcement by a
City representative or other personnel on behalf of the City. If required by the
City Engineer or designee, the applicant shall be responsible for any and all
charges related to the costs of inspection, review, and enforcement of the
construction site plus five (5) percent for administration and overhead. These
inspection, review, and enforcement charges are in addition to any permit fees or



surety that may be required. City completed construction site erosion control
inspections shall not be used as the applicant's inspections as required under
Franklin Municipal Code §129, UDO §15- 8.0300, and/or Wis. Stat.§ 216.46.

D. Erosion and sediment control plan, statement, and amendments.
This section is also regulated by and subject to the Unified Development
Ordinance, including, but not limited to § 15-8.0300 of the UDO and more
specifically, § 15-8.0307, Erosion and Sediment Control Plan, Statement, and
Amendments.

§ 129-3Definitions.
For the purpose of this chapter, the following words and phrases are defined and shall
be construed to mean, unless the context in which they are used clearly indicates an
intent to the contrary, as follows:

ADVERSE DRAINAGE IMPACTING
Construction sites of any size that, in the opinion ofthe City Engineer or designee, are
likely to result in runoff that exceeds the safe capacity ofthe existing drainage facilities
or receiving body of water, that causes undue channel erosion, that increases water
pollution by scouring or the transportation of particulate matter or that endangers
property or public safety.

BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICE or BMP
Structural or non-structural measures, practices, techniques or devices employed to
avoid or minimize soil, sediment or pollutants carried in runoff to waters of the State.

CEASE AND DESIST ORDER
A court-issued order to halt land disturbing construction activity that is being conducted
without the required permit.

CONSTRUCTION
Any or all work or operations necessary or incidental to the erection, demolition,
assembling, installing, or equipping of buildings, or any alterations and operations
incidental thereto. The term "construction" shall include land clearing, grading,
excavating, and filling and shall also mean the finished product of any such work or
operations.
CONSTRUCTION SITE
An area upon which one or more land disturbing construction activities occur, including
areas that are part of a larger common plan of development or sale where multiple



separate and distinct land disturbing construction activities may be taking place at
different times on different schedules but under one plan.

CONSTRUCTION SITE EROSION CONTROL PERMIT
A written authorization made by the City ofFranklin to the applicant to conduct land
disturbing construction activity or to discharge post-construction runoff to waters ofthe
State.

CONTROL PLAN
Erosion and sediment control plan for the construction site.

EROSION
The detachment and movement of soil, sediment or rock fragments by water, wind, ice,
or gravity.

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN
A comprehensive plan developed to address pollution caused by eros1on and
sedimentation of soil particles or rock fragments during construction.

FILL
Earth, clay, soil, ground, or any mixture or combination ofthe foregoing. Stones, rocks
or broken concrete, not exceeding 18 inches in diameter, need not be removed from fill,
if not constituting more than 5% ofthe individual load. At no time shall stones, rocks,
or broken concrete be used in any degree of concentration as fill, except as aforesaid.
No asphalt/bituminous products are allowed as fill material. Unusable topsoil from
grubbing operation(s) cannot be used for fill.

HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE
Any substance or combination of substances including any waste ofa solid, semisolid,
liquid or gaseous form which may cause or significantly contribute to an increase in
mortality or an increase in serious irreversible or incapacitating reversible illness or
which may pose a substantial present or potential hazard to human health or the
environment because of its quantity, concentration or physical, chemical or infectious
characteristics. This term includes, but is not limited to, substances which are toxic,
corrosive, flammable, irritants, strong sensitizers or explosives as determined by the
Wisconsin Department ofNatural Resources.

INFLAMMABLE AND COMBUSTIBLE MATERIALS



Includes oils and oil lights, sweepings from garage floors, barrels, boxes or other
containers containing oil or other similar liquids, rags, clothes, paper, shavings, paper
or cardboard boxes or cartons, grease, paints, varnish or other similar substances, any
ofwhich are likely to be readily inflammable or combustible.

INSPECTOR
The City Engineer or designee. The references to the Building Inspector in this chapter
are separate and distinct from the references to "Inspector" as provided herein.

LAND DISTURBING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY
Any man-made alteration ofthe land surface resulting in a change in the topography or
existing vegetative or non-vegetative soil cover that may result in storm water runoff
and lead to increased soil erosion and movement of sediment into waters of the State.
Land disturbing construction activity includes removing vegetative cover, clearing and
grubbing, excavating, filling, grading, demolition, excavating, and pit trench
dewatering, but not including agricultural land uses such as planting, growing,
cultivating and harvesting ofcrops; growing and tending ofgardens; harvesting oftrees;
and landscaping modifications (if less than 2,000 square feet).

LANDOWNER
Any person or entity holding fee title, an easement, or other interest in property, which
allows the person or entity to undertake cropping, livestock management, land
disturbing construction activity, or maintenance of storm water BMPs on the property.

PERFORMANCE STANDARD
A narrative or measurable number specifying the minimum acceptable outcome for a
facility or practice.

PERSON
Includes any natural person, firm, corporation or partnership.

POLLUTANT
Has the meaning given in Wis. Stat.§ 283.01 (13).

POLLUTION
Has the meaning given in Wis. Stat.§ 281.01 (10).

RESPONSIBLE PARTY



Any person or entity holding fee title to the property or performing services required to
meet the performance standards of this chapter through a contract or other agreement
or otherwise.

RUNOFF
Storm water or precipitation including rain, snow or ice melt or similar water that moves
on the land surface via sheet or channelized flow.

SEDIMENT
Settleable solid material that is transported by runoff, suspended within runoff or
deposited by runoff away from its original location.

SITE
The entire area included in the legal description ofthe land on which the land disturbing
construction activity is proposed in the permit application or is occurring without a
permit therefore.

STOP WORK ORDER
An order issued by the City ofFranklin, which requires that all construction activity on
the site be stopped.

SUPPORTING ORADJOINING NATURALRESOURCE FEATURES
Land disturbing construction activities which are within 100 feet ofany natural resource
feature listed in§ 15-8.0300, Table 4.0100.

TECHNICAL STANDARD
A document that specifies design, predicted performance, and operation and
maintenance specifications for a material, device, or method.

WATERS OF THE STATE
Has the meaning given in Wis. Stat.§ 281.01(18).

$ 129-4Land disturbing construction activity regulations.
A. Every person who shall conduct land disturbing construction activities upon any lot,
tract or parcel of land shall do so as evenly as possible, and at the end of such activities
shall level and grade the surface and shall see to it that the top thereof shall be of soil,
free from broken concrete and relatively free from gravel, and that the upper four inches
thereof shall be of soil suitable for growing grass. The person shall keep the surface of



such land disturbing construction activities free from dust at all times during the filling
operations and thereafter.

B. Land disturbing construction activities shall be operated and maintained in a safe
and sanitary manner, rodent free, with no emission of dust or dirt beyond its site
boundary lines.

C. All materials delivered to the construction site shall be deposited in a manner to
prevent erosion into any watercourses, roadside ditches or onto adjoining properties.

D. All construction operations shall be confined to the hours of 7 :00 a.m. to 5 :00 p.m.
daily and 7:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. on Saturdays, unless otherwise shown and permitted
on the application. No such activity shall be permitted on Sundays.

E. No permittee hereunder shall operate equipment or otherwise cause noise which
interferes with nearby property owners in the peaceable enjoyment of their properties.
The permittee shall maintain roadways to and across the site in a smooth condition to
minimize noise ofdelivery vehicles.

F. Roadways across the construction site shall be treated to prevent dust nuisances.
Roadways to the construction site shall be kept free of sediment, debris, or any other
construction materials. The permittee shall perform street sweeping at the permittee's
expense upon the order of the City Engineer. At no point shall construction materials
be stored in public right-of-way.

G. No natural drainageways or swales shall be blocked, and construction activities shall
be performed in a manner to prevent formation ofwater nuisances or insect-breeding
ponds.

H. Should any construction material erode into any watercourse or onto any adjoining
property, the permittee shall remove such material at the permittee's expense upon the
order of the City Engineer.

I. Fencing or suitable visual screen as required and/or approved by the City Engineer
or designee shall be provided on all sides ofthe site, unless otherwise required or waived
by the Plan Commission upon an application for a site plan approval prior to any land
disturbing construction activities on the site.



J. No permittee hereunder nor the owner ofthe property shall deny the City Engineer,
Building Inspector, Police Officer or other authorized officer or employee of the City
the right of entry on the person's or entity's property during normal business hours for
the purpose of inspection thereof or for the purpose of enforcing or carrying out the
provisions of this Chapter.

K. No permittee shall fail to obey a stop order or revocation order issued by the City
Engineer, Building Inspector or authorized City officer for a violation of this Chapter.
The permittee may appeal such stop order or revocation order to the City Common
Council, such appeal to be filed, in writing, with the City Clerk within five days of
service of the order. If no appeal is taken within such time, the order shall be final.
Such appeal shall be heard within five days, unless a quorum of the Common Council
members is not available, and then at such later time as a quorum is reasonably
available, in public, at which time the permittee may be represented by legal counsel.
The City Common Council may affirm, reverse or modify the order appealed from and
shall do so within five days of the hearing. The perrnittee shall not operate under the
permit until the appeal is decided.

L. For permits of 500 cubic yards or more, the permittee shall be required to compact
all fill in layers to achieve a density of 3,000 pounds per square foot or to a density
approved by the City Engineer or designee to support the final use of the lands. The
permittee shall make an effort to maintain the density through proper drainage and
ground cover and shall be responsible to maintain the approved density until the final
completion of the land disturbing construction activities. The permittee shall provide
professional geo-physical technician daily inspection, or as established by the City
Engineer or designee, with sufficient density testing such that the area can be certified
by a geo-physical engineer as meeting the established density. Weekly reports shall be
submitted to the City Engineer or designee for review and approval. Upon completion
of the filling operation, the permittee shall submit a full geo-physical report signed and
stamped by said engineer.

M. If any person fails to complete or correct the person's land disturbing construction
activities in accordance with the terms ofthe person's permit and the provisions of this
Chapter, the City Engineer shall notify the permittee that the City Common Council
will hold ahearing on his or her recommendation that the City complete or correct such
work, either by the City staff or by contract, and assess the reasonable cost thereof
against the property on which located. Notice shall be given by personal service or
certified mail at least seven days prior to the hearing. The perrnittee shall have the right
to be heard and to be represented by legal counsel. The City Common Council by



resolution may order the work completed or corrected and levy a special charge for the
reasonable cost thereof, which shall be a lien on the property, collected as other special
assessments. The permittee may appeal to the Circuit Court within 20 days after a copy
ofthe final resolution is served upon the permittee by personal service or certified mail.
If no appeal is taken within such time, the special charge shall be final.

N. The Common Council may, in an individual case, upon recommendation by the
Inspector, as a condition to issuance of a construction site erosion control permit or at
any time as a condition for the continuance of such permit, require compliance by the
permittee with any or all ofthe regulations set forth in this section.

O. Land disturbing construction activities are also regulated by and subject to the
Unified Development Ordinance, including, but not limited to § 15-8.0300 and more
specifically, § 15-8.0305, Performance Standards.

$129-5Inspector; powers and duties.
A. There is hereby created the position of Inspector, who shall have such power,
authority and duties concerning the inspection, supervision and control of land
disturbing construction activities within the City as hereinafter set forth.

B. Such Inspector shall have complete charge and supervision over the regulation and
operation of land disturbing construction activities. He or she shall have at all times
full power and authority to require complete compliance with this chapter and with all
other rules, regulations and orders for the regulation of land disturbing construction
activities and for the enforcement of this chapter, rules, regulations and orders. He or
she shall have full power and authority to require of any person engaged in land
disturbing construction activities, the person's agent, servants or employees,
compliance in all respects with the terms and provisions of this Chapter and all other
rules and regulations concerning land disturbing construction activities within the City.

C. Should the Inspector find that any person engaged in land disturbing construction
activities is failing to conform to the provisions of this Chapter or other rules,
regulations or orders, he or she may require that the person engaged in land disturbing
construction activities discontinue operations immediately and until such time as the
person engaged in land disturbing construction activities thereofmay conform to this
Chapter, rules, regulations or orders. Should the operator, the operator's servants,
agents or employees or any other person, bring upon any such land materials which are
prohibited by the terms and provisions of this Chapter, the Inspector shall refuse to
permit such materials to be unloaded. He or she shall, in the event that any portion or



all of such materials shall have been unloaded, cause the operator or the person bringing
such materials upon such land to reload the same and remove them from the premises.

D. The Inspector shall be the representative of the City at any land disturbing
construction activity site within the City. He or she may require the ceasing of
operations and the discontinuing of the operations until such time as there may be
proper compliance with this Chapter and such other rules, regulations and orders as may
be necessary in the control, supervision and regulation of land disturbing construction
activities.

§ 129-6Persons liable.
The owner, lessee or any other person having possession and control over any land
disturbing construction activities, be it public or private under, the terms ofthis Chapter,
shall be responsible for the actions ofthe person's agents, servants or employees to the
same extent as though they were the acts of such principal, and such owner, lessee or
other person shall be subject to arrest for violation ofthe provisions ofthis Chapter by
any of the person's agents, servants or employees, and any penalty imposed under the
terms of this Chapter may be imposed upon the principal and/or upon the agents,
servants or employees ofeither or both of them.

$ 129-7Public nuisance.
The depositing on any land of hazardous substance, flammable and/or combustible
materials and the depositing of fly ash, foundry refuse and other similar materials of
such texture or material that they will be capable of being airborne and the permitting
of such depositing shall be and is hereby declared to be a public nuisance.

$ 129-8Special permit; emergency.
The Common Council may, however, in any emergency to be determined by it
involving the abatement of a nuisance or in the protection ofthe public health, welfare
or safety, permit the dumping ofsuitable materials even though prohibited by the terms
of this Chapter, provided that, in each instance, application therefor shall be made in
writing to the Common Council. It shall determine the type ofmaterials to be dumped,
the circumstances surrounding the issuance ofthe permit, the justification therefore and
the manner in which such operations may be performed. Any permit issued pursuant
to such approval shall be in the nature ofa special permit, separated and apart from any
other permit issued to the applicant and from any permit for the operation of a land
disturbing construction operation upon the same premises, and shall specifically
indicate the type of materials to be dumped, the manner in which the same are to be



dumped and shall contain such other specifications and requirements as the Common
Council may determine to be necessary and desirable.

$ 129-9Intent and purpose.
It is specifically determined by the Common Council that it is the intent and purpose of
this chapter to regulate land disturbing construction activities within the City limits on
a basis whereby such operation may be readily controlled, supervised and regulated in
the protection ofthe public health, welfare and safety.

$129-10Violations and penalties.
A. Any person in violation of this Chapter shall be liable to the City and to any
individual whose person or property was damaged by such violation for any and all
expenses incurred by the City and loss or damage sustained by the City by reason of
such violation.

B. In addition to the suspension or revocation of any license or permit granted under
this Chapter, any personwho shall violate any provision ofthis Chapter shall be subject
to a penalty as provided in Chapter 1, General Provisions, $ 1-19.



' ' . ,
a. Anv land disturbmg act1tv regulated under th1s chapter is being / Formatted Font· (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

- Formatted Font· (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt 1undertaken without a penrnt, or
l!,"Jbt: control Qian is not bemg m1plemented m a good faith manner, or ·< Formatted. Font· (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt j
.i;..,,ThegC1nd1t10ns ofth~12_enmt are not bemgmet

~

Formatted: Indent Left 1 ", First line 0
- -

Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

Formatted: Font [Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

Formatted· Font (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt I

9-2, hereof and post the same upon the premises m the manner provided for the -- Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman

ng of a bm !ding permit as set forth m Chapter .2!,__I!uildmg Construction. ------- Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman
~-~

~ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

9-2 Construction site erosion control permit., ' Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

pplcabl1tv and Jurisdiction Thus sect1on applies to the sites of any land -~--- Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman, 16 pt

1rbmg construction dct1v1t1es, as provided 111 § 15-8 0300,.ofthe Unified -7',," Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman, 16 pt,-M\
elopment 01 dmance (UDO) \\, \ Bold

\\\ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

------ - - ~ .% Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt\\ .
nnl1cat1on, revocation A onstrutton srte eroston control ++,,, ,_, ;;errmt shall \ Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman, 13.5 pt

d by the City Engineer upon apphcatmn bemg made and filed with hnn or her upon ~\ ~ Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

nent of the penmt fee as set forth herem _Such apphcat1on shall be signed by the \1~\ Formatted· Justified
'\ \

er of the premises mvolved, together with the person or entity applymg for the \~\ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman l
1t, 1f heorshebeth person or entity be other than the owner _It shall contam the \, Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

tJon of the premises and an accurate description ofthe same and mclude an estimate - Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

e number of cubic yards .QL__au·eage of land area to be disturbed.necessary to fill ..
· D f I s New Rom n

B.A
issue
pay1
own
perm
loca

of
th

.....,.,""""""_~ ~,-.,.,.1-+1"'"'-.....,.....,,.ttf-.......,.....,<-ff,....,.-tttr.-+,._,._..,.._.c,,.._+t+...,..~ \ Formatted Font. ( e au t) Time ac,H€h-ln+hl-fft-at})mAHttately the grade of the terram bound mg the area to be ft lied The ,"'\"
- Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

permit shall be for a penod of one year and subject to renewal each successive year .F-===...;.._....;.=====~.....a~
· Formatted Font (Default) Times New Romanupon reapphcaton Thepermitmayberevokedby the City CmttIB-Ihpoo-net-1€e--tB-tlte

permttee and hearmg tfthe permuttee ts, depost#mg OF perm+ttmg or eatusmg to be
deposited any mate, ta!s on such premises othe1 than solid fill or has failed to or refused
tocomplywthanyot the regulations set furth herem or any of the rules, regulations
and ordersofthe Inspector herem uch hearmng shall be conducted m the manner
prodedn227-15, Is Stats

1.The CityEngmeeror designee.may_issue a stop-work_ order vcrballv or m _ ~ . Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

,\-ntmg to the applicant and may post a stop-work order on all bm!dmg,
construction land d1sn11bmg 01 land de,elopment act1v1t1es 1f

12
,&/:,..
dstt
Dev

$ 129-1 Filling permit.Land disturbing construction activities. X Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

A.A permit rs RrequIred No person o1 entrtv shall fill-conduct land disturb mng Formatted: Justified
Jrreerrrcrrrrrrerrerrs{construction act1v1t1es upon any lot, tract or parcel ofland unless lle--BF-shethe person or Formatted. Font. (Default) Times New Roman

entity shall first obtam a flhmneconstructon stte eros1on control perrmt pursuant to
$12
post1



\"-...- I'\ Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman
\

lFormatted. Font (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt- Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman 1
/ Formatted. Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold l,

lFormatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman l
.- Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman 1............_

Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

/ Formatted. Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt
Ii/ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,,.

I.'t / Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt
!ti

1

~

f//
1

Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

· Formatted· Font. (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt l
!

~

// Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

f //ft Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

/ gi /; Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt I
f u.·';1,'1/Jt', Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt I
%ff / Formatted Font (Default) Times Ne~' Roman

tV /I/ Formatted: Just1f1ed, Indent: Left O 5I,

I //I Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman J

I// I, Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman l,, I
---- -- -

,'/ /2f;'
--- --- ·- - · --- ',, Formatted· Font. (Default) Times New Roman

,.I 1 it 1 Formatted Justified, Indent. Left: 0 5", First line 0
e scheduleand apphcable chargess ~ .'/

Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman--·- - -- - }/
/ Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

2lass l. land d1sturbm!! comtruct1on act1V1t1es unon a site of 1/4 acre un to,Z
Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

$50,.00 Up te50¢ eubre yards of fll or up to H2 aere of fill area $50 ~ere
Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

--------"" Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

lass 2,., land disturbmg construction activities upona srte of 1/2 acre upto 2 ,_ /- Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman.(2).C
acres, anv land disturbmng construct1on actrvrty wth Supportmg or Ad1ommg ~-. i Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt J

Natural Resource Features, and any Adverse Drainage Impactmng land dstubing
construct1on actrvaty $10000_More than 500 eubre yards et fill or morethan
H/2aereoffllarea$2SO

3)Chass 3 land drst urbmng construction actrvrtes upon a site of2 or more acres
$250 00, plus an add1t1onal $5 00 for each 1.000 square feet d1sturbed,or 12o~t1cm
thereof m add1t1on lo the ba...c 2 acrcs.Maxmum perut fee $3,000 00,

ill,J
1i2 a

2. If the responsible party 01 any other person or entity perfonmng or sufformg
the act1V1tv does not ced5e the actrv1ty or comply with the control plan or penmt
condrttons forthwth, the City Engmee1 or des1gnee may revoke the pem11t
3. If the landowne1 01 land user or anv other person 01 entity performmg or
<;uffennR the act1v1t\.. where no penrnt has been 1<;:,ued, doe<; nol cease the
activity forthwith. the Cit) rngmeer or des1gnee may re.quest the C1tv Attorney
to obtam a cease and desist order
4. In add1t1011 to the foregomg prov1:'-1ons ofth1s section, this subsection may be
enforced by wav of mn;unction. the mmposat1on of forfeitures and other available
rehef pursuant to § 15 9 0"i00 of the UDO and the undertakmng b the City to
cure any defects or complete anv plans or measures, with the costs thereof to be
assessed agamst the property owner and entered upon the tax roll pursuant to the
procedures for a special charge under ,Wis Stat & 66 0627 lt_shall not be]
necessary to prosecute fo1 f01 fe1ture or a cease and desist order before resortmg
to myunetronal proceedings ~Any vuolaton of thus subsection is hereby_ declared
to be a pubhc nuisance
5. In addtt1on to the foregomg prov1s1ons of this section. am• person \,\•ho shall
violate any pros1on of thus Chapter shall be subject to a penalty pursuant_to
$ 15-9 0500 of the UDO and asprovided m Chapter,l,General Prov1sons, $l- •
19. !////,{Formatted· Justified



J4). Surety Bond - As a condrton ofapproval and issuance of the penrnt, the City - Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

l-ngmeer or designee mav require the applicant to depos1t a surety bond or ·l Formatted. Font. (Default) Times New Roman

irrevocable letter of credit to guarantee a good faith execution of the approved
erosion control plan and an} J:lITITIJtsond1t1ons

.G)..,Charges foi co<:ts of construction site mspect10n, review, and enforcement . Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman, Bold ]

As a cond1t1on of approval and issuance of the penmt, the City Engmeer or t~::-- Formatted· Font (Default) Times New Roman ]

destgnee mav rcgmre con,tructJon site mspect10n, review, and enforcement bv a \ Formatted Font· (Default) Times New Roman, Not .·1

City representative or other personnel on behalf of the Caty If required by the \od<
City Engineer or desgnee, the applicant shall be responsible for any and all · Formatted. Font. (Default) Times New Roman

charges related to the costs of mspect1on. review, and enforcement of the
construction_stte plus five (S) percent for admmtstration and overhead These Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman

mspect1on, review, and enforcement charges are m add1t1on to any penmt tees or
surety that may be regmred C1tv completed construLtton site erosion control
mspect1ons shall not be used as the applicant's mspect1ons as reqmred under
Franklm Municipal Code 129, UDO &15- 8 0300. and/or Wis Stat § 21646

___ _ .--- Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman I
•- - Formatted: Justified, Indent Left: 0 I

D.•~ros,on and sednnent control plan, statement, and amendments ·x- Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman I
This <:ect1011 is also regulated by and sub1ect to the Umfied Development Ordmance, '---.._·, Formatted: Justified )

mcludmg, but not lmnted to § l '>-8 0300 ot the UDO and more spec1fically. ~ 15- "- Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman j
8 0307, f·romm and Sediment Control Plan, Statement, and Amendments hll m exce::;s
(4-§00 cubw yard'., If it appear., from the apphcatwn for such fillmg penn1t that the
amount ot fill reasonablv 1eqmred to alte1 the contour of the subject fillmg site to
uppr0xmmategrade of the terramn boundmg the area to be filled shall exceed 500 cubic
yards,theprov+sonsof},}_2shallbecomeapplicable and govern the issuanceof [Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

suchfillingpermitHf-theestmmateoftheInspector shall haler from the-estimate-e-f..the Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

eppheantas to the number of cubic yards reqmred, the estimate of the Inspector shall
be controllmg

◄ 7 Formatted· Justified, Indent· Left: 0 S"

• Formatted Justified

}-129 2Topographieand eontour map+]Amended I -15-2014 by Ord No
2137]
%enever the amount ot fill requred shall exceed S00 cube yards or the area exceeds
H2 aere, the apphcant shall submit a topographic and cotttour map at a scale not over
-HQfeettothemnch, with two foot contour mtervals ba:,ed on U8GSdatum Such map
shallshowt heproposedfillarea,proposedfinal contours, dramnagepatternsandspecial
drfHnage--de~+!:..n-ecessai), and all--et-her pertment 111fonnat1on as may be reqmred

2014---< ~ Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman-~ Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman



to eleatly mdreafe the orderly de elopment ofthe fill area mcludmg a prehmmary plan
for-4€-€urrent reasonablyanticipated erdetermmed en& use of the property, pro,,-,ded,
however,mnthecaseoftheexcavationorthefilmgmofa buldmngsrte whereabutldmg
permit has been issued fu1 the erection of a new bmldmg or struerure, tl~e alteration or
uddrt+ontheretoandthe proposed final grades of such excavator and gradmg are
melded m the platplans as submitted and approved by the Im,pector and ilie total
amount offillmg required does not eJCceed 500 cubw yards, a fillmg pe1m1t shall not be
reqttH-etl--

,§_J29-3Definitions. --- --------------------- ·x Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman

For the purpose of this chapter, the following words and phrases are defined and shallFormated;)u·"
be construed to mean, unless the context m which they are used clearly md1cates an 1 Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

mtent to the contrary, as follows

ADVFRSF DRAINAGF IMPACTING Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

.Construct1on sites of any size that. m the opm1on ofthe City Engmeer or des1gnee, are ___---- Formatted: Font. (Default) T,mes New Roman

ltkel1 to result m runoffthat e,ceeds the safe capacity ofthe ex1stmg dramage fac1l1t1es
or recervmg bod of water, that causes undue channel erosion, that mcreases water
pollution b\· scounng or the tr,rn~portatlon of pdrt1u1Iate matter or that endangers
property orpublicsafety

BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICE or BMP ____- Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

,Structural or non-~tructural measure<;, practices, techmgucs or devices emploved to -------1 Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman

avoid or m1111m1ze <;011, sednnent or pollutants ca1T1ed m runoffto waters ofthe State

CEASE AND DESIST ORDER
court-issuedorderto halt landdisturbmg construction actrvty that 1s bemng conducted
without the reqmrcd permit

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

CONSTRUCTION
An\ or all work or operations necessary or mc1dental to the erection, demoht1on,
assemblmg, mstallmg, or eqmppmg of bmldmgs, or anv alterations and operations
111c1dcntal thereto The term "comtruct10n" shall mclude land cleanng, gradmg,
excavatmng. and fillmg and shall also mean the fimshed product of any such work or
QJ2eran01~_. _

___---- { Formatted· Font: Bold

___----- Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

CO!'\ISTRUCTION SITE __,----- Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Anarea upon which one or more ]_and disturbmng construct1on activities occur, includmng Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman

areas that are part of a larger common plan of development or sale where multiple



separate and drstmnct land disturbing construct1on actvtes may be takmg place at
different times on different <;chedules but under one plan

CONSTRUCTION SITE EROSION CONTROL PERMIT -----A utten authorzatron made bythe Citv of hanklm to the applicant t9 condu~t land ____,
d1sturbmg wnstructton act1v1ty or to discharge post <.,onstruction runoff to waters of the
State

Formatted. Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

.-- Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold
..........

Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman------- Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman, Not'\

\ Bold

Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

...- Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold.. Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

EROSION
The detachmentandmovement of so1l, sediment or rock fragments by water, wmnd, 1ce,
or gra»tty >
EROSION AND SEDl'\'lENT CONTROL PLAN
• comprehensve plan developed to address pollutgn caused bv erosmn and
sed1mentat10n ot so!l particles or rock fragments durmg construction

CONTROL PLAN
Eros1on and sediment control planfor the construction srte

-...-.,,-------- Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

re or combmat1on of the foregomg Stones. rocks '~ Formatted: Justified
mches m diamete1, need not be removed fi om fill, Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

FILL ORFILLING
Earth clay.so1l, ground, or any mrtu
or broken concrete, not exceedmg 18
1t not constituting more than 5% of the div1dual load At no tune shall stones, rocks,
or broken concrete be used m am degree of concentrat10n as fill, e"\c.ept as aforesaid
No a~phdlt/b1tummou.;; products are allowed as fill mate al Unusable top.;;oil from
grubbmg operat10n(s) cannot be used for fill
+he--aet--off)ae-Htg,SeHmg---oown or depOS1tffig-sehd fill on land for the purposeofor
whtch has the re:mltant-e.ffect ofchangmg the mnstmg contour ofor rasmgthe elevation
HP00Haf\tl-B!'---i:ffi3/i 'IBft thereof

-- Formatted· Font (Default) Times New Roman, Bold I
Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman I."'--
Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold'"-
Formatted. Font. (Default) Times New Roman

HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE
Aty.substance or combination of substancesmcludmng any waste of a solid,sensohd,
l1gmd or gaseous form which mav cau:-e or s1gmficantly contribute to an mcrease m \
mortahtv or an mcreasc m <;enous nTevers1ble or mcapac1tatmg reversible illness or
\\ h1ch mav pose a substantial present or potential hazard to human health 01 the
em ironment becau,;;e of its quantity, concentrat1on 01 physical, chemical or mfectous
characteristics This term mcludes, but 1s not !muted to, substances which are toxic,
corrosive, flammable, irritants, strong sens1tzers or explosrves as determmed bv the
Wtscorhm Depdtiment ofNatmal Resource<;



FlbblNG-J!ERJVH+• _J.._

A~nmt to allow a penon to engage m the act of fillmg on a specified parcel of land
f+\-Ft,eAfkIB-4---t-"-.Wl4-l'}y Ord No 2014 213 7]

Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman )------~~
~------- Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman J

~- Formatted. Font. (Default) Times New Roman ]

1~~-o_rm_att_e_d_._Ju_s_ti_fie_d .J

INFLAMMABLEAND COMBUSTIBLEMATERIALS, __ _ ""< Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman )

Includes oils and oil hghts, sweepings from garage floors, barrels, boxes or other formated!5"e!
contamers contaming o1l or other similar hqmds, rags, clothes, paper, shavings, paper " Formatted. Font (Default) Times New Roman I
or cardboard boxes or cartons, grease, pamts, varnish or other similar substances, any
of whch are likely to be readily mflammable or combustible

-- Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman

'"' Formatted· Justified
',

Formatted· Font (Default) Times New Roman

/ Formatted. Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Font
color Auto

-~ _ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold,

. which Font color Auto- Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Fontt, land
color Auto

opertv
/ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold,

/ Font color· Auto

- Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Font
1e for a color Auto I

/l Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman
/ Formatted· Font· (Default) Times New Roman J'y Formatted Justified
_

Formatted· Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

- ·------------- Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman j-----~
Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman

~----- ---- -~- -- ~~

-- Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold,
--- -- ---- -- -- - Font color· AutoAny man-mads alteration of the land surface resultingna change mnthe tonograp!Jv or >-========================<

I h I ff ·i Formatted Font color· Autoex1sting veg!alive or non-vegetattve so1 cover t at may resu t 111 stonn water runo · .
andlead to treased so1l erosion and movement of sedunent mto waters of the State
,Lancl__d1sturbm2 con~r_uct1on _act!Y.11} mcludes removmg vegetative cover, elem mg and
grubbme, excavating, fllmg, gradmng, demolrton, excavatmg, and pit trench
dcwalcnng, but not mcludmg agnwltural land uses such as plantmg, growmg,
rnllrvalmg and harvcstmg of crops, growmg and tend mg ofgardens, harvestmg oftrees,
and landscaping modificatons (1f less than 7,000 square feet)

PERSON
.Includes any natural person, firm_,_ corporation Qr partn~rsh1p

PERFORMANCE STANDARD
\ narrate@rmeasurablenumberspecifying the mmnmmum acceptable outcon
tac1hty or practice

LANDOWNER
Any personor entity holdgfeet itle, an easement- orother interestin. property
allows the person or entity to undertake cropping, livestock managemen
d1::.turbmg con~truet1on dct1v1tv, or mamtenance of storm water BMPs on the pr

JNSPECTOR., . _x
The City Engme~r or des1gnee. The references to the Building Inspector m this chapter ',"
are separate and d1stmct from the references to "Inspector" as provided herem
fAmended 1I 15-2-0+4 hvOrd No 'l0112137]
LAND DISTURBl!\G CONSTRLCTION ACTIVIT)'



POLll/lANT
,Has the mean Ing grven mn Wis Stat $ 283 01 ( 13)

POLLUTION
Has the meaninggiven m wWs_ Stat $ 281 01(10)

RESPONSIBLE PARTY

Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Any personor entity holding fee title to the propertyor performingserges required to _ Formatted: Font: (Detaul) Times New Roman

meet the performance standard" of lhl'- chapter through a contract or other agreement
or otherwise

RUNOFF Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Stormwater_or precipitation mncludingfan, snowor ice melt or smmular water thatmoves_ Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

on the land surface via sheet or channelized flow

SEDIMENT
Settleable sold material that ts transported bv runoff, suspended wthm runoff or
deposited b\ runoff ::m,av from its ongmal locat1on

1 Formatted· Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

1 Formatted· Font. (Default) Times New Roman

filF__ ----------------------~----- Formatted· Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

The entire area mcluded mn the legal descnpt1on ofthe land on which the land dsturbmng Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

construct1on actty ts proposed mn the permut applcaton or 1s occurrmg without a
penmt therefore

S IOP \\-ORK OH.DFR ~------ Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

An orde1 issued by the C1tv of Franklm, which requires that all constructwn activity on
the site be stopped

SUPPORTING OR ADJOINING NATURAL RESOURCF FEATURES

Formatted. Font. (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted· Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Land disturbmg construction actvattes whuch are wnthm I 00 feet ofany natural resotirle -- - Formatted· Font (Default) Times New Roman

feature listed m § 15-8 0300, Table 4 0100

TECHNIC-\L STANDARD
document that specifics design, predicted performance, and operation and

mamtenancc spec1ficat1ons for a matenal, de,,1ce, or method

WATERS OF THE STATE
Has the meanmg grven m Wis Stat 281 01(18)
SOLIDFLL

Formatted Font· (Default) Times New Roman, Bold 1
i Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted· Font· (Default) Times New Roman, Bold I
Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman

· Formatted. Justified

Formatted. Font (Default) Times New Roman j



-E'-ffi'th, clav, soil, ground, stones, rocks or broken eonerete fthe same does not exceed
48mchesmn1 diameter; emders consistmg of the residue fon the combustion of eoal
andnotlessthanH&8 mnehesmndamete4, or any mnxtureoreombmattonofthe foregomg

.§ l 29-4Land disturbing construction activityFillingregulations., - - Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman l
1
j
l
l

Formatted Justified

A.Every person who shall conduct land dist urbing construct1on actrvrtresfill upon any Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman

lot, tract or parcel of land shall fl-do sosuch land as evenly as possible, and at the end ~::: Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman

of such tillmg-act1v1t1es shall level and grade such fill the "Surface and shall see to rt that Formatted. Font. (Default) Times New Roman

the top thereof shall be ofsoil, free from broken concrete and relatively free from gravel,
and that the upper four mches thereof shall be of soil smtable for growmg grass __ He-Br
sheThe person shall keep the surface of such H-ll-rng-- land d1sturbmg construction
actrvrtres free from dust at all times dunng the fillmg operations and thereafter

B. Land fillmg-disturbmng construction activities shall be operated and mamtained m a- Formatted. Font: (Default) Times New Roman

safeand sanitary manner, rodent_free, with no em1ss1on of dust or dirt beyond its Bte --- Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

boundary Imes

C. All materials delivered to the htR-JHl+ construl t1on site shall be deposited ma manner Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman

to prevent erosion mto any watercourses, roadside ditches or onto adJommg properties. --- Formatted· Font (Default) Times New Roman

,D.j\11----fiH- construct1011_operations shall be confined to the hours of7.0Q_a m to 5 00
pm daily and 7 00 a.m to 12 00 pm on Saturdays, unless otherwise shown andor
permitted on the applicat10n. No such activity shall be permitted on Sundays .

Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted. Font. (Default) Times New Roman

E.No permuttee _hereunder shall operate equipment or otherwise_cause noise whch Formatted: Font. (Default Times New Roman

mterferes with nearby property owners m the peaceable enJoyment of their properties Formatted. Font: (Default) Times New Roman

The perm1ttee shall mamtam roadways to and across the site in a smooth cond1tJon to
minnmze n01se of delivery vehicles

F.Roadways across _the construction site shall be treated to prevent dust_nuisances Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman

Roadways lo !he construction s1tc shall be kept free of sednnent, debns, or anv other I Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman

construct1on materals The permuttee shall perform street sweepmg at the penmttee's
expense upon the order of the Ctv Fngmeer At no pomt shall constructton materrals
be stored m public rght-of-wav Roadways to and across the landfill site shall be treated
topreventdustnutsanees



G. ,No natural dramageways or swales shall be blocked, and fill-constructon activates - Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

shall be j')ffi€€€1-pe1 fonned in a manner to prevent fonnation ofwater nuisances or insect- ---~1 Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

breedmg ponds

H.Should any-_fill_construtron mater1al erode mnto any watercourse or onto any_ Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

adjomning property, the permittee shall remove such matenal at his or he1the penmttee's · Formatted· Font (Default) Times New Roman

expense upon the order ofthe City Engmeer

J._£encmg or smtable visual screen as required and/or approved by the Plan -- Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman

CommisstonCrty Engmneer or desgnee shall be provided on all sides ofthe site, unless Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman

otherwise requred or waived by the City Counen!Plan Comm1ss1on upon an applicat1on
for a siteplan approval pnor to any land disturbing construct1on activates on the site

J...No penmttee hereunder nor the owner ofthe property shall deny the City Engineer, _- Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Building Inspector, fj')olice Qefficer or other authorized officer or employee of the Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

~Hty the nght of entry on hrs or herthe person's or entity s -property dunng normal
busmess hours for the purpose of inspect10n thereofor for the purpose of enforcing or
carrying out the provisions ofthus Cchapter

.l(._.Ny J)enmttee shall fail to obey a stop order or revocation order issued by the Ci~ Formatted· Font. (Default) Times New Roman

Engmeer, Building Inspector or authorized G€1ty officer for a v10lation ofth1s G€hapter Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

The pennittee may appeal such stop order or revocat10n order to the City Common
Council, such appeal to be filed, in wntmg, with the City Clerk within five days of
service 1:hBreofot the order Ifno appeal 1s taken w1thm such time, the order shall be
final _Such appeal shall be heard within five days, unless a quorum of the Common
Council members is not available. and then at such late1 tnne as a quorum 1s reasonably
a\ailable. m pubhc, at which time the perm1ttee may be represented by legal counsel
The City Common Council may affirm, reverse or modify the order appealed from and
shall do so wthmn five days ofthe heanng. The permittee shall not operate under fl-ts-Bf
hevthe _ penmt until the appeal 1s decided

L.For permits of 500 cubic yards or more, the permuttee shall be required to compact Formatted. Font (Default) Times New Roman

all fill in layers to achieve a density of 3,000 pounds per square foot or to a den;1ty-<............._ Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

approved by the City Engineer or des1nee to support the final use of the lands _The
permuttee shall make an effort to maintain the density through proper drainage and
ground cover and shall be responsible to maintain the approved density until the final
completion ofthe fillmgland disturbingconstruction operationactvrt1es. The permittee
shall provide professional geo-phys1cal techmcian daily inspection, or as established by
the City Engineer or des»gnee, with sufficient density testing such that the area can be



------
Formatted· Font. (Default) Times New Roman, No-------· ----.
underhneaatron offarmer SubseetonsL_

~
Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

- -- - - - -- ·,\, Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman l
·the 12cr<;on':- -1-..mJ..fill-land ~~ \ Formatted Justified

I \\ \ Formatted· Font. (Default) Times New Roman I1th the terms ofhrs or herthe \ q\

T1ty Engineer shall notify the \ {\ Formatted· Font (Default) Times New Roman

jbhc hearmg on his or her ~~\ Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

ork, either by the !:_toity staff \ \ Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

amnst the property on which \ Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

tied mall at least seven days \ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

heard and to be represented Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman ..J

certified by a geo-phys1cal engineer as meetmg the estabhshed density Weekly reports
shall be submitted to the City Engmeer or des1gnee for review and approval Upon
completion of the fillmg operation, the perm1ttee shall submit a full geo-phys1cal report
signed and stamped by said engmeer
[Added4152014byOrd No 2014 213?]
[lEEdtor-sNoteTis-ordmnmnee@loprongedfor theredesign
andMasSubsectionsMandrespeervet

M.If any personfails to complete_ or correct hrsorher
disturbing construct1on operation activates mn accordance w
person· s permit and the provisions of this ~ehapter, the C
penmttee that the City Common Council will hold a pu
recommendation that the Certy complete or correct such w
or by contract, and assess the reasonable cost thereof ag
located Notice shall be given by personal service or certt
prior to the hearing _The permittee shall have the nght to be
by legalcounsel The City Common Council by resolution may order the work
completed or corrected and levy a spec1al assessmentcharge for the reasonable cost
thereof, which shall be a hen on the property, collected as other special assessments
The permittee may appeal to the cCtrcutt ~court withm 20 days after a copy of the final
resolution 1s served upon hmn or herthe penmttee by personal service or certified mail.
lf no appeal 1s taken withm such tune, the assesi;ment special chai ge shall be final.

.N, ,The Common Council may, m an md1v1dual case, upon recommendation I?~ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Inspector, as a condition to issuance of a fill.mg-ton-,truct10n :,1te ero::.10n control permit Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

or at any time as a condition for the continuance of such permit, reqmre comphance by
the penmttee with any or all of the regulations set forth m this section.

O.,land dsturbmng_ construction act ivates are also regulated byand subject to_the _- Formatted. Font: (Default9 Times New Roman

L nfied Development Ordmnane, mncludmng, but not hmuted to § 15-8 0300 and 11101 e ---...__ Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman

specifically, $ 15-8 0305, Performance Standards Fill and fill mg are also regulated by
andsubreet to thelUnfied Development Ordmanee, meludmng, but not lmmrted to
DI4s1on-15-8-0390andmore speefieally,815-80305,ControlofEros1on,Pollutants
andNuisanceurmg land BsturbaneandDevelopment
[Added { 15 2014 by Ord Ne 2014 2137

-·[ Formatted: Justified

$ 129-5Inspector; powers and duties. Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman



A.,There_is_hereby created the posntion of Inspector, who shall_havesuch power,
authority and duties concerning the mspectmn, supervision and control offillor
+i+l+ngland d istu1 b mg constructon actrvutes wrthmn theerty as heremafter set forth ~---------------~

B.Such_Inspector_shallhave complete charge and supervisionover the regulation and_1Formatted. Font: (Default) Times New Roman

operation of fl]mgland disturbing construct1on activities _He or she shall have at all - Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman

times full power and authonty to reqmre complete compliance with this chapter and
with all other rules, regulations and orders for the regulatmn of.f+l.l.mg-land disturbmg
construction actw1t1es and for the enforcement of this chapter, rules, regulat10ns and
orders. _He or she shall have full power and authonty to reqmre ofany person engaged
mn fillmngland drsturbmng construct1on activates, hrs or heragentthe person's agent,
servants or employees, compliance mall respects with the terms and provisions ofth1s
Cehapter and all other rules and regulations concemmg fillmg land d1:.,turbmg
construction actrvttes within the Certy.

C. ,Should the Inspector find that any_person engaged m fillingland disturbing- Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman

c.onstruct1on activitH?<; JS fmlmg to conform to the provisions of thus Cchapter or other Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

rules, regulations or orders, he or she may reqmre that the person engaged m land
dsturbmg construct1on actrvtes fllmng discontmue operations mmmed1ately and until - Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

such tnne as the person engaged m filling-land d1sturbmg construction act1v1t1es thereof
may confonn to this .{;;€hapter, rules, regulations or orders. _Should the operator,hsor
heFt_he operator'" servants, agents or employees or any other person, brmg upon any
such land matenals which are proh1b1ted by the terms and provisions ofth1s Cehapter,
the Inspector shall refuse to permit such matenals to be unloaded _He or she shall, m
the event that any port10n or all of such matenals shall have been unloaded, cause the
operator or the person brmgmg such matenals upon such land to reload the same and
remove them from the premises

D.The Inspector shall be therepresentative ofthe Ceity at any fillingland disturbmng - Formatted: Font: Default Times New Roman

construction activity sIte wthmn the Certy. _He or she may require the ceasmg offi.J.1-mg~ Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

operations and the discontmumg of the operations until such time as there may be
proper compliance with thus Cehapter and such other rules, regulations and orders as
may be necessary m the control, superv1s1on and regulation of fillmg landsland
disturbmng constructron actrvrtres

$ 129-6Personsliable. _ -- Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman

The owner, lessee or any other person havmg possession and control over any ttHtttg Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

land dsturbmg construct1on actrvat1esoperation, be rt public or private under, the terms

Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman



of this s;:;e-hapter, shall be responsible for the actions of hrs o herthe person's agents,
servants or employees to the same extent as though they were the acts ofsuch prmc1pal,
and such owner, lessee or other person shall be subJect to arrest for volaton of the
provisions of this C'ehapter by any of 111s or herthe person's agents, servants or
employees, and any penalty imposed under the terms ofthis Cehapter may be imposed
upon the prmcipal and/or upon the agents, servants or employees of either or both of
them

$ 129-7Publicnuisance, '>1orattea. Font (petal9 Times New Roman I
The depos1tmg on any land of hazardous substance, flammable and/or combustible Formatted. Justified ]

$rctr-rrtrrrct
materials and the depos1tmng of fly ash, foundry refuse and other smm1lar mater1als of Formatted. Font: (Default) Times New Roman

such texture or material that they will be capable of bemg airborne and the permuttmng
of such depos1tmg shall be and 1s hereby declared to be a public nuisance

$129-8Specialpermit; emergency. Ferattea: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

The Common Council may, however, mn any emergency to be determined by rt >Formatedls""
mvolvmg the abatement ofa nuisance or m the protect1on ofthe pubhc health, welfare Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman _J
or safety, penmt the dumpmg ofsmtable materials even though prohibited by the terms
of this f\,hapter, provided that, m each mstance, apphcation therefor shall be made m
wnting to the Common Council _It shall detennme the type ofmatenals to be dumped,
the circumstances surrounding the issuance ofthe permit, the Justification thereforf and
the manner m which such operations may be performed. _Any permit issued pursuant
to such approval shall be in the nature ofa special permit, separated and apart from any
other penmt issued to the applicant and from any permit for the operation ofa dump or
fillland dsturbmng construction operation upon the same premises, and shall
specifically md1cate the type ofmatenals to be dumped, the manner m which the same
are to be dumped and shall contam such other spec1ficat10ns and requirements as the
Common Council may determme to be necessary and desrrable

Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

A Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

/_.,.-( Formatted: Justified
+-1________,: ---- Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman$ 129-10Violationsand penalties,_

$ 129-9Intent andpurpose, "< Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman

lt 1s specifically determined by the Common Council that 1t 1s the mntent and purpose of "ore"edi"Utt€y
this chapter to regulate fillngoperationsland dsturbmg construct1on actrvties within ]Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman _j

the ~oty limits on a basis whereby such operation may be readily controlled, supervised
and regulated m the protect10n ofthe public health, welfare and safety



,J\._.__bm per::.on m v1olat1on of this_ Chapter shall be hable to the Crtv and to any _ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

mndrvdual whose person or property was damaged bv ,;;uch v10lat1on for any and all Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

e'\penses mcurred bv the C1tv and loss or damage sustamed by the City by reason of
such vtolaton Av-person or mun+empaltyvolatmgthe provstonsof thts chapter shall
beHableforanyoraldamageso1expenses sustained or mneurred by the etty by reason
of tlHY fire 6€er+mgm any Suh puble erprrate dttittpmg grottnd or othe1 place w1thm
the city caused by any dumpmg refe1Ted tom this chaptei, together ',Hth any eJ(penses
vr!Hc-l+-ttte-etty-nn:'J)'-tfieur m enforcmg any of the terms or pro-v1s1ons ofth1s chapter

...- Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman
<____

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

- --- Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman6.
IN Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

\ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

B. In addition to the suspension_orrevocation of any license or perm1t granted under
this ~ehapter, any person who shall v10late any provision of this Cehapter shall be
subject to a penalty as provided m Chapter.!.___General Provisions, §__.,,1_-1""9"'.---~ -----<'



~Land disturbinu construction activities. ~ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman I
A.A permit 1s Rrequired. No person o1 entitv shall fil-l-conduct land d1sturbmg -,: Formatted Justified i
construction act1v1t1es upon any lot, tract or parcel of land unlessheorshethe person or Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman __~~ J
,'nt1ty shall first obtam a fillmg---c.on<>truction site erosion control perrmt pursuant to
~ ,129-2. hereof and post the same upon the premises m the manner provided for th~------ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

postmg of a bmldmg permit as set forth Ill Chapter92, Building Construction Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

'vrodrosy9nm-Nome$ 129-2 Construction site erosion control permit. Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

A l l -\'~---->-======;,.._="'"'==========<.±2ppliabilityandlursdieuon_Thssectionappestohes4esofanyand[1For»re@ Fonte (etoto 7mes New Roma, 16 t
d1sturbmg construction dct1v1tle:.,, as provided m § 158 0300 of the Umfied =~~, \ Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 16 pt,

Development Ordmance (UDO) \\\ Bold\t Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

\\ Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt I
• \ Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

J1..App1Icat10n, revocation A construct1on srte erosion control A "·._ permit shall be \
1

Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 13 s pt
issued by the City Engineer upon apphcatmn bemg made and filed with him or her upon ~\~ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

payment of the penmt fee as set forth herein _Such apphcat1on shall be signed by the ,~ Formatted· Justified'\\ \>----------------owner of the premises mvolved, together with the person 01 entity applymg for the \\\ Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman )

permit, 1f heor shebethe person or entity be other than the owner. _It shall contam the \\ rormn atted Font: (Default) Times New Roman

location of the premises and an accurate descriptmn ofthe same and mclude an estimate ~ Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

of the number of cubic yards pr acreage of land area to be d1sturbed,nece,;;sary to fill
Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman

:,ud1-l+.mti-h)--awr·fP<:1-mately the grade of the terram boundmg the area to be filled _The
Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

permit shall be for a period of one year and subject to renewal each successive year
Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman

upon reapplication Thepermitmaybereeked bv the Crt,Council uponnottcetothe

Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

• Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt
/-- Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

/ Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 ptz
-~ Formatted: Indent. Left: 1 First hne O"

~

Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt I
Formatted: Font· (Default) Times New Roman, 135 pt

Formatted· Font (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt I

permttee and heammg the permttee ts deposttmg or permitting or ca1:1s1Rg to be
deposited any mate1 ia!J on such premises othe1 than solid fill m has failed to 01 refused
to-complywithanyofthe regulationsset forth heremn or any of the rules, regulations
and orden of the Inspector herem ~uch hearmg ,-;hall be conducted m the mrnmer
prodedm-822715,\WsStats

l. The City Engmeeror designee may_1ssue a stop-work order verbally or 1

:ffiJ.1.]ng to the apphcant and may post a stop-work order on all bmldmg,
C0JL"..truction, land d1,tm bmg, or land development act1v1t1es 1f

a:Any land disturbmngactuvtv regulated under thus chapter rs being
undertaken without a perm1t, or
g., I he control plan 1s not bemg implemented m a good faith manner, or ◄

.Theconditions of thepermit arenot bemng met_



2. If the responsible part)'. or anv other person or entity perfonmng or suffonng
the act1v1tv does not cease the actrvtty or comply with the control plan or penmt
condmons forthwith, the Citv Engmee1 01 des1gnee may revoke the permit
3. If the landowne1 01 land user or any othe1 person 01 entity perfum11ng or

, Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman
jpeeresses
I/ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

j;t)_obtam a cease and desist order ft Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

4. In add1t10n to the foregomg prov1s1ons ofth1s :ecti~n, this subsection may be n Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

enforced by way of mjunction. the 1mpositron ot forfeitures and other available b fl Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman

relief pur<;m~nt to ~ 15-9 0500 of the UDO and ~h~ undertakmg ~v th~ City to /fl Formatted· Font (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

cure any detects ot complete anv plans or measme~, with the costs the1eofto be lib lfi Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman, 13 s pt
assessed against the pronerty owner and entered upon the tax roll pursuant to the ff /1; Formatted· Font (Default) Times New Roman 13 s pt

i< t.· f/ II . '
procedures for a special c_ha:ge under .~YI~ Stat § 66 0627 It _shall. not_J~e 1 / 9/.~ Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman, 13 s pt
necessarv to prosecute fm torte1ture or a cease and desist order betore 1esortmg / u"¥1: Formatted: Font· (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt J

y l }Jr=,
to nqunct1onal proceedmngs .Anyvolaton ofthissubsection is hereby declaredyill/, Formatted. Font. (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt ]

to be a publtc nmsance /%1/;/1 Formatted. Font: (Default) Times New Roman

5. In addition to the fo.rewng prov1s10ns of tills section, anv person who shall~l' ~ Formatted: Just1f1ed, Indent- Left: o S"

violate any provision of thus Chapter shall be subject to a penalty pursuant to, )l, Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

§ 1 5-9 0500 of till UDO and a<;,_Qrov1dcd m Chapter L General Prov1s1on:>,__§_,J- //f/,I Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

12,_ _ _ _ ~~:///f,l/ >-F-o-r-m_,;_a_,;_tt_,;_ed,;__·_,;_J-us-t1-f1,;__ed acc-=:
~-- - JP Formatted· Font· (Default) Times New Roman ]

.l i/ J:=---=='----------'----====-=-=J I I Formatted. Justified, Indent· Left. 0 5 , First line· O" J

~ - -·-- - - __•J /I. Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman

,// Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt
d),CC lass l. land disturbmg construt uon actrrtes upon a site of I/4 acre u to°

- ··· · Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman
112 acre 5>50.00 Up to 500 cubie yai ds of fill or up to 11:~ acre of fill area $59

- Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

2)Class 2,land drsturbmng construct1on actuv1ties upon asite of l/2 are up(o2 Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

acres, anv land d1sturbmg construction act1v1ty with Supportmg or Ad10mmg -~ Formatted· Font· (Default) Times New Roman, 13 s pt
' 'Natural Resource Features, and dllV Adverse Dramage lmpactmg land d1stm bmg \ Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman

construction activity $10000 More than-s@@eubreyards of fillormore than Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman, 13 5 pt

suffermg the acttv1tv, where no penmt ha:-. been 1<;sued, does not cease the
dlt1v1t\ forthwith. the City f<ngmeer or des1gnee may request the City Attorney

Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

,(3), Class 3 land distunbmg construction actrvrtaes upon a site of2 or 11101 e acres ,:;.:_. Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

$250 00, plus an add1tional $') 00 for each 1,000 square feet disturbed or portIOT! / -- Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

thereof 111 add1t1on to the base 2 acres._Maximum permit fee $3,000 00, ___,..../ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman--.....__i Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman



.{4). Surety Bond - As a condition ofapproval and issuance ofthe permit, the City Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

rngmeer or des1gnee mav reqmre the applicant to deposit a surety bond or{ Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

rrL~yocab!e letter of credit to guarantee a good faith execut10n of the approved
eros1on control plan and any permit cond1t1ons

fil£harges fo1 costs of construction site msnect10n 1eview and enforcement Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

As a cond1t10n of a1wroval and issuance of the penmt, the City Engmeer or \~ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

des1~nee may regmre construct1on s;1te ms;oect1on, review, and enforcement bv a \' Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not

C1t1 representative or other nersonnel on behalt of the CItv If regmred bv the \ Bold ,
City Engmneer or des1gnee, the apphcant shall be responsible for any and all Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman

charges related to the costs of mnspecton, rev1ew, and enforcement of the
Construction srte plus five (S) percent foradmmtstration and overhead These Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

mspect10n, review, and enforcement charges are m add1t1on to any penmt fees or
surety that mav be regmred City completed construction site erosion control
mspecttons shall not be used as the apphcant' s mspect1ons as regmred under
Frankhn Murnc1pal Code §1?9. UDO §15- 8 0300, andlorW1s Stat § 21646

- Formatted· Justified , Indent Left : 0 5
~--- Formatted· Justified

------ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

----------- Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

$129-2Topographicandcontourmap-{Amended4 15 2014 byOrd No 2014
2137]
\!/henever the amount of fill reqmrnd :,hall exceed 'iOO cubw yards or the area e',eeeds
1. 2 acre, t-1-te-aw-J-iwnt shall subnnt a topograph1e and eonteur map at a scale net over
00feettothe meh, w+th two foot contour mtervals ba:,ed 011 USGS datum Such map
s-ha-!+-show-the-propese4-fi-l-l-area,proposed final contourn, dramage patterns and special
driHFIBge--de-v-t1:,e-s-,-1f neces;mry, and all other pertment mfonnat10n a;., may be rnqmred

------ Formatted. Font: (Default) Times New Roman

,.__ --f Formatted: Justified , Indent: Left : 0 I

D..Eros1on and sediment control plan, statement, and amendments __ ~--:- Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman j
This section 1s al~o regulated by and ,ub1ect to the Umfied Development Ordmance, "-,~,.F_o_rm=att=ed_:_Ju_s_ti_fie_d==========-=;]

mcludmng, but not hutted to & 15-8 0300 ot the UDO and more specifically. & 15- Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman J

8.0307, Fros1on and Sediment Conto Plan, Statement, and Amendments hll m excess
of590cube yards If 1t appears from the apphcatmn for such fillmg pe11111t that the
amount of fill reasonably 1eqmred to alter the contour of the subject fillmg site to
ftPJ:'ll'B-rrtHlate--graE!e-eHhe terram boundmg the area to be filled shall e),eeed 500 cubic
yardst heprovisionsof,l:,shallbecomeapplcable-andgovernthe+ssuaheef Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

SUH1-filhng-µeFmtt--lf-the-B::.t-lmate-ef-the-ms~-<;halh:!1ffer-fmm-the-estHnate-ef-t!1e .l Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

0ppheantas-to the number of cub1e yards required, the estimate of the Inspector shall
be controt-lmg-



to clearly mdreate the orderly des elopment of the fill area mcludmg a prehmmary plan
frthecurrent reasonably anticipated or determmed end use of the property, proY1ded,
however,mn-thecaseof-theexcavationorthefiH]ngmnofabuldmng satewhereabu+ldmng
J:leFl·ntt has been-1-5s ued fur the erection of a new bmldmg or :;tmcture, the alteration or
,t4:i+t10t1--·t~----antl--t-he proposed final grade, of such e,wavatmn and gradmg are
tn€-k1ded 111 the plat plan:.. as s1:1bm1tted and approved by the lnspecto1 and the total
amount of fillHg 1equmred does not exceed S00 eubteyards, a fillHg perm shall not be
fC{ttHffil-

} 129-3Definitions. - Formatted. Font: (Default) Times New Roman I
For the purpose of this chapter, the following words and phrases are defined and shall _formatedr!%!
be construed to mean, unless the context m which they are used clearly md1cates an · Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman ]

mtent to the contrary, as follows

ADVERSF DRA !NAGE IMPACT ING -------~ _ ~ Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

.<;omtruct1on sites of anv size that 111 the op1111on of the City Engmeer or des1gnee. are - Formatted· Font (Default) Times New Roman

ltkelv to result m runoff that e:.,.ceeds the safe capacity ot the ex1stmg dramage fac1ht1es
or recE'ivmg bodv of v,-ater. that causes undue channel eros1on, that mcreases water
pollutton by sourmng or the transportation of particulate matter or that endangers
propertyorpublic safetv

BEST MANAGEMEl\T PRACTICE or BMP
S!ructural or non-structural measure,;; ractlccs. techm ues or devices em loved to
avmd or m1111m1Le soil, sednncnt or pollutants earned m runoff to water& of the State

- Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

,....- Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

CEASE AND DESIST ORDER
Acourt-issued order_tohalt land disturbmg construction actrvty that 1sbemgconducted Formatted: Font (Detaut) Times New Roman

without the required penmt

CONSTRUCTION (Formattedfont@old
An) or all work or operations necessa1y or mc1dental to the erection, demoht10n,
assembhng, mstallmng, or eqmppmg of bmldmgs. or anv alterations and operations
1nc1dental thereto The term "construct1on" shall mclude land clcanng, gradmg,
excavatrng, and fill mg and shall also mean the finished product of any such wo1 k or
operations., --- -- -- ggqtag Font. (Default) Times New Roman

CONSTRUCTION SITE
Mn area uponhyehone_or more land disturbing construction actrvttres occur, mnludmg
Meas that are part of d larger common plan of development or sale where multiple

- Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman



sepat ate and dstmnct land d1sturbmg construction act1v1ties may be takmg place at
d1fferent tnnes on different '-Chedule" but under one plan

CONSTRLCTION SITE EROSION CONTROL PERMIT
A wutten authorzatton made bythe 1tv ofhank Im to the apl2l!_cant to condut land
d 1sturbmg const1 uct1on act1v1ty or to discharge post-construction runoff to waters of the
State

Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

CO!\/TROL PLAN
Eroson andsediment control plan for the construct1on sate

EROSION
The detachment, and movement.ofso,sedimentor rockfragmentsbvwater,wmnd,
or grav1l1

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN
!_comprehensyve plande»eloped_to address pollution c_ause_d___Qv erosion
sedimentatton ot so1l particles or rock h·agments dunng construction

a Formatted· Font (Default) Times New Roman, Bold
--<-......_____

Formatted· Font (Default) Times New Roman

T Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman, Not·,,
Bold\s. Formatted· Font. (Default) Times New Roman

"'"' Formatted· Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold l
Formatted. Font. (Default) Times New Roman I

. Formatted. Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

and Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

flLL QR-F-l-l,-hl-NG -------------------~c- , - Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman I
l~;rtfL-cla~p.round, 01 any mr\;ture or combmatlon of the foregomg Stones. rocks '"::::-. ?'=F~o;,,;rm;,,;a;;;tt~e;,,;d;;;· ;;;Ju-st;;;1f;,,;ie-d===========-=<l

o1 broken concrete, not exceedmg 18 mches m dmmete1, need not be removed fi om fill, Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman I
1t not constituting more than 5of the mdrvdual load At no time shall stones, rocks.
or broken concrete be used m anv degree ot concenlrat1on as fill, except as afore:.aid
No a-,phaltib1tummou~ products are dllowed as fill matenal Unusable topsml from
grubbmg operat1on(s) cannot be used for fill
+h€,,Ct-Bf-i7IBC·mg,--seHmg-tlewtt--OF-JefIB5Ht!tg--sehd fill on land for the purpose of er
whteh hastheresultant effect of changmg the existmg contour ofor raismg the elovatten
eJ->:,-ltl'tl-tit!ttl-Bf-aR-y-j,Hfl:-tRereef.

- Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold l
- Formatted. Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Formatted Font· (Default) Times New Roman 1

,HAZARDOllS,SLB~TANC,R _ ~~- _ _ __ __ __ ~ ---
Anv substance orcombmaton of substances mcludmng any waste ofa sold, sem1sold, _\
liquid or ga~cous fonn which mav cau:-.e or s1gmf1untly contnbule to an mcrease mn
mo1tahtv or an mcreasc mn serous 1reversible or incapacitatmg reversible illness or
\\h1ch mav pose a substantial present or potential hazard to human health or the
envn ornnent because of ,ts quantity, concentration or physical. chemical or mfect1ous
charactenst1cs This tenn mcludes. but 1s not lnmted to, substances winch are toxtc,
con-0s1vc. flammable, irritants, strong sen<;1t1Lers or explosive<; as determmed by the
Wrsconsm Department ofNatural Resources



Formatted: Font: (Default} Times New Roman

F-l-bb-1-NG-l!ERMH •· ------ Formatted: Font. (Default} Times New Roman

A-f:)eHH-lHB-atitt~rson to engage 111 the act of fillmg on a specified parcel of land- ~' (Formatted.Font: (Default} Times New Roman

fA,rnenJed-~-±.G-14-By Ord No 2014 2137] [ roratted: Justified
'---------------------'

INFLAMMABLE AND COMBUSTIBLEMATERIALS •Formatted: Font: (Default} Times New Roman ]

•I~~lud~s 01ls ;;d.oil hgh~w-;epmgs fro~gar;-gefloo~, barre~boxes or other ,~ :,.F_o_rm_ a_tt_e_d_: J_u_st1_fie_d=========~·

containers contain mng o1l or other similar hquids, rags, clothes, paper, shavmgs, paper . Formatted: Font: (Default) T,mes New Roman l
or cardboard boxes or cartons, grease, pamts, varnish or other similar substances, any
ofwhtch are likely to be readily mflammable or combustible

Formatted: Font: (Default} Times New Roman, Bold ,
Font color· Auto

Formatted Font color Auto

/ Formatted· Font. (Default} Times New Roman, Font
/ color Auto

.- Formatted: Font: (Default} Times New Roman, Bold ,

l Font color· Auto
- Formatted· Font: (Default} Times New Roman, Font

color Auto

Formatted Font· (Default} Times New Roman, Bold ,/

/ Font color· Auto

/
Formatted. Font (Default} Times New Roman, Font

a / color Auto

Formatted Font (Default} Times New Roman I
/ I

__ ,/ ,/ Formatted. Font (Default} Times New Roman 1
«3$ Formatted: Justified
~

Formatted: Font: (Default} Times New Roman, Bold I"--.....,
Formatted: Font: (Default} Times New Roman I·-......,__
Formatted· Font: (Default} Times New Roman I

2nv man-made alterationofthe land surface resulting mnachange mthe topographv or
ex1stung_ egetatve or non-vegetative sol over that may result 111 storm water runoff
ill1tl.l~i-UQ_m.<:creased soil ero:-1011 and movement of sedunent mto waters of the State
Land d1stm b_mg construction activity mcludes removing vegetative cover, elem mg and
grubbing, eeavatmg, fllmng, grading, demolrt1on, excavatmg, and pit trench
dcwatcnng, but not mcludmg agnrnltural land uses such a" plantmg, grm,,-mg,
cultrvatmg and harvcstmg of crops, growmg and tendmg of gardens, harvestmng of trecs,
and landscaping modifications (1f less than 2.000 square feet)

~RSO~_ --·----~- ~~----
.Includes any natural person.,_ firm, corporation or partnership

,PERFOR'\1ANCE STANDARD
dBa!Tdttvor measurable number specifying_the mmn1mum acceptable outcome for
lac1hty or practice

LANDOWNER
Av person orent ttyholding fee tutle, an easement- orother mnterest mnproperty,whe
allows the person 01 entity to undertake croppmg, livestock management, land
disturb mg constructmn dct1, 1t,, or mamtenance of storm water BM Ps on the propertv

INSPECTO~ -:::::; Formatted· Font: (Default} Times New Roman ]

Tie city Engneeror designee.The references to the Building Inspector in thus chapter '.....a.I...a.,<
are separate and distinct from the references to "Inspector" as provided herem ....,_ Formatted: Font: (Default} Times New Roman I

'-------'-----'----------~
[Amended 4 15 2014 by Ord l\o 2014 2137]
LA "ID DiSTliRBING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVJT\'



POLLUI'ANT
,Has the rneanmg given m Wis Stat $283 01 (13)

- Formatted. Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

]Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman

POLLUTION
Has the meanmg. grven m WIs Stat.$281 01Q0)

___________ { Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Formatted. Font: (Default) Times New Roman

RESPONSIBLE PARTY Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Anyperson or entity holdmg fee title to theproperty or performmng services required to Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman

meet the performance standards of this chapter through a contract or other agreement
or otherwise

R[J)RR - Formatted Font· (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Stormwater or preprtatonincludmg ram, snow or_ice meltor smular water thatmoves Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman~----------------~
on the land ,urface via sheet or c.hanne!JLed flow

SFDlMENT -~----- ------------- ----- ----------
Settleable_sold maternal that s transported by_runoff,suspended withmn runoff or 
deposited bv runoff awav from tts orrgmnal location

Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

_________ /- Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

.Jhe entire mea mcluded II} the J~l descnpt1on ofthe land on which the land d1sturbmg / - Formatted· Font. (Default) Times New Roman

construction acm 1ty 1~ proposed m the penmt apphcatwn or 1s occurrmng without a
pcnml therefore

STOP WORK ORDFR - Formatted. Font (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

An orcle1 issued bv the Ctv of Franklin, whtch requires that all constructwn act1v1ty on ---- Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman

the site be stopped

M!PPORTING OR ADJOIMNG NATURAL RF.SOURCE FFATURES Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

land drsturbmng construction activates whch are wthm I 00 feet ofany natural resource
feature listed m ~ l 5-8 0300, Table ...J 0 100

- Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman

A _document that specifies design, predicted performance, and _operation and
mamtenance specifications for a rnatenal, device, or method

Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman, Bold I
----- Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman l

Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold
I
I

/ Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman l
/ Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman I

/ Formatted· Justified l
Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman I,SOLlll Fll.13

WATERS OF THE STATE
Has the meanmg eryen m Wis stat 281 01(18)

TECHMC <\L STANDARD



Eurth, clay, soil, ground, stones, rocks o» broken eonerete f-the same does not exceed
48mches m dametet, enders consisting of the residue #ion the combustion of coal
and-not-lessthanI8mnchesmdiameter, oranymtureoreombmatton-ofthe foregoing

~

Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted· Justified

Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman

~
Formatted, Font. (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman

A. Every person who shall conduct landdistubmng construction actvntresfill upon any
lot, tract or parcel of land shall fi-1+-do sosuch land as evenly as possible, and at the end
of such fi-l.tt.Rg--act1v1t1es shall level and grade such fill the surface and shall see to rt that
the top thereof shall be of soil, free from broken concrete and relatively free from gravel,
and that the upper four inches thereof shall be of sml suitable for growmg grass._ He-er
sheThe person shall keep the surface of such fiUtHg-land dt~turbmg construction
act1v1t1es free from dust at all times durmg the filhng operations and thereafter

$129-4Land disturbing construction aetivityFillingregulations.,

B. ,Land fillmngdrst urbmg construction activates shall be operated and mamtamed ma
safe and sanitary manner, rodent_free, with no em1ss1on of dust or dirt beyond its site
boundary lines

Formatted. Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

C.All mater1als delivered tothe landfill construction sate shall be deposited m~m~ Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman

to prevent erosion mto any watercourses, roadside ditches or onto adJmmng properties i Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman

D.All ill construction operations shall be confined to the__llours of_-z·oo am to 5 00- Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

pm dally and 7 00 a.m to 12 00 pm on Saturdays, unless otherwise shown ander --------- Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

permitted on the apphcation. No such activity shall be permitted on Sundays

E. No permuttee_hereundershall operate equipment_or otherwise_cause no1se which_ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

mterferes with nearby property owners m the peaceable enJoyment of their properties ------ i Formatted. Font (Default) Times New Roman

The permuttee shall maintam roadways to and across the site m a smooth condition to
mmnmze noise of delivery vehicles

F., Roadways across the construction site shall be treated to prevent dust nuisance>
Roadways to the constrnct1on :,tte shall be kept free of sediment, debns, or anv other
wnstructwn matenals The penmttee shall perform street sweepmg at the penmttee's
expense upon the order of the Ctv Engmneer At no pomt shall construction materials
be stored mn publ1c nght-of wav Roadways to and across the landfill site shall be treated
ro-pre-veRt-Ul!St-+lHISfl!-ll.'-CS-

- Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman



G.Nonatural dramnageways or swales shall be blocked,and fillconstruction activates Formatted: Font: (Default) Tmes New Roman

shall be f')-l-a€ee-pe1 fo1med mamanner to prevent fonnation ofwater nuisances or msect- ._____l Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

breedmg ponds

J::h...Should an.Y=-fi+i-con-.truct10n matenal erode mnto any_watercourse or onto any_ -- Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman

adyoming property, the penmttee shall remove such matenal at hrs or herthe permuttee's Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman

expense upon the order ofthe City Engmeer

J. ,Fencmg or suitable visual screen as regmred and/or approved by the P]an - Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

CommsstonCrty Engmeer or designece shall be provided on all sides of the site, unless <.____ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

otherwise required or waived by the City Counen!Plan Comm1sson upon an apphcat1on
for a site plan approval pnor to any land disturbing construction actrvates on the site

.J. ,No perrmttee hereunder nor the owner of the property shall deny the City Engmeer~ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Buldmng Inspector, Ppolice Qofficer or other authonzed officer or employee of the Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

.Cflty the nght of entry on h, or herthe person's or entity's -property durmg normal
busmess hours for the purpose of mnspecton thereof or for the purpose of enforcing or
carrymng out the provisions ofthus Cchapter

K.No permuttee shall fail to obey a_stoporder or revocation order 1ssued by the City Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

Engmeer, Building Inspector or authonzed .Ce1ty officer for a violation ofth1schapter_Formatted; Font. (Default) Times New Roman

The penmttee may appeal such stop order or revocation order to the City Common
Council, such appeal to be filed, m wntmg, with the City Clerk within five days of
service l:hereofof the order_ If no appeal 1s taken withm such time, the order shall be
final _Such appeal shall be heard wthm five days, unless a quorum of the Common
Council members 1s not available, and then at such later tnne as a quorum 1s reasonably
a\ailable. m pubhc, at which tune the permittee may be represented by legal counsel
The City Common Council may affirm, reverse or modify the order appealed from and
shall do so within five days ofthe heanng The permittee shall not operate underHtsor
ltet1h_\,.... penmt until the appeal is decided

_J

,L. .forpenmts of 500 cubic yards or more, thepermuttee shall be required to compact
all fill m layers to achieve a density of 3,000 pounds per square foot or to a density
approved by the City Engineer or de-,1gnee to support the final use of the lands _The
penmttee shall make an effort to mamtam the density through proper drainage and
ground cover and shall be responsible to maintam the approved density until the final
completion ofthe fillmgland disturbmg construction operationactrvtt1es. The permittee
shall provide profess1onal geo-phys1cal techm1c1an daily inspect1on, or as established by
the City Engmneerordesignee, with sufficient density testing such that the area can be

Formatted. Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman



.- Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, No
underline

~
Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

\\ Formatted· Font (Default) Times New Roman

0.' Formatted: Justified
'\

'.}\ Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman

f Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Romanl
I Formatted Font (Default) Times New Roman
\ \·
-~·- Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman
\ \ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

\ Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

_!ormatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

certified by a geo-phys1cal engineer as meetmg the established density. Weekly reports
shall be submitted to the City Engmeer or des1gnee for review and approval Upon
complet1on ofthe fillmg operation, the perm1ttee shall submit a full geo-phys1cal report
signed and stamped by said engineer
[Added4-152014byOrd No 2014 2137%}
Etors-NoteFhesordmnaneealsopronged_fortheredesgnatonofformer Subseetonsl

andMasSubseettonsM,and,respeetveiv_ \

M.If anyperson fails to complete or correct his or herthe person's tatlJfill-.land~
d1sturbmg construct10n everattffit-act1v1t1e,; m accordance with the terms ofHs or herthc ' ~
person· s permit and the provisions of this hehapter, the City Engmeer shall notify the
penmttee that the City Common Counc!I will hold a pubhc hearmg on his or her
recommendation that the Ceity complete or correct such work, either by the !:.e1ty staff
or by contract, and assess the reasonable cost thereof agamst the property on which
located Notice shall be given by personal service or certified mail at least seven days
prior to the hearing The permuttee shall have the nght to be heard and to be represented
by legalcounsel The City Common Counc!I by resolution may order the work
completed or corrected and levy a special assessmentcharge for the reasonable cost
thereof, which shall be a hen on the property, collected as other special assessments
The perm1ttee may appeal to the e~)rcmt ~bourt within 20 days after a copy ofthe final
resolut1011 1s served upon hnn 01 herthe penmttee by personal service or certified mall
lfno appeal 1s taken wuthm such tune, the as:..essment special charge shall be final

N.,The Common Council may, m an md1vidual case, upon recommendation I?Y.J!ie ....- Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

Inspector, as a condit10n to issuance ofa fi-1.I.mg-constructlon site eros10n control permit--------- Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman

or at any tune as a cond1t10n for the contmuance ofsuch permit, reqmre compliance by
the penmttee with any or all ofthe regulatons set forth m this sect10n

O.Land dsturbmng constructon activates are also regulated by and subjet to the
Urnfied Development Ordinance, mcludmg. but not muted to } 15-8 0300 and more
spec1ficallv, S 15-8 0305, Performance 'Standards Fill and fillmg are also regulated by
and subjeet to the LUmfied Development Ordmnanee, meludmng, but not lmmted to
DI4s+on15-8 0300andmorespeafically,g15-80305,Control of Eros1on,Pollutants
and-NuisanceEurmg±andDisturbanceandDevelopment
f,<Wded -I 15 2014 by Ord No 2014 2137]

Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman

--( Formatted: Justified

..§_ 129:.~Jnspector; powers and duties. - Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman-----~----- -----------~-----
Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman



A.,Therers hereby created the posit1on of_Inspector, who shall_havesuch power, Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

authority and duties concernmg the mspection, supervision and control of flor Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

ttllHtgl<tnd disturbmg constructon actrvrtaes within the Cety as heremafter set forth.

B.Such_Inspector shall have completecharge and supervision over the regulation and Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

operation of fillmngland disturbing construction activities. _He or she shall have at all Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman

times full power and authority to reqmre complete comphance with this chapter and
with all other rules, regulations and orders for the regulation offillmgland drsturbmg
construction act1v1t1es and for the enforcement of this chapter, rules, regulations and
orders He or she shall have full power and authonty to require ofany person engaged
mn fl]gland dsturbmng construction act1ties, hisor her agentthe person's agent,
servants or employees, comphance mall respects with the terms and provIs1ons ofth1s
Cehapter and all other rules and regulations concemmg---fill.mg land d1sturbmg
constuuct1on actrvrtres wthin the Cetty.

C.Should_theInspector find that_any_person engaged m fillmng land disturbmno Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman

construct1on actrvues Is faulmng to conform to the provisions of this Cehapter or other Formatted. Font. (Default) Times New Roman

rules, regulations or orders, he or she may reqmre that the person engaged m land
hstubingconstruct1on actrvates #illmngdiscontinue operations Immediately and until Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman

such time as the person engaged in filmngland disturbing construct1on activities thereof
may conform to this ~£,hapter, rules, regulations or orders _Should the operator,hsor
tiettllf.._Ope1 dtor', servants, agents or employees or any other person, brmg upon any
such land materials which are proh1b1ted by the terms and prov1s1ons ofth1s ~ehapter,
the Inspector shall refuse to permit such materials to be unloaded _He or she shall, m
the event that any port10n or all of such materials shall have been unloaded, cause the
operator or the person bringmg such matenals upon such land to reload the same and
remove them from the premises

D.TheInspector shall betherepresentative of the Certyat any fillingland disturbing Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

construction actrvaty site wuthm the Ceity. He or she may reqmre the ceasmg offllg Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

operations and the discontinmng of the operations until such time as there may be
proper comphance with this Cehapter and such other rules, regulations and orders as
may be necessary m the control, supervision and regulat10n of fillmg landsland
disturbmg construct1on actrvrtes

$ 129-6Persons liable,
The owner, lessee or any other person havmg possession and control over any filling
land disturbing construct1on actrvttresoperation, be rt publc or private under, the terms

Formatted: Font. (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted· Font. (Default) Times New Roman



of this s.,;:_Bhapter, shall be responsible for the actions of his or herthe person's agents,
servants or employees to the same extent as though they were the acts ofsuch prmc1pal,
and such owner, lessee or other person shall be subJect to arrest for volaton of the
provisions of thus Cehapter by any of his or herthe person's agents, servants or
employees, and any penalty imposed under the terms ofth1s hehapter may be imposed
upon the prmncmpal and/or upon the agents, servants or employees of either or both of
them

} 129-7Public nuisance.,_-- Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

The depositmng on any land of hazardous substance, flammable and/or combustible>orated!st"
materials and the depos1tmg of fly ash, foundry refuse and other smmlar mater1als of Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman

such texture or material that they will be capable ofbemg airbome and the penmttmg
of such depositing shall be and is hereby declared to be a public nmsance

$ 129-8Special permit; emergency., < Formatted Font· (Default) Times New Roman l
The Common Council may, however, in any emergency to be determined by rt _"orated15
mvolvmg the abatement ofa nmsance or m the protect10n ofthe pubhc health, welfare Formatted· Font. (Default) Times New Roman 1

or safety, permit the dumpmg ofsmtable matenals even though prohibited by the terms
of this rehapter, provided that, m each instance, applicat10n therefor shall be made in
wntmg to the Common Council It shall determme the type ofmatenals to be dumped,
the circumstances surroundmg the issuance ofthe permit, theJustification thereforf and
the manner m which such operations may be performed _Any permit issued pursuant
to such approval shall be in the nature ofa special permit, separated and apart from any
other permit ISsued to the applicant and from any permit for the operation ofa dump or
fi+l-111_1-d chsturbmg construction operation upon the same premises, and shall
specifically indicate the type ofmatenals to be dumped, the manner m which the same
are to be dumped and shall contam such other specifications and reqmrements as the
C. ommon Council may determme to be necessary and desirable

_.l Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

y Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman
ljcc.rrrrr-arr
/ ' Formatted: Justified.. /

_ ,.,.------ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman$ 129-10Violationsand penalties,

} \29-9IntentandpurpoSe, • Formatted Font: (Default9 Times New Roman

lt Is specifically determined by the Common Council that 1t is the mtent and purpose of>Formated"950"!
this chapter to regulate fllngoperationsland disturbmg construction actrvrtres withmn ]Formatted. Font(Default) Times New Roman ____j
the .[eity hm1ts on a basis whereby such operat10n may be readily controlled, supervised
and regulated m the protection ofthe pubhc health, welfare and safety.



A.,Any, person m violationof this Chapter shall be hable to the Crtv and_to any Formatted Font: (Default) Times New Roman

md1v1dual ·whose person 01 property was damaged by such v1olat1on for any and all Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman

e1'.penses mcurred bv the C1tv and loss or damage sustamed by the City by reason of
such violation nyperson or munterpalty volatmng the prov+stons ofts ehapter shall
beHableforanyoraldamages or expenses sustamed or mcurred by the etty by reason
~~un-mg m any such pub!Ho or pnnlte dumpmg ground or other place wathn
the cny caused by any dumpmg referred tom this chaptei, together with any ei,penses
Vrh+ch the city may-+H-e-Ur m enforcmg any ofthe terms or prov1s1om ofth1s chapter

B.In add1ton to thesuspension or revocation of any license Ol"__l'erm_J_t_granted under< Formatted· Font: (Default) Times New Roman I
this ~€hapter, any person who shall violate any prov1s1on of thus Cehapter shall be Formatted: Font. (Default) T,mes New Roman ]

subject to a penalty as provided in Chapterl, General Provisions, § J-19, Formatted. Font (Default) Times New Roman _]

-~ Formatted: Font (Default) Times New Roman ),:~--=---------------...-.:\ Formatted· Font (Default) Times New Roman J

Formatted Font. (Default) Times New Roman ]



Chapter 165
Land Disturbances TO BE REPEALED

[HISTORY: Adopted by the Common Council of the City Of Franklin 8-5-1997 by Ord. No. 97-1461
as Sec. 13.14 of the 1997 Code. Amendments noted where applicable.]

GENERAL REFERENCES

Filling and grading- See Ch. 129.
License and permits See Ch. 169.

$ 165-1 Definitions.
As used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

CONTROL MEASURE
A practice or combination of practice to control erosion and attendant pollution.

CONTROL PLAN
A written description of the number, locations, sizes and other pertinent information of control measures
designed to meet the requirements of this chapter submitted by the applicant for review and approval.

EROSION
The detachment and movement of soil, sediment or rock fragments by water, wind, ice or gravity.

LAND DISTURBANCE
Any man-made change of the land surface, including removing vegetative cover, excavating, filling and
grading, but not including agricultural land uses, such as planting, growing, cultivating and harvesting
crops; growing and tending gardens; and harvesting trees.

$165-2 Standards.
All sites on which land disturbances take place, whether or not subject to the permit process of this chapter,
must meet these standards:

A. The area of bare soil exposed at any one time shall be kept to a minimum by conducting activities in
sequence.

B. Disturbed ground left inactive for 15 or more days shall be stabilized by seed, mulch or other equivalent
measure.

C. Channelized runoff from adjacent areas passing through the site shall be diverted around disturbed
areas, if determined practical by the City Engineer.

D. All control measures required to comply with this chapter shall be based upon accepted engineering
practice as identified by the City Engineer. The City Engineer and/or the City Plan Commission may
impose additional standards upon a site to minimize air and water pollution and erosion.

$165-3 Permit required.
No landowner or land user in the city may commence, allow or continue a land disturbance subject to this
chapter without receiving prior approval of a control plan for the site and a permit from the City Engineer,
unless the owner or land user has another permit for activities necessarily involving land disturbance, e.g.,



subdivision development, fill permit, zoning permit, special use permit, etc., and construction of a home. The
landowner or land user controlling or using the site and desiring to undertake a land-disturbing activity
subject to this chapter shall submit an application for a permit and control plan review and pay an application
fee to the City Engineer as provided in Chapter 169, Licenses and Permits.

§ 165-4 Control plan.
A. A control plan for land-disturbing activities covering more than two acres shall consist of the following:

(1) Existing site map.

(a) A map of existing site conditions showing the site and immediately adjacent areas, including:

[1] Site boundaries and adjacent lands which identify site location.

[2] Lakes, streams, wetlands, channels, ditches and other watercourses and immediately adjacent to the site.

[3] One-hundred-year recurrence interval floodplains, flood-fringe areas and floodways and conservancy
areas.

[4] Vegetative cover.

[5] Locations and dimensions of utilities' structures, roads, highways and paving.

(b) The City Engineer may request additional data.

(2) Plan of final site conditions. A plan of final site conditions showing the site changes.

(3) Site construction plan.

(a) A site construction plan, including:

[1] Locations and dimensions of proposed land-disturbing activities.

[2] Locations and dimensions of temporary soil or dirt stockpiles.

[3] Schedule of anticipated starting and completion date of each land-disturbing activity.

[4] An erosion control plan statement with map shall be submitted to describe the site and erosion controls,
including the site development schedule that will be used.

(b) The City Engineer may request additional data.

B. A control plan statement for land-disturbing activities covering less than two acres shall consist of the
following:

(1) A map to existing site conditions showing the site and immediately adjacent areas, including:

(a) Existing elevations at property comers.

(b) Drainage patterns at site and immediately adjacent areas.

(2) An erosion control plan statement with map shall be submitted to describe the site and erosion controls,
including the site development schedule that will be used.

(3) The City Engineer may request additional data.



$165-5 Review of control plan.
A. After receipt of the application, control plan or control plan statement and fee, the City Engineer shall

review the application and control plan to determine if the plan or statement is adequate to meet the
purposes of this chapter. The City Engineer shall approve the plan with conditions, request additional
data, issue or deny the permit.

B. An applicant aggrieved by the decision of the City Engineer may appeal the decision to the Plan
Commission.

$165-6 Permits.
Permits shall be valid for a period of one year from the date of issuance or as otherwise set forth by the City
Engineer, whichever is longer. The City Engineer may extend the period for up to an additional 180 days.
The City Engineer may require additional control measures as a condition of the extension.

$165-7 Enforcement.
A. Whenever this chapter, the approved plans or permit are not complied with, a stop-work order may be

served on the violator or his or her representative, and a copy shall be posted at the site. The stop-work
order shall not be removed, except by written order of the City Engineer. However, after issuance of a
stop-work order, the violator or his or her representative may conduct work on the site for the purpose of
bringing the site into compliance with this chapter.

B. Fourteen days after issuance of a stop-work order with continued noncompliance shall authorize the city
to perform or contract with others to perform the necessary work and materials to bring the project into
compliance.

C. The costs shall be billed to the property owner and in default of payment within 45 days the amount
shall be entered on the tax roll and collected as a special assessment.

$165-8 Violations and penalties.
In addition to the suspension or revocation of any license or permit granted under this chapter, any person
who shall violate any provision of this chapter shall be subject to a penalty as provided in Chapter 1, General
Provisions, $1-19.



Franklin
W 4 S C O N S I N

DRAFT
Proposed Construction Site Erosion Control Permit Application

City of Franklin
Engineering Department

CONSTRUCTION SITE EROSION CONTROL PERMIT APPLICATION ForOffice Use Only:

9229 W LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WI 53132 Permit No.
Phone (414) 425-7510 Fax (414) 425-3106

Date of Issue:Application Forms and Handouts can be found at www.franklinwi.gov

Date of Expiration:
Landowner(s) / Applicant Contact Name / Title

Mailing Address City Zip Office Phone

Email Address 24/7 Cell Phone

Contractor Contact Name / Title

Mailing Address City Zip Office Phone

Email Address 24/7 Cell Phone

Location of Work (Street Address) Tax Key Number(s)

Description of Work

Area of Disturbance (Acres) Volume of Material (Cubic Yards)

Natural Resource Feature(s) Nearby? □Yes □No New Impervious Surface Added (Square Feet)
See City of Franklin Property Viewer and/or WDNR Surface WaterData i e - pavement, roof, gravel, etc
Viewer for approximate natural resource feature /ocatrons See City of Floodplain or Floodway on Property? □ Yes □ NoFranklin Unified Development Ordinance 15-4 0100

Estimated Starting Date mm/dd/yyyy //20 Estimated Ending Date mm/dd/yyyy /20
All work shall be completed without unnecessary delay

PERMIT APPLICATION FEE SCHEDULE
Class Fee Description

1 $50 1/4 acre up to 1/2 acre disturbed

1/2t0 2 acres disturbed, Supporting or Adjoining Natural
2 $100 Resource Features (see UDO $15-8 0302A 6), and Adverse Drainage Impacting (see UDO S15

8 0302A 7)

3 $250 2or more acres disturbed,
+ $5 $5 00 for each 1,000 sauare feet disturbed or portion thereofm addition to the base 2 acres

Acknowledgement and Agreement to Pay for Construction Site Review, Inspection, and Enforcement:
By submitting this permit application, the applicant and their agents, servants, or contractors agree to comply with all applicable codes,
statutes, ordinances, and with all the conditions of this permit Further, the applicant and their agents, servants, or contractors have
reviewed and understand Franklin Municipal Code Chapter §129 and Division 15-8 0300 of the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance (UDO) pertaining to erosion and sediment control and shall implement the erosion and sediment control plan (control plan),
control plan statement, best management practices, final stab1hzat1on, and/or restoration as apphcable to the permitted activity and as
may be required by any permit granted for thus project

The landowner(s) further grants the right of entry onto the property which 1s the subject of this Permit Application, to the City of Frankhn
City Engineer or designee, for the purpose of inspecting, reviewing, and enforcing compliance with Franklin Municipal Code Chapter 8129
and Division 15-8 0300 of the City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) The landowner(s) qrant this authorization even 1f

City of Franklin - Construction Site Erosion Control Permit Application Page 1 of 4



Franklin
W 4 SC O N S I N

City of Franklin
Engineering Department

the property has been posted against trespassing pursuant to Wis Stat §943 13

As a condition of approval and issuance of the permit, the City Engineer or designee may require construction site inspection, review, and
enforcement by City representatives or other personnel on behalf of the City If required by the City Engineer or designee, the applicant
shall be responsible for any and all charges related to the inspection, review, and enforcement of the construction site plus five (5)
percent for administration and overhead These inspection, review, and enforcement charges are in addition to any permit fees or surety
that may be required

The construction site inspection is for erosion control and the frequency is at minimum once per month Depending on the conditions of the
construction site the inspection frequency may be increased City completed construction site erosion control inspections shall not be used
as the applicant's inspections as required under Franklin Municipal Code $129, UDO $15- 8 0300, and $ 216 46, Wis Stats

2022-2023 Construction Inspection Rates for reference only (mileage based on City rate)
• Construction Supervisor - $147 00/hour • Tech 1- $77 00/hour
■ Tech III - $109 00/hour • Survey Crew (2-person) - $210 00/hour
• Tech II- $95.00/hour • Survey Crew (1-person) - $148 00/hour

• GADD Tech IV- $114 00/hour

By signing below, the applicant hereby acknowledges and certifies that the information provided by the applicant upon and with this
Permit Application is, to the best of their knowledge and belief, true, accurate and complete Furthermore, by signing below the applicant
hereby understands and agrees to pay all charges related to construction site inspection, review, and enforcement plus five (5) percent
for administration and overhead
Printed Name (Applicant) Title

Signature (Applicant) Date

B ICCrty to omp ete eow
PERMIT FEE CALCULATION

Base Application Fee $□ Class 1 □ Class 2 □ Class3
additional increments of2 acres/500 cubic yards x $50 $

Permit fee to Collect $

SURETY AMOUNT $

□ Not Required I □ Letter of Credit- Date / Institution
□ Cash/Check- #/Institution ElBond- #/Institution
ATTACHMENTS
[] Erosion and Sediment Control Plan
D Site Grading Plan

I] WDNR Permit#(ifapplicable)
□ Other-

PERMIT APPROVAL BY PERMITTING AUTHORITY
The foregoing application is hereby approved and permit issued by the Permitting Authority subject to full compliance by the Applicant
with all provisions and cond1t1ons stated herein and on the follow pages hereof and all attachments hereto

By Kyle Baker Title Engineering Technician

S1gnature Date

City of Franklin - Construction Site Erosion Control Permit Application Page 2 of 4



Franklin
w 4 SC O N S I N

City of Franklin
Engmeermng Department

General Permit Conditions:
1 All conditions of this permit include, but are not limited to, the applicability criteria in Franklin Municipal Code Chapter §129

and UDO S15-8 0300
2 Each Construction Site Erosion Control Permit Application must include an erosion and sediment control plan in accordance

with UDO 15-8 0305 and UDO S15- 8 0307, except as set forth below
a In lieu of a control plan, a Class 1 applicant may submit a plat of survey depicting the area and describing any volume

of and the nature ofthe land disturbing construction activity, and the restoration to be performed, if any, together with
such other information as reasonably required by the City Engineer or designee (see UDO $15- 8 0306A)

b In lieu of a control plan, an Adverse Drainage Impacting Class 2 applicant may submit an erosion and sediment
control plan statement, which shall briefly describe the site, including a site map, the best management practices that
will be used, and the site development schedule (see UDO S15-8 0307B)

3 An application may have to include additional information (see UDO S15-8 0306C) and any permit granted may include
conditions, including, but not limited to a form of surety bond or letter ofcredit (see UDO S15-8 0306D)

4 Permit Requirements All permits shall require the responsible party to
a Notify the City Engineer or designee within 48 hours of commencing any land disturbing activity
b Notify the City Engineer or designee of the completion of installation of any control measures within three days after

their installation
c Obtain permission in writing from the City Engineer or designee prior to modifying the control plan
d Install all control measures as identified in the approved control plan
e Maintain all road drainage systems, stormwater drainage systems, control measures, and other facilities identified in
the control plan and document repairs in a site erosion control log

f Repair any siltation or erosion damage to adJoining surfaces and drainage ways resulting from land developing or
disturbing activities and document repairs in a site erosion control log

g Inspect the construction control measures after each rain of O 5 inches or more and at least once each week and
make needed repairs and undertake such other or additional inspecting and activities as recommended in the Storm
Water Construction Technical Standards prepared by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources

h Maintain and repair all erosion control measures within 24 hours of inspection, or upon notification by the City
Conduct any filling activity so that at the end of each day the surface shall be graded to drain and be free from broken
concrete and relatively free from gravel, and that the upper four inches thereof shall be of soil suitable for growing
grass The surface of said filling shall be kept free from dust at all times during the filling activity and thereafter
Allow the City Engineer and/or designee and/or City representatives to enter the site for the purpose of inspecting
compliance with the control plan or for performing any work necessary to bring the site into compliance with the
control plan

k Keep a copy ofthe approved control plan on the site
I Sweep or clean any material that was tracked offsrte as directed by the City Engineer or designee
m Perform dust control operations as directed by the City Engineer or designee

5 If a land disturbing construction site activity involves 1 or more acres of land disturbance, a permit is additionally required
from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources prior to the commencement of such activity

6 This permit is separate from any erosion control fees associated with building permits
7 If work is proposed within Public Right-of-Way, a permit to construct, maintain or repair infrastructure within Public R1ght-of

Way is required for any work in the Public Right-of-Way Application forms can be found atwww.franklinwi.gov.
8 The Permittee agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City, its employees and its agents, from any cost, claim, suit,

liability and/or award which mght come, be brought, or be assessed, because of the issuance or exercise of this permit or
because of any adverse effect upon any person or property which is attributed to the partially or entirely completed works of
the Permittee This responsibility applies both when the site is attended and during off-hours, any holiday, and the hours of
nght when the site rs unattended

9 Call before you Dig Permrttee is responsible for notifying Diggers Hotline 1-800-242-8511 and having all existing utilities
within the right-of-way identified prior to construction All utilities shall be located within three feet of the right-of-way limits
unless specific dimensions are shown on the attached plans

10 Upon completion of the work, the Permittee shall file a written notice to the City of Franklin Engineering Department along
with a record drawing of the completed work Final approval and release shall not be granted until the City of Franklin grants
approval

11 The permit does not transfer any land, nor give, grant or convey any land right, right in land, nor easement
12 The City Engineer reserves the right to revoke this permit at any time if in its Judgment, it is mn the best interest of the City of

Franklin to do so The Permittee Is still under obligation to make complete restorations
13 Municipal citations may be Issued for failure to comply wth the terms of this permit per Franklin Municipal Code Chapter

§129
14 Failure to comply with the terms of this permit may result in additional actions pursuant to Franklin Municipal Code Chapter

§129-4 and/or §129-10

City of Franklin - Construction Site Erosion Control Permit Application Page 3 of 4



Franklin
W 4 S C O N S I N

Special Permit Conditions:

END OF PERMIT CONDITIONS

City of Franklin
Engineermg Department

PERMIT CLOSEOUT AND RELEASE OF SURETY

Upon Completion of the permitted work please contact Kyle Baker, (414) 425-7510, kbaker@franklinw1.gov to review and process the the
permit closeout and release of any surety

COMMENTS ON CLOSEOUT

D Work appears to have been completed sat1sfactonly and all surety may be released

D Work was not completed sat1sfactonly and all/some of surety 1s kept Describe

Final Inspection By Title

Signature Date

City of Franklin - Construction Site Erosion Control Permrt Application Page 4 of 4



City of Franklin

Office Use Only
Permit No. ---------------
Issue Date:
Expire Date:

Existing Fill/Soils Disturbing Permit Application

Engmeenng Department

](f€S;
Owner: _
WIDNR Permit No.

9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132-9728 414)425-7510 Fax. (414) 425-3106

FILL/SOILS DISTURBING PERMIT APPLICATION

Thus permt applcaton andpermt are authorized by Dvis1on 15-8 0300 ofthe Caty ofFrankl Unified Development
Ordnance ("UDO") Please call the Engineering Dept at 414-425-7510 wth any questons regardng this applcation

Classes of Applications:

Class Fee Nature ofland disturbing construction activity
I $50 1/4 to 1/2 acres disturbed and/or 25 to 100 cu. Yds. fill or excavation
2 $100 1/2 to 2 acres disturbed and/or 100 to 500 cu. yds. fill or excavation; Supporting or Adjoining Natural

Resource Features (see UDO $15-8.0302A.6); and Adverse Drainage Impacting (see UDO $15
8.0302A.7)

3 $250 2 or more acres disturbed and/or 500 or more cu. yds. fill or excavation;
+$50* *$50 for each 500 cu. yds. or portion thereof in addition to the base 500 cu. yds.

Class at fee amount of$ plus_ additional 500 cu. yds. at $50 =$ Total Fee Paid

Application Notes:
I. Each Fill/Soils Disturbing Permit Application must include an erosion and sediment control plan (see UDO $15

8.0307), except as set forth below.
2. The fill site plan shall include existing and proposed contours, site cross-sections at a minimum of 100-foot

intervals or closer on smaller sites, and perimeter down sloping no greater than 4: I.
3. In lieu of a control plan, a Class I applicant may submit a plat of survey depicting the area and describing any

volume of and the nature of the land disturbing construction activity, and the restoration to be performed, if any,
together with such other information as reasonably required by the City Engineer or designee (see UDO §15-
8.0306A.).

4. In lieu of a control plan, an Adverse Drainage Impacting Class 2 applicant may submit an erosion and sediment
control plan statement, which shall briefly describe the site, including a site map, the best management practices
that will be used, and the site development schedule (see UDO $15-8.0307B.).

5. An application may have to include additional information (see UDO $15-8.0306C.) and any permit granted may
include conditions, including, but not limited to a form ofsurety bond (letter ofcredit) (see UDO $1 5-8.0306D.).

6. If a land disturbing construction site activity mvolves I or more acres of land area, a permit is additionally
required from the Wisconsin Department ofNatural Resources prior to the commencement of such activity.

Applicant Agent/Owner to Complete:

Nature ofland disturbing construction activity:
Describe: (fill, grade, etc.) _
[,a1d f€a [11VO[Ve]; (QC[CS)
Volume ofMaterial: (cu. yds.) _
[OCa[1911{) pf[j][ (]yr€'

Natural Resource Feature(s) Within 100 Feet: [ ] YES [ ] NO
[rte(] '[qrt [)q[%;

[r9posed (pp[ein ])ate€,,



I have reviewed and understand Division 15-8.0300 ofthe City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance pertaining to
erosion control and I shall implement the control plan, control plan statement, best management practices, and/or
restoration as applicable to my activity and as may be required by any permit granted to me for this project.

I further grant the right of entry onto the property which is the subject of this Permit Application, to the City of Franklin
City Engineer or designee, for the purpose of inspecting and momtoring for compliance with Division 15-8.0300 of the
City ofFranklin Unified Development Ordinance

I hereby certify that the information provided by me upon and with this Permit Application is, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, true, accurate and complete.

Property & Location:
Street Address: ----------------
City/State/Zip.
Tax Key#: _

Owner(s)
Name: -------------------
Street Address----------------
City/State/Zip-----------------
Tax Key#: _
Phone: -------------------
Fax: --------------------
Email:-------------------
Date: _

Signature: _

1a[a[lfC,

Applicant /Agent
Name:-------------------
Street Address:----------------
City/State/Zip.
Tax Key#: _
Phone: -------------------
Fax:--------------------
EmaiI: -------------------
Date:--------------------

Signature: _

FILL/SOILS DISTURBING PERMIT

The above Fill/Soils Disturbing Permit Application is hereby conditionally approved upon all of the above statements and
terms and the terms and provisions of Division 15-8.0300 of the City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance,
including, but not limited to the requirement of the Owner and any Applicant Agent to notify the City Engineer or City
Engineer's designee within 48 hours of the commencement of any land disturbing construction activity, and all other
applicable laws. This approval is also subject to those conditions as may be set forth below.

Conditions of Approval:

Approved By:

Franklin City Engineer or Authorized Representative
2

Date



Franklin,,
For reference
Engineering and SWMP Review
Application - no fee

y fFranklin

APPLICATION DATE

ENGINEERING AND STORM WATER 1'MP DATE tyu otily

MANAGEMENT PLAN REVIEW APPLICATION
9229 W LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WI 53132

Phone (414) 425-7510 Fax (414) 425-3106
Application Forms and Handouts can be found at www.franklinwi.gov

PROJECT INFORMATION [orint leaiblvl
APPLICANT [FULL LEGAL NAMES] APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY [CONTACT PERSON]

NAME NAME

COMPANY COMPANY

MAILING ADDRESS MAILING ADDRESS

CITY/STATE ZIP CITY/STATE ZIP

PHONE PHONE.

EMAIL ADDRESS EMAIL ADDRESS

PROJECT PROPERTY INFORMATION
PROPERTY ADDRESS TAX KEY NUMBER(s)

PROPERTY OWNER PHONE

MAILING ADDRESS EMAIL ADDRESS

CITY/STATE ZIP DATE OF COMPLETION H y o+4 e n

APPLICATION MATERIALS
The following materials must be submitted with this application form. *incomplete applications and submittals cannot be reviewed

□ This application form accurately filled out with signature or authorization letters (see below)
J Three (3) collated hard copies of the construction plans (see City of Franklin Design Standards and Specifications for requirements)
D One (1) collated hard copy of the Storm Water Management Plan (see Division 15-8 0600 of the City of Franklin Unified Development

Ordinance pertaining to Storm Water Management Plan requirements)
DJ Electronic storm water management modeling files

DJ One (1) copy of all necessary governmental agency permits for the project or a written statement as to the status of any application
for each such permit (electronic is acceptable)

DJ Four (4) hard copies of the Plat of Survey (see Plat of Survey reguirements)
□ Email or flash drive with all plans/submittal materials

APPLICABLE FEES AND CHARGES

There is no base fee for submitting an application for review The City of Franklin Engineering Department utilizes consultant engineering
services or other personnel for Storm Water Management Plan (SWMP) review and related construction plan reviews The applicant shall
be solely responsible for any charges related to said reviews The 2022 hourly rates for the City's consultant engineering services typically
vary between $100 00/hour to $210 00/hour depending on the extent and complexity of the review The charges will be the actual cost
for the SWMP review and related construction plan reviews Review frequency and length varies on a project-by-project basis and the
hourly rates noted above are for reference only for the applicant's use in estimating potential charges

City of Franklin - Engineering and Storm Water Management Plan Review Application Page 1 of 2



AKNOWLEDGEMENT AND SIGNATURES
The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that (1) all statements and other information submitted as part of this apphcation
are true and correct to the bestofapplicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge, (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read
and understand all information in this application, (3) the applicant and property owner(s) understand that any and all charges and
fees related to Storm Water Management Plan review and related construction plan reviews associated with this application are the
responsibility of the applicant, and (4) the applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made
by them in thus Application and its submittal, and any subsequently issued building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked
without notice ifthere is a breach ofsuch representation(s) or anycondition(s) ofapproval By execution ofthis application, the property
owner(s) authorize the City of Franklin and/or its agents to enter upon the subject property(es) between the hours of 7 00 a m and
7 00 p m daily for the purpose of inspection while the application 1s under review The property owner(s} grant this authorization even
if the property has been posted against trespassing pursuantto Wis Stat $943 13

(The applicant's signature must be from a Managing Member ifthe business is an LLC, or from the President or Vice President ifthe
business is a corporation. A signedapplicant's authorization letter may be provided in lieu of the applicant's signature below, and a
signedproperty owner's authorization lettermay be provided in lieu of the property owner's signature[sJ below. If more than one, all of
the owners of the propertymust sign this Application).

□ I, the applicant, certify that I have read the above page detaihng the requirements for Engineering and Storm Water Management
Plan and related construction plan submittals and understand that incomplete applications and submittals cannot be review

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE APPLICANT SIGNATURE

NAME & TITLE DATE NAME&TITLE DATE

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE

NAME &TITLE DATE NAME&TITLE DATE

City of Franklin - Engineering and Storm Water Management Plan Review Application Page 2 of 2



-0
C C
(U 0

·-l/) +-'
+-' u·-E OJ
L Q_

Q) ~
0.... -

~e
C +-'o
..0 0
'- )
:::J
+ C• o
0 ·v,
-o e
Lu
(U
_J



C

-$
c
ro
S-.
LL

EQJ
CL
QJu
C
ro

..0:J
--}
(./)·-0
U
C
ro
_J

+-'
C:
Q)
I...
I... •
3u
•

.;::: a,
VI VI

"'O IV
... .0
ro a,
>- ..c:.....

• •

Q)
..c
+-'
b.O
C:

E
"O
0
E

v,"'
Q)

e
C:
0
+-'rou
a.a.
ro
±2
E
I...
Q)
a.
Q)
..c
+-'
b.O
C:
b.O
C:
ro
..cu
+-'
0
C:
Q)
I...
ro
C:
0

•

VIro
0
0
CY')
0

Ico
I

I/')
.-I
0 QJo
::::> ~

..a...
::J
t%
"'O

ro
::J QJ
O" ...
QJ ro
h. k
0

0........
C:
0u
C:
0
VI
0...
a,-0

"O
0
..c
+-'
Q)

E
+-'
C:
Q)
I...
I...
:l
U 0

0
b.O O co
C: 0 -V).
V) N I

6 V> "Vl- +-' 0 0
d0 vo O.=g ':

O on o±: oo , n
EV) ,-v,.O I

? ,- o F ov oc
QJ QJ c. O + b0 a.
0- 6 ? a, ro c. .,, ro >EGG±>a
Q)
u • • • • • • •
Q)
0:::

•



V)
QJ

I

>:c
1=
0
E .;
c! ~
0 m
ti ii.. ,,
Q. C

-~ ;
E e
0 "'t: 5-
""a. ~--- Cl'! 3"g55

"'"'

88
%8
..;,.;

C
C 3
.. 0
E .la
a, C.. "2 z

±
a, C
- 0!

%

"J!!
C·e
lil

8
5i

e
::I
3..
mu

5±zC---,
~ E
"vi E
.. 0oc u

88
d u'i
9

s
2
-::.
E
E
o=u <(

8838

,,
C
0
.D
4s
i,
;;

8±
$$
m N
U<h

8
§
,.;

8
§
,.;

u.
"'
%

" 5
J!! £ii La.C "'0

%E...... ;;r
<( "'8.. %
3!
9m "'..

E
L
QJ

CL
QJu
C:
(U

....a
L
:J
+-,J
V')

0

(U
0..
u·-c
~

E

·-

-a
C:
(U
_J

u
£
0
E
0
C
8
0

.5
"ii..
!z

..
ii...
C..
i1j



z
QJ
6j

co;::....
Ill::s

"C
C

C "C
3.: 0 ~
e O eo- - 8Li. ty h 
.o 85
CO C CO
o e
C co O Eg 9 o
0 , '3>>s:.::: u

6
0
oip.
(l
-l/).

>0
ri
,:;:tv
0
C:
0·,.:::;
u
QJ
a.
VI
C:

.:.:::::..
VI...
::]
0.c

L/')

i
I

L/')

•

I...g
Q)

-~+""
Q)
I...
0
E
Q)
I...·-

C
0·..:;
u
Q)
c..
V)
C·-

•

•

±2
E
I...
Q)
c.. ~
o::::I" 0
Vl E=I... VI
Q) QJc.. .cu
V) C:97

·- L/')
V) ci
; «-e°+"" C:

£
I... QJ.., _
V) -
e
9 5...

"U
Q)
+""±:

•

>±u
Q)
..c
+""
I...g
C

.Q
+""u
Q)
c..
V)•E
I...g
I...
Q)
c..
V)

E
I...
..::
o0•.:!=
::::s
V)
C
0u

.....
Q.J
E

>u
C
Q.J
:)
rr
Q.J4-
c
0
+-'u
Q.J
0..
(/)

C

(/)

Q.J
bDro
...cu
-0
C
ro



,_
0

X
(1J

E

,_
Q)

e.o
(1J

••

u
..0
:Ju
"-
QJ
bO
C
0
0
C

>

•

...
C
0
+-'u
QJa.
(/)

C

QJ
.'!=
(/)

0
+-'

0
+-'
+-'
C
QJ
E
QJu
"-g
C
QJ

(/)

s
oo
::>

E
""O
<(

(l)
""O
0u
QJ
>
+-'ro
"
+-'
(/)

C

•

±,_
Q) QJ
a. u
QJ C

..c ro
+-' ..0 ."!=
- E0 :J'- ...., ID

o .2 o
QJ ""O rocu
"'O '+- ,_ ,_8 0 0 0

- Ea, ro OJ ,_o
C 0

±-> ""O O O - o
: % 6 o
E ro .!!? QJ 3: ~
"- QJ +-' (/) al tl.()e s .s(/) ::::, ..0 :.= ..0
C QJ ..c QJ ro ,_
:J ~ >..0 Q.:::::I

o =o 3.5
..C U +-' C "'O

0 - no 5 EC.±
- E o ' ? oQJ • '+- ·- l w
- - +-' N QJ4 d) > rQ. Q. ro C C ro "'O +-' ro0. 0 C ::::, C O ,_ro ... o o o ...., o..c V> o·- > O«->k ooo co c>

a eo oo 8,o >g <a?a s+8e
h. • a. +-' a. ·;:: - vo2ro a. ro .!!? ro a, u 0 O -v,. ::::,3 > o o co

QJ o o±:F± oe !+«- >
- EGGE o o =

"- '+- "- a, • - 99 ro a, QJ _g E- a" ,+ +
- O a Gnu-2 >a. 111 a. ro 111 111 111 'Vl-- • , ·-

'" ·- +-' ro a, ..... ·-"' ' Q t:: = ""O ..C '+- C C C QJ •- = Xz>.-·-c,O cog Egg
S=Ego ro E E E . "-
'" ·- "- V>,..,.,. -;; QJ E a, a, a, ro QJ - vi\., '+- C.., I ;;:,, (/) ,_ ,_ .... C a. ::::, ·-
a av!' +v e9L ""O Q. 'l"'"'I 111 CU ~ :!;:-

>o- oa g8335 3
QJ +-' QJ QJ ..c ...n ro ro ro ..,.. ·- OJ

- G -4+-<ooo<EE5
-"' ""O ""O ""O ro .5 ><ro a. c ""O ..c QJ ro • • • • • ro •
QJ ::> ro <( U o::: > ~
a.
QJ •

0:::

'+-
0
C
0·..:;
ro
QJ
"u
QJ
"-

""O
C
ro
ro
QJa.
QJ
0:::
(/)

QJu
C
ro

..0
"
:J
+-'
(/)

""O
""O
C
ro

•

co
·--(]
"-'l"'"'I
QJ "
bO QJ,>
0 a.- ro

ro O..c
QJ zu
a.
QJ •

0:::

LI)
O
l

V)
c
0u

C
0

u
C
::J
0u
S-g
C
0
-I-'
(U
-0
C
(].J

E
E
0u
(].J

a::



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

An Ordinance to Amend $207-21 of the Municipal Code
regarding Special Assessments ofWater Main Laterals

MTG. DATE
February 6, 2023

ITEM NO.

€.
BACKGROUND
[This item was brought to the Common Council on October 18, 2022 (Item G 9) and the item was
tabled to be brought backanddiscussedat this Committee ofthe Whole meeting where there would
be more time to discuss Below is the textpresented in the October 18, 2022 council action All
options are provided againfor discussion J

There are several water main projects currently in the works where residents will be asked if they
want to connect to the water system. Connection to the water system is generally optional (note
that connection to the sanitary sewer is not optional). For those that want water service, they will
tell us where they prefer the tap and service lateral. Other property owners may have no intention
of ever connecting to our water system, or have a desire to, but not at this time.

Historically, the City has discouraged/prohibited installation of water laterals (service
connections) for homes that did not have intention of immediately connecting. Copper laterals
tend to go bad if left in the soil, unused. With today's non-corrodible plastic-based materials, the
old concerns have little merit.

Considering the new pipe materials, Staff would prefer to install water laterals for all homes as it
would eliminate future road cuts to install taps and laterals. However, such a decision would make
projects more expensive at the time of construction without ability to recoup payment from
assessments. Staff suggests that the lost cost of unused laterals is a better situation than continued
road repairs as homes do eventually make connections.

Staff would like guidance for a consistent method on water main projects. Current water main
projects in the works are located on S. Lovers Lane (Water Tower project), S. Lovers Lane
(Phyllis-Herda), W. Minnesota Avenue, and W. Ryan Road. Options are discussed below:

The Franklin Municipal Code Sections $207-15 and §207-20 provide guidelines for utility
assessments. § 207-21 discusses assessments for water main laterals.

The assessmentfor water main laterals installedfrom the main to the private property line
shall be based upon accepted contract bidprice quotation plus 16%for administrative,
engineering and inspectionfees. The owner, his or her agent or heirs ofsuchproperty shall
be assessed a lump sumfor each lateral installed.

OPTIONS & ANALYSIS
Option 1: Status Quo. Do not install laterals for future use.
Although this is the most fiscally advantageous option for the City or Developer during the
construction of a water main project, this is more expensive for the property owners should they
decide to connect later as the future cost for a single project has the sole burden of contractor
mobilization, construction site costs, road repair, etc.

Invariably, future road patches over the future connections have increased road maintenance
1sSueS.

Option 2: Install taps and laterals for all homes/buildings regardless of intent to initially
connect to the water system.



This option is the most expensive up-front option for the City and developers as costs of projects
will include the additional laterals. Even for properties that want to connect and reimburse the
City, many will choose City-finance options.

Costs will vary from project to project, but as an extreme case, it has been estimated that the new
water main on S. Lovers Lane would have 26 laterals at a cost of$148,000. It is conceivable that
none of the Lovers Lane homes would initially connect and many ofhomes will "never" connect.
Likewise, the Ryan Road water main has 12 homes that have previously expressed a desire to not
connect and the Minnesota and Phyllis-Herda water mains may have at least one property not
initially connect. Note that water laterals beneath S. Lovers Lane and within the Wisconsin
Department of Transportation right-of-way are significantly more expensive than same side
laterals of a City street/ right-of-way like W. Ryan Road and W. Minnesota Avenue.

Inspection services may flag the affected parcels in their software and charge impact connection
fees at the future time of connection. These fees tend to increase over time.

Option 2A: Each property would be specially assessed for cost of constructing the
lateral using existing assessment methods.

The City has an assessment process in place and the Finance Department would track these
assessments. Depending on the water main financing method, the property owner
may/may not be assessed for the water main. If City funded, the property owner is
assessed. If developer financed, the assessment would only occur if connection happens
within 10-years.

There are deferment options that can defer payment up to 10-years. Deferments end earlier
if connection is made or property is sold.

Option 2B: Each property would be specially assessed for cost of constructing the
lateral using a proposed indefinite assessment method.

The indefinite deferment would end when the property chooses to make connection to the
public water system. Ifno connection were ever made, no collection of a special assessment
will ever occur.

Projects would only include laterals to properties with existing structures (homes) or lots
small enough to make an educated guess at a convenient future location. Large parcels that
could have a home placed in a variety of locations would not have a lateral installed. This
would not preclude Staff from conferring with property owners for desired locations of
laterals.

Option 2C: Each property would be specially assessed for cost of constructing the
lateral and an indefinite deferment would endwhen property is sold.

The indefinite deferent would end when the property chooses to make connection to the
public water system or property ownership is transferred. This deferment could extend for
many decades until a property ownership is transferred, but would eventually be paid.

The Board of Water Commissioners (BOWC) discussed this issue on September 20, 2022. The
BOWC recommended that Common Council adopt option 2A where each property would be
specially assessed for cost of constructing the lateral using existing assessment methods.



BOWC noted that Staff would need to use judgment on properties that could be split up or are
difficult to tell where a home or business might be located. Staff suggests that laterals be only
installed for "nondivisible lots" as consistent with other descriptions elsewhere in §207-20
Assessment for water mains. Divisible properties, of any zoning would not have laterals installed
at the time of water main construction. In addition, the lots should be developable so services
aren't extended to properties that are predominantly full ofwetlands or other particular features.

The BOWC also recommends to Common Council to redefine the calculation of assessment for a
water lateral. This calculation is found in §207-21 Assessment for a water main lateral. The
current calculation is the actual bid price + 16% for administrative, engineering, and inspection
fees. BOWC would like to average the cost of the laterals on a project so there is no benefit or
penalty for the location of the water main in relation to someone's home. Staff proposes that the
bid costs of all laterals be averaged with a 16% increase for administrative, engineering, and
inspection fees\.

BOWC also asked Staff to verify with the Public Service Commission (PSC) if there are any
special requirements for assessment of water laterals. Staff received an answer from the PSC on
September 22, 2022. "It is PSC staff's opinion that it makes sensefrom apracticalperspective to
install the utility ownedportion ofthe service lateral at the same time as the main. Wis Stat
66 0911 seems to be consistent with Schedule X-2.A ofFranklin's water tariff IfFranklin plans
to change its past policy and to now install service laterals as part ofspecal assessed main
projects then Franklin shouldpass a resolution stating its new policy."

Note that average cost method is allowed per State Statute§ 66.0911
66. 0911 Laterals and service pipes. Ifthe governing body by resolution requires water,
heat, sewer andgas laterals or servicepipes to be constructedfrom the lot line or near the
lot line to the main orfrom the lot line to the building to be serviced, or both, it mayprovde
that when the work is done by the city, village or town or under a city, village or town
contract, a record ofthe cost ofconstructing the laterals or servcepipes shall be kept and
the cost, or the average current cost oflaying the laterals or servicepipes, shall be charged
and be a lien against the lot or parcel served.

Considering the BOWC recommendation to Common Council, and the response from the PSC,
the proposed language for §207-21 Assessment for water main lateral would be:

All non-divisible, developable lots shall have a water main lateral installed when a
water main is extended. The assessmentfor water main laterals installedfrom the main
to the privateproperty line shall be based upon the average cost of the accepted contract
bidprice quotations ofallwatermain laterals on the projectplus 16%for administrative,
engineering and inspectionfees. The owner, his or her agent or heirs ofsuchproperty shall
be assessed a lump sumfor each lateral installed.

Note that none of this affects the property's owner right to choose to connect or not to the new
water main.

FISCAL NOTE
One of the options presented affects the funding sources for a watermain project that are
determined on a project by project basis. Option 2B has an impact where there would be expenses
that would never be recovered. Option 2C has no timeline for recovery of all services, but would
eventually be recovered when a property is sold. Options 1 and 2A would recover all costs within
22 years for those that choose to finance over 12 years after a 10-year deferment.



RECOMMENDATION
Authorize Ordinance 2022-an ordinance to amend §207-21 of the Municipal Code regarding
Special Assessments of Water Main Laterals.

Engineering: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND §207-21 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS OF WATER MAIN LATERALS

WHEREAS, the City wishes to install water main laterals at the time of constructing water main
projects to avoid future road repair concerns of water laterals that are connected at a later date.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin do hereby and ordain as
follows:

SECTION I. Section 207-21 "Assessment for water main lateral." of the Municipal Code of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended to read as follows (additions double underlined,
deletions in strikethrough):

All non-divisible, developable lots shall have a water main lateral installed when a water
main is extended. The assessment for water main laterals installed from the main to the
private property line shall be based upon the average cost ofthe accepted contract bid price
quotations of all water main laterals on the project plus 16% for administrative, engineering
and inspection fees. The owner, his or her agent or heirs of such property shall be assessed
a lump sum for each lateral installed.

SECTION II.

SECTION III.

SECTION IV.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in contravention to this Ordinance are
hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage
and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City ofFranklin on the day
of,2022, by Alderman _

Passed and adopted by the Common Council on theday of,2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk



AYES NOES ABSENT


